
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Date: 01/02/10 Telephone Enquiries  01752 304867 Fax 01752 304819 

Please ask for Nicola Kirby, Senior Democratic Support 
Officer (Cabinet)  e-mail nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.

uk 
 
 

CABINET 
 
DATE: 
TIME: 
PLACE: 

TUESDAY 9 FEBRUARY 2010 
2.00 PM 
COUNCIL HOUSE, PLYMOUTH 

 
Members – 
Councillor Mrs Pengelly, Chair 
Councillor Fry, Vice Chair 
Councillors Bowyer, Brookshaw, Jordan, Michael Leaves, Monahan, Ricketts, Dr. Salter 
and Wigens 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business 
overleaf 
 
Members and Officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 

BARRY KEEL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

BARRY KEEL 
Chief Executive 
Floor 1 - Civic Centre 
Plymouth 
PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Public Document Pack



 

 
CABINET 

 
 

PART I (PUBLIC MEETING) 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on 

this Agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
  
 To sign and confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 19 

January 2010. 
  
4. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC    
  
 To receive questions from the public in accordance with the Constitution. 
  
5. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be 

brought forward for urgent consideration. 
  

CABINET MEMBER: THE LEADER 
  
6. DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2010 - 2013   (Pages 9 - 48) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Assistant Chief Executive 
  

CABINET MEMBERS: COUNCILLORS BOWYER AND RICKETTS 
  
7. OVERVIEW AND UPDATE OF PEOPLE, ICT AND 

ACCOMMODATION STRATEGIES   
(Pages 49 - 56) 

  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Corporate Support 
  

CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR BOWYER 
  
8. CORPORATE ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN   (Pages 57 - 104) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Corporate Support 
  
  
  



 

9. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 
AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY   

(Pages 105 - 146) 

  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Corporate Support 
  
10. 2010/2011 BUDGET (REVENUE AND CAPITAL)   (Pages 147 - 204) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Corporate Support 
  
11. ADVERTISING SERVICES   (Pages 205 - 206) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Corporate Support 
  

CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR MONAHAN 
  
12. PROPOSAL TO EXTEND THE AGE RANGE, 

REDESIGNATE AND CEASE THE RESIDENTIAL 
STATUS OF WOODLANDS SCHOOL   

(Pages 207 - 228) 

  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director of Services for Children and Young People  
  
13. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) 
of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
 
That under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private.  
Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are 
discussed. 
 

CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR BOWYER 
  
14. ADVERTISING SERVICES (E3)   (Pages 229 - 236) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Corporate Support 
  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Tuesday 19 January 2010 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday 19 January 2010 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Mrs Pengelly, in the Chair. 
Councillor Fry, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Bowyer, Brookshaw, Jordan, Michael Leaves, Monahan, Ricketts, Dr. Salter and Wigens. 
 
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 4.10 pm. 
 
Note: At a future meeting, the Cabinet will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be subject to change.  Please 
check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been amended. 
 

104. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
The following declarations of interest were made in accordance with the Code of Conduct from 
Members in relation to items under consideration at this meeting – 
 
Name Item Declaration Reason 
Councillor Fry 
 

Minute 119 -  Tamar 
Science Park 
 

Personal and 
Prejudicial 

Director of Tamar 
Science Park Ltd 

Councillor Jordan Minutes 106 and 108 
– Life Centre 
Construction 
Contract Award 
 

Personal and 
Prejudicial 

Sub- contractor 
known to him and 
member of 
Mayflower Trust  

Councillor Jordan Minute 107 - Life 
Centre Project 
Scrutiny Report 
 

Personal and 
Prejudicial in relation 
to Construction 
Contract Award 

Sub- contractor 
known to him and 
member of 
Mayflower Trust 

Councillor Michael 
Leaves 

Minute 115 – 
Compulsory 
Purchase Order 
Resolutions for 
Council Housing 
Blocks in Devonport 
 

Personal and 
Prejudicial 

Brother owns Kerr 
Street Social Club 

 
105. EXEMPT BUSINESS   

 
Resolved that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 

106. LIFE CENTRE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD (E3)   
 
The report of the Director for Community Services was submitted together with a copy of the tender 
report by EC Harris. 
 
Members were advised that the decision was regarded as urgent on the basis that some of the 
funding requires expenditure by 31 March 2010.  Commencement of the contract at the earliest 
opportunity was crucial in ensuring that this grant was able to be utilised and was not lost. 
 
Resolved that the reports are noted. 
  

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Councillor Jordan having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, withdrew from the meeting 
during consideration of the item). 

 
 Note: This item has been designated as urgent in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution 

and is not subject to the call in procedure. 
 

At the conclusion of the item, the meeting moved back into Part 1 (Public Meeting). 
 
LIFE CENTRE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD   
 

107. Life Centre Project Scrutiny Report   
 
The recommendations of the Customer and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel, as amended 
by the Head of Policy, Performance and Partnerships in consultation with the Councillor James (Chair 
of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board), were submitted. 
 
Councillors Fox (Chair of the Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel) and James 
(Chair of the Overview and Management Board) presented the scrutiny recommendations to the 
meeting.  
 
Following consideration of the recommendations, 
 
Resolved that – 
  

(1) scrutiny recommendation (1) is accepted and noted;  
  

(2) thanks be extended to the Customers and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel for the quality of the scrutiny review work undertaken; 
  

(3) 
  

with regard to scrutiny recommendation (2),  
 
�  the Panel is advised that during the construction process there will 

inevitably be changes required by the very nature of the procurement 
route and the construction process. There is a robust change 
management process in place and both Officers and Members 
understand the need to be able to quickly respond to issues as they 
arise; 
   

� the request to append any change orders to the monthly project 
manager’s report is accepted however these will contain some 
commercially sensitive information which will need to be dealt with 
accordingly; 
 

(4) 
  

with regard to scrutiny recommendation (3),  
 
� the Panel is advised that the design of the Life Centre has been 

undertaken in accordance with all relevant legislation and guidance, 
including those relating to access and the Disabilities Discrimination 
Act (DDA). The Plymouth Disability Action Network (DAN) have also 
been closely involved in the development of the design and layout of 
the building; 
   

� however, Cabinet accepts the need to ensure that facilities and 
management processes are in place which ensure that this issue is 
dealt with and to ensure that the facility is accessible to all;  
 

(5) 
  

scrutiny recommendation (4) is accepted and Cabinet looks forward to 
engaging with the Panel at appropriate points during the progression of the 
whole programme of works; 

Page 2



 
(6) whilst contractual incentives of this nature are commercially sensitive, 

scrutiny recommendation (5) to keep the issues highlighted under active 
consideration is accepted; 
 

(7) 
  

with regard to scrutiny recommendation (6),  
 
� the Panel is advised that it is in the contractor’s interests to maximise 

the use of local resources and labour such that transport and 
accommodation costs are minimized; 
   

� however, the recommendation to continue to engage with Balfour 
Beatty around these issues is accepted; 
 

(8) scrutiny recommendation (7) is accepted and engagement with partners 
will take place as recommended; 
 

(9) scrutiny recommendation (8) is accepted and officers in Development and 
Regeneration and Culture, Leisure and Sport will seek to ensure that 
Development tariff monies are allocated appropriately and to the benefit of 
the scheme wherever possible; 
 

(10) scrutiny recommendation (9) is accepted and reports will be provided as 
requested. 

 
The Leader thanked the scrutiny panel for their hard work concerning the scrutiny process on the Life 
Centre Construction Award Contract. 
 

(Councillor Jordan having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, withdrew from the meeting 
during consideration of the item). 

 
108. Life Centre Construction Contract Award   

 
The report of the Director for Community Services was submitted.  
 
Members were advised that the decision was regarded as urgent on the basis that some of the 
funding requires expenditure by 31 March 2010.  Commencement of the contract at the earliest 
opportunity was crucial in ensuring that this grant was able to be utilised and was not lost.   
 
Having regard to minute 107 above relating to the scrutiny recommendations of the Customer and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel, as amended by the Head of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships in consultation with the Councillor James (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board), 
 
Resolved that the contract for the construction of the Life Centre building is awarded to Balfour Beatty. 
  

(Councillor Jordan having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, withdrew from the meeting 
during consideration of the item). 

 
 Note: This item has been designated as urgent in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution 

and is not subject to the call in procedure. 
 
(The items referred to in minutes 106-108 above were brought forward in order to facilitate good 
management of the meeting.) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



109. MINUTES   
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2009 were signed as a correct record. 
 

110. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   
 
There were no questions submitted by members of the public. 
 
CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS   
 

111. Quarterly Scrutiny Report   
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board Quarterly Scrutiny Report was submitted and 
Councillor James addressed members on the quarterly position generally.  
  
Resolved that - 
 

(1) Cabinet commends scrutiny for its contribution to the city’s improvement 
agenda; 
  

(2) Cabinet acknowledges the board’s role in the scrutiny of the Local Strategic 
Partnership; 
 

(3) 
  

scrutiny resources are kept under review to meet expanding role; 
 

(4) 
  

Cabinet will seek opportunities to allow further and earlier scrutiny of 
documents in the budget and policy framework prior to Cabinet approval. 

 
(In accordance with Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the Chair brought 
forward the above item for urgent consideration because of the need for a Member decision). 

 
LOCALITY WORKING   
 

112. Locality Working Scrutiny Report   
 
Councillor Fox (Chair of the Joint Task and Finish Group) presented the recommendations in the 
scrutiny report as approved by the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board. 
 
Member’s attention was drawn to Appendix 7 of the report of the Director for Community Services on 
the findings of the Joint Task and Finish Group. 
   
Resolved that – 
  

(1) the recommendations in the scrutiny report as set out in paragraphs 9.1.1, 
9.12 and 9.1.3 are supported and the recommendations have been reflected 
in the proposals;       
  

(2) with regard to the scrutiny recommendation set out in paragraph 9.1.4,  
although the concept of directing resources against need is supported, the 
allocation of budgets needs to be done through the usual budget-setting 
process.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



113. Locality Working   
 
The report of the Director for Community Services was submitted. 
  
Having regard to minute 112 above relating to the scrutiny recommendations of the Joint Task and 
Finish Group, 
 
Resolved that – 
  

(1) 
  

the introduction of locality working is supported according to the 
model proposed, in particular:  
 
� by appointing a lead councillor for each neighbourhood with 

responsibility for raising community priorities relevant to Locality 
working and agreeing solutions with Locality Service Coordination 
Teams (LSCT). The work of the LSCTs being guided by these priorities 
plus any strategic priority identified by the LSP Executive; 
 

� wherever possible, the lead ward councillor for each Neighbourhood to 
be allocated by agreement amongst the party with the majority 
amongst those councillors with wards which cover the Neighbourhood. 
Where necessary, Party Leaders and Independent councillors to be 
involved to reach agreement on the allocation of ward councillors to the 
relevant Neighbourhood lead role.  Arrangements to be reviewed 
annually; 
 

� the establishment of six Locality Service Coordination Teams (LSCTs), 
with representation from key services covering: Community Safety, 
Children & Young People, Health & Adult Social Care, and Street 
Services; with additional services represented where locally required; 
 

� each Team having a Locality Lead, a senior person to be appointed 
from the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) partner organisations, who 
would have this responsibility in addition to their current role; 
 

� the work of the LSCTs to focus on prioritised more complex problem 
areas or issues that require a joined-up response (i.e. that cannot be 
sorted direct by individual services); 

 
� replace Area Committees with strengthened neighbourhood 

engagement, including enhanced PACT (Partners and Communities 
Together) initiatives, web-based consultation, liaison with 
neighbourhood organisations, Third Sector involvement (voluntary, 
community and charitable organisations), questionnaires and surveys, 
and other appropriate neighbourhood based methods; 
 

� to support Localities working, information should be available covering 
local issues, feedback from consultation and community engagement, 
and data on city-wide priorities, all disaggregated at Neighbourhood 
and Locality levels in a way that can inform decision-making and 
service responses; 
 

(2) Recommends to Council that Area Committees are discontinued, with effect 
from 1 June 2010, and that consequential changes to the Constitution are 
made to reflect this; Area Committees to be replaced with strengthened 
community engagement  mechanisms at Neighbourhood level as outlined in 
the Locality working model; Area Committee functions to be delivered direct 
by the Portfolio holder in consultation with ward members. 
  

Page 5



(3) 
  

agrees to delegate to the Director for Community Services, in consultation 
with the LSP, the conclusion of details of locality working including terms of 
reference for the LSCTs and the development of PACTs, role profiles and 
working arrangements; 
 

(4) 
  

agrees to keep Locality Working under constant review and to requests a 
Scrutiny Task and Finish Group be established 12 months after 
implementation to formally review progress. 

 
The Leader thanked the scrutiny Joint Task and Finish Group for all their hard work 
concerning locality working. 
 

114. EXTENDED DESIGNATION OF BIRCHAM VALLEY LOCAL NATURE RESERVE   
 
The report of the Director for Development and Regeneration was submitted. 
   
Resolved that the designation of the extension of Bircham Valley Local Nature Reserve is endorsed, 
and the Head of Legal Services is instructed to draw up and sign the legal documents that complete 
the formal designation. 
 

115. COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER RESOLUTIONS FOR COUNCIL HOUSING BLOCKS IN 
DEVONPORT   
 
The report of the Director for Development and Regeneration was submitted. 
  
Resolved that having full regard to the rights of the individual to have a public and independent 
hearing if they object to the loss of their property, assets and rights under the compulsory purchase 
procedures and under the Human Rights Act 1998 and to the purposes for making the Compulsory 
Purchase Order sufficiently justifying the interference with the rights of those having an interest in the 
land affected under Articles 1 and 8 of the First Protocol to the European Convention on Human 
Rights, Compulsory Purchase Orders be made pursuant of S17 of the Housing Act 1985 in respect of 
the areas outlined in black on the plans submitted (in the event that they are required) relating to – 

   
(1)  2 – 72 Granby Way; 11 – 37 Park Ave; 1 – 31 & 2 – 48 Granby Green; 1 – 

47 St Aubyn Road (Granby Green Area) (Map at Appendix A) 
  

(2) Granby Street (138 – 224 Evens) (Map at Appendix A) 
 

 
(Councillor Michael Leaves having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, withdrew from the 

meeting during consideration of the item). 
 

116. JOINT PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE BI-MONTHLY REPORT   
 
The report of the Corporate Management Team was submitted. 
  
Resolved that – 
  

(1) the forecast overspend on the General Fund Revenue Budget and the 
actions being taken by Directors to reduce the overspend by year end are 
noted; 
  

(2) the repayment of a second dividend in respect of monies invested in 
Heritable Bank bringing amounts now recovered, including interest, to 
£907,594, is noted; 
 

(3) 
  

the movement on the capital programme during the period is noted and the 
inclusion of new schemes totalling £0.745m, outlined in paragraph 6.8 of the 
written report and scheme variations totalling £0.211m, outlined in 
paragraph 6.10, are added to the programme for 2009/10. 

Page 6



 
 

117. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE 2008/09   
 
The report of the Director for Community Services was submitted together with the report of the Care 
Quality Commission.  
  
Resolved that the report of the officers and the report of the Care Quality Commission is noted. 
 

118. EXEMPT BUSINESS   
 
Resolved that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 

119. TAMAR SCIENCE PARK (E3)   
 
The report of the Director for Development and Regeneration was submitted. 
 
Resolved that – 
  

(1) the establishment of the Plymouth Science and Innovation Programme is 
supported as set out in the report and agreement is given in principle to 
enter into a contract with other members of the proposed Plymouth Science 
and Innovation Programme Board to establish its precise terms of reference 
and governance. 
  

(2) agreement be given in principle to contribute up to a maximum of £1.5 
million re-financing to the Tamar Science Park subject to confirmation of the 
funding set out in the report from partners (as referred to in the written 
report), satisfactory governance arrangements being established as set out 
in recommendation 1 above, confirmation of compliance with State Aid 
rules, and clarification of the precise claw back arrangements; 
  

(3) 
  

agreement is given in principle to the termination of the existing joint venture 
with the University of Plymouth and the establishment of a new joint venture 
with the University of Plymouth governing the operation of the Tamar 
Science Park, as well as an necessary resolutions required as a Member of 
the Tamar Science Park Board, including amendments to the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association, to fit in with the new joint venture arrangements, 
and to prepare the necessary legal documentation to provide the £1.5 
million re-financing referred to in recommendation 2 above; 
 

(4) 
  

agreement is given to delegate authority to the Assistant Director of 
Development & Regeneration (Economic Development) in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Finance, Property, People and Governance to 
prepare and finalise the necessary legal documentation in relation to all the 
above matters, including authority to sign any resolutions amending the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Tamar Science Park. 

 
(Councillor Fry having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, withdrew from the meeting during 

consideration of the item) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject: Draft Corporate Plan 2010-2013  

Committee: Cabinet 

Date: 9 February 2010.  

Cabinet Member: The Leader, supported by Councillor Ricketts and 
Councillor Bowyer 

CMT Member: Assistant Chief Executive, supported by Director for 

Corporate Support. 

Authors: Peter Honeywell, Policy, Performance and Partnerships 

Contact: Tel:  (01752) 305603 
 e-mail: peter.honeywell@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:     

Part: I (one)   
 
Executive Summary:  
 
The council’s vision is to be excellent by 2012 as part of its contribution towards the vision for 
the city described in the Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 
The corporate improvement priorities set out in the attached draft Corporate Plan are those 
topics on which the council must focus in order to make the most progress towards both the 
vision for the city and for the organisation.   
 
Listed below is a suite of documents that work together setting out the intended strategic 
approach to the deployment of physical, natural, financial and human resources to ensure 
delivery on those priorities, improve performance and meet customer expectations.  
 

• The draft Corporate Plan 2010-2013 (as part of this report) 
• Updates of the People, ICT and Accommodation Strategies (presented as a separate 

agenda item) 
• The Asset Management Plan (presented as a separate agenda item) 
• The 2010/11 Budget (Revenue and Capital) Report (presented as a separate agenda item) 
• The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (presented as a separate agenda item) 

 
These documents are being presented to Cabinet as part of the same overall agenda as collectively 
they provide a view of what the Council plans to do to meet its objectives and how it will deploy its 
resources in support of these goals. 

 
More detailed actions to support the corporate and city goals will be embedded into business 
plans across the organisation and in plans from the partnership theme groups. 
         
Corporate Plan 2010-2013   
 
The draft Corporate Plan is a three-year plan updated on an annual basis. This is the third 
year of the current three year cycle.  Attached is the revised Plan for 2010-2011, which builds 
on the previous year and sets out continued activity to deliver on the priorities first set out in 
the 2008-11 plan.  The plan also sets out the intent to review and potentially revise the 
structure of the plan next year at the outset of the next three year cycle. 
 
            

Agenda Item 6Page 9



Implications for Integrated Revenue and Budget Report and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The draft Corporate Plan 2010-2013 sets out the vision for the Council and states the 
corporate improvement priorities, including outline plans for how these will be delivered within 
available resources.  
 
Decision makers should have regard for the agreed priorities and strategies when making 
any future decisions about the allocation of financial, physical and human resources. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 
Risks, health and safety and inequalities have been actively considered in developing the 
corporate improvement priorities and supporting strategies. Where issues have been 
identified the documents and any supporting action plans set out how they will be addressed. 
  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
It is recommended that cabinet: 
o Endorse the integrated strategic approach to delivering on priorities that is set out here. 
 
o Commend the draft Corporate Plan to full council for adoption subject to minor 

amendments and editorial changes being delegated to the Chief Executive and the 
relevant portfolio holder. 

 
o When subsequently considering adoption of the related reports and strategies to do so in 

the context of this aligned framework. 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
The Corporate Plan sets out the strategic direction the Council will take for the next 3 years. 
It highlights those areas where we still need to make step change in our performance. It also 
sets the context for the Council’s budget, therefore it is not feasible to consider the option of 
not producing a Corporate Plan.   
 
Background papers:   
• Updates to the People, ICT and Accommodation Strategies 
• Asset Management Plan 
• 2010/2011 Budget (Revenue and Capital) 
• Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
• Corporate Plan 2009-2012. 
• Securing the Future for Generations Ahead  (Sustainable Community Strategy 2007-20) 
• Existing Medium Term Financial Strategy 
• Audit Commission: use of resources key lines of enquiry. http://www.audit-

commission.gov.uk/useofresources/downloads/UoR2009OverallApproach.pdf 
• Audit Commission: Corporate Area Assessment - joint inspectorate proposals for 

consultation (summer 2008.) http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/caa/downloads/CAAConsultation08.pdf 

 
Sign off:   
 
Head 
of Fin 

DN 
Corpf 
900013 

Head 
of Leg 

DVS 

1098. 
 

Head 
of HR 

 Head of 
AM 

 Head 
of IT 

 Head of 
Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Giles Perritt, Head of Policy, Performance and Partnerships 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

����������	
������
���

 

Striving for excellence 

Plymouth City Council 
Page 11



 

     Our shared vision 

Vision
One of Europe’s 

finest, most vibrant 
waterfront cities, 

where an outstanding 
quality of life is 

enjoyed by everyone.

A Safe 
and strong city

A Wealthy
City

which shares
and creates
prosperity

A Healthy
place to live

and work

A Wise City 
a place for 
learning,

achievement 
and leisure

Vision
One of Europe’s 

finest, most vibrant 
waterfront cities, 

where an outstanding 
quality of life is 

enjoyed by everyone.

A Safe 
and strong city

A Wealthy
City

which shares
and creates
prosperity

A Healthy
place to live

and work

A Wise City 
a place for 
learning,

achievement 
and leisure

 

  Our council’s ambition 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

����������	
����������
	��
���������	
������������
������
�
���������
����������
	�
����	�����������	������������
	
������������������
�
�������������
	
�������	�������
��
������������ !�

Page 12



 

Foreword 

Purpose 
��������������	
�����
��������"��
�����������������������
�#�$��
%&�
'��������������

� ����������(���%����������������
������
������������#��������
������

� �������������������������
��������������%��������
���

��(���

� ����

��(������)��������(������
�������������������������
������������

� ����������
*��������+���������
��������(����������%������������
���������

� ,�$�$��$�

���(�����������
����
�����������������+�������

� ,�$�$��$�

���
%������
�������
��������

'����������������#����������������
*��
����-�����%��������+�%(������%�����
�����%����
�%�+���������
�������
�������������������%������%����
���
���������&�'������+�����������(�$��
����������������������%�������%����
��������%�������%����������&�

��������������	
������������������
�����)�����+���������
�����(����
�&��
����������������%���������������������
���
����#������������
���$�

�+��
��������%������

�������$�%����

�����������%�������������������#��
��������������
�&��
�
'������
�������������������
�����������
$�

������
��"��������������&�'�����
����.������������%�������&��'���
�����������
���������$�$������"�
�+���������%�������& 

��'��/����+���$��
�����������	
�������$��
%�+����������0�(
��%*��1��
%�
����+�%��������2&�'�������+�%�������������
����$�

������%�������
���

����������
��+��������������������������&����������������$������������%���������+����
	
���������%�$�����%�������"����������������(
�&�1����������������������
�����"�������
����������(���������
����(�����%��%����%�3��
�������
�����������
��

����(����������������%���"���������%�����������������4�����1���&�

��/����+���$�����(��%����������$���
���
����������������������%��������%�
��������������+
��������������������������������$������5(������
�(*�����
����3��
�����������$��"����������(�����
��%����(�����
�����(���������%�
����(��(���������������������&����������������������������
�$����
����%����
���������(�5$�

*�������(���������� ��������������

������������&���"���
��(������������.�%(��������������%�����������+
��$��������������������%�
�������������
������&�������������#��

������������������%���������
�����
��������������%�$��"&�1�������

����
�����%&�

�������������
�����$������%�
��4����
����������������
����%�������������(�
$�

���������

��������������������������������%6��������%���+
��
������������������&����������������������+������+���(������%���������������
��$������������������������
%���*�������
��������

�$��(�����7�+��	������
��%�$������������

��(��(�������������������4���(���%��(���%����"�%�������
���
%���*��4�����������������������������&�

��1�����%����������������
�*����������������������������������������%����
����������
������$��
�&��
����(�����������������������%�������������%+��"�
%�������(��%�����	
����4����������
����������������$����$���������
�#�������������������

&�1��������%%��������������������������(
�������$��
����������������&�

�����$�

����������%��(������������������$���
�����������
����������(���
��
����
��&������������
������
������������(���������������������������%�����
(��$������.��������+����
�����$�$����
��������+������������������
�"��
$���������������������+�����%���������%�����)�����
�+��������&�1��$������
��������+
�������$���������
�����
��������%����������(��3��
�������
���&�

��1��
���������%����������%������+�%(��������$�

�����(�%���%����������
���
��������+�((�������

��(�������������#����$����������
�"�
�����+����
��������
�����(����������������
����������������%�������+
������������
��

�$��(�����(
�+�
�+��"��(�������&�1�*

����%����$��"�����������%��
����
���
��%�����������������+�������������������%���(����
�+��������$���������%�
�����
�����������������
�����%���%���������������+��������������������������&��

��� !� �
�"��"��#���������������
$���������#����#%�����������
$��������#��#���������%��
&�#����#��'��������%������
&�#�#�

�#��(��#�#�������'�����'������%��
)		!�*+,��
������������+����"������	����������
��-���
�)����)'��������������������������������
��&�#�#��#��������������
��.���	
����/��"�������
����������
��*����������'�"�������������������
��.���������'�����
����
0�������
����"����������������

��
�
�

�
�
�

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1�����.��
��
����2�!3�����"��

4�"����	��'�

���
-�������2�����������
�

Page 13



 

�"��"��#��2��������������
 
8��������������
�������������(�
��������
��������������������%�
�������%��(������+���������
��%����������������� �����
��$�.�+��+��$�������!���%�
���!&�
�

�

'��������������(��������
$�������������������(�����
���+����������%�
������(������
��������
���6����$�

����
�������3������������������
������������������%��������
�3�������������$������
�������
+������6��
����������(�����
��$�������������
���
��������
�����������%���������$�
������

�

'������
������������(������
(��$����������������+
��$���
��%���%����(��������+���
����������

�

'����������%����(����
�����%�
���������3��
���������������

�
������������%�������+�������
����(��$��(�3��
�������
������%�
��������������������������

�
�
�
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

�

�

����"������2������������

0�1����������������������$��$����	
����������+������9�������0�����*���������
�������+�����$�����������������$���������������%��(�3��
�������
���������.���%�+��
��������:&�1��%������(�����%����+���
�����+����$�����������������%����"�������
�����+�����&�1��$����	
����������+�������������
�������������������6����������
���������(
��+����������������������+������������������$���&��

5��������������"��(�����������������%��������������
�������(�+��$����	
�������
4���%�;��0%(����+��������������%�	
������������%�/�������&���8���������
�
�����������������+�(���

��(������&�8��������������������%�+������;��"������$������
�������������
%�(��$����$�%�����������������%�������(�������#�
��������$����������
������(&�'����������

��(�	
��������������������������
����(�������%���������+
�6��������
��������������(
�������������(���������%��
������%�������&�

6�8��������������
����(��$��(���������*������
����������������������������
���������
�����%���������(������������������%�%����+����������(����
���+&����������(������
���������%���
����(�������
����
���%������
���������%���"��(������
�����������+����&�
'��������������%��(����$����$�

�+����(��$��(���%�����(��(�����
�����������$�
$��"������%��������������������������
��������%�$�
�����(�$��&�

��'��������+��
%��(�������������(������%�%���
����(������������������
��"��(���%�
��������+
��������������$�������������������(�����%������(�(�����&�0������(������
������������(��3��
��������������$��"���������������������
�������$��"����
�����%�
���������������&�'�������(�������.���(���$����������������
�"�������������������
�
���
���%�+��������������%�������.������%������%���&��

���'������
����+��
%��(���$�
������(������������������������
������%�������������
��(����������������������������&����������������������������
������(������
������������������%����������%�����"�

�����������������$������<����������������%����
����������&�'������+������)
������(����������
�"�����
�����%������
������������������
������������+
����%�+���(��(������������(������+�������������
���
����
���
&���

���'��������%���
����(�.�+�����������#�(��$�������������%�����%���(�������(�
+����������������������������%�����������������%����������%���
���%����
����������%�
����������%�
������&�,����(�����+����������������������(����
���(������������%���
�����%����������������(��$��(���(���������%���%���
����������3��������������������
���������������/�������%&�'������
����(�����(������������������������
�����������
$�������������������������=�����
���������;�����7���������/��������&��0#�
�����(�
��%���������(�����(���������������
�"������,���������
�	��"���%�4����������
����"&�'�������(�����������������$����������������
�"��/��"�*�����������%�����$����
��%�%���
������������$�

�
��"����������(�������������;�

+��&���

���'������
������.��������(�������
�"��/�����������%�>�����	�������&��0������(�����
������(�����"����%��������%�����$��������������
�������
�%&�	����%��(����������%�
���
����������������������������%�������%���������&�7��
%��(��������������������$�

�
�����%��
���
���%��������

����(��������������������
�����&�,����(����������(���
�������
��%�����������������&��

���'���������������������������������+����$�������

����%�(�������6�����$���������
�������������������������%�����(��3��
�������
����$���������������(��$��(�������
$��"��(��(�����������%&���+�������
���+���������&�1���

�����������������
������
�������(���&��

����"������2�����������������

���1��$���������������������+����������������������������(�$��%�&�1���������
��"����������������������������������������������%���������(���3���"����$�������
������������&��1��$�

��������������(����%������%��(�����������������*�%�������(�
���%����%����������$�

�+�����������%���%���������

���������%���������������
���%��$�������������+
�&��

�����������$�

��������������������$�����������

Page 14



 
1��������%���������%�
����
�#�+��������

*��
��$����
�������%������
�
%�������
�����
�����������
����������������������
�%����������� ��������
%����
��%����%� �������������
�����

$��(
��$����������?�&���
���+����������

����+���������
��������������
%��������%�
���!���������(��%�����
��3��������%���%����"�����
���%���(�����������������

7���
��$��%����������
���������������%����������%�
+�
"��$������������������
�
�����(����
����������������
�������������+��"�������
����
�+���������%�����!��
�3���������������(�����

��������.������������$����$��
%��

 

��������������%����������������������������$��������+�������������������%����%�
���������������������������������+
�&�8�������������$�

�"��$���������%��%����
������������������#���������������%�$����$���#������������������������&�4��������
$�

�+�������%�%�����
���
�������(������������
���%�$�������������(������&�1��$�

�
����������������%+��"���%���(�(���������������������%���(����%�%�
�������������
�����������%���������������$�

����������������������������
��������$�$��
�������������%�%��
����������������&���������������$��������������$�

�+���$�)
$������+
��(��������������
������
�������%��������$����$�������+������
%&�

	
����������'����#�

�������������'�

���1��
���$��$���������������������%����%����������������$���
���������������
��%�����������
�*��+��������������"����
��%����%���
����(��������������$��%�������
��������������������������������$��%&��������3��������"��(����"����%����

���#�
�����(�
��������&�1��$�

����%����%�����������������������������������&�8�����(�(������
�������1��
%�����+�%��������#���
������������������������(������(��%�&�����������
��������
��
����������%�������$��������������%��������������(��%����%�����
����������������%����(������%%�%���(�����������
������(�+��������������%�
���������(�$����������
��(���%���%����(�����
�����+������������&�������
����������(�
��
�������
��%�+����������������$��������%����������

����������+
����(������������%�
(���������������
����������
�����������+�
�������
��%���%��
�������������&��

One Place and Total Place 

�0�������%��������������������

�%��������������58���	
���*���������������������
������������������������������$��
����%�������+
��������������%��������������$������
��&�5����
�	
���*��������������������������������������"�����
��"������������������
��+
����#���%�������������������������������(�������$�������
���
�����������
���%�
��$����������������+�����%����������������������$����������������������%�
������
��%��������������������&�������������������������������������������������%�����
�������%�
����������������������������
��
��������
�����������$����������$�

�+��
��������%���������������+
�����������&�'��������$�����%����%�����������������$��
%�
�����������������������
�������(����)
����������������������
���
����$��"��(����
+���(�����������
������������
����%�������������������������������$������%�$��
����+�����������������)�����$����������+
��&�	���
��$�������������������������
%��
��������"�����������������(�����(����+
������
��%��������(����%�$����������
�������
���
�����%�������(�������%��
��$����������������
����������+
�&�������������
%���
�������������������+���%��������������
�"���������
%������%�@���(�	���
�*��
�����������/���
�����������������%������+��$�����%�
�����
�����%������
������
$�

�+�������������������������&�1��$�

��
���+��$��"��(�$�����������
���%�
��(����
����������������������,�������%��������������(�������%�����A�(����
�
/���
��������(����������������(��$������+
����(������������%���������.�+�
��������&��������+
����$�����������������%������
�������
�"����%����(�����
�*�������
��������������
���(����
%����$����������������%���%�����(�����
��
���������������
&�
0���������$��"�����
���
$��������
����$��"��(�������������������%�$������������&���

Delivering services daily 

�5�1��
����������(������������%�
��"��(������$���%����������������$���������(�(��
$��������������������������(�������$����������%�
�������������������%��
��+����&�
1��������%���������%�����
�#�+�������&�1�����������������%������������������������
����%�������%�������+
�������
���(��������%��������%�������%�����������&����%�������
$�����
��������� ��������
�����������������������������&�����������������������
$��������������+
�������������
������������������(�������������������
�
�(��
������
��%���(�
�����&�8�����
�����������$������������������������������
������&�4����
����
��������������������������������������
��������������+�������������+����$��(�
��
�+�����+��"�����������(���������&�8�����������������
�(�
���
����������$�������
��������������
��$����������
%������%������������%�����������%����
����$����$���
���%���������
��$������(�������(�
������&�8������������������
���������������������
������������)$�%����������
�"�����������

���������%���������
�����(&�1��
�������
����������	
��������������������$�����$�����%������������$��������������(���
������(������������$��"������(���������%���+���������������
&�

Page 15



 
�

1���'����
���"���������������
��

�6�7���(����
������������������
���(��%�������������������������
��������������������
�+.����������%�������������+�������������������
&�1��$������������$�����(���
+��$����������������������%������������������(�%�������������������(�����������
����&  

��4�������+�
������%�����+�������������
�$����+����������������
������������������
����+�������&�	
����������������������
�$�������+���������������������<B���%�$��
$�������"������������$��&������������
�$���
��������%�����������+�������������+��
��C�+���������%���������������$�%����$����+���>��$��"������$�

���
��
���
�
+������������%�������+
����������������������%����������&��

&�"��'��
���������'���2����

�

���4��������������������������������������$�

������������������������������
�����������
��+�����������������������������������������������
��%���&��7���������$�

�
+��������������$�����$���

����%����%������+��&�0������(�$�������

����������
������%���%��������������%����������%��$�������$��$��"����������$��%������(����
�����������������������#���
���������&�����������������%��(���
�������������+���

�
������
��"��(������$�$������+�������������������%����������������������%���(�
����(���������������������&�������%����+������(��������������+
��$������$��%��*������
�#���
��$�����������
����������&�����������������$�����$�����%�������%��
����
�����(����������������(������������%���������
����������������&��

/��!�.!7�)8!)/��9���:��+-�1:/+�!//�

���
���������7���'�	���
��  *�"�
�����������8�'����������
� /�
���������0��������
%�;�������

�(��%��
� /���
�����������������
%����

��%�@���(�	���
�*�������
� 4����������D�������
��
� ���
%������������
� E���
��������������%����������
� 4���(���%��(�
� �%�������F�E�������(�
� @�����8����%��(�
� ���
%����$����%���+�
������
� 7�����������������
� 0�������
�$�

)+���(�

 

� � @���(���������
� 4����
����
����%�����������
� 0��
��������
� 	
���
� 4����
�*�+��
%��(����(������
� � �����D���������)�������
� ���
%���*����������
� 0#���%�%������
���
� �%�
��
������(�
� 0%���������������������%�

����%��%��
� ���
%������%�����(�����
�*��

�������������������������
�����$-%���(� 

� � ���%���%����������
� 7����������%������������
� 7��
%��(�������
�
� 	�+
�����(�������$���
� A��%��������
� ��������(�
� 4������
�(����(���%����%�

�������������
� �������"��(�
� 	
�����(�
� A�(����������
� ��������$��%�����
� 0��������%���
�������
� ,�����(�������(��

� � ����������(������
� ����	�������;��"���
� 	��������������������(�

��������
� 0�����������������������
� ����)�����
�+���������
� ,�����(��

��������

�%���������
��������
�����������

� >��(�+������%�
��(����������

� 7��
%��(��
�����(-4��������
� �����%�+
��,�����(�

����������/��"����� � ����������/�������/��"�����
� � � '���������������+��"��������

��%������������������
� 4�����(���������������)�

���������������������
� ������������������G���������

�������
� ,�����(���%�������
���#�

+��������
� ������
���#���

�������
� E�������
�����(��������%�

������(� 
� ������;���(����� 

� � ,���������������G��&(&�
�%����������

����
�����%�
�������

� 7������%��������%�
������(���

� /�������������������
� 0
��������
� ���%�;����*���������
� ��(�
���������G��&(&�

����������������������(�
����(���%��(�

� A��"�����(������

� � ����2�!3�����"�;��:����

� �%�
�������
������G��
%���
����
�6�
������(��������
���%�
��������%���+�
��������%������
�
���
���

� 03����������%��%����������
� /���������������
� ��������������
� /�����������
� A���%�����
-�������������
� 4��������(�����
��
� 4����
����
��������%�����������

���������
� �����������������
� 	������
���%�����������
� ��
�����������������
� ��+���������%���������

�

� 4����������
�����-�
���������
� ����������%���������
� ������������
� 	����,��
���
� �������(���������
��������(�
� ���%��(�����%��%��
� 	��"�������������
� /�(�1��%���-	����������
�
� H���(��4��������
� �

��������
� 4�������
�����(�
� 	�

������
� E��%��������
� A��������

�������
� 1�����%������
-�����
��(�

�
� � ����
��������������%�

����(������
�����(�
� ���������������

�

� � ����
�4�����(���
	�������������������

� ������������
��������%�
���������������������

�������������(�$����������������,�����(�����"������$����������(��	
�����������������,�����������7��������$�����+��H������%�

 

Page 16



 

Where are we now? 

�"��"��#�

���1��������������%��$�

�����������������%��%.����
%�
�����������(�������������������(��(�%����%�&�
��������"�����������������������
�������$���
���������

������
���%�$����	
�����������������
,�������%������$�

���
����������������������%�����
������������
���
�����������(�%���������%���������
���(�+������%���(������������������������������
%���%�����(�%������&�1���������
%������7������H��
����%�$�����$�

��

�$�����(��������������
��������������+��������������������%���������
��%����(������(����������
������%������%��(�
�$��
����
������&�1�������+���������(������.�����)I����(�
�#���������������������������

������������������%�
������$�������(�����+����������������$���������%�+���
���+�������
�$�������������������+���&�8���
�%��������
������������%������������%�
���$����
%����%�������%����������$�

&�1�������������

������
+���(�������������1��
%�����+�%���%���������
�
/���
�������E����$��"���%���(����������
�������������������������������������(
�&��

���1���������%������������������������������
�����)�����$�������������&�1�����+�+
��������

�����
������(��������
���������$�����%�+����$����������
������
���%�����������������������&�8�����������
�
����������������%���%���

�$��(�������

�������
�(���������������������������.�+����
�������$������
$�

��
���%�����������������$��"������%���
������&�
1���
���������������$��"������(�����������
(������������%��
�������%���03��
�	���
�(��
�����&�
1��
���������������������������%�%����+����(�
��
�������+
��������������������������%+��"���������
+�����������������������
��
�������(������	
����
4�����&�

�����������"��)����)���������������������

���1��%�%������$�

���%���������$������������&�
1��$����(���������������������������������������
������������������������%��������������������
��
��
���������������������
���
��������%���+
���
�������������$����	
�������������
�������
���&�1��
$�����$��%�%���(������
�(�)�(������
�(������(���������
�#��������
���������������������������)���������
$��"�������������(�����
��%����(�����
�����(�������

��%�����(��(���������������������&����������
�%�%�����
�����0#�����+��+��(�����������4����$����#�
������
��%�����
����%���������&�������$�����

����"�%�+��
�����(�������������$��"��(�����������������
�
���
�
���(��$�������������(�����������������������������
������(���
���
&�1���
������������
���������%���
�����%�(������
�(�����$��"������%�����������
��������������
��
��%�����������
����&��
����(��$��
�������%������%��
�(���������(������������(���������
�����������������������������%����
������3��
������
��%��(�����������"������
�����%��������
�"�������(��
���(���������
%���%��+��������%����"��(�$�����
�������
����������&�8������������������"��+����
������%�����������������������������������(�
���"����(������������������*����.���(���$������%�
�����$��(�����(���(�����

�&����������������������$��
$�

���$����%����(�����%%������
���������&�

���1��$�����
����%�������������(�$�

������������
�
�������.�%(�����������������%���������(���������
��������������%�����������������6�$��
��$��$����
�����������������(�$�

���������

��������������������
�%�
��4����
����������������&������+�������+����
�����%�������
%���������
��������

�$��(�����7�+��	�
�������%������(���%��������������������������%�
��������������5���������������
���%�����������*�$��
����������

��(��(���

���������������4���(���%��(���%�
���"�%����������
%���*�����������������������������&��
���������������������������$��������%����"��(�����
��
��������������������������&������$�

�������
����
�����
(������%������8����%�+����
������+
������

����(�����
+����������������������������
%���*�������������$�
$������%���(���%�$�����$�����%�����������&�1��
�����������(������������������������������������������
��$�$����������������(����������������&���"���
��(����������������
���%����������.�%(�������
�������%��������+
��$��������������������%��������
������
������&�

 ���	
����/��"���������������������������

���8���	
����4����������
���$����%�����������(����
�����$��������������
��������������������&�8���
�������$����
������%����%�%����(����������%����
$�������)I����(�����(��$���������������������
�(���������
�$�
���
���������������������
��&�1��%�%�
�������
��
��+�%
����������

��������������$��������
������
�$�������
�����������������������%�����
$������������%��������%���� ���������������������
��������������
�&�8���������������%��D�������������
����
�����	
�������$������������%�$����������
���
�
�����$�����$����&����������(����������+��������
������������������(�&�8�
����C��������
����
������
������
������%�%���
�������������$������� �C�%�%�
���6�$��
����������������������(��������(�%��������
����������

��������&�4��������������������%����������
��(�������������������
������$��
��$�������"����%�

��(��'����"������������������"������6���

�� J��
�������������(���$�����
����������
���������%���������
����������������

�
� '��
��������������H��������������������������$�����������

��������������������������
�%���;��������������������
��(�
�3��
��������%�����%�+
�����������������+�
����

�
� �0�>�����.������������������%�+������������
���(����

��%���%���%������%����%
��(���������������(������%%�����
����������������%���$�+��������
�����

�
� 0#����������������������
�����������(����������$����

�����$����������������%�������������%���(�$����
�
� 1��"��(�$����,�(�+��������������������%���(��(��

Page 17



 
������������K!�CL�
�+�������K!�CL�$�������

�������
K!�CL��#���
����������6�����(�����������%�
�������
����
��������
�������%���C�$��
���������������$����
�
���
������$������ �C&�������

��������������������%�
���+���������������%������������$���%������������
��������+��������$�����%����"��$�$����������&�'��
�����������$��������������������
���
��
�"���������-�
(�

������K��CL���%���������-����������

��K!�CL������
������(��������
����(�������������������������������
�
��(�������� �C���%� �C6�$�����������(��$�����
��

������������%���(������������������������
���

��
$��$���������������(���������+�
�$������������
�
�����(�&��

�0�����	
����4������$�

�+����"��(��
����+�)�����

�&�
'�������
����������������������������������&�1�������
���������������%�������%��$�������$�

����
�������������+�������������
����������������
��������&�������

���4�����������#���
�����$����
��(����
���
���������������������(����
%������%�����(�
����
�&�A���
���
������������$�%������2�C����
���
%������%�����(�����
������(��������������
���
�
�����$�����������������
��(��%��
�������
������&�7������
���"����%��
���������K 2CL��
����������������%�
����

������K �CL���%�+������������������������
%������%�
����(�����
��K �CL�$��
%���"���������������������
+�������
�������
������&�,�$��������
%������%�����(�
����
��%�%��������
���������������$��$����
������%����
���%����������+��������
���
������$����� C����
��(�
��������������$��$����*��
����%��������

&�1�����%����
��������	
����4������������.��������$����������%����
����������$�������%������������������������������
%�
��������%����������������(�+����������+����������
�����(����
�������%������%��(&�E��������������������
�+��������������(����

��(����

�������������.���
$�����$��
��������
�������������

��&���������
���(�����������
�������.���������������(�������
�
���(��������������������������%���������������.���
�����+������&�8�����%������%��(������$��
��+��"���
���%�������+
�����������"��.�%(�������+��������"��%�
�������������$�����%����+����"��(���%��������������
$������
%������%�����&��

	��2�������������������

�5�8������������������+��������������������$����
! C������%��������������2-D����$��(����
����������������(����C����$���%��
�����(������
����-�2�%���&�1�����������+���������������
�
+�������"��(��
�+���%���������$�� �C��������
��%���������������+��������
���������������������
%�����+��������%���C��������������
�&��%�
�������
������
��������������������������(
�����������(�����
���+����������
��$���������������%����
����
��%����%���
����%����������������������������������
�������&�1���������%������������(������'����������
7��������
�����������������������������
��%������
��������+
�����
�������$��
��+����������%���#�
���%�����"������#���%�����(��&��8������+���%�
�����
��(���%����������(���%���������������
���

��(��(���%������$
�������%����������
����(���%���

����(���������%�$������������������
��(����"���$�����
��%���"���"������������������
��%��

����(���$�����
�
��������%��������(��&�;����������
��$����%�����
+���������0��
��@�����E���%������4��(����%�B���
4��(�� �����
�����%��������%����������������
���"�%����������
%������������(�
���
� ����B������(��
�����0�(
������%�;����&�	������������������������
����������������$��(�����(������������������
+��$�������
%���������%���%�����(�%�+��"(����%��
��%������������&�

/�����#���������6���

�� 	
�����������%�+��(�����������������������
�M���(���
������*�
��������M�+�����������������������(�$��"������
����������
����)�
����������������������(��%�%����
��%��(��������
%���������������

�� 4��������������������������$�����$��%�%�������)����������(�����������D�
�
����7��������$��%��)�����������
����������������������������������
(����������������)�����(��%����������$��%�&�

�� A����%����+�����������+����������K2DCL�����%�5���*���������$�
����
���������������*��7��������'�����������/��������K7'/L�������(��������
������.��������G�(����(�(�)����%������"�����$��%����
������%�
�����
?���������������������������������������������#���������&�

�� H�
%��$��%��������
��(�����������(����4�����1�������7
�����$��%��
��%����>��(�+������%��$��%����(��������5�������%��(������������*�
�����(6���
����(�
���$��%���������������
�7����������7
�����$��%��
�

� 4����%�������(�����(������
�(��$��%��������"�����������&�����,���������
�������%�����������
������������(����%���$�E���%���E��
%�����+����
(�������������
�%�&������
�(�������������%��(���$�
�����(������$�

)
���������%���%���������(�(�����������$�����������(����������
��������������
�������
�

� �����������(����%���N������������������J��
����������%�4������
$�����
��"�%�����������������������%�
�������������(�

����������
$�+�������%�����������
��������
������$������������%
����3���������%�
����$�
���������������(������������&�
�

� �����%�
��%��	��"�,����O����$��������
����%��������M��$��
��(���������*�����(���&��������.��������$�������,����O������������
�����������
�H����������>�$��4������%���(���$��%����%�����
����(�%��������
�����������(�+������%��������(����������
��������
�����

��(�(�����������������������
�(�����
���������%���"��(�����������
��������
�����$�
"������%&�
�

� �����
�����(������������������������A���
���$��	
�����(�'���������
�$��%�&�����.�%(���$����(
�$��(�$������������������+������$������
�����%���
���%����%
�%���������
�/���E����$��"&�
�

� 	
������"���+����-����8�����%�$�����>������
������%�+
��,�����
8$���������$��%�����7����������+���������>��(�+������%����%�
�����������&������������%���
���%����������������$����4��������
,�����(�������������%��$���������������������%���������%�+
��
�����%�������G�$�����������������������
��$����%���+�
�����&�

�
� >���%�����+������(����������$������������������
������������D�

4�����1�����P����+���	���������$��%�4������- ��%����(���I�����
�������+�������������+��������������������������������
�����������
�����$����������������������(����������(����������������

�$�����
�#���
�����������(������������
�������(����%�
�

� 7���"�H�����������������������(�+��
������(�����
��������������+
��
+��
%��(��������
�����%��������
�������$��������������(������	��.�������
����@�����$��%��������4�����1����7��
��0������������$��%�&�
�

� 1��%�N��$��������(������������������$�����(�
��������%�%����
�������D�7�������������
�����4����
�0�������������$��%������+����
����������������%���(����%����������������������
�&���

Page 18



 

 

/����(��������"�������2���������+	�	��'����������6���
��+����"��'�������������"���� � 5�+����"��'��(�

����������������
������"������
� ���������4�������0#��

����������%���������������%�
� 4��������
�+�%����+��������(����
�
��%���������/��H�9(�����(������(���

��(����(�����$���(�:�����������&�
� 4�(�����������%�������������+����������
������(���(��������

8�+�%����&�
� '������%���(�(������$��������������$������%���+�
���������������

������������������������������������&�

� � 4�(�������������������������������+���������
%�����������(���(��%�
���
����
���������������(����

� ���������
����������
%��������������(��������������������+����
� �������+�����������%���������
������������B4 �����
����+���������
����

���(���������������%������
��
� ;��������
������(������������%���
���
������0�(
������������%��������������

�����+�����&�

��+�2�����'������+�"�
"��'������������ � 6�*�"�
����'���'��<��
�����
��������
��������
� 5@���4��%�1��/�%M���
���������(��������%��������4�����+�����%�

����
��������(������%����������������������	��������������(����
>����+���K/��"������������������������&L�

� 	�+
���������������	
����4���������2�����
���$�������
����������$���%�
%���
������������

� 	�+
�����������M,�$�$�������
��$�������M�	
������M��4������������
����������'���
���������%�����������%�����	��������$����������
����%��%�����������
�������$��������%�������������������
���%�����
���������

� 0�(�(��������%������
���������
����$����+��
���������������������
����������������$��"��������(�������

�������+�������$�������(��%�
���������������������(�������(����%+��"������������+
�����%�����(�������
%���
�����������&�

� � ������
��#���%���������
������(�������(�������(�����
���
��������D��-!���
� 8����%�����$������
����"��(�!��
%������
�+��
%��(����������������&�'������

�
���+�����������$�����������������������(�����������������%��$����$�
��.����������������������������$�����+���(��������%���.�������������
���������������������

� 7��"����(�����$����.������%������+�����������(�$������(���������+���
���
�

��%���������6����������(����������+�
�������(��������%��
�����(���������
%�
���������������+��4�����+��������

� 7���(������$��%�74E����%��(��������������+�������(�����5A��%���������
/�
����*��������
���������%����������74E����(�����&���������������������
���������������%�
�������������$������%���������
�����+�������
�
����%�

�%������%���������
����%������%�����%�'�����
�����������������
��
����������%������
�

��&�
���'�����
�����
�"�������������
�� � ��*�������'��2�#������������������'������
��'�
� 4�
��/������4�������������������+����%���(��%���%����+���(�

���
������%���������

������(��������������������
����$������+����
������%����������
�+�%(�����%����������
����$��������/������
	�������

� ����������������$���������������(�����������������%���%����%���������
�
����������%��������+��������
���%�

� ;��������
��������$�
����(���%����%���
������������$��������
���
�%��(���������+
�����������!���%����%����
����(��
������������
��$����
���������(�/���+�
����

� �����������%���$��������������%�������%��%���������������������
%���
����
����%�������$�����������������������

� � I����������������+�������
������
����������������

������
���%���������	E'�
���.���&�

� A�I����(���

�����
������%�
��%��(���������������������

��������
� H��%���$�������������#���%�%�������
�%����������������������������
� ?����

������%���
�������������
����;��%�$�,������
%�1�������%�

A����
��(�����������������

������
���%���"��(�������������������%
����%�
���������������
����������
��
��(����$����%�(��%��

� '�%���������������������������������������+������������������$����
����
������
�$���%�����
��������������+
����(����

�

��8������'����<��
���������#���������������� � ���+����"��'������������������������
� �%�����$��"����������������������������
��%�����
��(��������?!�����

��������
�����
����%�+����������%���#����%���
� ���������������������������
����(���%�$�����4	�
� 	
�����(������������������%�����0����%�H������������%�+�%���+�����%�

����(����������(�����
� ����������������
����->��(�+������%�1��"��(��(���%�$�������������

� � �%��������������4�����(������
��>��$��"��
� A�����%�/�������%�,������
��������+�
�����������	
������%�������4	��%�������
� 	�+
�������������/�
������	
�����%�4�������+
��4����
������������

4�����(������
���%����%��������������%��$�����(��������
���(�����&��
� A��
������	�����(���'��������������������

���#���%�%�$���������$�������

�
��(�����>�������������%��&��
� ������.���������>�������������%����������������������
����%���$����
� /��������������>��$��"�;���(������	
���%�����������
����������������

��������(��(���	��
��	��"����'������������������22�����
��������'� � ���*�
�"����'����������
��'��#����

� 4��������
�����"��������������
���%����	
�����������������,�����
� /�
�����������$������%�+
��������(���(��������
���#���%�%��������(����

��%�������%���������������"��")���������

�%��������
� �������%�,��%������������
�����%�H���(�4�
����������������������

����(�������������������������������������������
� 	��"�(��������%��(���%��������(���%������������������(�������������

>�����	�������      �

�
�

� /�
�����%�?�!��;�

������������������%����(����D�$������� �������
����
���%�D2C������������
��%���
���%�
��%&�

� ����
���%�;��"���A���������������	
�����%���������
�������"������������
�����������������&�

� �%����%�4����������������������'���
���������%���+�����%�������������
������������	
��&�

� ��������%��������������������������������+�������������%������%������&��
��	��"����'�������������������
���������
�����������"������ � ���&�
���'�������
����22�������2�����������
� 4�+�����%����������
�+�%�$��������E���+�

����������������+�������������

�������������������E'E��1��
%�����������2���������%����%�������
0�(
��%�$�����(�����+�%�������������������

� ��������%�+��
%��(��������������������������������
� '����%���%���������
����������(������7���"���
%��
��������������
� 	�������%�����.����#��+���������=������A����
%���������������������
� '��������������%�
�����%��������������%%������
�����������;��0%(����+��

� � '��
����������������������E����$��"��
� '��
�����������0)�������(��
� /���
�������A�
��	����
���
� ����
������=0�	���������%������
���

0�.�����'����
�������2�� � ���	��"����'��������"�
���2����������
� ;�
����(�����,�%%���,����'��
�����������	
�����(��%�������%�+���(�

%�
�����%&�
� 	�����������4"�

��E�������(�	��(���������
������%�$������

�������
�������$������������������������(��������$������������������
�"�

����������%��3��
�����������������������
����+
�����
%���&�

� A���(�����������������
�������������������$�������������������(���%��(�
���
%���&�

� /���
�����������������(��%������������
�$��"���%����������
�$��"�
3��
����%�������$���������������
�%���
�������+���%��������������������

����$��������������3���������&�

� � 	��(������(������NE;����(����G��&(&��- ����������
�����(���%����������%�
��%��������%���������

� �%�����������������%������������(����%���

��(���������
� �%���������������+����������������������������.����������%�����������+���

������������%�(����������������
������(��
� E�����������������������������������%�����������$�����������
�����������

������

Page 19



 

Where do we want to be?
���������������2�������������������

�6�'�������$������������������$���������������������
��������������������4�������+
��������������4�����(��
��%������
��"�������%����"��(����������������
��(�
�����(��$������.�������6�$��
�������������������
�����%����;���������&�1���������������%������4	�
������H��������������
����%����������������������
$����+���������%������������
��
��"��(��������
��
�������������$�����������%�
�����%���%�����
������������������������%�%��������"����(����&�
�����$�

������������������%����(������������������
�����"������������&������$�

�������%%�%���(����������
���0�(
��%�����������1��
%�������%�$����������
�����%������3��
�������%�����������%������
�������������������%�������������������3����%&�

��1��$�������������������+��
%����������������
$��"��(����������������6�
��"������$�$������(������
��(���������
�����������(����������%��������%�����
�
%�������
�6��������$�������������(�����#����
������������%��"�

��$����������������������
�������������%�%���
���������
����������$��������
�����/���
�����������������%��
����������
%���*��
���������$�

������������(�������(����
���
�&���)

�������������������������
���
����$��"��(���%�����
�#��������$�����$����(���+����������������������%�
+��"�����������������������������������������&�

���������������2�������������
�

��������$�

�+����������%���������������

��(�������
���������������'�����������	����������K�'	L�
���(�����&���������(���������������(�� ��'	��
$���%���(��%�����%%�����������������$�����$��$����
��������

� S�(��������
����%��)���������(��
� H����(����������#����������$����

��(���
� N��%��(������������+�����������$��
��������
�
����������������$�����$�����%����(�����%%������
�
����������������������%�����������������"��%�������
���������%��������&������%�������������$����(
����
�������������������&����������$�

�+���������������
�������������
���%�
���
�����%�����+���������������
���������(�$�

���%��+
�����%��
�$������$�
���

��(�����������������
����%��������������
�������������������������������������+���������%����
+���������������
&�>���+���(��������
�����������������
������������������������������������������+�%�����(&�
8��������������������+���%%�����%����%������������%�
��������
���
������(��+���������
�����(&�������
��(��
����
�#���(����������$������(����������������$�

�+��
���������������������%���%��
����������������%�
������������
���
�$�����������
����(��������
������������������+�
�����&��

���8��������
�����$��������$�����������%�����������
�������������������(����������(����������
+��������$��$���������������������'	����%�$����
�������(���+�����
���%&�1������"�����(�$��������� �
�'	�������������������$����������������������%����
���������������������+��������
���%����������
��������(������#������(�%&�����%��(����+�
�$�
���$����$������'	����(������
��"�����+����
+���������������
���%����������%������������$�������
$�����������������
�"��������
�������
���+��������
��%�����%��������&�'���
������
�%�������������������
����"��(��������"���������������������%���������
������(������$�������������������&�����"���%�������
���������'	��������������$�������������������
���(�����������
���
����%�+�
�$���%���������������
������'	��������-�����%�+����%�����+������%��������
�����%�#&�

������$�

����%�
������(��(�����������'	����������
$��$�������������������%��������������$�����
���(�����&������$�

�����
���
��"��(����$�������
������'	�����������
���%�������$��"���%�����+��
�������%����+���������������
6�$�����������������
%�
+�����(�%����������%���%�$���������$����������
���������������%����+��+���(���$�����������&������
�����$�����%���%������%�����
��������������������
����"��(���%�����������$�����%����+��
%������%�
����������������
�����$���������+����+��������������
$�%������������������$�

��������������
&�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 20



 

�

�

�

�

	-7��: &;/�4+/+���17����
98������0�����*����������������+�����$�����������������$���������������%��(�3��
�������
����

�����.���%�+����������:��

��+ 7�$+*!�	8+�8+ +!/�
� �)�&!)- &7�

�+ 7�
� )�$!)- &7�

�+ 7�
� )�/)9!�)�*�
/ 8��=��+ 7�

� )�$+/!�
�+ 7�

�� ,��
������3��
������
�������%���%�
�����������������

� 	���
������
��%��(�
���
������
����������
��%����

� ;����
����
�����%�
$�

�+���(�����
�������%�

� ���������+������
������������������%�
���
��������������%�
��"���������
��������%�

� N�
����+
����%�
�
%�������
������

��%��(������
��%����%����
�����

� � ����������������
�����.�+���

� ������������(������
���
.�+��G$����������5(�����
��
����%%�%*���������%�
�����D�C�������C����
�����������
������(��

� �������+�����%�
%��������������������+
��
+��������������
��������%��

� H��$����������%�
$�������������%�
���+�����%�������
���(����

� � 0�����������
�������
��%������������������
�������������

� �������������
������%�
��������+
��
������������
������

�%�
����$�����
���%���%���%������
�����
��(�

� �

�����������������
���
������$���%�
��
��%���%���(�(�%�

� � ��
�����K����������

������L�����������������
������������(�$�������
��������������������
����*��������(��

� 	
������������
%�������������%�
%�������$����������
��������$�%������$��
$�������������

�%�
3��
�������
����

� '�������
������(������
$��������������(�����
��$��"�

����%�
"��$
�%(��
�����(�����������
������

�

�
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
G�
8
��
�	

�
��

 
 

-��)-�/ 8) !=+��	)8 �!8/&+	�)�*�-��)-�)8!)�)=8!!�!� �

�
	�����������(������������%��������

������
���(��

����

�
��:��+-���8	�8) !�	-)��>/ !	��&)�=!�	8+�8+ 7�9��:/?�

�
�:8��+ 7�

�� Helping people to 
live independently�

� Reducing 
inequalities between 
communities�

�

� � Providing better and 
more affordable 
housing�

� Delivering sustainable 
growth�

� Improving access 
across the city�

�

� � Keeping children safe�
� Disposal of waste and 

increasing recycling�

�

� � Providing more and 
better culture and 
leisure activities�

� Improving skills and 
educational 
achievement�

� Developing high 
quality places to learn 
in�

�
�:8���:��+-� � �:8��:/ ��!8/�

�� Supporting council 
staff to perform 
better�

� � Improving value for 
money�

� � Informing and involving 
customers�

� � Improving customer 
service�

�
	!�	-!@�)������*) +��@�)//! @�+� �)�*�9+�)��+)-�/ 8) !=+!/�

�
*!	)8 �!� �/!84+�!�1:/+�!/�	-)�/�)�*�1:*=! /�
>1:/+�!//�)/�:/:)-�A���� +�:�:/�+�	8�4!�!� ?�

�

�
��

��
�
�
��
(�
��
��
���

��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��
%�
��
��
��
���

��
 

 

����������#����������-+���������%���(�����������(��
�(��
����������������
������

�

�
�����
�(������������%��������

������
���(��

����
Page 21



 

.������"����2��������+	�	��'��������������������������
��+����"��'�������������"���� � 5�+����"��'��(�

����������������
������"������
� 	
����4���������%��(�����$������

��������������$��������������
����

�D&!C����"��(����� !����������������������
���������%�
� 8����

��������+����������
������������

���+����������������$����

����
���������%
��(������������������
����
�$�����C�
� ������
�������������������$�

�$������������+
������%�����������(��

������������������(�&�8�������������������+����%�����+�%�+��;8A'����
��
�����
��$��"&�E��%+��"�������������������
���+���������$����
���+��������
����(�����
���������������
���

� �������%
��(���������������3����������������������������������������
�
��%���
����C�����

��������(���

���������%
�%�+���������������������

� � ����
������������������������
%������%�����(�����
�����	
������������
��������%������������&��,�$������������������������������������
�������������������
��
�������%����(��������+�������������������
��+�
�$�
�
�������(�������B���4��(������%����������(��������+���������%�����(�����(���
H�40��Q�)�������
�%��(�0�(
������%�;����&��

� ����
���
�������������������	
������������
���(�����

������
�$&�
� �������������(�����������+�
�������������������+��$����%����������������������

�����$��������������������
������3��
������%���6���$����&�1��
���(�������
%���������������(�����

�������$��(�����

�"������(���������������

���������
%���������

��������������(��������
����(��%��

��+�2�����'������+�"�
"��'������������ � 6�*�"�
����'���'��<��
�����
��������
��������
� 	
����4���������$�%���
����&�C��������%��������%��������
����������
%�

���
������%�����������������(�������
���
������
� ��������������4���������������������%�03��
����4���%��%���������
�

H����������K04�HL�	���������������+�������

��(�%�������%��
������������
�������%��������
�%��(���
����+
����%�%���+
�%�����
��
�����������%���(����%�%�
��������%���)��%������������(�(��������%�
�����
�����������������+�������

� /�
������(�����%�����������
�������%��������%����������+����������
���
�
�������%���%������%��(�������
�����;��+������������

� � 	�������%������������������
����%����%�������%������

������(��
����
��������������
%������%�����(�����
��+����������(���������

� 8��������������.�����������%�
�����������+
�������������������
��
���������
�����%������%�������������������$���������(������������������%�%�

� A�����%����%���(�����������(�������������-�����%�����(�����
%������%�
����(����������$�

�������
����������������(��$����(��%��

� 0��
������������������������
��+��
%��(����(������$������+���������������
/�4E������	�������������
�4�����(����������(��K	4��L���%���4����%����74E�
A��%���������/�
�����KA�/L��#�����%������
��"���+�������
������������

��&�
���'�����
�����
�"�������������
�� � ��*�������'��2�#������������������'������
��'�
� �������D������
���������������������������+�����������J��
����

�������������������%������	
��������%�
��4����
�����������$�
���������(�91�

:�+���������

���%�����

���������������������������
���%��������+�����������������������&�H�������������������(������%�
���+�%(����������������������+
�����������������

��(����$�������
��������������������������$��
�������������������(�NE;�

� � >��%������%����$��������
��%��

��������%���+�������
����������������������

��%��

����%���������������������������

� 	������������
��(��������$�������������������
�����������$�

��������
��%��

�
%������������(������������

� >��%����������������
����(�������������
��(���%���%�������������

������(��
���$�����
��%���

�%&��

��8������'����<��
���������#���������������� � ���+����"��'������������������������
� 1������5��������(*�����03��
����E����$��"���������
�H����������

+�����$����%����%���������������������(����������50#��

����*�
���
�
���������������$�%�����+������������#��

��������������

� 8�������������������������������������K+������3�����
�����
���������%���������������L����%����������(�

� ,��
���'��3��
�������%�������%������"�������������%������������������
��������

� ����
������$��"��(�
��"�%����+������������������(�(�����������"���
�����������������
���%%�������%��������������������������
���������������%������+�
����������
����������(��

� � /�
����������������������������������������(�������(����������%�����
�
����������	
���K��	�L�$�����$�

�+��%���
���%�%����(�E@���-�����%�
��3����%��������������"�������������4����������������(��$��6���%����
���+������������-���"
���
����������(�6����������3��
������������������6�
������+�������+������������������������%����
������%���������3��
�������
����

� ��������%�����������������%�
�������������>����������%�0������������%���
,�(��J��
����	�+
�������������K,J�	L���.������.�����

� 8�(���(�����������%������������������%�������������
������3��
�����������(��
������������$��"��(�$�������
��������������%�%������%�
���������
�����������������%��%�����������������������
�������������%������%�$��%�&�

� '������%�����3��
����+����������
������������%�������������
���������������� 
��	��"����'������������������22�����
��������'� � ���*�
�"����'����������
��'��#����
� ������(�
�(���%��������%�����������������%����"
������3��
�������

������(����������������������&��
� ������������%�
�����������������%�+
��������(����(���������(��

%���
����(���+
��-�����������������������%���(��������"������������
�����+�����������
�(�����������������������%�
���
����%�&�

�
�

� ������������������������������(�������
������������(���%����������(��$���
�����
���
�$��������
������+
������	
������*����
���������(����
����������������
����4�����1���&��������������������
���
����%������������������
���
���%�
����%���������(��$����������
��������&�,�$�����������������������������
���"��������������������
��������������%���������%�%���
��������������

� ������
�������"�����
������
���������������(�����������
�����%�
���
�����
(��$���+�������%��(�������(���
��%�����������
���)��"��(�������������%�
��������������������������������$�����������������%�����%�����������
�����������������%�+������������������$��
��%���%�����������������

��	��"����'�������������������
�����
�����������"������ � ���&�
���'�������
����22�������2�����������
� 4��������%�
�����������
�����������$��������������������������
�$�
� /��������+���������(��
���
����������������������������������+������

�������������������������������(�������������������������(������(��
� ��+�����������"�������%���%���%���������+�����������(���
�����������%�

�����

�
���
����������������������������$����
�+�����������
�$�
� ����
�����%���������������������C�+�
�$������������(�+����

�������������%%������
���������������3����%������������1��
%�����
+�%���%�7������������4��$����������������������
����������
����
���+�����&�

� ;��"����(��������������������������%�����������

� � 7��
%��(�����(��������������$��"���������%�
������������������������(���
��+
������%��(���%�������������

� ��������������%���

�������$�������
*����������I����%��������������%�
�����
�����������
����������������������������������&���

� �����#�����������������������������$��"���������%���������%���$�������
+��
%��
�#�+�
�����"�

���������������%�������������
����(���������(�
������
�(���������%���������%�������
��������������

� ���"����������������������+��
%������%������������%��������������$�����
%�
�����������
�������"�(��������������������������&���

� >��%���������������
����%�
�����������
���
����
�������������������%�������
��%����������������������������%���������
������������������������(�����
������������������(�������%����������������$��"���������+�������
����������������������
���
����������&�

0�.�����'����
�������2�� � ���	��"����'��������"�
���2����������
� /����(������������������D������+��������(�������
������%�����

��������������%��(����%�������������������$�������������%������
����(���%��(����
%����������������������3�����(������%���+
��������
�����

�������
�&���

� 	
�����������%�
�����%���(�������������������������������������������
������������������%����%�����+��
%���������$��"���%��������%��(�������
�������������%��������������������������������D������%������
������������������������������������������%��������
%����������������

� � 8�
�����C��������
����
��������
������%�%���
�������������
� ���

��(��(���+
������������
����������%�
� �����
�<������A���������������������
� '�����������(�������(�������������
��'����%��������%��������
� 4�������+
��%���
���������%��
����������(�����(������%������(��
� '�������
��"�(���+��$����NE;�����������������������%�����(������+��������

�����$�

�%�
���������������������������
�����(�����-
��(������
��������+�
����

Page 22



 

How do we get there?
Our vision for the organisation 

���8�����(����������$�

�����(�������������#����$�
�����&�1��������
���%�����������%���
��������������
�����������������������(�������	�,���

��(���������
7�����+�%%��(�����������
%���*����������%���)

���������������������
��������%����
�����������6�
$��
��������%���4������������$��������%�����$����
/�������%����+��&�1�������������(�����������������
���
���
����$��"��(6����������%����������������
�#�+
��
��%��������$��"��(���%������)%��"���������6�����
��

��������������������������$��"���%�������)

������(���%��)����(�������������&�����������%��
$�

����������%������+���������%������%����������
����������������������������(��(����������
�#��������������
��������+�������������$�
������
�(������%�������������������&��

��������$�

�����(����$�$��$��"���%���$�$������
����(�%&�������$�

�+���������������������
�)
%�����������%�����(��������������������(���"�

�


���
����%�����������
����6�$������������������
�����%������������)
�����������%����������������������
��+
�����%�����������������&�'�������������$��$�

�
���%���������%���(�����(�����������������������
�������
��
��$��������������������������������������
���������������������������������&�����(��$�

�+��
����������������(�������$���������+����������
��%������(�����������(���(������������%�
�����������������+�������������$��������
���
����
��+�����&�������������$������������������(���
��"�
�"��
������
���%������������%����������������������$�����

��
%�����������$��%������������#�������������&�

	��'�����

�����"��������������������������������
�(�������������
�������%����������
����%�'���������(���&�������
��������������������������+�������$�������%�������
%���������&�1�������%���%�����������(�����������
����
����������	
�����%�������"����������������������
�(�������
���%�����&�4����������$���������%��
���(���������������������%����%�������%�����
�(��������
���
���������������(����������%�����+��%���&�

�0�/����(����������$������
���%�����.�+����
�������
�����
������������%���
�������
��������+����
���%���%������������������$
��%���
���%�
����������������$��"�$�����$�

���"������(���������
������+�����������������(����
���������+�
������%�
�
�#�+�
���&�1���������������%�$��"��������(�����
%���������
������(���%�%���
�������%���+�����
�����������������
���%�����������
��������������
�����������������(���%��������������&���������(�
��
���������%��������(��������������+�����
�(��%����
�����������������������%�0)�������(����
������%&�

�5�1��������������

�������%����E
����� ���!���%�
���$����������������������6���
���%�����������
���
���������$������������������
������$����������(�
�����
�������hot-desking&�1�����������$��(����%+��"�
������������
������+��������%������%���$�����
��
$��"���%�������%���
�������
����%�&�1�������
���
����������(��
�#�+
��$��"��(�������(������%���$�
��������������������%�����������������
��������������
����������������������������������%������������(�&��
1��"�����+������%����"������%���
�������+��������
�������������1��%����,������������%���������
%���
�����������
�#�+
��$��"��(&��

�6����$��$��"���$��%��������+�
�����������������
$��"�������
������>���

�����.��������+����

Key components our vision for the 
council as a place to work 

� 8���������$�

�+��������%�����������������
����$���%����������%���"��%�����������%�+��
��������%���������������������������

� 8���������$�

�+��
������%������%����
������%���������
�������#�����������%�"��$
�%(��$�

�+�����%����
�������������������%�����$��"��(�������������

� 8���������$�

�+����������%�+��������+
��(�
����(������$�����������(�����������������(�
(��%��(����������(�����
���(���%����+
��)��
���(��

� 	���
��$�

�+��(������������
�����%������.�+�$�

���%�
���������������������
�#���
��)%�����
������������(��

� 1��$�

�$��"�������
�#�+
��������(��������������)

�����%�����������������
��

� ������$�

�+���������������������%�����������
�
��%������������������������������"
���������

� ������$�

�+���
����
��%���������%����������%���������
� '����������$�

�+���������(�%���%�$��$�

���"��

�������+
�����"������������������������������������������
� 1��$�

�+����
������(���(����������
� 8���������$�

�����(�����������
�����%�%����%�����

��������(�$��������%����������

����������+
��+�%��
� 8���;��+����$�

���
�������"��$
�%(����%�

�����������������������&��
� 1��$�

�+���������%������(���������6�������
��������

�������$���������
�����
����������%���
�����%�
���
������������

���������
�

Page 23



 
���(�����%��
��(��%���������(
����(�)������.�������
���+
�����������������
����������
��
�(�����������
��������������
�&������������

�����������(���������
$��"���������%�����+��%��������������
��������%����
��%�����%��������������������"�

����3����%�������������
%��������(�������%�����
�+�
���&��1������(�������������
������������������+������������������%���
��������
����������$��"�$�

�+�����%�%����%�
������(�����
����������'�����������������3����%����������������&�
1��"��������������
�������(��������������
����.����
$��
��%�����
���+���(����%������%����������.�����
����������������(���6�$��
��N4A��G��H��������
H������������������$�

����������+�������������
�$��������������+�
��$��"��(���
�����&�

��1��������������(�����������

�����4�	�;���(���
8������K;8�L��������������
&��������$�

����+
��
����(��������������"������������������������������
��%���%����"�����"��
�"����)
��������(���������
���"������+��������%���������
�&�������������������
���.��������#�����������+������%����"�������������
��������(�����������
�������%������%���(����������
�
�������������
%����,A�4�	���%��������������������
������������������������%����������&�����
B��$
�%(��A�������������������������+���(�
%���
���%����+��������(�(��+��������(������%�
���
�����������%������%��(���(����������
���
������
��%����������&�

9��������"�
���������������

��'���

���/����(����������(������$��$�

��������������
��
��
�����+�%%��(�����������������6������$��(�������
��%����%����������
�(�������
�#�+
��$��"��(�
����������6�����%��%����(�������������%�5%�)
%��
������(*����
���������$��
���������(������������"��
+�������������$����$������6���

��(��������������
�
�����%�����%��"��������������������������6���"��(�
������������������������������������������������
��%�%��������(����6���%���%����"��(���������������
������&�

���B������

��(���$�

�+�������%��������(�$��
����(�������������������(��$�

���%���

����(�(��������
��%����+�������$�

���������������(����������������
�����������������
�"�
�����(�������������������6�
"�����(�������%�%����(�$�������
�"�
�����+����%������
��
��������
������%���%���(�(��(�$��������������������
����������������
�#��������������������#�����
+�������&��

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Integrated development, delivery and 
review supported by finance 

People, Accommodation, ICT strategies 
Key focus in PCC 

People 
� Support staff through change 
� Pay and reward – competency 

framework, review terms and 
conditions 

� Flexible working 
� Enhance leadership capacity and 

Member development 
� Skills audit and skills development 
� Workforce planning – recruitment 

and retention 
� E-management on line info 
� Realigning corporate training; 

developing e-learning 
� Modern employment practices – 

Investors in People 
� Management by outcomes 
 

Accommodation 
� Improved reception facilities for 

customers, stronger image 
� Flexible accommodation – hot 

desks, touchdown areas, remote 
working, video conferencing 

� Reduce office storage space by 
50% - e-storage 

� Opportunities for co-location 
� Communal meeting spaces, break 

out and refreshment areas, 
confidential rooms 

� 8 workstations to 10 people; 
standardised office furniture 

� Reduce energy/travel costs 
� Support a learning, inter-active 

culture 
 

ICT 
� Common ICT infrastructure across 

council 
� Integration and standardisation of 

requirements of council and 
partnership 

� ICT systems that can communicate 
with each and protect 
confidentiality 

� Achieve economies of scale and 
reduce replication 

� Improve information flows and 
customer engagement 

� Improve information management 
and storage 

  

Page 24



 

 
Managing the budget, financial strategy and capital 
investment 
 
�"��"��#��

���	
������������������
�
�"������������
������%��
����
����������(����������%����������������
�������%����%����������%�$�����&��
�����������������������������(���(���������+�%(���
�������������$���#�������������������������%���%�
�����������������������"�����
�����(���%���%�
���%��(���������6��������������(���������%��������������
��������������
���������+�����������
������%��������
��������&�����%�$�����������
���+���(�����%���%�
�����������������%�������������%���%����������������
��������������������&�/�����������������(���������
�
�
������$���������%����(������������(�����%����(�
���D-���$�����������������
�%��(���(���������
����������������$�������

������6�������
����������
7�����%���������������������������(�����"���%�������
��������������������������������&�1�������������
��
��%����������������������������
�1��
%��������2�
,���������+�%�$���������������������
����+���(�
��������%������������%�����������������������&��
�

+�"�����'�������������

���8�������������������
����(��������������-������
��� -���������%����+����%���%������
��������*�������
������
��&�����������������������������
�������������
������
��������%�����
��%���%����������������

���%���
����������������%�$������$��������������%���
���"�%�%��
����

���������
������
��%���%���������&�1��$�

����

��������
�������(���������������
����(��������������%�?�!���
+���$����������+�������������(����+����$�����
���.����������������&�1���������$���"�������������
��������$��%������7��
%��(�4����
����������E������
���(������$�����$�

�������
��%�
���������#��������
��$���%���(�������������������������������#�����(�
�����
��+���$�

�+������������+��
%��(�+
��"���������
�������������������6�
�"�$��������+��
%�������������
�������$�

�(����������(���������+���������������
����%��������	
������&�7�������.���������

������������������������+�������������������������
�
��%�����%�������������������������$��������
��(������������%����������(��$���������������

$���������������=����

������������������������$��
������������
*����������
+�%(���������������(�K�����?�D����D-������?�����
��-��L�����(��$����������������������������

�����
���������&�0#������������������+���(��

�����%����
�����
��������������������(�+�����������
���%�
���
�
��������������&�1���������������%����������%����
����%����+��"����������������������������%��

������
���������������������(�������
������������%�
�����&�
�����(��������
����������������$��������

�����%�
�%%������
����%��(�������
%���*��4����
�����6��%�
��
4����
�����6�	�������(�����7��
%��(�4����
����������
E�����6�A����������%��(�������+
������%�
���������
����������
���������������(�����6�;���������(�����

���
���������-�������(�����(���������6�4�����(���
,�����(�����������6�	����%��(�������$�����(��������
�����������%����!�������
%��

���H���������%��(��������������������������
�����
��
?!�!�����
�%��(� �����������K?����L����
%����F�
@���(�	���
�6�������������K?��!�L�����������
4�������&����+���"%�$������������.����%�����%��(�+��
%�������������� 
2010/11: Gross expenditure budget by Department (subject to review) 

Children and Young
People

Corporate Items

Community Services

Corporate Support

Development &
Regeneration
Chief Executive

�
$���������������������2����

�0�1���������������������������+��������������
���
�%��(�������
���#���(�����
�E����
��H�������%�
H����������(�������������������������������������
���
�%��(������
����%�,�����(���%�������
���#�
7�������1���
�������(����������������������������
���"��(&�

Some capital projects in £267m programme 
£121m on Children’s Services including:  
Primary Schools programme £24m 
New Estover College £35m 
£75m on Development including:  
Local Transport Plan (LTP) Schemes £36m 
Strategic Waste Project £11m 
East End transport scheme £21m 
£81m on Leisure including:  
Life Centre £46m 
Swimming pool in north of city £1m 
New library for Devonport £1m 
� �

Page 25



 
2010/11 Revenue Budget - Income Analysis

Other grants
57%

Central Government 
Formula Grant

18%

Council Tax
16%

Charging for services
6%

Other income
3%

�
�5�������������������#���%��������%����������"��
����������������(����������������
������������������
������������
������������%�
�������
����������(��
����������$�

�����������

������������������������
����
$��������������&�

=�"��������=�����

�5�����H���������������%������%��(��������������
�
�����(������E����
��H����������
��������������
���������+���%����������
�#������
�&������E����
��
H������������������
���������������
*��+�%(���
��3�����������%�������+�(���������������
���
����
���������$�����������%��$�����������#���������������
�������������
���#&�'������-�������������
�$�

�
������������������������&�C��������E����
��H�����
��
���?��!�&������$���������

����������%�+������
H�������������/����+������2����������������
�����)�������������
�����
����������
���
�(���������&���

4�
���2���������>49�?�

�6�����������
�������(��%�����"������%����%�
������(�
����������������(��$��"��(���$��%������
H���������*����+�������N�
�������;�����KNE;L�
���(��������%���������������������4���%��(�
A����$�K�4AL���&�������������������NE;��������
������
�������
����%������������������������������
���������K�'	L�� �G�	����%��(�7������N�
�������
;����&�/���������������NE;����(������%�%���
���
+�%(���%�
�������
������"��(�����������%����������(��
�������%-���
�$����������(�������������%��������%�
�����(��+�������"��(&�;�����������/����������
�
+�%(���%�
�������
����$�

�(�������������������������
�����������3����%��������������������
���������(��&�
 
��0����������
����(��������������
����(��������������
 C��������������������(�&�����������������(���
	
�������$�

����%�������%������������������

��(�
?� &�������
������+��������%��������-������$�����
$����%��%�������%�?�&���������8���+������D&�
�

������
� �3����������"���

���1��
��������
�$���������(��������
���#��������
��(���&��1����������������
���������������������
��
����(��(���������������������������������������
������(������������
��()�����+�%(���������+�
���&��
��������+
������������(������(��$���������%���
��������������������
���#���%�������"����
���������
�����(���������
�����%��(���%�����
���������������������
���"�&�1���������%������%�����(�����+��
%��(��������
���������������������������%������������������%����&�
8���$��"��(�+�
�����������.����%����+��.������%���
?����+��������%����������������������$��������$�
�����(������������I�����������&�

�

������� ����9�������
�/�����'��

�� 1�������������
�#�������
����(���������
����(�&�8����������������%��$��
�������
��������������4���%��(�A����$�K�4AL�(�������
�����������#�����%������3��������������"���C�
����������������(��������������& 

�� 7����%�����-�������������������������$�

�
���
������������������
����
��"&��8���+�%(�����������
���������#����%�������"��������������������
%�$���������������������%�$����%�������(��������
$�����%����%)
�%�����%��(���%��������
���
��
������������������
�%��(����"��(���%������������&��
��%������������������������������$�

�+�������������
�����������

��
�$�������
����������������
H�����������������������������������omy is likely 
to affect what we receive.  

�� ����������������)��������(���+�%(�����%�
������������#����.������������������+�
�$�$����
��3�������������+
�����%�������������
����&�������$�

�
+�������$�%���(�
��
��%����(�����-�����%�+����%&��

�

199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Year

£m

Target Budget

Total Resources

 

Page 26



 

How will we know we are 
getting there?
1����(��'�������2�������2���������

���1����
%���
�����������������������������������
�
��%�����������������&���������
�%���%�����������%����
���
�����%��������������������%�%���+�
���������
���
������������������������%����������������&�1������
%���
����(�
���
���������
�����%��
��������
������$����
%����������
����������
�"���+�����&�1��
��������%�������
���%�������������
������%��
�����(���%���������
������������$�����%������+�%���������%���
��
���������������
�������%������%��(�������+���
������
����������������������%�������������%�������

��

1������'������������
���������������������

����������+����������������������%�����������
�$��
���%����%������������(�����(��������%����.����
����(������%�����
���������������$�����
��������
(��
�����������
����%����������������$��&������$�

���
��
������+���
�������������������+��������+�������������
����"������������������%�"����������
������������
�����%���
��&�1�������+������������(�����
��������������+��������%������������+�%������
%�����
���%����%�����$��
�������%��(������
+����������&�

1������'������#����#����#����"��

���1���
���%������������������������(�������������
��������+���������
�����(���%�������������

����(��������%������+����(�����(��#��������������
����(�������3����
�"���0�>����������������
���������&�1�������������������������&�8���
8������$���%�4�����������������$�

��
���+����"��(���
�����(�������)$�%�������&�

1������'���2
����"���������

��'��'�

���1�������+����%�����+�%�+��������%���
����������������
�)�$������%������$�

�+������
�����������������������������������+������������

�(�����)�������������������������������������$�����
����
��������
����+
�&�'������������$�

���������+��
%����������������$��������%������(�������������
�����������
�"������������$�&��

���������������
%�+��
������%�����������������������������%�$������
%�
�������(���������
������%����

��(�&�

1��'�����'�������
�������'���

�0�E��������������������%�����+�����������
���(�
����
�������������$�

���������������������������
���������(����������������������������&������������
�����������#�
����(�%��������������������+
���
��
���(���%�$��"��(���(���������������������
��+������������������������������������%�����
������
&��

�

�

 
�����
��������
����3����������%���������
�������
�������������������
����������������������(�����

 
 
�
�

/�����2�������B�
�

 
8�2
�������
��%�3�������������$����������������+�%(���
������������%�����������

��(������
������������%���������
���
���������%��
���

��(��%�������������
�������������

 

	�����������
 ���3�������)���������(�����������
�
�����%�+�%(���%��$��(����
+���������
�������%������
���
��������������������
�

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

	��������������
��%�3�����������������������%�%���
�������
���������������
�(������$����+�%(������%�
����"��(���������
����������������

 
 

 
 

 

 

�

Page 27



 
 
 
�
)		!�*+,�������������+����"������	����������,��%
��������
�����
��+	���+����"��'�������������"����
�

	������C������������%�
����������������������(��3��
�����������+
���������������������������������+����������(�������������������������%��������������
�

������
����������
�����������������������������������������%����������%�
�����%������
���
��$���������������������������������������$�������������$�������
�

.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �'�������(�����
������
���%
��(�
�

� � '��
����������������$�����
����������������%����������������

�
������
����������

� /���
���������%���

���������������������
���������%
��(�
���������������������

� ������������

��������5@���4��%�G�1��/�%*��������
��"�%����
����
������-�����������

� A����$��������
�������������������
�%��3��
�������������������
���������������%�5@���4��%�G�1��/�%*����%��(��

� � 4��(��������
������������%�%����$������
���%����)����C��

� 4��(��������
������������%�%����$������
���%����G����C�

� 8�+�%���������
������������%�%����
$�������2�%����G����C��

� A�%���%�������������������%�NE;�
�����+
�������(��

� � � � �'����������������
��������������
�

� � /���
�����%���+
��������	����������4�����(��������.��������$����
'����

� 	�+
�������������������%��%��
� /���
���%����������
��������������%��%��
� 0����������%��%���������
������%�������
�$�%��G��&(&�����%��%�

���������$����(�
��������(�����������&��
� 	���������%�%���
������(��������������%�����&(&���������������

%��������%���
����(�������������%����"����(�������������
� '��
���������������������(�������������$������(�
�������������

4;�-�;��
� 	��������������5���(
�������*�����	
��������&(&���(���������

%���
��������������	���$�+������������������%�
��������%�������
���������
����������������%���������

� /���
����������9��

�<��8���:�����
�����������

� � ������������������������+��+���
���%���%�
�����
��������������������������(��
���������������(������D�C�

� �����������������������+��+���
���%�
��%�3������
�����������������(�������+��
������������

����������

� ��������������$����������3�����
������
48�'�;��������

�

� � � � �4��������������'	����%�
������������������%%�����
����������������%�+������
	
����4��������%�����
���%+��"���������
%�������
������

�<���������

� � 1��"�������.��������$���������4	�����%���������$�������������%����
����	
������%���

�<��������������+�����"
�%�.����
���&(&����������
�
+���������$��������	�
����

� <����������������(���������.��������$����	
������%���

�<��4������
���%��(������%����������������������������&��<��������%���������
��
���������������������������������
�%��(��������������%%�����������
���������+���������
����

� � ��������������$����������3�����
������
�
��������������%��(��

� A�%���%�������������������%�NE;�
�����+
�������(��

�

� � � � �E����������������������
����
������
�

� � '%������������������������������+
���������
������$��������������
���������%�%���
����������������������������������������������
�����C��

��������(���

�������
���%������������������������

� /���
���������%���

��������������������������A�
�������
;���(������K�A;L���
������

� /���
���������%���

����������
����������
��������
�������
� 4�����(��#�������$����N��(���%�����%�������"�������������

�����������������������'	���������������������
��&�
� /���
����������������������������������"���
����������&�&���+�������
� A�

��������������������������������������������������"���

�����(�����%���(�(������$�������%����������(������

� � A�%���%�������������������%�NE;�
�����+
�������(��

� D�C�������������������%�$������������
�

� � � � �/���
�������$��"���������
�����%���#��

�����
�����������������

� � A�

�����������������(�������-���((��������������
� ��������%�%���
���������%���

����������������������K������
�%��

����������������"�

����������.�������������(������
���������%�
����
�������������(�

� 0���������������������
������������
�%�%�$�������

�	�����
��
�����
������
����$������������������������$��"�

� 	�����������%���

���������40������%��������������.��������$����
������H���%����������$���
���

� � '�������������������������������
��������������������C������C��

� '��������������������������������������
��(���������������������%�����#�����
�
����������������������

� � � � �/������C�D	�/������E��� �-���C�)����1������E���������-���C��

��/��"��8��(�����
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 28



 
�
�
�
�
�+	���+�2�����'�������"�
"��'�����������
�
	������C�'�����������%����*�������������
�����������%�����������������(�������
���
�����&�
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
�,�
���(�����%��������
�
���������
��%����%��������
��"��(�

� � '�����������������������
�+
���������%������+���������������������
(�������
��%���%�������������

� <�%�����$��4	�(���������������(�����������+
�������>' ��������
�
����%��������(������������)$�%����������+�
�����������
���������
����
���(�����%��������%����������+����������
���
������

� ��)��%��������+
�����(�(��������%������
��������������������
���(�+������%�
���
������������5����
�����*�$��"��(���%�
�

� /�
������������(���������������������%�;��+����$�����������+����
�����������(�(��������%������
����������������

� 0���+
������������
���������������������������������
�������%��������
��������������%�%���������������������������
�����(�

� � C��������
��$������
�������������
������
%������������������
���
����K>' L&�
7���
�������&�C�K	
����4���������2L&�
���(�����!&DC�

�
�
�

� <�����!��������K��%�;��+���L�������%�
�
�
�
�

�
/������C�=�
���	������E��� �-���C�+���=�

���E���������-���C��

��/��"��8��(�����

�
�
�
�
�
�+	���&�
���'�����
�����
�"�������������
��
�
	������C����������������������������������������������������%�
��4����
����������������%������������������(���
�������������
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
=�����$��"��(�$����>,4�
�

� � =�����������������(��#����������(������.�����������������(�������(��
����%�����������������G�����
������

� �(�������������������.�������������������%��������������������
	
�������G�=���������

� /���
���.�����������������(������$��"�G�4����������
� /���
�����%�
���������(����������,��
�����%�4����
���������������G�

4����������

� �

�
4������(�/�
������	
�����
�

� � /���
����
���������%��������
%�������
�*��������������������G�=����
�����

� ������������
����������#�������������������/���������G�=��������
� /���
����
���������%��������������(�/���+�
����������������������G�

=���������

� �

�
	�����(�	���
��E�����
�

� � /���
�����
��/������%�����������%��������
����������
� /���
������������������%�������������������������K.��������
�����%�

�����
�������������������������(���L�
�

� /���
��������������������������$��������
������(�����������������
��%�������
���
�����%�����

� � ��C�������������������

�����%���
�������
�+�%(���G�����
������

� �C���������

�+�%(��������+
�������(��G�
����
������

� �������
�%���(�����������������+
����%�)�
/�������

� � � � �
/������C�	����������E��� �-���C�����
��1��'����E���������-���C��

��*��*�"���/�
����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 29



 
�
�
�
�+	���8������'����<��
���������#����������������
�	������C�'���������3��
������%����������������������%�������
������3��
��������%�%���
���������)$�%����������������������%�
��������%�����������
��(�(������+���%��������
��������%�>��(�+������%��
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
	��������3��
���������$���
������%%����������%��
��������(��K����(�����%�
�
%��L�%���+�
����
�����-+�
���-���
�(����
(��%����������%���#��
�
��������������������
����
�����������
���
����
��������������

� � '��������������%������4	��3��
������������������%�$��"����(�����
��%������������%�����(������������

� 0#�����
�������������������
���
��������03��
����E����$��"�����
����
�H����������K0E�HL�

� ��������90#��

����:�
���
����0E�H�

� � 90#��

����:�
���
����0E�H��������%��
�

� � � � �
/���
�������������
��������������(��
����(���������%��������%�
���������+�
��(��(�
����(�������
�����
%���������+��"(����%��

� � �(�����4	�������������������������������
�%��(����(���%�$��"����
����
������$����
�$����
���
��������������

� 0���+
������
��%������%������������������������$�������������
����������������������$�+�����

� 7��
%�0����%�H����������
� '%�����������������
*����������%�
��������������%%������
�H�������%�

�����

���������������%��(����%�
�������
����

� � >'���)�C��������
��$���+�
���������
��
�����%���������+��"(����%��(������$�

�
��(���������������
���
������G�+���
����
!D&DC�K	
����4���������2L6����(���� &!C�
K	
����4����������-��L�

�

� � � � �
/�
������������%�3��
����
���
������������%�����+��
+��������(�(��������%�
�������%�����%�����������
��������������������
������

� � �(������%�
���������
����$��"��(����������������$�����4	���%�������
���
�����������

� � 0���+
��������
����4���������)��%��������
��������%�>��(�+������%�
�������
���������

� 4��������
�����������
� A����$���%�
�

� � � � �
A�%�������
������3��
������
+���
����(�����(���
+��$����������������

� � �(��������)$�%�����
������3��
��������������
���$�����4	�
� /�
�����������
�����������������
���

� �

�
/������C�	����)
��E��� �-���C�����
��1��'����E���������-���C��

��	�����1���(���#�
�
�+	���	��"����'������������������22�����
��������'�
�

	������C�'��������������%��������%�����(���������������������������������������%������������������
����%���#���������%�+
��������(�
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
E���������������(�����
����
�����%���������������
������������������������
(��$����(��%������
	
�������

� � '�������(��������%������������������������������(������(������
������
��������(��������I��%����%����������������,���������
;�
���
��8����������
�
�
�

�

� '���������������(�������������������������������������

� � ��������(��������I��%��������%�
� �������������������,���������;�
���
��

8����������
� ����
���������	�������4������4���"�

���%������4������
� !��0�����,�����+���(���+��"����������
�

� >'��2�6� &2C���%�����������������+���
��������������$������4�	�����(�������(�
���
����������!�KD���������
%�L�

� �&�C��������������������+������
�����������$������4�	�����(�������(����
����������! �K��!��������
%�L�

� /�
������������������
�����������+���
%��#�%�������(�����������
�����	
�������
��������

� �D2������(����������������������
%�
�����%�

� � � � �
'����������������
����%�
��#���������%�+
��������(�
�����(��������������
$��"��(������
���������
+�
����%���%���������+
��
��������������%���������
����(��$����(��%��

� � ;����������%����������������������%�+
��������(����(�����������-���
� ����
�,�����(�����������%�
����+���%�������%�������������������

���%��(��������������������
�'����������	
��������(������4��(
��
������������&�

�

� � >'����6�����-������(������������$�
�����%�+
������������
���%�

� ����
�������������������
�'����������
	
����

� ����
�,�����(�����������%�
�
����������
�

� � � � �
/������C�/������	�
����E��� �-���C�)�������	�����E���������-���C��

�� ���9���
�
�

Page 30



 
�
�
�
�+	���	��"����'�������������������
���������
�����������"������
�	������C����������������3��
�������
�������	
�����������%�����+��$�%���%���%��������%�����������������������������������
����
���%�
�����������������&�
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
'�������������������������
���������������%�������
��
����
���%��������
�����������

� � '���������������+������	
�����������%�������"��(�����������#����
���������������
��������������$��"���%���#����������������$��"����
�%�������%���������������	���
��4������K���������������(���L�

� /���
��������������
���������������*��������+�������������8
������
��%�	���
������H�������%�������
����
�8
�����%�
��%��(�������
�����

� '������������
���
����������������������	
�����������������%�

�+�������

� � �������(��� C����������
�
�

� ����
�����������������
���
� ���������
�������%��(���
����
�

8
�����%��������
� �C�������������+��"��������
� �C�������������������������������+����

� � � � �
	����%���#��

������
����
�
������������������������
3��
�������
������������
��
������������

� � 8��������$���(����
�������F�
��������������G�����������������G�+��
1�����������

� ���%���������%����������������������������������������
������
����(������

� 1��"�$����������
��������
����
��(�������������%�����
��������������
����*�����������

� ���������������%��������������
�+������*�����������$�

� � 	�+
���������(�����������
�

� �$��%�������������
�

� ����
�������������������������
�
�

� �%��������������
�+������*��������F�
��������
���

� � � � �
<���������
����
����������
����������������������%�
��������������������

� � 4��(������7�����������4��$����������������$����������������������
�����+��������������

� 4�����������	
�����������������1��
%�����+�%�
� 1��"�$������������������������������������"����(������������������

��������%�����������
�

� 	��������;�����0%(���+����������������4����$���*��
��%��(���������
%������������

� � ������������������7������������4��$�
�

� 4��������
����%+��"���

�$��(�E'E��������
� 4��������
�����)$�%������������(�������
� 4���������+
���������������*����
�%���

(��%��
� !C������������������(����������

�
/������C�D��������
����E��� �-���C�����
��1��'�����E���������-���C��

��=
����D������
�
�
�+	�0�.�����'����
�������2��
�	������C�	����%���#��

��������(���%��(��������������	
�������
�.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �	����������
���%��������
�
%���
����������������
������
������

� � >�$
��J��
����%�4����
�1��"������������%������������
�
%���
����������(������

� 0�+�%�$��"������%���
����������(�����������

������
������
������

� � ;�����������C������������������(�
��������
��+�����������

�

� � � � �� � � � �4��������������� � � A������(��������E�������������������+�
������%����+�
����
�

� � E���
���(��%���������E������������
�����������������
���%����������

�
'�������%�����(������
���������

� � 8�(���(����(������������������������3��
����%����������+������
����(������
��%�

� /���
����#�����(�������������������"�

����%��#����������������(��
���������
�#�������

� � ����
��%����������
�$��"�����%���%�
����������%���������������(�����
�����%��2�

�
��������%�'���������� � � 	�������������%�����(��������������%������������

� /���
�������������
���������%��(�������������%������������
� ����
�����������
������������������������������������������%�

��������������%��(��

� �

� � � � ��/������C���������������
�E��� �-���C�1���#���-�����E���������-���C��

��=�������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 31



 
�
�
�
�+	�5�+����"��'��(�

����������������
������"������
�

	������C�0���������������
%�����������������(��3��
�����%����������%��"�

����%�����������������������������������
���
����������������
$�������������
����"��(�(��%����(������������

��%����(�"������(����� ���%��&�
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
A�%�����������+������
�������������
���������

�
+�
�$������
�������(������
��C��������
��(�����(���� ����
+����0�(
������%�������

� � '��������4����
�'�����������	������������������(���%������
��
�����������

�������������������
����������������%������
���3����
���

� '����%��������	�������	���������������(�����
�����������K	���L�
�������������%�$��"�$������(����
�����������������������������
��������
��������"������

��(�+�
�$��
�������(����

� A�������������A�
���%��������(����(����������@����%�@!�
����
�&�

� � >'��!��������
��D������
��+�
�$��
����G��
���(��������%����+����C����!������
��

� � � � �
A�������������������%�
������������������

�����"���
���(�� ��������
������+������
�+
�����+�����������������
�����
���������������

� � �(������+����A�����(������������	
����$���������M�������
�
���

��(�M������%���������
�F���������+�)�����
�&��

� ���(���%������������0��������/���%�����(��4�+��%����������%��
�����(��������������(��#���%�%������
�����������&��

� '����%���������������������������(�����������������
���%�
���(���%�����������������������(�����
���(�%���)�D�

� � >'�����#�Q)�����
�%��(�0�(
������%�
������������(����� C�

� � � � �
E������������$�(�������
�����������+�����������(����
���������������������
���
%��������������%�������
��
����+
��(������

� � 0������	������
�0%��������	
��������������������%������������
�������������(���
�������������(���%����

��(�&��

� '�����������������������(��������������
� <�����$�����$�������"�(������������������������������

���������(�%�����������

����������
�������%����������&��
� '���������������(������������������������(�����������������%���

�����������&�
� 	����%������
��+
������$������
�����������(��8>0�4@4�0;����

���%
�����������%������������������������%�����
���������
��
����+
������
���

� � �������(������������>'�������C��#�Q)
�����
�%��(�0�(
������%���������C�
�#�Q)H�K�����������(��L��

� B4��� P����0>F;���DC�>'�DD�� P����
0>�!�C�K4������L�>'������ P����;��
!�C�K4������L�

� � � � �
'��������������������
�����$��(����
������3��
������
����������������
�
�������������(��%��

� � 	����%���������(�����4����
�'�����������	��������K4'	4L����
���
�����
���%����������K���
�%��(������L���%���������������
�����
��������������&��

� 0��������������(���%������
����(�(����

��$��������,��
����
4����
��	
������(��������������(������%��������

� � ��$����(�����������+�����������(��
�������������%������
����
�����������
��
��"��(����������������(�����&�
A�%������������������
������3��
����(����
���������&�>'����>'����>'��!�K���+��
%��������%L�

� � � � �
A�%�����������+�������
����(�����
��$�������>���
���0%��������0��
����������
�������(�K>00�L�

� � /���
���������
�������(�(������������������������������

��
�������

���%���%��������������������
���������������������������
������%���+�(��������������������������������������&��

� /���
�����A�����(�����	��������������(��������(����%����������
�������+�����������������������������������
&�

� 	���������+��������%������%��(��������$��"�����������
��%�����
���+����(�>00���+������%���
������������
���
�������������
��%�������

� � >'���!�>00�����(��&��
� ������������������(������������

/��������������+������+
����%&�

� � � � �
/������C�D����/��������E��� �-���C�1���#���-������E���������-���C��

��=�������������

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 32



 
�
�
�
CIP 9 Developing high quality places to learn in 
 
	������C����������������3��
���������������*��
������(��������������������+
�����
%������%�����(�����
�����+����������%�+����(��3��
�����
��������������
����������������������(��(���������������������
��&�

�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �4��������
�%���
����������
7��
%��(�4����
���������
E������K74EL����(������

� � /���
�����������������������������������(������%��������������
��%������
�
���
�����(�����(������

� /���
��������������������
��4�����(����������(������74E��
� /���
����������������
��8��
����7�����������������74E�+���

� �

� � � � �/�
���������+��
%��(�
���(����������
��-���$�����$�

�������������
+���(�������������$�
�����
���������������
����������%��#������������

������(��������
%��������(�
����
����%�����������������
�����������

� � ,����	����������
%���M�������������������
� ,����0�������	�����������
�����
� ,����0�������	�����������
�����
� ,����0�������	�����������
�����
� ,����7����$��%�����
�����
� ,����4���(���%��(�����������������
� ,����,�(��N��$�����
���%��
� ,����;�

�E��%�����������4�����
�4����
����������

� �

� � � � �/���
����(����%���������
��������������(�������������
�$�������
��������������)�
+���(��(����
���
���%�
�#��������%�������������
%����������(�������������(��
��������������������%�
�����������������
%������%�
����(�����
��

� � ����
��������������+�
�������(���
� ��+������%�������������%��(��(���������
� ����
������������
��������������(��
�
�
�����(��������
��������+���(���(������%�����������������

������������
�����������������������������%�������%�

� �

� � � � �
/������C�=������/�������E��� �-���C�1���#���-������E���������-���C��

��=�������������

�
�
�
�
�+	���*�������'��2�#������������������'������
��'�
�	������C��������(����������
�$������������������+
����%�����)���������
��+�����������(�$��������������(������
��(���%���%����(�
��
���������
��%��

���������$������������������"������������
�����
�����������#���%��(�����+��%�(��%�+
��
��%��

��

�$�����6���%��������
�����$������������������������%�3����������������������(�(��$������(�����������!���%����!��
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
4������
��()���������%��
�
$�������������������
������

� � E���
����%����=�������
� 4�
������������������%�+�%%�����(����
� E���
������������(������8������
� ��������������
��������������
������� �

� ;�
������������

� � � � �
'������������
��(���%�$�����
�������������

� � '��
����������������%��#�����������(��%���$�����������������
���������������������
%�&���

� /���
����
���������������������
��(�������
�

� ;������
������
��(�����
������(��%��$��"���

� � '��
���������������
�����������
��(�
��%����������(������K>'�D�L��

� /�������-��������
�(�����%��
� '��
����������������������
������
� <�(��%������
���%��

� � � � �
/������C�D�����*���"���E��� �-���C�)�������	���������
��1��'�����E���������-���C��

��������
�-��"���
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 33



 
�
�
�
CIP 11 Improving access across the city 
 
	������C�E�������%���
������������������(�����(���������������������%�
�������������������
��������%���������+
����������������������������������
����%�������%�+������������%�������������(��$����(��%��

�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �/�
�������������������
������(��

� � 4�����(������
�����+.��������������	����
� 4�(��������������������
������%�%�
���������(�������������
������

�����	��+��"����������������4	�)��������

�����
����%����������%�
����+����������������

� ����
����%���
��������������������4����������
�	
���

� � �%������������	����%���+�����������
/����

� '��
������������������������4�����
�����
�	
���

� � � � �
4��������.���,J	��
��������������������+
��
����������(��$���

� � ����
���������0����0�%�����������'��������������E��%��������
� 4����;�+�
����������������������������������������������
� 	������������������������������KH%�����1��L�����������������������
� 	�����������������������������K0�+��"���������-,�
���

�������L�
� 	�����������������������������K0�+��"�������������"�A��%L�
� ���������������%������

� 0������������%���;�.����������K0�;4L�
�
�
�
� >�������������%���;�.����������K>�;4L�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
� 4�+�����������0�;4�7�������������
� 	��(���������������A�(����
����%��(�

�

��������������%&�
� 4�+�����������>�;4�+��������������
� 	��(����������������A�(����
�

E��%��(��

��������
�

� � � � �
������+���������%����������
���
������3��
������

� � '��
�������������+�
�����������	
�������(���%���������%������%�
���(�+������%���

� ��������������������+
�������������������������
� '��
�������%������������������������������(�������������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
� '��
�������������%����
��(����������������������(��������%���
� 1��"�$����	������%���
�����������
���%��������+�
�����	
���

� � >'���������/�������%�,������
�2!C�
� >'���!�����������4�������	��"�2�C�
� 4������������$������+
�������������

������������
� ������+����������������%����
���

��%�#-��+���������(�����%��Q����������
�#����������(��������"�%��
��$�����

� ���
��������������������
������%�
� '��������������+��������������+
����%�

�������.���������������%�������
��
����������(���������
���%���%�#����������
�����"���������G���%�#�����������!�
�����(������!�+�������

� � � � �
/������C��
�"��	��(����E��� �-���C�)�������	����E���������-���C��

��.�"���$�'����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 34



 
�
�+	����*�
�"����'����������
��'��#���
�	������C������
��
�	
������*����

���������
�+���������(��������%���������������������������$�������.�+����%�����������������
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
/�
�����4�������+
��
������������

� � ����
�������(�������������
�/���
�������	
���%������������
%����������(��$���K��������������%�<������������	6�/�������%���%�
4��������	6�0����0�%���	6�,�����	6�4�������+
��>��(�+������%��
/	/���%�<�+���E���(��/	/*�L�

�
�
�

� 	��������
��%�����%�
���������������(���%���
�������������������
�������/���������;�

+���4������%���%�	
������"�J������
/�������%���%�������
�	��"&�

� '��
���������"��������������������&�
� /�
���������
�0��������4�����(��G�/���
�����������
�������%�����

��������������������������
��������������������������

� � >'��� �K�����%%������
�������
�����%�%L�

� 4�����
�����(���������������%���%�
� �%�����������

���������(���	*��
� <���/�
������%���+�������������

%�
�����������������������"���
��(���������������&�

� 	��������(�����+��������������%�
������
������������������

� ��������
��������%���
���%���%�
���
������%&�

� � � � �
/�
�����4�����(���
'��������������
�

� � '��
����������'��������������/�
���������(�����&��
� '��
����������H�����'��������������/�
������	
���

� � 	�+
��������4�����(���'��������������
4����������	
���������+���(������%�
%���
��������(������$���������
�(��%�
$��������������
�	��(�����&�

� 4�+����>�����	
������"����������%��
	��"�7�%&��(�����������
��&�'��������
�����%�������
�$��"���

� /���
������%��(����"�(������
/�������%�����������	��"�

� A�

�����4������(�4���������������
���.����

� � � � �
;�#�����������������%�
A���������

� � 	�+
����	
�����(�4��������7��������'�����������	
���������
�%��
�������%����������������%��������
�������������%�������%�
��
�%�����������������%��������%���������������(��$��"������
%���
������&�

� 0���+
����	��(������7���%��)�0���+
����(��$������(������+���%��
������������������������1����������0������������%���>��������
�����%���4�������+
��>��(�+������%��>���
�7����0���������%�
0���������&��

� /�
���������%�����%���������������(������$���������������
�#�����
����%��(���%���������+������
������������	
�������
/���
��������������

� ;��"���	
������������%�����������������(����
���%��������
�
���%��(���������

� � 	
�����(�4��������7��������
'�����������	
�������+
������
�������%���������������6�'������%�
�������
����������%����
��������
���(���6��������%�$��"�������"�

��

� 	��(������7���%������+
����%6�
���.�����������

�����%6�$��"�
����������������%&�

� ����
�'����������	
�����+
����%���%�
���
������%6��������%����(������
����(���������	
�������
/���
��������������

� >�&�������%��(���������������%&�
� � � � �
0�������	
������*��
������(������
������$������
������(�����

� � �����������������������A�(����
�4�����
�4�����(��
�
�
�
� /�
�����������������+���(����
�������������$��"��(������(��

�������%�(��$����(��%��(���������������$��"&�

� � 	�+
�����������A�(����
�4�����
�
4�����(��$����	
������������"���
��(�������������������

�
� 4�+���(����
�(����������

�����(��������(���%�+����+����6�
'���(���
�������(���
%&�

� � � � �
/�
������(�(��$���
��������+
��

� � /�
�����
�$����I�������+���%���
��������
�
�
�
�
� �%%�����������
���������������(���������
������������(��$���

�(��%��

� � /���
�������������(�����������
%�
���������
�$����+����,	��������
��������������%�/�������%����
�%��(�
���0���(��4���
�������������
%�����+����������$��&�

� /���
�����������(����������(��(�����
���
����������������E
��%���%�1�����
;���(������7�

���%�����;��������%�
������
�����������&�

�
/������C�	��
�1������E��� �-���C�)�������	�����E���������-���C��

�� ���9���
�
�
�
�
�

Page 35



 
�
�+	����/��������'�������
����22�������2�����������
�	������C�: '����������(����������
��������������������(���%���������������%����
�������������������������������"���������(�������� 

�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �
'�������%�$��"������
���%���������

� � ;�%�����������������
*����������%����%�������������
����������
������������������������%�����
�#�+
����%�������������
��(�����������

�$����������������-�����%������������%��
�(���������
������
*��'�����%��������%������������(���&�

�
�
�
�
�
�
� 0�+�%����������������%�
��"���������
�������(���������������
�����

��%������������������������
�
�
�
�
� '���(���������%�
�����������(�%���+���������������������,A�4�	����

������������+�
��������"�

����
�

� � '��
��������������������%����(
��
���������������%����%��������

� �����������������(�����
� �����<���
���A���������

� A�%����������%���-�����������"�����
�+������

� A�%�����������(����������
��������%�
������������(��

� A�%����������
���
�����(������������%�
%�����
��������

� ���C���������
������
�����������
� �����������������(�����
� �����<���

���A����������
� A�%���%����������%�������
����

���+�����������%�'������%�
���������������������������+������
���%+��"�

� A�%�������������������%�������������

� � � � �
1��"������$����������(���
������%����%��"�

��

� � /���(�����
��������%���+�%�A�$��%���%�A���(�������4������
���������������������������%�������������������#��

������������
$��"�
���&�

�
�
� 0�(�(�����
��������%����%����4�����4������
�
� ���(���%���
��������������������������������

� � '�������(�
���
�������(�(������
���
����%�����������������

� '�������(�0��
�����	�����������
����"�%������(�����
����������������
��
������������

� /��������+
�����������������������
������������&�

� 4"�

����%�3��
����������%������
%����
,A�4�	����������2�C������&���

� A�%�����������(����������
��������%�
������������(���

� � � � �
����(��(������������������
��(����������

� � '��
��������
����;���(������4�����(������%������%���4����������
	
�����(������������������(���������*���������
������������(������
��
����+�
������%������%�����(���������������������������(��
���������(������&��

�

� � A�%���%���
���������������������(��
���������(�������

� A�%���%�$��"�������������
� '������%�

������������������(��������
������������
 7��
%������(�
��%������� � � 0������������(���������*��
��%������%�����(�����������������������

���
��������������������������3��������������������������
���
���������
�&���

� � �����������������(�����
� �����<���
���A���������

 7������1��"������
'���(�������$����	�������� 

� � 0��������������%����%�������������
��������
�(�����
�������%������������(����%�������������������������������$��"��(�
��������%���������-�����������������(��������

� 0�+�%�+����������%�$��"������%���
��������
������%��������
�
�(����������������������(���������%�+��������������(���.  �

� � '��������(�
���
�����������������
���������������%�������%��

�
� 7��������	
��������
������%�

1��"������/���
�������	
�������
�
��������%�������������

 /������C�!"��/(���E��� �-���C����(�=���
���E���������-���C��

��+���1�#����
�
�
�
�

Page 36



 
�
CIP 14 Providing better value for money 
 
	������C�'���������%���+�%���������+�
������%�N�
�������;�����KNE;L������������������
���%�����������$�$��������������
��'����%��������%������
�����������������(���������*�������������%��+.��������
�
.��������"������� � .�����
�������������'� � .������2����������������
� � � � �'�������(��������������%�
��
��������������������
�����������������

� � ,��������+������)����(��(���
�����
� 4�(���������;���������(���%�NE;����(������
� '��
�������������������������%������4�����(��������+
����$����

�������%�$�������$��"��(���%���������������
�(�����
� '��
����������������	��������%���+����

� � 4��������
����
����������������
������(���$����%���
�������������
�(���%���
��������������(��(�

� �����������������������
���%����)
��������
����(�����%�������%����NE;�
���(������

� ����
������$�����������
����%�������%�
����������%������������(��

� ���+������
������%�����������
�+����%�
;����������

� � � � �
'�������(��������������%�
��
���������������������
����
���������

� � 0���+
����(���������������(�������+���
��������(����F��������
���
� 0���+
����������������%������������������
� 0���+
����������������%������������������

� � '%��������������������� ����.����������
%�
�������
����$�����(���%������%����
���������(���%������������������
���������

� � � � �
'�������(��������������%�
��
������������������(��
���������������������������
������
����������
)�����"��(���������+
��
�

� � /�
�����������������������%�����	��*��0�����������	�
����
���D-�������%����������������(�/�
��������%����������������
	
���&�

� /�
�������������������
*���%����%����+���;���(������	
���
���2-����&�

� /�
�����������������������%����������%����%��
����������(��
�������	
������D-�������%����������������(�/�
��������%�
���������������	
���&�

� /�
���������������������������������$�����������
���������������
������+��������������>'��2!����(��������������&�

� � ���������������������%����
��������
������������(���%���������
����%����
����;�
�������&�

� � � � �
/������C���
��
�����E��� �-���C�)����1������E���������-���C��

��+���1�#����

 
 

APPENDIX 2            Local Area Agreement for 2008-11 
LAA indicator Base 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Lead 
Local Indicator 1: Gap in 
life expectancy between 
the fifth of areas with the 
lowest life expectancy and 
the city as a whole 

2.64 years (2004-
2006 rolling 

average) 
(To be no more 

than) 

2.64 2.64 2.64 NHS Plymouth 

Local Indicator 2: No. of 
vulnerable people achiev-
ing independent living 

66.27% (2007/8) 69% 72% 75% Community 
Services 

Local Indicator 3: % of 
women breastfeeding at 
6-8 weeks post partum 

31.4% (2005) 35.4% 37% To be agreed at 
refresh 2009/10 

NHS Plymouth 

NI 56 Obesity among 
primary school age 
children in Year 6 

15.4% (2006/7) 15.2% 15% 14.9% NHS Plymouth 

NI 112 Under 18 
conception rate 

46.5 (2007/8) 
 

27.5 23.6 22.6 NHS Plymouth 

Local Indicator 4: 
Substance misuse by 
young people 

a) regular alcohol 
use 26% (2007/8) 
b) regular drug use 
10% (2008/9) 

a) 24% 
b) 9.5% 

a) 22% 
b) 9.0% 

a) 22% 
b) 8.5% 

Children’s 
Services 

Local Indicator 5: % of 
adult population (16-74) 
participating in 30 minutes 
of moderate physical 
activity once a week 

38.7%(2006) 
 

39.7% 40.7% 41.7% NHS Plymouth 

Page 37



 
APPENDIX 2            Local Area Agreement for 2008-11 
LAA indicator Base 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Lead 
Local Indicator 6: Increase 
in number of contacts with 
the primary care mental 
health service 

5,886 (2007/8) 6,003 
2% increase 

6,183 
3% increase 

6,492 
5% increase 

NHS Plymouth 

Local Indicator 7: 
Emotional Health and 
Well-being of Children 
and CAMHS 

a) 15 at 31 Jan 08 
b) 65% 2008/09 

- a) score – 14 
 
b) 66% 

a) score – 16 
 
b) 68% 

NHS Plymouth 

NI 124 People with a long-
term condition supported 
to be independent and in 
control of their condition 

69% (2008) - 73% 77% Community 
Services 

NI 130 Social Care clients 
receiving Self Directed 
Support (Direct Payments 
and Individual Budgets) 

2.9% (2006/7) 5% 15.4% 36.2% Community 
Services 

NI 135 Carers receiving 
needs assessment or 
review and a specific 
carer’s service, or advice 
and information 

11.76% (2005/6) 
15.4% (2006/7) 

20% 24% 27% Community 
Services 

NI 136 People supported 
to live independently 
through social services 
(all ages) 

2,581 (2007/8) 2,000/100,000 3,682/100,000 3,843/100,000 Community 
Services 

NI 171 VAT registration 
rate 

35.96 (3 year 
average) 

37.47 39.5 41.0 Development 

NI 172 VAT registered 
businesses in the area 
showing growth 

14.84% 14.00% 14.1% 14.85% Development 

NI 151 Overall 
employment 

72.40% 73% 74.1% 75.3% Jobcentre Plus 

NI 154 Net additional 
homes provided 

1026 (2004-7 
average) 

1,000 1,000* 
*Subject to review  

1,000* 
*Subject to review  

Development 

NI 155 Number of 
affordable homes 
delivered (gross) 

173 (2007/8) 215 226 237 Development 

NI 175 Access to services 
and facilities by public 
transport, walking, cycling 
(% of households with no 
car, within 30 mins travel 
time by public transport to 
Derriford Hospital) 

86% (2007/8) 83.75% 85% 87% Development 

NI 175 Access to services 
and facilities by public 
transport, walking, cycling 
(% of non car-owning 
residents within 30 mins 
of Derriford Hospital/ 
Science park between 7 
and 9 am.) 

80% (2007/8) 80.25% 82% 85% Development 

Local Indicator 8: Achieve 
robust evidence of the 
impact of sustainable 
economic and housing 
growth on traffic and 
identify/implement a prog-
ramme of measures to 
manage demand for travel 

Programme of key 
milestones in PCC’s 

Corporate 
Improvement 

Priorities 2008-11 

Completion of 
programme up to 

Stage 3 

Completion of 
programme up to 

Stage 6 

Completion of 
programme up to 

Stage 9 

Development 

NI 186 Per capita CO2 
emissions in the LA area 

5.65 t CO2 per 
capita (2005) 

Reduction 0% Reduction 6.9% Reduction 13.8% Chief Executive’s 

NI 1 % of people who 
believe people from 
different backgrounds get 
on well together in their 
local area 

69.9% (2009) - - 74.56% Community 
Services 

Page 38



 
APPENDIX 2            Local Area Agreement for 2008-11 
LAA indicator Base 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Lead 
NI 4 % of people who feel 
they can influence 
decisions in their locality 

22.0% (2009) - - 25.54% Chief Executive’s 

Local Indicator 9: % of 
residents actively 
engaged and surveyed 
satisfied with their neigh-
bourhood as place to live 

Stonehouse & N. 
Prospect 57.5% 

(2006) 

59.5% 61.5% Pilots complete Community 
Services 

Local Indicator 10: 
Participation in regular 
volunteering 

19.6% (2009) - - 23% Plymouth Guild 

NI 7 Environment for a 
thriving third sector* 

14.2%(2009) - - 18.5% Plymouth Guild 

NI 140 Fair treatment by 
local services 

68.2% (2009) - - 72.15% Community 
Services 

NI 60 Core assessments 
for children’s social care 
carried out within 35 
working days of their 
commencement 

55% (2006/07) 75% 80% 82% Children’s 
Services 

NI 64 Child protection 
plans lasting 2 years or 
more 

7.7% (2006/07) 4% 3% 2% Children’s 
Services 

Local Indicator 11 
Children who have 
experienced bullying 

33% (2007/08) 33% 30% 28% Children’s 
Services 

NI 16 Serious Acquisitive 
crime rate 
 

4,693 (2007/08) 
18.92 per 1000 

population 

4,599 (-2%) 
18.54 per 1000 

population 

4,507 (-2%) 
18.16 per 1000 

population 

4,411 (-2%) 
17.78 per 1000 

population 

Community 
Services 

NI 18 Adult re-offending 
rates for those under 
probation supervision 

10.2% (Predicted 
rate 2007/8) 

- - 9% 
Reduction of -

1.74% 

Devon/Cornwall 
Probation 
Service 

NI 19 Rate of proven re-
offending by young 
offenders 

118 offences per 
100 offenders 

(2005) 

3% Target 
performance rate 

(per 100 offenders) 
114 

4% Target 
performance rate 

(per 100 offenders) 
110 

4% Target 
performance rate 

(per 100 offenders) 
105 

Children’s 
Services 

NI 26 Specialist support to 
victims of a serious sexual 
offence 

Introduction of 
indicator deferred 

until 2009/10 

Baseline to be 
established 

To be agreed To be agreed Devon & 
Cornwall 
Constabulary 

NI 20 Assault with injury 
crime rate 

3,023 (2007/8) 
12.18 per 1000 

population 

2,963 (-2%) 
11.94 per 1000 

population 

2,453 (-19% on 
baseline) 9.78 per 
1000 population 

2,302 (-24%on 
baseline) 17.78 per 

1000 population 

Devon/Cornwall 
Constabulary 

NI 32 Repeat incidents of 
domestic violence 

28% - 25% 20% Community 
Services 

NI 45 Young offenders in 
suitable education, 
employment or training 

60.5% (2007/08) 65.9% 72.5% 79.1% Children’s 
Services 

Local Indicator 12: Young 
offenders in suitable 
accommodation 

92% (2006/07) 95% 95% 95% Children’s 
Services 

Local Indicator 13: No. of 
criminal damage offences 
recorded by police  

6,480 (April 2007 to 
March 2008) 

-3.5% (6253) -2% (6128) -1.5% (6038) Devon & 
Somerset Fire 
and Rescue 

Local Indicator 14: 
Building resilience to 
violent extremism 

Self-assessed at 
Level 2 

- - Self-assessed at 
Level 3 

Community 
Services 

NI 21 Dealing with local 
concerns about anti-social 
behaviour and crime by 
local council and police 

30.2% (2009) - - 33.88% Community 
Services 

NI 192 Household waste 
recycled and composted 

26.86% (2006/7) 
 

31 % 33% 36% Community 
Services 

NI 195a Improved street/ 
environmental cleanliness 
(combined litter & detritus) 

12% (2007/08) 11% 10% 9% Community 
Services 

Page 39



 
APPENDIX 2            Local Area Agreement for 2008-11 
LAA indicator Base 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Lead 
Local Indicator 15: No. of 
Plymouth's green spaces 
that achieve quality 
standards 

1 Green Flag - 2 4 Development 

Local Indicator 16: 
Hectares of Local Nature 
Reserve designated 

124 - - 154 Development 

Local Indicator 17: 
Successful implement-
ation of Stock Transfer 

Not applicable - See CIP 5 To be agreed at 
refresh 

Corporate 
Support 

NI 187 Tackling fuel 
poverty – people receiving 
income based benefits 
living in homes with a low 
energy efficiency rating 

Poor SAP rating 
8.25% 

Good SAP rating 
24.25% 

- - Poor SAP rating 
7.87% 

Good SAP rating 
24.61% 

Development 

NI 164 Working age 
population qualified to at 
least Level 3 or higher 

42.63% (2006) 43.6% 44.6% 46%  Learning and 
Skills Council 

NI 110 Young people’s 
participation in positive 
activities 

79.3% (2008/9) - 81.1% 82.9% Children’s 
Services 

Local Indicator 18: 
Persistent absence rate 

7.3% (2007/8) 5.78% TBC TBC Children’s 
Services 

Local Indicator 19: No. of 
young people achieving a 
level 3 by the age of 19 

39% (2005/6) 45.5% 47% 49.5% Children’s 
Services 

NI 117 16 to 18 year olds 
who are not in education, 
training or employment 

6.8% (2006/7) 6.4% 6.1% 5.8% Children’s 
Services 

Local Indicator 20: No. of 
visitors/participants 
recorded at specified 
activities over the period. 

Not applicable – 
new events 

- 28,500 Community 
Services 

 
 

Page 40



 )������3��C��))�B�&�#�#��#�����������������������
����'�����2
�'������������ 
    -/	���F����"�� /����'���� � +�������������(�������

�
	��������������
����������
������������

� ��+������������������	
���������
���$����
� H��%���+
����������������$����	
�������������
�������


����
� �4	�����������������������%%�����
���
����%���
� H��%���%������%��(���%���������������$��(�$��
���(����
� ��)��%����������������
���������%���(�(�������
� H��%�
��"������������������(�-��+�������������������
� 4����(��%�%����������(�K+������%����������(������L��
� ;������������������������������$��"��(�

� � H���+��$�����������%�
�����%������%�
���(�+�����%�������
����(�3���"
������(��

� E��������������(��������+���4	�������(������

��"��
������

� 4����(��������4	����+��������&(&�>����
/��"���%����������������

� �������������������������������%�����(��(�
�#�����������

� � � �
	�������'�
����������
��2����

� A����%�%���%�%������%������������

��(����	
��������
� �/A	���%��4	�$��"��(�$�

�������(��������������������
� 	��(�����������"
��(�����)�����
�+����������������������
� A�����%��(�$�

����	��������(�N��
����0#���������
� ,�(�����+����������������-���������������������)���
�����
� '��������(�����������&(&��/A	����(�+������%�$��%����
� H�����

��(��%�����������
������(����������

E���-A�������
� ;��������+
����
����(���%���������%�
���
������������
� H������
�(�������������(�������

� � 4
�$����(����������%����(��������������
���)�+���
��$������+������%��������������%����������
$���%��(��

� '��������������#��
������������++����%��(�
������������(������%�����%��

� 0��
������������
��������������������+
����������
������(����&(&�%�����(��
����
�����%�����

� '����������������������������%���������������
���������������
���%�����������������(�������
�������
%����������%-������������

� � � �
����������'���
�
��������
���������
��
��"���������

� ;���������(������������%��
��(�$�����
����������(���
� <�%������%��(����������������
�������-���+���

�����������
� �����������
�������%����$��"��(�$�

�
� 0#�����
�����(�������G���������0����7
����0����������
� A�%����(�(���������
��������(���%��
��������(�
� 8����

�����%��%������
��������������(6������
��(�

��(��������
�����������(�
� '�������(�3��
����������"����+�������+
�������������

3��
����(�����

��(��%�
� ��������������$������������������������������(��

� � H�����

����������������������(���$��������������
� ������%����(���������(��(�+����������������
��

$���
������
� 	�������-��+
������%������%������%�����
���
����

����(�����%�%����%�
������������������+
��
����������

� ;�#������(��������������������������%��
�$����
������������
���������&(&�>����%��"���%�

� � � �
+����"��'�
���
�������
#�

B����'�

� �
����������������������������������������
�����	
�������
� H��%�������+��$�����4	��������������%�����	����
� H��%����(����������������(����
%���*�����
����
� 4������%����������%�����������+��$������� ���%�������
� 0#���
������(��%����������������
���������(��

���(�+������%�����$�
���������4����4���������
� 	
�����(�������%�%��
��(�$��������(��(�����
������
� H��%�$��"�������������(�������������(����%��������

�+������%����(����(����������������
����
� ;���������������%�
�������
���������������

� � 4��

���������+�(���%�������������
�����#���������
+��$��������+������%�$�����$��%����%�
���(�+������%��

� ,��
������3��
����������+���(���%���%�3���"
��
����(���&(&������(�����(����������(�����
����%�
�
����
����"��(�+��������%��(��+����@����!�
���
%�����

� >����+
��������$���$��������
����������������
����������������������+���(��������%�

� � � �
	�������'�
���
���"��
������������

� ;����������%���������������������������������
� N���+
��
��%�������������"
��(���������&(&������

����������
� �����
�������$������$�%������+������(���������
�%��(�

�������
�����%�A���(���E�������������%�+�
����(������
� H��%���(�(������$��������(�����
�����������������%�

�������
� 4����(������(�
���
����$��"��(�
� >��+������������
�������(�$�����(�
�������

���+������

�

��(���
� 	
�����������������
�����
���
�������04�H�
� 4�������������
%�������
�������
�$
��(�����(�+�������

� � >�������(��������������������
�����%��%������
3��
������%�%�������

� 7<��4���"��������������
%������%�������
���������������������������
�������(�����"�

� �
���������������������������������5���
������
�����������*��

� A���%��
���+
����������������������
����������
��%�����
�*���+�
����������
������%����������"��(�

� �������������
��������
���������������
�������%������

� � � �
/����
����'�
��
����
�����

�������
����"������

� '��������(������

��������������������
����
������������
� H��%���+
����������������$��������������%�(�

������

��%�$��������������%�����������

���
� H��%�
��"��+��$������
�������%��%��������
� >�$���
�����������(������
������%�(��%���(�(������

$������(����
���%��������
�����������������%���
�������
� ;�������
%������%��
%�������
��������������(����
��������
� '�������(������������������(���%���
����
��������������%�

����
��������������$�%�������������
� ��+��������
����������$�����
�������&(&�������������
�

� � �
���������	
������*�������
������%�����������
� ��$��������������$�������������%�
�����������
������
� >��+�����������������
�+���������%�������������

����
�$�
� 4�(�������(�$��������������������
�������%�
�������


��������������������+
������(��
� A�
�����������+��$������������+���%����%�

$�+������G���#�%������(�����%������3��
����

�����������

� '�����������$���������������������(�	
������M��
+���%���%�$�%����(����������
��������$�%���
����������

�

Page 41



 

- 

 

�
*�"�
����'���
�����������
��������

� 4�����(������������+�������4	����%��
��(�$��������������
� �����������������������������(�����(������.����%����
� �(�����������$�

��������%���%������
������������DD���
� '%�����������(
������������(��(�����	
�������
� H��%�������+��$������

�(������������%�+��������

���%���
� >�$�����
������G�����+������������.�+������������������
� H��%�����"������%���������%�+
��������(-��������������
� 1�

���(��%�%�����
�/���
�������E����$��"�
�
�

� � 1��"
��������������������(���%������������������
����(��(�

� ;�#�%�����������������(��������(����%��"�

��)�
������������������
��������
���������������
����������
���
�����

� 8����

����%�������������������(�����"����
	
����������������

� ���
�����
������������%����
�����������������
� >��%������������%���
������
������%�%��������

������%��������
� '����������������������+
�������������%��(�

�3���I��
�
*�"�
����'�
����22����"��
����������
�������

� H��%�
���
������������������$������+
�������������
� '�������(���+
�������������
��"��$������������������

���
���������%�$�����������������
� 4������(������������������%���������������������

0���������%�1������������%������	
�������
� �
�������(����������	���+.��������
� E�����������������������������������(��%��������������

+���(�%�
�����%����������
� E���������������6�(��%�
��"����������%������%�������
� 7��������
�������������������������"��������
�

� � �+�
��������(���(�������������������������������
(��$����(��%��G�+����������(�������������������
��%�������������

� 4
�$����(�����$����%���
����(���$����
��(�
�������+���$������(���������(��(�������������
�����%����������
��

� ;�#������(�����$������������������
�����������
�������������%�������������.�+��

� 	������+
��������������������(���������%�����
������������%���%�����������

� 4�����������������������
%��
���������
����
�+�
���������������������+�����

�
8�����'�
����������
�
�����������

� 1�

�+���(�����@	����(�����

��(��%��
� 0%��������
��������������������(���%�(�����

��(��%����

�����%������(���
� H��%����
�����������������&��
� H��%����(��������7��
%��(�4����
����������E������
� 4����(�����������������������%����3��
������+���(�

�������%�+�����������%���
� A�)����������(���%���������(�������������������

	
�������
� '�����������������������%���������������������-���������
� ;������
�����������
��������%��������������������%�
��


������(�
� A�)�����%��(��
�(��
��$�����+���@8���������$��"��$�

�
� E�������(���%��%�������(��%�

� � �
����(�����(���+��$������(����%�
�$�
���
�����
�%��������
������������G����

���������%��

� ,�(��+�����%����(����+�������
��"�%�������
���
%�����

� 7�
�$������(����������������
����(����
�����������
���
���������"�%����������
%����
K����L�G�+���$��"��$�$���

� ;�#�%��������������������������B���4��(�����
� ��������*��������������������%�����"�������$����

������������%���
��������������<����������
�

Page 42



 

�
�

)		!�*+,���&�#�#��#������������������������
�
�"���

�������������������� 
    +����"��'�����
�����B������'����

� A�%����(�$�������������(������
��(�
��%������%��(�����������������������

� A�
�����
��������
�������
����G�����%�����
��������%�����
�������
����

� 	�+
����������������������-����
���
� ���(����.������������
%���*�����������

(��%����+������K8����%L6�
��(����.������
�����%��������%���(������

� 4��������%�3�����K8����%L�%������
����������%������������������������

+����"��'�
���������B�
�����'����

� ����������%���
����
����������(�����(�+������
� ;�"��(�����%�����(�����%�
������(�����
� �%�
��4����
������(��%�
� 4�������������
%�������
��(�����(�+�������
� '�������(�$���$��%��
�$����+��������G���%�

����������
� /���
����������.�������������������������
� �%%������(��3��
������������������G�+���
�$���(����

������$�������"�����
��(������$�

�
�

� � � �

+����"��'�����
���������;�
�3���������B�
�����'����

� H��%���%������%��(�������������
� H��%���(�(��(�����������(��������%����

���(�+������%�
���
�
� 4����
��+��
%��(����(��������%������%�

����
������$��������������(�����-���
���
� '���
���(�
���
����������������"��������

�
�����
����
� ����������������
����������(�����(��������
� 0�����-3���"�����������
�������������

+����������������
� A����
��(��������"��
�+�������������+���(�

�������%�

+����"��'�
����
������
�B�
�����'����

� ���%���������������-����+�
��������������
�������������

� 	������������$��"��(�$�

�G��������
��
��(������
�(�
������

� H��%����(�����$����� �����������������������
�����������

� 	���������������(��������������%��
� 4�����$�

���������%��������
���������������(��%�
� 4���%�
����������(��������������������
��
������
� 1��������������������+
���%��
��$���������%�
������
� A��"����%������%�
� ��+�������(��$����(��%��

 

� � �
+�������������(�
������
 

� A�%����(������(�����(������
� '�������(�3��
�������������(�
� 	�������(���������������
����
���%�

��������%�����������
� 4������������$����������
����

�
�$�
� 	���
������"�����
�������%���������

+��"(����%��%��*���
$����(������$�

�
� ��%����������
������"������%��*�������

�����(�������������$��������������%�����
���(�+������%�G�%����������������������
��������(�+������%����.�����

/����� ����'��'����2�������� �������2���

:����2����������� �������2���

;���(��(��������� ��������� �

H�������(�����+�������� ��������� �

;���(��(����������� ��������� �

�"���

�������A����2��������G�:��2�8� �������2���
 

� � �
:����2�
����������B�
�����'����

� ;���(��(����������$�

�
� '���(����%���������
���%�������(����
�����(�

����������
� 4�����(��������������������������(�������
�

����%�
� �

������(�����������������������������
� ?�D&2������������������
������������
� 4��"������+������!& �%������������+����

������
��

:����2�
����������B�
�����'����

� <�%������%��(����������F����������������"���
���������

� 0��%���������������%�NE;�G��&(&���%����(�
�#�����������)��)������
����������

� ������
���#�����(���
�$���������������
� H��%��#���
��������)
��������
� 0�����������
�	�
����F����+���;���(�������
����

�
:����2�
����������B�
�����'����

� H��%��������
�������
��-��������
���%���
� 4����(���%�������������
� 0�����������+�%%�%����"�����(������
� 	��(������(������������%������

4�����(��
�

:����2�
����������B�
���

��'��

� ���

��(��(���������
��
�����������+�������
�(��%�RR�

� =����������������������,A�F�'���
��"�%���������������
� 0���������������������

���������%�
��������������
� /�������������������������������
������������
� 	��(�����$���������������%������4�����(��

�
:����2�
����������B�
���

��'��

� 4�����(���%���������������)
��������$����
���������

� A��"�����(��������%�(�������������
�������������

� 0�(�(��������%����������������������
�
������������

� '�����������3��
�����������%�����
� /�
���������������(������0�����������
�

	�
����
� /�������������������������

1��"������;���(������
�

:����2�
����������B�
������

�
:����2�8��������� /�����
 �������B�����'��'�2�������� ��
�H�� 9�������
��
�����'� ��
�H�� :�����������'������� ��
�H�� 9�������
���������'� ��
 �������B�=�"�����'�������������� ��
�H�� ������������'����������������� ��
�H�� :����2������ ��
�H�� =����'�"�������� ��
�H�� +������
�������
� ��
 �������B����������������� ��
�H�� :����2�������
����������� ��
�H�� )���������'������ ��
�H�� $��(2���������'������ ��)��

Page 43



 

 
�

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

)��
��/����
������+����������
�"���

�#�����2����#�

 
    )������2�
�����'���

� 	�������*�#�

;���������

���������������
������

� �
�������(�����$����"��������������)��������
����(���������%���������%�
������

� 	
������+�������)�+���%�������%�����
������
� ;��������
����������%����
����

��%����%���
��)������(�������������
�����������

� ;���������������
����������
�������%������

� ������
�+����(��%������������%���$��%��
(��%������%���&�

�

)������2�
�����'���

� 	���
��$������������������%�������������
��������%������������������+������
��%����%�������)
��"��(�

� 	���������������(��������������(�)�
'�����������7���%�

� ��%����%����

��%�����������������%�3���"���
� 7�%(�������(������;�E4�)�(��%&��
� '��������(����(�����.�����������(����G��&(&�����"��

�����%�������������������*�
� ;�������������
�������+�����+
�����(�����%������

��������
� '��������(�%��������������������(�����(�����
�������

$��"��
� 4���(���%��(����������$�

�
�

� � � �

)��������
����(�������

� ���������������"������(��������
����
� ;���������
��������������$�������
���)�

+���(��#�
���%��
� 	��(�����	�����(�	���
��E������(��%��G����

�����������
� '��������������������(�������%��������
�

+�%(����
� 0������$��"��������

���������%�
�

)��������
����(�������

� /�����$��"������������(��)�����.����������(���%�
$�������������

� 	���������.����%����������
� ����������������%���������
����
������%��
� '����$��"���������������%����+��������������%�

���
�������
� ��"��(��3��
����������������$��%-��������������

���������

�:�����������������������������@���2����
�����
�����������A����
����;�����"������
    )������2�
�����'���

� A���%��������������������������
����%�
������������������������
%������%�����
����
$���������������%����%��

� E����
������������������%�������%�
�������������������%�����������
��������������+���������%��(���%�
��������(�����������������
%������%�������
����
����

)������2�
���������
�������

� '����)�(������������
%���������
%����������%�����
�(���%�G�
��%��(��������������������������
���������+�
������(������
��%����%�%���������
�
����������3��
����

� ;���(�������������$������%���%��
�����$��"�
�����������������
���(����%���������������
�
�������������%��
�����(�����������

� 0�������������
������%�+����������"������
��������
������$��"��(�������������������$�����������������
�
���
%���%�����
�����������

� � � �

�������������
��������
�����������

� 1�����������������
����$���������������
������������%�������������������������

� 1��$�

���������������+��(�����(����
��������%���������������4���(���%��(���%�
���"�%����������
%���*�����������

� 1�������$�����(���%��������������%��(�
�������������������%��������������������
�������
���%������������%�%�����$����������
����%�������������������4���(���%��(-����

�

���
����;��
���"����������
#��
��

� ���(����.������������
%���*�����������(��%����
+������K8����%L�

� 
��(����.�����������%��������%���(������
� 4��������%�3�����K8����%L�%����������������%�

�����������������������

Page 44



 

)		!�*+,���	
����/��"���2�����'��
�	
������;��	
����/��"�������
�����������������#���������������
�����������"���'��
�
��� � �������
�+��������� � I���#�����

���H��"���'��
� I	
������� � I����������H�

�"���'��
�
>'�� C�����
��$���+�
���������
�������%���������+��"(����%��

(������$�

���(���������
���
������
) &�� !D&!� �

>'�� C��������
��$������
������+�
��(�������������(�+������%� )�&�� ��&!� �
>'�� �����������������������
���
������ )�&�� ��&D� �

>' � C��������
��$������
�������������
������%������������
���
���� )2&�� ��&�� �
>'�� 8����

��������������$����
���
����������� � �D&�� P�&��

>'!� 	������������������(�
�����
��������(� )�&!� �D&2� �

>'��� 	������������������)�����
�+��������� )�&D� ��&!� �

>'���
�

/��
��(�$����
���
�����������+��������)�����
�+��������-�
�������������+��
���
�������
-��
����

� �D&�� P�&��

>'���
�

	������������������������"��(���������+�
��������+���������
������������
%������������

� �2&�� P�&D�

>'��� 	��������������������
����������%������������������������
$�����������-�����%��������

) &�� ��&!� �

>'���
�

<�%������%��(����
���
�����������+��������)�����
�
+��������-�������������+��
���
�������
-��
����

)�&�� ��&D� �

>'��� �$���������������
�����������������(����������
���
������ � �!&�� P�&��
>' �� 	��������������%���"������$%��+���������������+
��� )�&�� ��&!� �
>' �� 	��������������%��(��������%��(�%��
��(�������+
��� )!& � �D&�� �
>'��D� 4�
�)�������%����������������
�*�������

����
��-�$�

+���(� ) &�� ��& � �
>'��2� 4������������$��������
�������!��$����+��������-�

���(�+������%�
� 2�&!� P�&��

>'��D� 0#��������$������
%�������
���������������������%�%����

������%����%���
��

)�&�� ��&D� �

� ��

�
�
�
�

E��������������+��
���
����������

�

)�&��

�
�
�
�

!�&��

�

�
 

 

	
������;��	
����/��"�������
������������������"��������
�
��� � �������
�+������������2�����������"�
������� � �����I� � ���0�I� � �5�6�I�
�
>'�� >'��C��������
��$���+�
���������
�������%���������+��"(����%��

(������$�

���(���������������
���
������
)��
�

��� ���

>' � C�������
��$������
�������������
������%������������������
���
����� )� ��� ���
>'�� 8����

��������������$��������
���
������� )� ��� �D�
>'��� 	��������������������
��������������%������������������������

$��������������%������%��������
)��
�

  � ���

>' �� 	��������������%���"������$%��+�����������������+
���� ��� ��� ���

>' �� 	��������������%��(��������%��(�%��
��(���������+
���� !�� ��� �D�

>'��� 7N��8����

��������������$����������
� D� ����� � � �
7N2D� 4������������$�����
���
������ ��� ���  ��
7ND��� 1�������

�������� �D� ��� !��
7ND�7� 1����������
��(�K
���
�����
�����L�� !D� � � !��
7ND��� 1�����%������
�K
���
�����L�� 2�� 2�� ���
7N���� 4������������$������+
������������������������� ���� �!� ���
7N�� � 4������������$����
���
�+������������� ! � !�� !��
7N��D�� 4�����-
�����������
������� ���  2� ���
7N��D7� ��+�������� !�� !2� !��
7N��D�� ;������-(�

������� ��� �2� ���
7N��D/�

�
�
�
�

��������-����������

���

�

���

�

!��

�

!��
7N��D0� � 	��"����%�������������� � �!� � !D� � !��
 

 

 
 
 

Page 45



 

)������3��C�������
�*����������/���������������

 

 

 

CABINET MEMBERS 10/11 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY CHAIRS 10/11 

Leader - Cllr Mrs Vivien Pengelly 

Deputy Leader & Planning, Strategic Housing and 
Economic Development - Cllr Ted Fry 

Finance, Property, People and Governance - Cllr Ian 
Bowyer 

Safer & Stronger Communities - Cllr Peter Brookshaw  

Leisure, Culture and Sport - Cllr Glenn Jordan 

Street Scene, Waste and Sustainability - Cllr Michael 
Leaves 

Children and Young People - Cllr Grant Monahan  

Adult Health and Social Care - Cllr Dr David Salter 

Transport - Cllr Kevin Wigens  

Customer Services, Performance and Partnerships - 
Cllr Steve Ricketts 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board - Cllr 
David James 

Adult Health and Social Care OS Panel - Cllr Joan 
Watkins 

Growth and Prosperity OS Panel - Cllr David Viney 

Customers and Communities OS Panel - Cllr Andy 
Fox 

Children and Young People OS Panel – Cllr 
Pauline Purnell  

Support Services OS Panel - Cllr David James 

�
•  

)������3�0C�.���������'����
•  

 

• 	���
��4�����(��F�1��"������/���
�������	
������D)���
• �������%������4�����(�����D�
• '���4�����(�����2)���
• ����������������;���(������F�������
�4�����(������)���
• 4�����(���������-���A�������7�%(���
• ;�%���������E�������
�4�����(������)���
• 4�������+
������������4�����(������)���
• ����
�/���
�������E����$��"����!)���
• ����
�0��������4�����(�����!)���
• ����
�����������	
������!)���
• 4�������+
��/���
�������E����$��"����2)����

�

• �
����������(��4�����(�����2)���
• ���
%����F�@���(�	���
�*��	
������2)���
• 4�����(����������(��G�K'�����������������
%���L����2�
• N���
�4���"�G���
����
�4�����(�����2)���
• �

�8���E�������G�8
%���	���
�*��4�����(�����D)���
• ,��
����	
����������2)�����
• ����%�4������4�����(�����2)���
• ,�����(�4�����(�����2)���
• 4��������(�	���
��4�����(������)���
• 1�����;���(������4�����(������)���
• E�������
�'��
������4�����(�����D)���
• ;��+���/���
�������4�����(�����D)���

Q4�+.������������������
����
���
����$��"��(���������������������+�����
���%

Planning 
Committee 

(non-
reporting) 

Tamar Bridge 
& Torpoint 
Ferry Joint 
Committee 

Cabinet Mount  
Edgcumbe 

Joint 
Committee 

Audit 
Committee 

Housing 
Tenancies 
Appeals 

Committee 

Licensing 
Committees 

(non-
reporting) 

Standards 
Committee 

Appointment 
Panel 

Area 
Committees* 

Overview & 
Scrutiny 

Management 
Board 

Chief 
Officers’ 

Investigating 
Panel 

Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Panels 

Southwest 
Devon Waste 
Partnership 

City Council 

Page 46



 
 

Appendix 8: Council’s new departmental structure 

 
 

  
 
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



  1 

 
 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject: Overview and Update of People, ICT and Accommodation 

Strategies 
 

Committee:    Cabinet / Overview and Scrutiny Management Board  

Date:    9 February 2010 / 15 and 17 February 2010 

Cabinet Member: Councillors Bowyer and Ricketts  

CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Support 

Author: Paul Chapman, Head of VFM and Efficiencies 

Contact:    Tel:(01752) 304878 
      E mail:paul.chapman@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:    PWC 

Part: I   
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The Vision for Plymouth City Council 
 
Our organisation will change over the next few years. We have already seen the 
development of the Amey partnership, setting up of PCH, selling of City Bus, embedding of 
the Children’s Trust and co-location of some social care and health services; while our Audit 
Service is now a shared one with Devon and Torbay. We are starting to see the move to 
locality working; the introduction of more flexible and remote working using lean systems and 
a hot-desk approach; the roll-out of a competency framework and more e-learning and e-
management support. These implementations will continue, driven by the need to improve 
services to customers, reduce costs, conserve resources, realise the benefits of new 
technologies and improve efficiency. 
 
This will change how we work and how we are managed. There will be more emphasis on 
self-direction and management of outcomes, high skill levels and resourcefulness; with more 
focus on shared services, co-locations and the efficient use of public and community assets. 
In some areas we will need to stop doing things to free up resources, particularly when they 
are not a priority for us or part of our statutory commitments. Change will be the name of the 
game if we are to become the modern, high performing organisation and partnership that 
befits a city with our level of ambition. 
 
Progress 
 
A key to success is the effective alignment of our accommodation, people and ICT strategies. 
These approaches, from a service basis, now sit under one directorate. We introduced the 
strategies in the Corporate Plan for 2009/10 and their key areas of focus are again outlined 
here. Since then we have made progress across the strands and started to align their 
implementation, though more needs to be done. 
 
During the year we completed the job evaluation appeals process and role profiles have been 
produced to support the newly developed competency framework, which will make a 

Agenda Item 7Page 49



  2 

significant contribution to enhancing employee capability and flexibility. We have commenced 
work to integrate data from learning and development databases across the council and 
automate elements of the corporate training and events system.  Learning solutions and 
training courses have been aligned to corporate priorities and E-Learning implemented. 
 
We have physically opened up Floors 4, 5, 6 and 11 within the Civic Centre; piloted the open 
plan approach within finance on floor 5, with roaming profiles for hot-desking. We are 
reviewing feedback from this pilot to better understand how people work and their 
developmental needs. We are also researching flexible working strategies and how these 
operate in readiness for the implementation of the post 2012 phase of the accommodation 
strategy.   
 
Work has been undertaken to develop the business case for the Windsor House move and 
for the development of flexible working. 
  
As we work towards a capability for staff to work remotely, the Netilla project has been 
progressed alongside the single sign-on project to enable users to securely yet simply log on 
to the systems remotely.   There still remains significant work that needs to be done to 
rationalise the data and to educate staff in the skills required to maintain data integrity and 
availability.  If more staff are to benefit from these developments then more work will be 
needed on delivering the necessary IT architecture required to support them. Work from the 
Civil Contingencies national project we lead is also being used to underpin our joint corporate 
strategies; while the VSRA – 3G secure Government Connect will form the basis for our own 
corporate mobile working solution. 
 
We are preparing for the roll out of Manager Online via the portal.   This will enable managers 
to access key information on their staff and undertake tasks like on-line management of 
sickness absence and appraisals.   As part of this project an exercise has been undertaken 
to ensure the integrity of employment data and organisational structures held on HR SAP and 
the maintenance of this information across departments. The Knowledge Room is in the 
process of being developed to better engage both managers and employees in 
understanding organisational policies and processes. 
 
Future developments and challenges 
 
Over the coming year we will focus particularly on embedding the competencies; reviewing 
terms and conditions in light of flexible working approaches; standardising processes and 
‘de-duplicating’ applications, while training staff to make better use of what we have; rolling 
out the open plan and hot desk approach to other offices; making further improvements to 
our information systems and data integrity; and, undertaking another staff survey. 
 
Key challenges will be around ensuring we manage this type of change well and fully engage 
staff and members, as well as prioritising for investment those areas most likely to give us 
efficiencies; keeping focused during what is likely to be a difficult financial period and 
engaging with our partners on these often complex issues to ensure maximum benefits. 
 
         
 
Corporate Plan 2009-2012  
 
The executive summary is taken from the Corporate Plan to ensure a consistency of 
approach and complements the requirements of Corporate Improvement Priorities 13 and 14 
– Supporting Council staff to perform better – and  – Providing better value for money. 

Page 50



  3 

         
 

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The attachments give the latest position statements regarding implementation of the People, 
ICT and Accommodation strategies which are referenced as background documents and are 
resourced as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
  
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 
All implications were previously considered as part of the original background papers set out 
below. 
 
 
 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
The report is provided for information to Members as a supplement to the 2010/11 Budget 
Report.  Content to be noted by members. 
  
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Background papers: 
 

• Accommodation Strategy – June 2009 
• Information Communication Technology Strategy 2008-2011 
• People Strategy 2009 – 2011 

   
 

Page 51



  4 

 
 

Yearly position statement – key strategies 
 
Strategy People  

 
Contact 
 

Eve Skuse 

PROGRESS - Brief highlights of progress in the year - including how well key linkages are being made across 
ICT/People/ Accommodation strategies - and mention/explain any major delays: 
The Job Evaluation Appeals Process has been completed and role profiles have been produced which support the 
newly developed competency framework.  
 
The Competency framework will make a significant contribution to building employee performance and capacity 
and flexibility in the Council which is critical for the future.    Work will continue to improve employee performance 
and embed business planning and performance management  
 
Human Resources and Organisational Development (HROD) and ICT have commenced work to integrate data 
from Learning and Development databases across the Council and automate elements of the corporate training 
and events system.   
 
Learning and development solutions and training courses have been aligned to corporate priorities and E-Learning 
has been implemented.  The HROD service is now considering other flexible and value for money approaches to 
the development of staff to maximise performance and capacity. 
 
Work has been jointly undertaken to develop the business case for the Windsor House move and for the 
development of the Flexible Working Strategy.   HR is reviewing feedback from the Floor 5 hot desk pilot to better 
understand how people work and their developmental needs. 
 
HR is also currently researching the flexible working strategies and how these strategies operate in readiness for 
the implementation of the later phase of the accommodation strategy post 2012.   
 
Work has been undertaken to prepare to roll out SAP Manager Online via the portal.   This will enable managers 
access to key information on their staff and to undertake some tasks including the on-line management sickness 
absence and appraisals which supports the self-service elements of the combined strategies.    
 
As part of this project an exercise has been undertaken to ensure the integrity of employment data and 
organisational structures held on HR SAP and interventions are in the process of being identified to ensure the 
maintenance of this information across departments.  
 
The Knowledge Room is in the process of being developed and this enable managers to easily locate and access 
the information they need and will better engage managers and employees in understanding organisational 
policies and processes. 
 
FUTURE CHALLENGES - Any major revisions to the strategy for 2010-13, due to change in the financial climate 
or other factors 
 
To support challenges including budget pressures and increasing customer expectations, the HROD Service will 
support the Council to  

• Increase the capacity, flexibility and productivity of the workforce  
• Develop Effective Organisational Structures 
• Improve integrated working with partners and ensure flexible terms and conditions of employment that 

support partnerships and shared services   
• Workforce Skilled for now and the Future 
• Promote a diverse Workforce that reflects our Community 
• Engage the workforce in the Council goal to achieve excellence 

   
COMING YEAR’S MAIN ACTIVITY  
Brief mention of major activity in the coming year Any key dependencies or changes to budget 2010/11 
 
Embed behavioural competency framework 

 

 
Further develop range of development solutions  
 

 

 

Page 52



  5 

 
Yearly position statement – key strategies 

 
Strategy HR  

 
Contact 
 

Eve Skuse 

 
Review organisational design and change management 
processes including redeployment and redundancy 

 

Further develop MSS and management information 
systems and continue to review integrity of data held 
including equality and skills information 

 

Implement Knowledge Room  
 

 

Review of flexible working strategies and terms and 
conditions  
 

 

 
Employee Survey 
 

 

LONGER-TERM - Any headline budget changes needed for  2011/12 and headline needs for 2012/13 
We will need to evaluate the impact of:- 

• The green agenda 
• Mobile and flexible working 
• Web strategy 
• Information management 
• Partnership Arrangements and Shared Services  

 
Note: Whilst we want to flag up resources needs, we are also trying to reduce costs and increase efficiency and 
VFM, particularly given the tight climate ahead  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



  6 

 
 

Yearly position statement – key strategies 
 
Strategy Accommodation 

 
Contact 
 

Eve Skuse or Neville Cannon or Chris Trevitt 

PROGRESS - Brief highlights of progress in the year - including how well key linkages are being made across 
ICT/People/ Accommodation strategies - and mention/explain any major delays: 
 
CMT and Director lead (Adam Broome) has been appointed, as well as Member lead (Cllr Bowyer) with assistant 
(Cllr Sam Leaves). 
 
Floors 4, 5, 6 and 11 within Civic Centre have now been physically opened up as open plan work areas. 
 
Initial pilot on open plan working has been implemented on floor 5 of Civic Centre within finance.  Users now have 
roaming profiles for hot desking implemented through ICT. 
 
Second open plan pilot is planned for floor 13 Civic Centre – due to commence February/March 2010  
 
FUTURE CHALLENGES - Any major revisions to the strategy for 2010-13, due to change in the financial climate 
or other factors 
 
A business case has now been prepared for implementation of the corporate accommodation strategy across the 
entire corporate office estate. 
 
Capital investment is required to enable full implementation of the strategy in order to achieve the full benefits 
identified in the strategy. Current capital pressures are being considered before approval and scope can be given 
through the budget approval process. 
 
 
COMING YEAR’S MAIN ACTIVITY  
Brief mention of major activity in the coming year Any key dependencies or changes to budget 2010/11 
 
Implementation of strategy involving Windsor House, 
Ballard House, Midland House and Civic Centre 
 

 
Investment required from capital programme, inclusive 
of ICT investment for roaming profiles and telephony 

LONGER-TERM - Any headline budget changes needed for  2011/12 and headline needs for 2012/13 
 
ERDMS is required to be rolled out across the authority to fully realise the true benefits of the accommodation 
strategy. Additional resource will be required to deliver. 
 
 
 
Note: Whilst we want to flag up resources needs, we are also trying to reduce costs and increase efficiency and 
VFM, particularly given the tight climate ahead  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



  7 

 
Yearly position statement – key strategies 

 
Strategy ICT 

 
Contact 
 

Neville Cannon 

PROGRESS - Brief highlights of progress in the year - including how well key linkages are being made across 
ICT/People/ Accommodation strategies - and mention/explain any major delays: 
Work has been jointly undertaken to develop the business case for the Windsor House move and for the 
development of the Flexible Working Strategy.   ICT has been involved with HR, Asset Management and the 
consultants on both projects. 
 
As a result ICT has delivered the Floor 5 hot desking pilot and lessons learned are being evaluated now ahead of 
extending the roll out to Floor 13.   A number of issues have emerged and these need to have solutions designed 
if unsatisfactory work-a-rounds are to be avoided.   This will require input from HR as we seek to better understand 
how people work and their developmental needs. 
 
ICT has also been working on the design of the second data centre to be located at Windsor House as this will be 
critical to facilitate to future accommodation plans for the Civic Centre as well as being critical in the provisioning of 
any corporate telephony upgrade. 
 
As we work towards a capability for staff to work remotely, the Netilla project has been progressed alongside the 
single sign-on project to enable users to securely yet simply log on to the systems necessary, remotely.   There 
still remains significant work that needs to be done to rationalise the data and to educate staff in the skills required 
to maintain data integrity and availability if more staff are to access single records. 
 
Also work has been undertaken to prepare to roll out SAP Manager Self Service (MSS) via the portal.   This will 
enable managers to undertake some tasks directly themselves and supports the self-service elements of the 
combined strategies.   Underpinning this is the work to deliver the automated links between SAP HR and Active 
Directory (AD/HR).   This is a key component to improving many of our processes involving staff and change. 
 
Further work being undertaken for the Civil Contingencies national project is also being used to underpin our joint 
corporate strategies.  The VSRA – 3G secure Government Connect solution will for the basis for our own 
corporate mobile working solution. 
 
FUTURE CHALLENGES - Any major revisions to the strategy for 2010-13, due to change in the financial climate 
or other factors 
The request would be that during 2010/11 we invest in those areas that will better prepare us to deliver the 
efficiencies that will be needed for the future. 
 
The ICT strategy will not need to be rewritten significantly as it was for this purpose written as a high level strategy 
and supported by action plans which detail the specific technologies and projects introduced depending on the 
investment available.   The availability of capital does not change our overall strategy, just our ability to pursue it at 
speed. 
 
Data and information management will remain a significant challenge as efficiencies will mean that less informed 
staff may be tasked with performing roles where local knowledge is less available.   This will place a heavier 
burden on the IT systems being able to compensate by being easier to use.   Corporate understanding will be 
needed by staff to improve the delivery of corporate and departmental goals. 
 
Business cases will be submitted as part of the invest to save process outlined in the capital programme with a 
particular focus on single sign on, Netilla, CRM and especially eDRMS. 
 
Design work is currently taking place with our local authority partners to extend the scope of the three strategy 
convergence.   That’s to say we are seeking common approaches and solution designs that allow for the flexibility 
for staff to work even wider a field and remain fully supported. 
 
COMING YEAR’S MAIN ACTIVITY  
Brief mention of major activity in the coming year Any key dependencies or changes to budget 2010/11 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



  8 

 
 

Yearly position statement – key strategies 
 
Strategy ICT 

 
Contact 
 

Neville Cannon 

ICT requires a Microsoft Enterprise Agreement renewal 
to effectively deliver the joined up agenda including, 
OCS (unified comm’s), Microsoft Dynamics (CRM) and 
Windows 7 upgrades. 
 

Costs to be determined by the number of Users likely to 
be supported over the coming 3 years. 

Corporate applications to be supported, Desktop 
strategy/ eDRMS/ CRM/ workflow 
 
 

£ capital 

Deploying MSS 
 
 

 

Consolidation of service desks delivering operational 
efficiencies 
 
 

 

Standardising processes and de-duplicating 
applications -  driving consolidation to make savings 
 
 

 

 
Train staff to make better use of what we have. 
 

 

LONGER-TERM - Any headline budget changes needed for  2011/12 and headline needs for 2012/13 
We will need to evaluate the impact of:- 

• The green agenda 
• Mobile and flexible working 
• Web strategy 
• Information management 
• Respond to Govt’s ICT strategy and imposed actions. 

 
Note: Whilst we want to flag up resources needs, we are also trying to reduce costs and increase efficiency and 
VFM, particularly given the tight climate ahead  

 
 
 
 
Sign off: 
 
Finance MC0910

.016 
Legal DVS 

1097 
HR ES Corp 

prop 
CJT/046/
010210 

 IT NC0
1/20
1001
02 

Strategic 
Proc 

PWC/0
01/010
210 

Originating SMT Member: Paul Chapman 
 

Page 56



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

Subject: Corporate Asset Management Plan 

Committee:  Cabinet
Overview & Scrutiny Management Board 

Date:     Cabinet - 9 February 2010 
Overview & Scrutiny Management Board  

  - 15 &17 February 2010 

   
Cabinet Member:    Councillor Bowyer  

CMT Member:    Director for Corporate Support 

Author:  Chris Trevitt 

Contact:     5441 

Ref:     Part 1  

______________________________________________________________
Executive Summary: 

The attached report is the City Council’s update of the Asset Management 
Plan.

The Asset Management Plan timetable has been revised to the end of 2015 
due to the effect of the current economic downturn. This will be reviewed 
during the next twelve months. 

Asset Management is now part of the Capital & Assets Service formed in the 
autumn of 2009 and sits with the Finance, Assets and Efficiencies Department 
of the Corporate Support Directorate. This service is a key vehicle for 
assisting the organisation to deliver on the key corporate improvement 
priorities identified in the Corporate Plan 2010-2013. This plan demonstrates 
where we are now, what progress has been achieved to date and where we 
intend to be with the property estate by the end of 2015. 

The Capital Programme and Capital Strategy is included as an appendix to 
the plan as this information now forms part of the separate budget report.

Agenda Item 8Page 57



Corporate Plan 2009-2012: 

The Asset Management Plan supports the Corporate Improvement Priorities 
identified enabling the Council to deliver an excellent service to the 
community. In addition it supports the City’s 4 visionary goals as established 
through the Local Strategic Partnership. 

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land

The Asset Management Plan identifies how the maintenance backlog is being 
dealt with and the future strategy for rationalisation of the corporate property 
estate.

Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and 
Safety, Risk Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 

The Asset Management Plan deals with issues regarding accessibility, health 
& safety and equality in respect of the corporate building estate. 

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 

It is recommended that the Asset Management Plan is approved. 

Background papers: 

Asset Management Plan February 2010 update.

Sign off: 

Fi
n

MC
0910
.017

Leg LT
1095

HR N/A Corp
Prop

CJT/045
/290110 

IT N/A Strat
Proc

N/A

Originating SMT Member: 

Page 58



Corporate Asset Management Plan 

2005-2015 (incorporating Capital Programme for 2010/11-2014/15) 

A plan for making the best use of our assets to achieve our Corporate Objectives 

and support service delivery  

Plymouth City Council  

February 2010 Update

Page 59



1

CONTENTS 

Page

Corporate Asset Management Plan for 2005-2010 

1.0 Introduction 3

2.0 Vision for the Service 6

3.0 Current property portfolio 7

4.0 Where we intend to be and the link with Corporate Priorities 11

5.0 How we will achieve our objectives 17

6.0 Organisation arrangements and consultation 26

APPENDICES 

1 Capital Programme & Strategy 2010-2015 

Page 60



2

SECTION 1 

Corporate Asset Management Plan for 2005-2015 (February 2010 Update) 

Responsible Officer –  Chris Trevitt, Head of Capital and Assets 

Telephone: 01752 305441

E-Mail: chris.trevitt@plymouth.gov.uk

This year’s Asset Management Plan has been written as an update to our 2009 Plan. 

The 2008 Plan remains the basis of our strategy for land, property and use of Capital. 

However, the current economic conditions, a reduction in resources and re-prioritisation 

against the Corporate Plan has meant that similarly to last year we are adjusting some of 

our key outcomes in order to recognise changes in time and current circumstances, whilst 

still aiming for the original overall outcome. 

As 2010 is the mid-point of the 10 year plan issued in 2005, it is  intended to carry out a 

wider review of the original aims, and objectives of the 2005 plan during the coming year 

with the intention to issue a revised plan at the end of the calendar year. 

This review will take account of changing Council priorities and economic conditions and 

propose revised initiatives for the Councils property in response. 

Page 61



1. Introduction

The Plymouth 2020 local strategic partnership has a shared vision of making Plymouth 

“One of Europe’s finest, most vibrant waterfront cities, where an outstanding quality of life 

is enjoyed by everyone” by 2020.

To achieve this shared vision the partners have agreed to focus their priorities around four 

themed areas aimed at making the city healthy, wealthy, safe and wise.  The diagram 

below shows how the vision for the city is being delivered through theme groups and 

supported by the partnership. 

Partners have their own visions and strategies that ultimately aim to deliver that shared 

vision for the city. Plymouth City Council’s vision is to deliver excellent local services to 

Plymouth residents and has set itself the goal of becoming an “excellent” authority by 

2012.

Vision
One of Europe’s 

finest, most vibrant 
waterfront cities, 

where an outstanding 
quality of life is 

enjoyed by everyone.

A Safe 
and strong city

A Wealthy
City

which shares
and creates
prosperity

A Healthy
place to live

and work

A Wise City 
a place for 
learning,

achievement 
and leisure

3

Page 62



4

Priorities for achieving excellence 

The Council has identified 14 key priorities to help achieve excellence and the shared 

vision for the city. These are organised under the three themes of improving our 

customers’ experience, improving our city and improving our Council. The priorities are: 

Improving our Customers’ experience 

! Improving customer service 

! Involving and informing customers  

Improving our City 

! Helping people to live independently 

! Reducing inequalities between communities 

! Providing better and more affordable housing 

! Providing more culture and leisure activities  

! Keeping children safe 

! Improving skills and educational achievement 

! Developing high quality places to learn in  

! Disposing of waste and increasing recycling 

! Improving ease of travel across the city 

! Attracting jobs and investment 

Improving our Council 

! Helping Council staff to perform better 

! Providing better value for money. 

Focusing on achieving these priorities will enable the Council to achieve high levels of 

customer satisfaction and reach – and retain – a Comprehensive Area Assessment rating 

Page 63



of “excellent”.  The Council’s planning and budget setting for financial year 2009/2010 and 

beyond has been developed on the basis of focusing on these priorities. 

The diagram below illustrates the relationship between the city’s goals, the Council’s 

Corporate Improvement Priorities and the support required from the Asset Management 

Plan & Capital Strategy: 

City Wide PrioritiesCity Wide Priorities

City vision
“one of Europe’s finest, most vibrant waterfront cities, 
where an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone” by 2020

City vision
“one of Europe’s finest, most vibrant waterfront cities, 
where an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone” by 2020

A Healthy 
City

A Healthy 
City

A
Wealthy

City

A
Wealthy 

City

A Safe &  
Strong

City

A Safe &
Strong

City

A Wise 
City

A Wise 
City

Local Strategic Partnership and Local Area 
Agreement Targets

Local Strategic Partnership and Local Area 
Agreement Targets

Council Corporate Plan (step change)Council Corporate Plan (step change)

Our CityOur City Our CustomersOur Customers Our CouncilOur Council
• Helping people to live 

independently
• Reducing inequalities 

between communities
• Providing better and 

more affordable housing
• Providing more culture 

and leisure activities
• Keeping children safe
• Improving skills and 

educational 
achievement

• Developing high quality 
places to learn in

• Disposal of waste and 
increasing recycling

• Improving ease of travel 
across the city

• Attracting jobs and 
investment

• Helping people to live 
independently

• Reducing inequalities 
between communities

• Providing better and 
more affordable housing

• Providing more culture 
and leisure activities

• Keeping children safe
• Improving skills and 

educational 
achievement

• Developing high quality 
places to learn in

• Disposal of waste and 
increasing recycling

• Improving ease of travel 
across the city

• Attracting jobs and 
investment

• Improving customer 
service

• Involving and 
informing customers

• Improving customer 
service

• Involving and 
informing customers

• Helping Council staff 
to perform better

• Improving value for 
money

• Helping Council staff 
to perform better

• Improving value for 
money

People, accommodation, asset, ICT and financial 
strategies

People, accommodation, asset, ICT and financial 
strategies

Department/Service /business plans and budgets 
(business as usual – continuous improvement)

Department/Service /business plans and budgets 
(business as usual – continuous improvement)

Partnership 
governance 

and 
performance 
management

Partnership 
governance 

and 
performance 
management

Council 
governance 

and 
performance 
management

Council 
governance 

and 
performance 
management

5

Page 64



6

2.0 Vision for the Service 

2.1 Corporate Asset Policy – Mission Statement 

The key drivers for establishing a corporate asset policy are: 

! Responsiveness to community needs and local development 

! Realising surplus assets and maximising the value of those assets 

! Alignment with Government efficiency programmes 

! Relieving pressure on Council Tax 

After salaries, the cost of occupying property is the next highest cost for the 

Council.  Release of surplus assets not only generates a capital receipt to 

build reserves but also provides revenue savings through reduced energy, 

maintenance and facilities management costs. 

2.2 Scope of this Plan - Objectives 

This Corporate Asset Management Plan seeks to set out the broader 

strategy for the estate, in tackling the need to grasp the underlying issues 

and then manage the Estate to enhance its value by: 

! Maximising capital value 

! Maximising income from the Property Portfolio 

! Releasing latent value in surplus property for reinvestment 

! Rationalising poor performing assets and those which are a liability by 

targeting areas of high backlog maintenance and high management costs 

with no value added in achieving corporate objectives. 

! Adhering to the maintenance strategy for prioritisation and expenditure of 

centralised revenue maintenance budgets. 

! Ensuring cross - service opportunities are not missed. 

Page 65



7

! Ensuring facilities are in a condition appropriate to use and need, safe 

and compliant with legislation, suitable and sufficient for the services 

delivered. 

! Gathering, maintaining and updating information on the size, value, 

condition, suitability and sufficiency of property holdings 

! Emphasising the importance of facilities management in estate 

management

3.0 Current Property Portfolio

In 2008 we outlined the scope and state of our property holdings. 

The tables below summarise our current position: 

3.1  Table 1 – Plymouth City Council Estate – 2010 

Properties Number

Admin, Offices 17

Schools/Colleges 86

Youth & Community Centres 15

Libraries 16

Social Services Centres 18

Parks & Open Spaces (including 

playgrounds)

254

Playing Fields 26

Allotments 31

Museums 3

Sports Complexes and Swimming Pools 7

Car Parks 74

Public Conveniences 34

Theatres 2

Cemeteries/burial grounds 3

Waste Management Centre 2

Tenancies

Commercial Property Interests Circa 1,800 

Page 66



8

There are a mixture of management arrangements in place for the estate, 

with delegated maintenance budgets still in place for schools / colleges, 

parks and open spaces, allotments, car parks, public conveniences and 

waste management facilities. 

3.2 Condition & Backlog Maintenance. 

Maintenance of much of the estate is now managed in accordance with the 

Council’s Maintenance Strategy, issued in 2007 and via centralised revenue 

maintenance budgets adopted since April 2008. 

Page 67



Detail of the overall condition and backlog maintenance levels are given 

below:

Condition A: Good    Condition B: Satisfactory  

Condition C: Poor    Condition D: Bad  

GIA = Gross Internal Area 

Table 2:-   Percentage of Gross internal floor area in condition A – D

% Gross Internal Floor Area in Condition A-D

0.36%

79.19%

19.88%

0.57%

D:  Bad (GIA 981m2)C:  Poor (GIA
35,223m2)

B:  Satisfactory (GIA
136,377m2)

A: Good (GIA 617m2)

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0

Percentage

As can be seen from the table above, 79.19% of our property is in a 

satisfactory condition a decrease from 79.92% last year. 19.88% is in a poor 

condition an increase from 18.98%.  0.57% is in a bad condition an 

improvement from 0.70% last year and 0.36% that is in a good condition a 

decrease from 0.41% last year. 

9

Page 68



Table 3:- Total backlog maintenance of properties in condition grade A to D

£12,060

£13,661,252

£8,485,983

£2,660,785

£0.00

£2,000,000.00

£4,000,000.00

£6,000,000.00

£8,000,000.00

£10,000,000.00

£12,000,000.00

£14,000,000.00

A:   Good B:  Satisfactory C:  Poor D:  Bad

Total Backlog Maintenance (£)

The total figure of £28.78million above represents the current backlog 

maintenance of the estate at the time of publication and excludes schools. 

School backlog maintenance information is given in section 5.2.  This figure 

is up from £24.82million at this point last year.  There are a number of 

reasons for this.  Progress on reduction of backlog maintenance has been 

low due to centralised maintenance budgets being insufficient to implement 

fully the planned maintenance programme, the state of the property market 

frustrating the disposals programme and original condition surveys first 

carried our in 2004 being re-surveyed.  The five yearly review revises, due to 

inflation, provides condition issues not dealt with and also picks up any 

further deterioration since the last survey. As a result allowance has been 

made in the revenue budgets increased maintenance budgets for the next 

three years. This should enable inroads to be made into the backlog figure, 

together with improvements in the property market and implementation of the 

accommodation strategy which will reduce office requirements. 

10

Page 69



11

Key projects such as the others within new leisure facilities in Central Park 

along with the capital programme, disposals and further asset rationalisation 

will see a reduction in the backlog maintenance by approximately £11.32 

million by 2014. This will help to reduce the backlog to £17.46 million over 

the next 4 years to 2014 with further reductions being achieved through the 

implementation of the maintenance strategy as described above.

Page 70



12

4.0 Where we intend to be and the link with Corporate Priorities

4.1 Corporate Planning Framework 

 A clear hierarchy of plans exists in Plymouth, all resourced by the Medium 

Term Financial Plan (MTFP). Plymouth’s Performance Plan exists within a 

framework and hierarchy of plans and strategies which are aligned to provide 

ever greater levels of detail, from, at the top, a shared strategic direction, 

followed by a corporate contribution and perspective, down to individual 

goals and targets so that the sum of the whole contribute to the shared vision 

for the area. 

 At the highest level, the Sustainable Communities Strategy, developed by 

the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP), articulates the vision and sets out the 

shared aspirations of all partners in securing outcomes for Plymouth’s 

communities.

 The Corporate Plan provides the link between the Sustainable Communities 

Strategy and how the Council, as a service provider, contributes to the 

longer-term social, economic and environmental well being of the area.  It 

provides an annual assessment of our performance against our aims, 

priorities and targets at a corporate level and our contribution to the 

Sustainable Communities Strategy. 

Statutory Plans and Strategies reflect the breadth of services the Council 

provides or has an involvement in, and which are developed to translate 

aims into specific spending programmes, targets and actions. This is where 

the Asset Management Plan sits. 

Page 71



13

4.2 Corporate Improvement Priorities 

The Council is setting a target date of 2012 for becoming an excellent 

authority.  In order to achieve this, a number of key priorities have been set.  

They are: 

Table 4:- Improvement Priorities 

Corporate Improvement Priorities 2009-2012 

Improving our Customers’ experience 

CIP1 Improving customer service Contribution via development of 
locality bases (See KO7) 

CIP2 Informing and involving 
residents

Ongoing programme of community 
asset transfers (See 5.1.7) 

Improving our City   

CIP3 Helping people to live 
independently

Supporting Adult Social Care joint 
commissioning with Primary Care 
Trust (See 5.1.9) 

CIP4 Reducing inequalities 
between communities 

Providing comparable facilities via 
localities based shared service 
centres (See 5.1.9) and enhanced 
youth service provision together with 
support for the Health Strategy 

CIP5 Providing better and more 
affordable housing 

Supporting Housing Stock Transfer 
(See 5.1.12) 

CIP6 Providing more and better 
culture and leisure activities 

Supporting development of the Life 
Centre and Leisure Management 
Project (See 5.1.5) 

CIP7 Keeping children safe Continuing work with Primary Care 
Trust (See 5.1.9) 

CIP8 Improving skills and 
educational achievement 

Delivery of schools capital 
programme and enhanced library 
provision (See 5.1.1 and 5.1.6) 

CIP9 Developing high quality 
places to learn in 

Supporting development of school 
estate (see 5.1.1) 

CIP10 Disposing of waste and 
increasing recycling 

Support for the waste project (See 
5..2.11)

CIP11 Improving access across the 
city

Provision of accommodation for the 
AMEY/Plymouth City Council 
Transport partnership and ongoing 
work on Disability Discrimination Act 
improvements

CIP12 Delivering sustainable 
growth

Development and implementation of 
a Strategic Investment Framework 
to encourage higher levels of 

Page 72



14

enterprise in Plymouth, including 
creating workspace

Improving our Council 
CIP13 Helping Council staff to perform 

better
Working to provide 
improved Accommodation 

CIP14 Providing better value for money Delivery of Asset 
Management Plan together 
with sustainability agenda 
(See 5.1.10) 

Page 73



15

4.3 Key Outcomes for Plymouth City Council’s Asset Management Planning 

Back in 2005 we listed the key outcomes of our plan.  Last year a review of the key 

outcomes was undertaken and the remaining outcomes are listed below. 

Table 5 

Key 
Outcome

Description Current Status Plan Who (Lead 
Officer)

Timescale

KO2 Disposal of 
all current 
surplus
property
generating
capital
receipts (for 
investment in 
frontline
services) – by 
end 2010 

This work has 
been progressing 
but is now 
seriously delayed 
due to the 
collapse of the 
property market. 

Asset Review – 
additional
resources
required to 
maintain
surplus property 
disposals

Andrew
Jarrold

2004-2015

KO3 Disposal of 
poor
performing
investment
property and 
re-investment
in better 
performing
assets – by 
end 2010 

For the same 
reasons as KO 2 
above, the 
timescale for 
delivery has been 
revised

Asset Review – 
additional
resources
required to 
maintain
surplus property 
disposals

Andrew
Jarrold

2004-2015

KO4 Leasehold
disposal or 
contracting
out the 
running of 
key Council 
public
buildings that 
are currently 
loss making – 
by end 2008 

This has been 
managed well 
with respect to 
the Guildhalls 
and Harewood 
House. Losses 
have been 
managed in 
house and a 
transfer has been 
effected with 
respect to 
Devonport
Guildhall. Work 
will continue to 

Implementation
of charges 
increase and 
soft testing of 
market interest 
to generate 
options
followed by 
hard market 
testing

Chris
Trevitt

2004-2010

Page 74



16

Key 
Outcome

Description Current Status Plan Who (Lead 
Officer)

Timescale

improve the 
commercialisation
of Plymouth 
Guildhall. 

KO7 Achievement
of Customer 
and
Stakeholder
satisfaction in 
the use of our 
buildings
(e.g. The 
rationalisation 
and
improvement
of the 
corporate
administrative
estate) – by 
end 2010 

Work here is still 
being
progressed.
Accommodation
Strategy approval 
in June 2009.
First phase of 
implementation to 
be complete 
March 2011.
However due to 
the listing of the 
Civic Centre, 
overall delivery is 
now forecast for 
2015

Delivery of 
Accommodation
Strategy

Chris
Trevitt

2006-2015

KO9 Leasehold
transfer of 
community
assets to 
structured
community
bodies by 
end of 2010. 

Successfully
achieved for 
Devonport
Guildhall.  Other 
opportunities,
including 
Plympton
Guildhall, to be 
investigated
during 2010. 

Option
Appraisals to 
be undertaken 
for presentation 
to Members 

Chris
Trevitt

2005-2010

KO12 Improving our 
use of energy 
thereby
reducing
costs and 
CO2

omissions
and
increasing
sustainable

Work is 
progressing.
Energy
monitoring
arrangements are 
now in place. 
Targets for 
carbon
management are 
included in 

Energy Saving 
Initiatives in 
support of the 
Local Authority 
Carbon
Management
Programme

Alex Hurth 2005-2011

Page 75



17

Key 
Outcome

Description Current Status Plan Who (Lead 
Officer)

Timescale

operations – 
by end 2008 

Council 
Environmental
Policy. These 
activities support 
CIP 14. 

KO13 Property that 
is compliant 
with current 
legislative 
standards – 
by end 2010 

Ongoing work 
through to end of 
2010.

Condition
surveys and 
asset review 

Chris
Trevitt

2006-2015

KO14 Effective
capital project 
-delivery, on 
time, on 
budget and to 
required
specification
– by end 
2008

Project
management
procedures were 
implemented in 
November 2009. 

Now complete Capital
Programme
Manager / 
Tony
Hopwood

2006-2009

Page 76



4.4 How Key Outcomes link to our Corporate Improvement Priorities

Table 6 

Corporate Improvement Priorities 
2009/10

Note – the key outcomes identified in table 5 are now shown linked to 
each corporate improvement priority 

Improving access to high quality services

! Improving customer service KO7, KO13
! Informing and involving residents KO2, KO7 

Improving our city (supported by KO7 & KO8)
! Helping people to live independently KO7
! Reducing inequalities between communities KO2
! Providing better and more affordable housing KO2
! Providing more and better culture and leisure 

activities
KO14

! Keeping children safe 
! Improving skills and educational achievement 
! Developing high quality places to learn in 
! Disposing of waste and increasing recycling 
! Improving access across the city KO7
! Delivering sustainable growth City Business Park & 

new East End 
Business Park 

Improving our Council (supported by KO7 & KO8) 
! Helping Council staff to perform better KO7
! Providing better value for money KO2, KO3, KO9, 

KO12, KO13 & KO14

18

Page 77



19

5.0 How We Will Achieve our Objectives 

 5.1 Strategic Projects for 2010 to achieve Key Outcomes 

Below are listed specific projects, which form part of those Key Outcomes 

that deserve highlighting due to their strategic importance to the City. 

5.1.1  The Schools Estate 

Investment for Children 

The Authority consulted upon and adopted a Strategy for Change for 

Services for Children and Young People in December 2008. This document 

indicates how national and local Investment would be aligned to the raising 

of attainment across the city. The document known as Investment for 

Children sets out a new relationship between schools and the authority 

reflecting the changes in the role of the authority under The Education and 

Inspections Act 2006. Investment for Children also sets out the demographic 

changes in pupil populations up to 2016 and the proposed framework for 

governance changes in schools.  

Trust and Academy schools: Where schools move out of Local Authority 

control there is a land and Property transfer of the freehold or long lease of 

the land and property. The table below outlines the progress of schools on 

the path and sets out the date of the assets that have been transferred. 

Page 78



School Status Date
Widewell Primary Trust September

2007
Stoke Damerel 
CC

Trust December
2008

Lipson CC Trust September
2009

PL9 Trust
Plymstock
Elburton Primary 

Trust
September
2009

Tamarside
Community
College

Academy September
2010

John Kitto 
Community
College

Academy September
2010

Hooe Primary Trust expressed
an interest 

Oreston Primary Trust expressed
an interest 

Old Priory Junior Trust expressed
an interest 

Mount Street 
Primary

Trust expressed
an interest 

Mayflower
Community
Primary

Trust expressed
an interest 

Ernesettle
Community

Trust expressed
an interest 

St Budeaux 
Foundation C of E
Primary (Aided) 

Trust expressed
an interest 

Victoria Road 
Primary

Trust expressed
an interest 

Coombe Dean 
School

Trust expressed
an interest 

Children’s Centres; Phase 3 programme is now underway and the 

investment programme will be complete by March 2011. This programme is 

being co-ordinated with Extended School and Early Years funding giving a 

total investment of £1.3m.

20

Page 79



21

Primary Schools; Significant progress has been made in transforming the 

quality of the asset base of primary schools in the city. In September 2009 

three new primary schools, Oakwood , Mayflower and Shakespeare, opened 

to children. This follows on from the success of opening  Riverside, 

Ernesettle and Whitleigh primary in 2008, There are two further Primary 

schools, Beechwood and High View,  in construction which will open in 2010 

and one in contract, Estover, that will open in 2011. These nine primary 

schools replace fifteen old 1950 and 60’s buildings and represent a 

considerable improvement in the asset base.

This investment is having a significant impact in reducing the backlog 

maintenance for Primary Schools. In 2006 the estimate was £52.7m. 

Whereas our revise forecast for 2010 is £35.8m.  The authority submitted a 

Strategy for Change (SfC) that outlines the authority’s priorities aligned with 

the National Drivers for Change in the Primary sector. This strategy was 

submitted in July 2008, and approval has been given by the Department for 

Children Schools and Families to the release of capital allocations for 

2009/10.

Secondary Schools; The Buildings Schools for the Future ( BSF) One 

School Pathfinder project at Estover campus is in construction with phased 

completions throughout 2010 to 2012. The bulk of the Secondary element 

will be opened in September 2010 including the public library and museum.

The authority has been announced to be included the Building Schools for 

the Future (BSF) investment programme in Wave 7.  This will allow the 

authority to construct a new secondary school replacing Stoke Dameral 

Community College and also substantially refurbish John Kitto, Tamarside 

and Lipson Community College, This initial wave of investment through BSF 

represents approximately £80m..

Inclusion and Special Education needs:  The Authority has followed an 

inclusion policy for 9 years, and in this time assets have been gradually 

Page 80



22

adapted to include a mixture of facilities. These include simple access 

adaptations, the building of inclusion units within a school and the integration 

of special schools with mainstream schools in campuses such as Wood View 

campus and Estover Campus. There has  been an increasing number of 

children with special educational needs placed in mainstream education, 

leading to a continued need for special school buildings. This is also due to 

the need to reduce the overcrowding that exists in  special schools and the 

building area standards that have risen to reflect the changing nature of 

supporting children with complex needs. 

5.1.2  Accommodation Strategy 

The Council’s accommodation strategy was approved in June 2009 and the 

first pilot was introduced in November 2009 on the fifth floor within the Civic 

Centre.

The strategy, which applies to the Corporate office estate, aims to use 

current space more efficiently.  By allocating a maximum of 8 desks per 10 

staff, the one desk one person culture is removed.  This will lead to savings 

in excess of 20% in accommodation requirements and costs. 

The first phase of full implementation will take place in 2010/11 and will result 

in the reduction in the number of office buildings required. 

This will enable the Council to make revenue savings from 2011/12 onwards 

prior to the resolution of the future of the Civic Centre site, which will 

continue to be reviewed given the listed status of the site. 

5.1.3 Commercial Property Investment Portfolio    

The Commercial Property Investment Portfolio (“CPIP”) delivers annual 

income of approximately £5.7m. The estate comprises a mixture of 

commercial properties including industrial estates, business centres, leisure 

and retail properties. The rental income is derived from commercial property 

Page 81



23

leases and from various freehold ground rents. 

The future management of the CPIP, to achieve improved financial 

performance and best value will be determined by the completion of an asset 

strategy.

5.1.4 Public Buildings 

KO4 made it quite clear in 2006 that our plan is to examine the leasehold 

disposal or contracting out the management of key Council public buildings 

that are a financial burden and / or a maintenance liability. Such buildings 

include the three Guildhalls.

To date work is ongoing with Plymouth Guildhall to find potential public and 

private users.  Devonport Guildhall secured a grant from the Community 

Assets Transfer Fund for full refurbishment and has been subsequently 

transferred, via a lease, to the cultural sector. Plympton Guildhall was subject 

to a feasibility study for its long-term use, and development of a management 

trust is the preferred option. This is to be pursued in 2010. 

5.1.5 Life Centre, Pavilions & Millbay    

Since the publication of the 2009 Asset Management Plan, the Life Centre 

project has progressed with the selection of the main contractor and 

commencement on site in February 2010.  The target completion date is the 

end of 2011. 

The link of the Life Centre to the overall success of Millbay remains, with the 

need to relocate leisure facilities from the existing Pavilions site to enable the 

re-development of highways infrastructure.  This re-development will see the 

creation of the new boulevard into Millbay, improving access and enabling 

the regeneration of this area. 

5.1.6 Libraries & Museums 

Page 82



24

With options for a new Central Library linked to new Civic accommodation 

and an expansion of the Museum and Art Gallery, the Capital and Assets 

service will continue to work with Community Services to establish modern 

fit–for- purpose facilities.  Plymstock Library has been replaced as part of a 

joint housing scheme.  Devonport Library will be relocated to St Aubyn's 

Church in partnership with the Devonport Regeneration Community 

Partnership and Plympton Library is to be re-provided following a fire in the 

Autumn of 2008. 

5.1.7 Community Assets 

Community centres and other similar buildings/ sites were the subject of an 

internal study (as part of KO7) as to what could effectively be transferred to 

properly constituted community groups utilising the Community Land Trust 

model.  Advantage has also been taken of the Community Assets Transfer 

Fund and two separate bids for almost £2million were made.  One of these 

for Devonport Guildhall (See 5.1.4) was successful.  The service will 

continue to seek opportunities for potential viable and sustainable transfers 

of Assets to the third sector. 

5.1.8 City Centre Assets 

The City Centre continues to be a prime source of commercial property 

income for the Council and a key asset in the Local Development Framework 

and future economic plans for the growth and development of the City.

Future income growth will be limited whilst the commercial and in particular 

the retail markets are adversely affected by the weak economy. Longer term 

income and capital value growth will be derived from new development. 

The future plans for the development of the City Centre are set out in the City 

Centre Area Action Plan.

Page 83



25

5.1.9 Partnership Working 

 Integral to the delivery of key outcomes is the partnership between the 

Council and other public sector agencies and increasingly the private sector.  

Active initiatives include: 

Plymouth City Development Company (“CDC”) 

Re-development options for a number of sites including North Cross are to 

be worked through in partnership with the City Development Company 

(CDC).  The CDC will, through their Development Director, build on the work 

carried out to date on both of these sites.  Options for both sites include the 

creation of a Central Business District at North Cross and a mixed use retail 

and leisure led scheme at Colin Campbell Court.   

Both schemes will involve working with existing adjacent freehold land 

owners and existing leaseholders to bring these regenerative schemes to 

fruition.  The Council will also work with the CDC to identify opportunities 

along the Hoe Waterfront; in particular the Hoe Foreshore to improve the 

vibrancy of this “Jewel in the Crown” asset. 

Primary Care Trust and Hospitals Trust NHS LIFT

The principal piece of partnership working to date concerns the delivery of 

the new health facility at the East End Community Village. This project 

completed and the building opened in 2008.  The Capital and Assets Service 

is also working closely with the Primary Care Trust Capital Planning Team 

with respect to joint working around service delivery points.   This will build 

upon the current co-location with the Primary Care Trust, which currently 

numbers 20 buildings where Plymouth City Council and Primary Care Trust 

jointly occupy, and deliver joint locality based service centres together with a 

shared HQ as part of the Civic Centre re-development. 

Page 84



26

Police Authority

There are currently 4 Plymouth City Council buildings that have Police 

Authority staff working alongside Plymouth City Council teams.  We will look 

to extend this as opportunities arise in the future with the aim to ultimately 

share main HQ facilities in the City. 

Tamar Science Park

Stage 1 of Phase 4 was completed in October 2008 and is now 56% 

occupied.  There has been some movement of occupiers within the Park but 

occupancy on Phase 1 is currently 76%, Phase 2 – 70% and Phase 3 – 93%. 

In 2010, work will be commencing on part of the Phase 6 site with the 

development of the Peninsula Dental School. 

 
Plymouth University

Opportunities for joint working and delivery of strategic sites will continue to 

be pursued with the University.  In particular, but not limited to, sites around 

the existing campus to the North of the City Centre. 

The University has also reaffirmed its support for the Life Centre 

development and has confirmed commitment to a major capital contribution 

of £2.5 million. 

Devonport Regeneration Community Partnership  (DRCP)

DRCP contributed £500,000 to the Devonport Guildhall project alongside a 

£1m of grant funding from the Community Assets transfer fund. The project 

was completed in February 2010 and the transfer of the property to a 

community arts group funded by the Arts Council has taken place. This will 

result in this immensely important building having a secure future and also 

being removed from the Buildings At Risk Register. 

Page 85



27

The Capital and Assets Service is also working with DRCP to relocate the 

Library from the Devonport Guildhall to St Aubyn’s Church which will open in 

mid 2010 as a result of close to £2million funding from DRCP. 

5.1.10 Sustainability 

 In support of CIP14 and Key Outcome 12, the section has been heavily 

involved in the development of the Plymouth City Council Carbon 

Management programme, contributing five projects to the Implementation 

Plan.  One of these was the appointment of a Carbon Manager for the 

Authority in 2009 who sits within the Corporate Property Section. 

 The Capital and Assets Service has been successful in obtaining an interest 

free loan from the SALIX funding initiative specifically for carbon reduction 

projects.  A number of initiatives are being delivered as a result of this 

funding which will enable the Council to achieve its target reduction in carbon 

emissions as required by the CRC energy efficiency scheme for 2010/11. 

5.1.11 Waste Project

 The service continues to support the Waste Project by previous site 

acquisition and will complete the necessary property related activities 

following the completion of the procurement exercise for the new waste 

facility in 2010/11. 

5.1.12 Housing Stock Transfer 

The Corporate Property Section contributed heavily to the successful transfer 

of 15,000 homes and numerous other Community assets to Plymouth 

Community Houses (PCH), in November 2009. 

 The Section will now take on the responsibility for those previous Housing 

Assets that did not transfer 

Page 86



28

5.2 Performance Management 

Project Governance

Significant steps have been made to improve the control and monitoring of 

projects procured by Plymouth City Council. This work has resulted in the 

production of a bespoke Project Management System that will be mandatory 

for all capital projects starting in the financial year 2010-11. The system was 

introduced in November 2009. The system put in place a suite of 

documentation that must be used to secure sign-offs at particular key stages 

and Gateways, such that projects are developed in a controlled manner. 

In addition to the Project Management System, the governance surrounding 

the acceptance of capital projects into the capital programme and the 

monitoring thereafter, has also been reviewed and tested with full 

deployment in the financial year 2009-2010. This will lead to increased 

control and reporting of the programme such that it can be closely monitored 

and driven by the Capital Delivery Board with ultimate reporting to the CMT. 

 5.3 Key Challenges/Risks 

The downturn of the Property Market since 2008 has already and will 

continue to have a negative effect on the delivery of the Asset Management 

Plan.  This has restricted the disposals programme and subsequent receipt 

generation flowing from the property review process.  This is currently 

slowing the reduction of backlog maintenance via the review process. 

 Indirectly, reduction in income via the property searches, as part of the 

property transaction process, and commercial rental income via commercial 

property will continue to put pressure on the revenue budget for the service 

which in turn puts at risk the recruitment and expansion of the service 

required to deliver this plan and has resulted in service cutbacks during 

Page 87



29

2009/10.

Page 88



6.0 Organisational  Arrangements and Consultation 

6.1 Capital and Assets Service 

A realignment exercise of the Property & Economic Development division 

was completed in April 2009 which resulted in a transfer into the Department 

of Corporate Support for the Corporate Property and Capital Projects 

sections.  These sections have now been combined into the Capital and 

Assets Service. The Economic Development Section remained in the 

Department for Development and Regeneration.

The Capital and Assets Service will continue to work closely with the 

Economic Development Section to deliver the whole life cycle of property 

assets and the delivery of economic outputs, as shown below. 

30

Economic Development Outputs 

6.2 Capital and Assets includes: 

6.2.1 Corporate Property:- 

This section comprises four areas: 

! Corporate Real Estate Surveying Team - Asset Registrar, 

Property Review, 

! Property Records, Land Terrier, Local Land Charges, Street 

Naming and Numbering

Commercial, 
Development  

Capital  
Programme
Planning & 
Management 

Corporate 
Property 
Management 

Review  & 
Disposal Process 

Page 89



! Building Surveying Team incorporating design and 

maintenance works 

! Facilities Management Team - Premises Management, Public 

Buildings, Corporate Reception, Security, Utilities, Porters, 

Cleaning and Caretaking 

6.2.2 Capital Programme & Project Services including:- 

! Portfolio Management – commissioning and management of 

projects and programmes on behalf of client directorates 

! Project Management and other professional services

! Capital Programme monitoring and delivery 

6.3 Economic Development includes:-    

! Commercial & Development – managing industrial, retail and 

leisure premises, rent reviews, lease renewals, general 

disposals, Mount Edgcumbe Country Park 

! Business Space – providing flexible business space at City 

Business Park  

! Plymouth City Market – management of principal indoor City 

Market

! Plymouth City Airport – management of landlord and tenant 

issues

! Key Strategic Projects – including Civic Centre  

6.4 Property Forum 

The Property Forum was re-established in 2008 and is chaired by the Head 

of Corporate Property Manager. 

The role of the Property Forum, as expressed in its previously agreed terms 

of reference, is as follows:- 

31

Page 90



32

! Assist with: 

(a) Property Review Programme 

(b) Acquisition/Disposal Programme 

(c) Linkages with the Capital Programme 

(d) Cross Service Working 

(e) Maintenance Programme 

(f) Survey Programme 

! Forum for cross cutting property issues and to test disposals and 

acquisitions against delivery of the Council’s corporate strategy. 

! Assist the Corporate Property service with drafting the Asset 

Management Plan and any other property plans, strategies and policies 

that may be required. 

! Assist the Corporate Property service with asset reviews. 

! Progress and periodically review the approved Asset Management Plan 

and to review and improve policies and procedures. 

! Ensure that consideration of the promotion of shared use of 

accommodation or co-location of users is afforded a high priority. 

! Consider and determine recommendations to formally declare properties 

surplus to requirements. 

! Ensure the Asset Management Plan is informed by and supports other 

key Corporate and Service Plans and objectives. 

! Make recommendations to the responsible portfolio over strategic asset 

issues including acquisitions and disposals and to consider 

recommendations from

! Review Groups. 

6.5 Member Involvement 

The Portfolio Holder for Budget and Asset Management, Revenues and 

Benefits, and People and Governance is consulted regularly by the service.  

The importance of the service is recognised such that there are regular 

consultation and briefing sessions with the Chief Executive and Cabinet. 

Page 91



33

Continuing member involvement and consultation will be by way of the 

Surplus Property Declaration procedure, Cabinet Reports and Delegated 

Decisions with regard to particular work streams together with progress 

monitoring through the e-perform Performance Management system. 

In addition, the Scrutiny Committee for Support Services is engaged with the 

development of this Asset Management Plan, and the review of progress of 

the key outcomes. 

The City Council recognises the importance of consultation prior to strategic 

decision taking.  In pursuance of this objective, consultation with both Ward 

Members and Service Portfolio Holders is incorporated into appropriate 

property procedures so as to facilitate informed decision taking. 

6.6 Consultation 

Consultation on the management of Corporate Property has been carried out 

with frontline and support services through the Property Forum, the Senior 

Management Team, the Corporate Management Team, Cabinet and the 

Council.  

Regular staff consultation, through the Building User Group undertaken by 

Facilities Management results in changes and continuous improvement to 

the way the service is delivered. 

In addition, staff from the Capital and Assets Service are actively involved 

with the capital planning and asset working groups of front line service 

departments.

In some instances, consultation is not possible on a wide basis due to 

commercial confidentiality with particular schemes.  Where this is the case 

the relevant portfolio holder and the Cabinet are briefed under “part 2” 

conditions and private briefing sessions are made available to non-executive 

members as requested. 

Page 92



34

6.7 Developing Service Asset Strategies

 Given the timing of the business planning process across the Council, the 

Capital and Assets Service will review all requirements from service 

departments and produce amendments to this plan where necessary.  This is 

an ongoing process and will be: 

- Facilitated by the Corporate Property Manager 

- Focussed on seminars with Senior Managers in each service 

 6.8 Staff Development 

The Capital & Assets Service is committed to staff development, not only 

from the perspective of developing its own staff but as a provider of training 

in relation to fire, health and safety etc.

The Corporate Competency Framework Appraisal process allows 

management to identify training needs for its workforce and the grid below 

illustrates current activities in relation to workforce development. However 

the flexibility of this process allows the service to adapt to changing 

requirements as corporate and service priorities alter. 

Developing Leadership  Target Dates Anticipated Outcomes 
Encourage attendance at 
Experienced Manager 
Programme

Ongoing A systemic approach 
that links leadership 
development with key 
business strategies and 
develops goals. 
Implementation of 
success factors in 
development through a 
model of assessment, 
challenge and support 

Ensure all Managers achieve 
the IOSH Managing Safety 
standard, a corporate 
requirement.

All managers in 
the original Asset 
Management
Service have 
now received this 
training.
Managers of 

To raise awareness of 
Health and Safety issues 
within the work 
environment and provide 
managers with the tools 
to deal with these 
issues.

Page 93



35

teams that are 
now part of the 
new Capital & 
Assets Services 
have been 
identified and 
recommended for 
training.

Developing Skills & 
Capacity of the Workforce   

Target Dates Anticipated Outcomes 

Assessment of skills and 
knowledge (competence) 
against future requirements to 
ensure workforce is fit for 
purpose and able to work 
safely.

On going As part of the service 
planning process 
identification of the 
specific skills needed for 
each role in the service 
is necessary. 

Not only will this allow 
forward planning of all 
training but enable 
business continuity in all 
areas across the 
service.

Induction programme for all 
staff (including staff who move 
from other service areas in the 
Council)  

Ongoing Improve recruitment, 
retention, knowledge 
and understanding for all 
staff.

Basic Health and Safety 
training for all staff 

Ongoing To improve individual 
awareness of health and 
safety issues allowing 
continued improvement 
to safe working 
conditions. 

Developing Skills & 
Capacity of the Workforce   

Target Dates Anticipated Outcomes 

Raise awareness of equality 
issues and best practice for 
staff across the service 

Ongoing Better understanding of 
equalities practice 

Developing the 
Organisation Target Dates Anticipated

Outcomes
Individual objectives clearly 
linked to service and 
corporate priorities 

Ongoing The new Competency 
Appraisal process will be 
used to set individual 
targets aimed at 
achieving Service Key 
Outcomes

Commitment to securing 
Quality Assurance across 

July 2010 Service improvement 

Page 94



36

service teams e.g. BVQI, 
Customer Service Excellence 
Regular CPD to retrain 
professional status/standards 
with attendance at key Local 
Authority professional 
seminars and conferences 

Ongoing Ensure appropriate 
professional standards 
are maintained to 
achieve Best Value and 
Service Delivery 

6.9 Equalities Commitments 

Equalities

The Capital & Assets service is committed to delivering on equality issues in 

keeping with the Corporate Improvement Priority 4 (CIP 4). Items of 

particular relevance to the service within the CIP are included in the table 

below:

Issue Driver Action When Outcome/Target
CIP 4.1
To promote 
equality in a way 
that address 
needs across 
age, disability, 
faith/belief/religion
Gender, race and 
sexual orientation 
so that people 
have similar life 
opportunities.

(1) DDA 
2005,
DES

(2)
Workforce
development
strategy

Improve
access to 
Council 
buildings
offering a 
public
service

Identify
appropriate
staff
members
who require 
this training 

Ongoing

Ongoing

Improved
disability equality 

Awareness of 
good practice 
and improved 
customer service

CIP 4.4 To deliver 
improved quality 
of life for our 
residents through 
increase
engagement in 
neighbourhoods
leading to 
improved service 
delivery.

Development
of Co-
Located
centres
within
communities.

Work with 
our partners 
to identify 
and develop 
co-located
centres
within
communities
to improve 
access to 
services.

July
2011

Improved access 
to services 
provided by the 
Council and its 
partners.

Page 95



37

CIP 4.1 – (1) Work is ongoing to ensure that corporate property is compliant 

with current legislative standards (KO13) and has continually increased its 

target for the percentage of public buildings that are suitable for and 

accessible to people with disabilities, see progress report below. 

Area Dept/Service Indicator Reporting Base
-line

Target Progress – 
June 2008 

The % of 
LA public 
buildings
that are 
suitable
for and 
accessibl
e to 
people
with
disabilitie
s

Capital & 
Assets

EMS 9 Building 
accessibilit
y
programm
e

2009/
2010
14.4
%

2010/1
1
16%

EMS 9 was 
introduced in 
October 2009 
using a 
different set 
of criteria to 
measure
building
accessibility. 
This required 
a review of 
baseline and 
target figures 
for this 
measure

(2) Staff who will benefit most from equalities training have been identified 

and a rolling programme of training has been agreed. 

Equalities issues are a normal service requirement for the project services 

team who carry out customer consultation for all projects. All business cases, 

delegated decisions, cabinet reports etc contain an equality section which 

confirms an impact assessment has been completed.

The service also works closely with the City College Plymouth and the 

Prince’s Trust, as well as other internal projects such as ‘Future Jobs Fund’ 

and 16+ Care Leavers scheme, providing work placements for people who 

will benefit from work experience. These on going partnerships provide a 

springboard for marginalised people who wish to integrate better with 

society.

Page 96



38

CIP 4.4 Key Outcome 8 (KO8) – Work on co-located service centres 

(housing, social services libraries and health centres etc.) will take our 

services into communities in keeping with Corporate Improvement Priority 4, 

‘reduce inequalities between communities’. This will allow easier access for 

all customers, reducing their need to travel and allow them to access 

numerous services through one point of contact with the authority. 

Page 97



A
p

p
en

d
ic

es
:-

43

Page 98



44

A
. C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
n 

am
bi

tio
us

 a
ge

nd
a 

as
 w

e 
se

ek
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 w

hi
ls

t a
t t

he
 s

am
e 

tim
e 

m
ov

in
g 

to
w

ar
ds

 o
ur

 
in

te
rn

al
 g

oa
l t

o 
be

 a
n 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 C
ou

nc
il 

by
 2

01
2.

 W
e 

an
tic

ip
at

e 
th

at
 c

en
tr

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t w
ill

 r
ed

uc
e 

C
ap

ita
l G

ra
nt

 fu
nd

in
g 

w
hi

ls
t R

eg
io

na
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

(R
D

A
) 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
gr

an
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
re

du
ci

ng
. T

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 o

ur
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
en

er
at

e
ca

pi
ta

l r
ec

ei
pt

s,
 w

e 
m

us
t b

e 
m

or
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

w
ith

 o
ur

 c
ap

ita
l s

pe
nd

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
 fe

w
er

, m
or

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

sc
he

m
es

.

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
do

pt
ed

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

e 
th

at
 c

ap
ita

l s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 o
nl

y 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
w

he
re

 s
pe

ci
fic

 fu
nd

in
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
le

ar
ly

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
 a

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
as

e.
 T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
20

10
/1

1 
to

 2
01

4/
15

 is
 £

26
7m

. T
he

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
is

 
st

ill
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l a
nd

 in
cl

ud
es

 h
ea

dl
in

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

Li
fe

 C
en

tr
e,

 c
ap

ita
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

S
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 m
aj

or
 tr

an
sp

or
t

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.

A
 s

um
m

ar
y 

of
 c

ap
ita

l s
pe

nd
 b

y 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t, 
ba

se
d 

on
 k

no
w

n 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

at
 th

is
 p

oi
nt

 in
 ti

m
e,

 is
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e:

 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

09
/1

0
£m

10
/1

1
£m

11
/1

2
£m

12
/1

3
£m

13
/1

4
£m

14
/1

5
£m

T
o

ta
l

£m

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s

S
er

vi
ce

s
53

.8
34

.6
17

.4
15

.0
-

-
12

0.
8

C
om

m
un

ity
S

er
vi

ce
s

6.
6

29
.3

13
.2

0.
3

-
-

49
.4

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
21

.2
28

.9
13

.6
6.

2
6.

5
7.

7
84

.1

C
or

po
ra

te
S

up
po

rt
2.

4
0.

5
1.

0
0.

5
0.

5
-

4.
9

H
R

A
8.

0
0

0
0

0
0

8.
0

T
o

ta
l

92
.0

93
.3

45
.2

22
.0

7.
0

7.
7

26
7.

2

Page 99



45

A
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f c

ap
ita

l s
pe

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

is
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
B

.  

F
un

di
ng

 o
f o

ur
 c

ap
ita

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
is

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

re
d 

on
 a

 r
eg

ul
ar

 b
as

is
 w

ith
 s

ch
em

es
 c

ar
ef

ul
ly

 p
rio

rit
is

ed
ag

ai
ns

t r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 O
ur

 s
um

m
ar

y 
fu

nd
in

g 
pr

of
ile

 fo
r 

th
e 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

C
ap

ita
l

R
ec

ei
pt

s
£0

00

U
ns

up
p

B
or

ro
w

in
g

£0
00

S
up

po
rt

ed
B

or
ro

w
in

g
£0

00

T
ot

al
G

ra
nt

s
£0

00

S
um

 o
f 

C
on

tr
ib

s
£0

00

S
ec

tio
n

10
6

£0
00

R
ev

en
ue

 
&

 F
un

ds
 

£0
00

T
o

ta
l

F
in

an
ci

n
g

£0
00

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s

S
er

vi
ce

s
4,

80
7

8,
84

0
16

,9
78

89
,2

21
47

9
39

1
13

8
12

0,
85

4

C
or

po
ra

te
S

up
po

rt
1,

83
1

71
2,

84
0

26
17

3
4,

94
1

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t &
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
7,

11
5

3,
76

6
29

,0
63

33
,8

71
1,

70
8

8,
14

3
42

3
84

,0
89

C
om

m
un

ity
 &

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
14

,6
06

20
,3

67
4,

65
0

6,
96

4
2,

25
3

43
1

10
9

49
,3

80

H
R

A
 T

ot
al

 
2,

07
6

5,
91

5
7,

99
1

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 

28
,3

59
33

,0
44

52
,7

67
13

2,
89

6
4,

44
0

8,
99

1
6,

75
8

26
7,

25
5

T
he

re
 is

 c
on

si
de

ra
bl

e 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
ar

ou
nd

 p
ot

en
tia

l c
ap

ita
l r

ec
ei

pt
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
, d

ue
 to

 
fa

lli
ng

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
va

lu
es

. T
he

re
 is

 a
ls

o 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
ar

ou
nd

 h
ow

 a
 fu

tu
re

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t m

ig
ht

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
ca

pi
ta

l a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 m

at
ch

 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
re

-s
ha

pe
d 

an
d 

m
od

er
ni

se
d 

an
d 

to
 d

o 
th

is
, n

ee
ds

 to
 a

do
pt

 a
n 

in
ve

st
 to

 s
av

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

fo
r 

ca
pi

ta
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t w
he

re
by

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 fo
r 

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 b

us
in

es
s 

ca
se

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
in

iti
al

 c
ap

ita
l 

re
pa

id
 fr

om
 s

av
in

gs
 m

ad
e.

 T
o 

th
is

 e
nd

 p
la

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t f
or

w
ar

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 1

8 
m

on
th

s 
as

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l p

ic
tu

re
 a

nd
 e

co
no

m
y

be
co

m
es

 c
le

ar
. 

Page 100



46

T
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
ho

rt
fa

ll 
in

 c
ap

ita
l r

ec
ei

pt
s,

 it
 is

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
to

 tr
an

sf
er

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 n

eg
ot

ia
te

d 
ca

pi
ta

l r
ec

ei
pt

 fr
om

 
th

e 
re

-g
ea

rin
g 

of
 th

e 
C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
P

ru
de

nt
ia

l c
om

m
er

ci
al

 le
as

es
, £

4.
4 

m
ill

io
n,

 in
to

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

fu
nd

. T
hi

s 
m

on
ey

 w
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y

in
ve

st
ed

 to
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 r
ev

en
ue

 in
co

m
e,

 a
nd

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
pr

op
os

al
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 th
e 

re
ve

nu
e 

bu
dg

et
. 

T
he

 C
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 is
ol

at
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
bu

dg
et

. T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ha
s 

to
 b

e 
pa

rt
ly

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y
bo

rr
ow

in
gs

. T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 a
ss

um
e 

S
up

po
rt

ed
 b

or
ro

w
in

gs
 s

ta
nd

in
g 

at
 £

52
.8

m
, w

ith
 u

ns
up

po
rt

ed
 b

or
ro

w
in

gs
 o

f £
33

.1
m

. T
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
to

 b
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 in

te
re

st
 r

at
es

 a
ro

un
d 

4.
5%

, e
ac

h 
£1

m
 o

f b
or

ro
w

in
gs

 im
pa

ct
s 

th
e 

re
ve

nu
e 

bu
dg

et
 w

ith
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 
co

st
 o

f a
pp

ro
x 

£8
5k

. F
or

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r 
20

10
/1

1 
w

e 
ar

e 
ai

m
in

g 
to

 m
in

im
is

e 
bo

rr
ow

in
g 

co
st

s 
by

 u
si

ng
 s

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 b

or
ro

w
in

g 
an

d/
or

 
ca

sh
flo

w
 a

nd
 r

es
er

ve
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, i
nv

es
tm

en
t f

or
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 b

or
ro

w
in

g.
 

T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fig

ur
es

 d
o 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
S

ch
oo

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
F

ut
ur

e 
(B

S
F

) 
of

 a
n 

es
tim

at
ed

 £
80

m
. A

t 
th

is
 s

ta
ge

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t h

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
en

tr
y 

in
to

 th
e 

B
S

F
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ar

e 
aw

ai
tin

g 
a 

‘re
m

it’
 m

ee
tin

g 
im

m
in

en
tly

. W
he

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 a
w

ar
de

d 
its

 fi
na

l f
un

di
ng

 a
llo

ca
tio

n,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
a 

m
ix

tu
re

 
of

 r
ev

en
ue

 P
F

I c
re

di
ts

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l g

ra
nt

, B
S

F
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 

T
he

 C
ity

bu
s 

re
ce

ip
t o

f £
19

.6
m

 is
, a

t t
hi

s 
st

ag
e,

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

ng
 fo

r 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 in

ve
st

ed
 in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 o

ur
 T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y.

 It
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l u
se

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 in

ve
st

 in
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
‘in

ve
st

 to
 s

av
e’

 b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
s.

 

T
he

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ne

ed
s 

to
 r

et
ai

n 
so

m
e 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
y 

pr
io

rit
y 

“in
ve

st
 to

 s
av

e”
 b

us
in

es
s 

ca
se

s,
 a

nd
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ite

m
s 

no
t k

no
w

n 
at

 th
is

 s
ta

ge
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
is

su
es

. 

F
ur

th
er

 o
pt

io
ns

 fo
r 

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 m

ay
 a

ris
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

V
A

T
 s

he
lte

r 
m

on
ie

s 
 fr

om
 th

e 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 s
to

ck
 th

ou
gh

 th
is

 is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
fu

rt
he

r 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 w
ith

 D
C

LG
. 

Page 101



47

B
. C

ap
it

al
 s

p
en

d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

Page 102



APPENDIX D

Service Sub Programme

Latest
Forecast

2009/2010 £000
Latest Forecast 
2010/2011 £000

Latest
Forecast

2011/2012
£000

Latest Forecast 
2012/2013 £000

Latest
Forecast

2013/2014
£000

 Latest 
Forecast

2014/15 £000

Sum of Full 
Programme

Cost      £000

Strategic Programmes PFI 2,733 700 3,433
Multi-Agency Working 100 2,100 2,200
Secondary Development / BSF 13,919 10,866 7,580 2,918 35,283
Primary Capital Programme 18,277 5,347 23,624
Special Education Needs and 
Inclusion 711 1,001 500 5,500 7,712
City Development (Section 106 
Projects) 9 133 142
Expanding Popular Schools 100 950 1,050
Youth / Adult Learning 235 138 373
School Development:  Secondary 938 938
Removal of Temporary Classrooms:
Secondary 65 65
Condition Works:  Primary 59 59
Removal of Temporary Classrooms:
Primary 1,020 1,239 2,259
School Development:  Special 
Schools 135 135
Sustainability / Carbon Reduction / 
Spend to Save 753 428 350 350 1,881
Surestart / Extended Schools / 
Children's Centres / Families 523 585 90 90 1,288
Condition Works: 425 671 1,000 1,000 3,096
School Development:  Primary 2,156 2,156

Focused Work
Surestart / Extended Schools / 
Children's Centres / Families 1,141 1,681 2,822
14-19 Diploma Gateways & 
International Baccalaureate 2,184 473 587 3,244
ICT Projects 702 849 900 900 3,351
School Meals 788 2,661 3,449

School Led Projects Children's Social Care 177 310 487
Other Items 776 560 210 220 1,766
Condition Bid Programme (formerly 
Seed) 1,219 615 200 200 2,234
DDA / Access Bid Programme 75 100 100 100 375
SEN Placement Commitments in 
Schools 200 20 20 20 260

Devolved Formula Capital Other 231 1,226 61 61 1,579
Special 170 243 155 155 723
Primary 1,212 2,415 1,799 1,799 7,225
Secondary 829 1,297 1,697 1,697 5,520
Nursery 92 25 42 42 201

Other 2 2
Special 45 45
Primary 1,168 1,168
Secondary 588 588
Nursery 1 1
Planned Modernisation 2 8 10
New Opportunities Fund/Big Lottert 
(P.E. In Sport) 10 100 110

53,770 34,641 17,391 15,052 120,854

Environmental Services Environmental & Regulatory 1,093 1,093
Parks 151 223 374
Vehicle Purchases 584 584

Leisure Culture & Sport Life Centre Programme/Central Park 3,096 28,262 12,149 271 43,778
Libraries 829 17 846
Mount Edgcumbe  307 307
Museums 60 60
Leisure Pools 1,027 600 1,627

Adult Health & Social 
Care Community Care 576 135 711

6,630 29,237 13,242 271 49,380

Local Transport Plan Capital Maintenance 1,356 1,356
Demand Management 793 793
Public Transport 2,112 2,112
Road Safety 203 203
Safety Camera Partnership 98 78 176
Walking & Cycling 795 795
Dft settlement not yet allocated 83 4,802 5,600 6,085 6,525 6,656 29,751
Northern Corridor - A386 736 6 249 991

Transport - Non LTP Eastern Corridor 2,524 13,008 4,860 1,000 21,392
West End 2,928 2,928
A38 Junction Improvements 50 350 400
Barbican Landing Stage 12 12
Stonehouse Regeneration 182 182
Granby Green 54 54
Cumberland Gardens 370 18 388

Alleygates 22 22
Devonport Street Lighting 373 373
North Stonehouse 80 80
Devonport Heritage Trail 91 91

Planning Planning 164 80 52 34 10 340
Strategic Waste Projects Recycling 852 852

Waste 3,024 4,811 2,588 102 10,525
Economic Development Commercial Developments 1,036 227 1,263
Strategic Housing Disabled Adaptations 588 588

HECA Programme Private Sector 418 150 568
Misc Schemes 100 100
Partnership & Affordable Housing 294 294
Private Sector Grants 2,180 1,574 3,754
Private Sector Regeneration 316 316

Development Projects Devonport Park 875 2,315 200 3,390

21,189 28,939 13,549 6,221 6,535 7,656 84,089
Information Systems Information Systems 1,087 500 500 500 500 3,087
Legal Services Legal Services 2 2
Property & Economic DeveCorporate Real Estate 1,352 500 1,852

2,441 500 1,000 500 500 4,941

HRA
Housing Revenue 
Account Decency Standards 4,751 4,751

Devonport 1,323 1,323
Disabled Adaptations 401 401
HRA Capitalised Salaries 520 520
Major Repairs 996 996

HRA Total 7,991 7,991
Grand Total 92,021 93,317 45,182 22,044 7,035 7,656 267,255

Corporate Support Total

Development & Regeneration Total

Devolved Formula Capital 
Projects

Completed Programmes:
Outstanding Payments

Development & Regeneration

Transport - Development 
Projects

Community & Neighbourhood Total

Community & Neighbourhood

Children's Services Total

Plymouth City Council Capital Programme - Medium Term Financial Forecast 

Children's Services

CRandall version 1 C:\Documents and Settings\watsone\Desktop\Appendix D final version 010210.xls Finance01/02/2010

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

Subject: Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and Investment Strategy 2010/11

Committee: Audit Committee
Cabinet
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 

Date:     Audit Committee -5 February 2009 
Cabinet - 9 February 2010 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board-

   15 & 17 February 2010 
     

Cabinet Member:      Councillor Bowyer

CMT Member:        Director for Corporate Support 

Author: Sandra Wilson, Corporate Accountancy and 
Finance Manager 

Contact:       Tel:  01752 (30)4942 
     e-mail: sandra.wilson@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:       SW   

Part:       I  

Executive Summary: 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to set out its treasury 
strategy for borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy. Officers 
have worked closely with the Council’s Treasury Management advisors, 
Arlingclose Ltd, to review the options available to produce a borrowing and 
investment strategy that seeks to balance financial returns from the Council’s cash 
balances whilst at the same time minimising financial risk to the Council.

In December 2009, CIPFA published a revision to the Treasury Management Code 
of Practice. This code contains a number of recommendations aimed to improve 
the security of investments. The recommendations have been adopted within the 
Investment strategy statement for 2010/11. CIPFA have also revised the 
Prudential Code, with a number of recommendations affecting the Council’s 
borrowing strategy. The report contains more detail on the two Codes of Practice.

This report outlines how the treasury management function contributes to the 
Council’s overall policy objectives. It also outlines in detail the risks inherent within 
the treasury management function and how officers will seek to minimise those 
risks.

1

Agenda Item 9Page 105



The borrowing and investment policies proposed in this report therefore offer 
flexibility for the Director for Corporate Support, acting under delegated powers in 
accordance with Financial Regulations, to respond quickly to market 
circumstances without the need to seek prior Cabinet approval. Any amendments 
to the treasury management strategy will of course continue to be reported to 
Cabinet as part of the bi-monthly performance and finance monitoring reports. 
Changes to the Prudential Indicators can only be approved by Full Council.  
Officers will seek to develop suitable benchmarking targets against which 
members can measure the performance of the treasury management activity and 
how well the treasury management risk is managed. These will be incorporated 
into a mid year formal strategy monitoring and review report.

Due to improvements in the global economic climate and action taken by 
Governments throughout the world to support its banks the proposals in this report 
add greater flexibility for investment in 2010/11. The strategy over the medium 
term will be to align borrowing with the Capital Financing Requirement and 
Investments with available balances and reserves.  The Council will continue to 
regard Security and Liquidity as the key factors in all it’s investments with the 
interest rate achieved only considered after these prime objectives. In order to 
spread risk within this required security it is proposed that additional banks with 
the required ‘high credit rating’ in Countries that provide support and guarantees 
be added to the counter part list.

Further details are outlined in the report. 

This report also outlines the Council’s Prudential Indicators for the next three years 
as required by the Local Government Act 2003, together with the MRP policy for 
2010/11 required under the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) 
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008. These require approval by Full Council.

Corporate Plan 2009-2012

Effective financial management is fundamental to the delivery of corporate 
improvement priorities. Treasury Management activity has a significant impact on 
the Council’s activity both in revenue budget terms and capital investment and is 
key factor in facilitating the delivery against a number of corporate priorities. 

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 

Treasury Management affects the Council’s budget in terms of borrowing costs 
and investment returns. 

2

Page 106



Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, 
Risk Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 

The current volatility and uncertainty within the global financial markets has had a 
substantial effect on Treasury Management activities. The Council’s investment 
strategy has been added to the strategic risk register as a ‘Red’ risk. This risk will 
be constantly monitored and acted upon through the Treasury Management Board 
which is meeting weekly until further notice. The report outlines other risks specific 
o the treasury management function. t

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
Cabinet is recommended: 

1. To approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2010/11,
to feedback from Audit Committee following its scrutiny of the strategy. 

2. To approve the Investment Strategy for 2010/11 as outlined in Section 13 
of the report, subject to feedback from Audit Committee following its 
scrutiny of the strategy.

3. To approve the Lending Organisations and Counter party Limits as 
outlined in Appendix E 

4. To request the Director for Corporate Support acting under delegated 
authority in accordance with Financial Regulations, to keep the lending 
list under review and update the list during the year as dictated by market 
circumstances.

5. To recommend to full Council (subject to any amendments that may be 
required as a result of the inclusion of the PFI scheme on the balance 
sheet) to approve: 

a)  The Authorised Borrowing limits of £312m, £302m and £289m for the 
period 2010/11 to 2012/13; 

(b) The Operational Boundary of £260m, £260m and £258m for 2010/11 
to 2012/13; 

(c) The Prudential Indicators set out in Appendix B; 

(d) The MRP Policy for 2010/11.   

6. A formal mid year review and monitoring report be taken to Audit 
Committee.

7. Officers seek to develop a set of benchmarking targets for the treasury 
management activity against which performance can be measured. 

3

Page 107



Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 

It is Statutory requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting 
Regulations to set a an annual treasury strategy for borrowing and prepare an 
annual investment strategy. Prudential indicators and the MRP policy must be 
approved by Full Cabinet.

Background papers: 

! Treasury management strategy report 2009/10 to Cabinet 10 February 2009 
! Bi- Monthly monitoring reports to Cabinet
! Treasury management budget working papers 

Sign off: 
Finance AB

CorpF900
011

Legal DVS
1094

HR n/a Corp 
Prop

n/a IT n/a Strat
Proc 

n/a

Originating SMT Member Malcolm Coe 

4

Page 108



Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and Investment Strategy 2010/11 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code 
of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services (the “CIPFA TM 
Code”) requires local authorities to set the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement (TMSS) for borrowing each financial year. The Code was 
adopted by full Council in April 2002. The Council is also required to set an 
annual investment strategy and this has been incorporated within this 
report.

1.2 In response to the financial crisis in 2008 and the collapse of the Icelandic 
banks, CIPFA has revised the TM Code and Guidance Notes as well as the 
Prudential Indicators. The Communities and Local Government (CLG) have 
also issued proposals to revise and update their Investment Guidance and 
the consultation date ended on 4 January 2010. The final outcome of the 
consultation has not yet been received although it is anticipated that the 
final recommendations would apply from 1 April 2010.

1.3 CIPFA has defined Treasury Management as: 

“the management of the organisation’s investments, cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.” 

1.4 The Council’s Treasury Management Policy Statement is set out in 
Appendix A. Treasury management activity is a key driver for the Council in 
achieving its objectives. The strategy takes into account the impact of the 
Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital Programme on the Balance Sheet 
position, the current and projected Treasury position (Section 6), the 
Prudential Indicators (Appendix B) and the outlook for interest rates 
(Appendix C). 

1.5 Officers have worked with the Council’s Treasury management advisors, 
Arlingclose, to develop a strategy that seeks to balance financial returns 
from the Council’s cash balances whilst at the same time minimising, as far 
as possible, the risks associated with treasury management activity.  This  
report reaffirms the current policy that in the current financial climate the 
Council should seek to reduce the underlying level of borrowing and 
investments.

1.6 The purpose of this Treasury Management Strategy Statement is to 
approve:
! Treasury Management Strategy for 2010/11 (Borrowing - Section 10, 

Debt Rescheduling - Section 11, Investments - Section 12/13) 
! Prudential Indicators – Appendix B  
! MRP Statement – Section 16 
! Use of Specified and Non-Specified Investments – Appendix D
! The Counter party list applicable from 1 April 2010– Appendix E 

5

Page 109



2. The Council’s Objectives 

2.1 The Corporate Plan outlines the Council’s objectives over the medium term 
period as shown in figure 1 below: 

Figure 1 

COUNCIL CORPORATE PLAN (STEP CHANGE PRIORITY FOCUS) 

 
OUR CITY 

 ! Helping people to 
live independently 

! Reducing
inequalities
between 
communities 

 

 ! Providing better 
and more 
affordable
housing 

! Delivering
sustainable
growth 

! Improving
access across 
the city 

 

 ! Keeping children 
safe 

! Disposal of waste 
and increasing 
recycling 

 

 ! Providing more 
and better 
culture and 
leisure activities 

! Improving skills 
and educational 
achievement 

! Developing high 
quality places to 
learn in 

 
OUR COUNCIL  OUR CUSTOMERS 

 ! Supporting council 
staff to perform 
better 

 ! Improving value 
for money 

 ! Informing and 
involving 
customers 

 ! Improving
customer 
service 

 
 

3.  Treasury Management Code of Practice and Prudential Code

3.1 Local Authorities have wide powers to borrow and invest but regulation, 
custom, convention and market practice mean in reality authorities can 
make only limited use of those powers. Following the collapse of the 
Icelandic banks, both CIPFA and the CLG have sought to implement 
revised controls over treasury management activity.

3.2 In carrying out their day to day treasury management activities, local 
authorities must have regard to two CIPFA Codes of Practice: 

! The Code for Treasury Management in the Public Services 
! The Prudential Code 

3.3 CIPFA have recently published an updated Treasury Management Code of 
Practice and a revised Prudential Code. The main recommendations 
contained within the Codes have been adopted by CLG and incorporated 
into Capital Finance Regulations, currently issued in draft for consultation. 
The Codes require authorities to treat effective risk management as a 
higher priority than the pursuit of performance, listing priorities as: 

Security.. ..Liquidity….Yield

and require evidence of affordability, prudence and sustainability, as 
measured by the Prudential Indicators 

6

Page 110



 3.4 The Codes outline the principles that should be followed by local authorities 
for borrowing and investments. The Treasury Management Code in 
particular concentrates on Investments whilst the Prudential Code covers 
borrowing strategies. The revised codes include recommendations from 
both the House of Commons Select Committee and the Audit Commission 
following their report ‘Risk and Returns’.  

3.5 One of the new recommendations arising from the House of Commons 
Select Committee report relates to scrutiny of the treasury management 
function. The report stated: 

“All Local Authorities should have an Audit Committee with specific 
responsibility for the scrutiny of the Treasury management function”   

“Audit Committee members should take their responsibility for that scrutiny 
seriously and need to ensure they are properly trained”. 

3.6 A formal training session was held on 22 January 2010 for Audit Committee 
Members (mandatory attendance) with an open invitation to Cabinet and 
Scrutiny Panel members. The training was facilitated by external 
consultants independent to both the Council and its Treasury Management 
advisors.

3.7 In addition to the recommendations above, the other main 
recommendations include: 

! Investment priorities should be Security and Liquidity before 
considering Yield. 

! Strategies must be taken to Full Council before the start of the 
financial year but Councils should consider revised strategies during 
the year where appropriate. 

! Investment Strategies should be formally published. 
! Authorities should not just rely on credit ratings but on a wide range of 

information including the internet. 
! Authorities should comment on the use of Consultants and the limits 

on their liability within their strategies. 
! Authorities should comment on investment of borrowing in advance 

and the risks associated with this. 

3.8 The investment and borrowing strategies for 2010/11 as outlined within this 
report take into account the above recommendations, and build on the 
training session held on 22 January 2010.  

4. Treasury Management Risk 

4.1 No treasury management activity is without risk. The successful 
identification, monitoring and control of risk is an important and integral 
element of the Council’s treasury management activities. The CIPFA code 
lists risks to treasury activity as:

7

Page 111



! Liquidity Risk (Inadequate cash resources) 
! Market or Interest Rate Risk (Fluctuations in interest rate levels)  
! Inflation Risk (Exposure to inflation) 
! Credit and Counterparty Risk (Security of Investments) 
! Refinancing Risk (Impact of debt maturing in future years) 
! Legal & Regulatory Risk (i.e. non-compliance with statutory and 

regulatory requirements, risk of fraud). 

4.2 However the main risk faced by the Council is the risk of not achieving its 
objectives, outlined in section 2. Therefore, in undertaking our day to day 
treasury management function, we should not lose sight of the bigger 
corporate picture.

4.3 Following the Icelandic bank crisis the focus on treasury management has 
been on the security of investments, and this is a specific priority 
requirement in the new code of practice and CLG guidance.

4.4 Balancing the various risks is a complex task. No individual or organisation 
can accurately forecast movements in interest rates over the medium to 
long term. In an attempt to manage exposure to interest rate risk, for 
example, authorities have taken on credit risk as illustrated below:  

Debt Policy
! Long term borrowing taken to match assets 
! Fixed rate to minimise interest expense uncertainties 

Investment Policy
! Short term to ensure liquidity 
! Floating rate to correlate with the short dated nature of the asset 

4.5 The Council will continue to manage down the risks contained within its 
current debt and investment portfolios, including the ‘credit’ risk illustrated 
above. In order to achieve this, the Council has established an integrated 
debt management and investment policy which balances certainty and 
security, with liquidity and yield. As an overriding principle, the strategies 
proposed within this report re-affirm that in the current financial climate the 
Council should continue to seek to reduce the Council’s underlying level of 
borrowing and investments.  The Council will seek to make greater use of 
short term variable rate borrowing, whilst at the same time seeking to 
balance its investments across a range of investment instruments. Further 
details of the risks inherent in the current portfolios are given in the relevant 
strategy sections.   

4.6 During the year, in order to move towards best practice, Council Officers 
will work to develop a set of quantifiable benchmarks against which treasury 
management performance can be measured. These will be reported to 
Audit Committee for approval as part of the formal mid year monitoring and 
review report. 

8

Page 112



5. Review of 2009/10

5.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Policy for 2009/10 was approved by 
full Council on 2 March 2009.  

5.2 The overriding principle contained within the strategy was that in the current 
financial climate the Council should seek to reduce its underlying level of 
borrowing and investments. Treasury Management activity during the year 
and progress against the strategy has been reported to Cabinet during the 
year as part of the bi-monthly finance and performance monitoring reports.  

5.3 The table below compares the Council’s debt and investment levels from 1 
April 2009 to 19 January 2010 and shows its estimated levels at 31 March 
2010. Borrowing includes £34m of pre LGR debt administered by Devon 
County Council. 

Table 1 
Date Investments

£m
Borrowing 

£m
(a) 1 April 2009 213.800 405.734

(b) 19 January 2010 153.086 237.082

(c) 31 March 2010 (E) 105.000 232.560

Reduction in year 108.800 173.174

5.4 Following the Stock transfer, the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) repaid the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
proportion of the Council’s Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) debt totalling 
£91.37m (together with an early redemption premium of £25.94m) which 
has led to a significant reduction in the Council’s debt.  Whilst the reduction 
in debt is a positive step, the Council’s revised debt portfolio has a 
significant proportion of market loans which will need to be addressed over 
time.

5.5 The current borrowing strategy for the remainder of 2009/10 will be to 
continue maximise cash flow and maturing deposits to finance the capital 
programme taking  low rate short-term loans as required,  delaying the need 
to take out additional long-term loans at relatively high interest rates.

5.6 The Council’s underlying risk in terms of investments has been managed 
down throughout the year with maturing deposits used to repay short term 
borrowing and cover cash flow requirements. A number of investments in 
Countries and Sectors where security of deposit was a key consideration 
have been “bought out” early in order to further reduce risk. The pie chart 
below analyses the investments by Country as at 19th January 2010, which 
shows that the majority of investments are now held within the UK, which 
has itself, in terms of spreading risk by country, increased risk.  

9

Page 113



Figure 2 

PCC DEPOSITS BY COUNTRY AT 19th JANUARY 2010 - Total Deposits 
£153,086,435.48

£12,136,435, 8%

£50,950,000, 33%

£83,000,000, 54%

£7,000,000, 5%

Iceland

UK Subsiduaries of Foreign Banks

UK Banks

UK Building Societies

5.7 The deposits with UK subsidiaries of foreign banks are with Santander UK 
PLC (Previously Abbey) owned by Banco Santander of Spain and 
Clydesdale Bank owned by National Australian Bank. Both Santander UK 
PLC and Clydesdale along with major UK owned banks are named
institutions with access to the UK Government’s Credit Guarantee Scheme 
and have long-term ratings in the ‘double-A’ category.  Further detail of the 
Council’s deposits by counterparty is shown in Appendix F. 

5.8 During the year the Council has restricted its new investments to: 
! The Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMO) 
! Term deposits or business reserve accounts with UK banks or building 

societies that have access to the UK Government Credit Guarantee 
scheme

! UK nationalised banks 
! Deposits with other local authorities 

5.9 In line with cash flow requirements to year end, deposits will be made in 
shorter period maturities and call accounts. 

5.10 The Treasury Management Board set up following the Icelandic bank 
Collapse continues to meet weekly to keep under review the investment 
and borrowing position and take timely action to respond to changing 
market conditions.

10

Page 114



Icelandic Bank Update

5.11 The Council had £13m invested across three Icelandic banks, of which 
£0.864m of the principal element and £0.043m interest has been repaid to 
date. Regular updates on the progress of recovery of the monies invested 
have been made as part of the bi-monthly performance and budget 
monitoring reports. The Director for Corporate Support remains a member 
of the local authority Icelandic Bank steering committee and continues to 
work with the LGA and other local authorities to recommend action required 
to maximise returns. The steering committee continues to appoint Bevan 
Britton as legal advisors, representing the interest of all local authorities.   

5.12 The latest position in respect of each of the banks is outlined below: 

Glitnir £6m
 The formal creditor claim was submitted to the creditor winding up board by 

the deadline of 30 November. At the Glitnier Winding Up board meeting 
held on 9 December 2009, ahead of the open creditor meeting of 17 
December, the board rejected the claim that local authority deposits should 
have priority creditor status. The local authority solicitors, Bevan Britton will 
be appealing this decision on behalf of all local authorities and remain 
hopeful that full recovery of monies will still be attained. The Board has 
rejected claims for penalty interest.  

Landsbanki £4m
 The formal creditor claims were submitted to the creditor winding up board 

by the deadline of 31 October 2009. At the formal meeting of the Board the 
priority creditor status for local authorities was approved but a number of 
objections to this decision have been lodged by other creditors which will 
likely result in a delay in moving forward as these are resolved. The board 
has rejected the local authority claims for penalty interest. Final recovery is 
anticipated at 88%. 

Heritable Bank £3m
 Heritable Bank recovery is being dealt with under English insolvency law 

and is progressing as anticipated. The Council has received two dividend 
repayments during 2009, bringing the total amount recovered to date, 
including interest, to £907,594. Final recovery is still anticipated at 80%.

5.13 The Council has been permitted to defer charging any losses to its revenue 
account until 2010/11 under special regulations and has requested that 
these regulations should be extended for at least a further year given the 
uncertainties surrounding recoveries at the present time.  However in the 
meantime, Officers have submitted a request to CLG for a Capitalisation 
Direction which would enable any losses to be spread over a ten to twenty 
year period.  The outcome of the Capitalisation Direction request will not be 
known until the end of January 2010. An update will be provided verbally to 
Cabinet on the outcome of the Capitalisation Direction. 

11

Page 115



6. The Council’s Forecast Treasury Position 

6.1 The estimated treasury position for 31/3/2010 and 31/3/2011 is as follows: 

Table 2
31/3/2010
Estimate

£m
Ave
%

31/3/2011
Estimate

£m
External Borrowing 
Fixed Rate PWLB   28.89 5.81   27.77 
Fixed Rate - Market   81.08 4.42   74.08 
Variable Rate - Market   94.41 3.45 106.46
DCC Administered Debt   33.94 5.40  32.58 
Existing Long term 
Liabilities

238.36 3.10 240.89

IFRS long-term liabilities: 
PFI (2009/10) TBA* TBA*
Finance Leases
(2010/11 onwards 

TBA* TBA*

Total External Debt 

Total Investments 105.00 2.77   63.00 
*figures currently being finalised 

Debt

6.2 Under the new IFRS accounting requirements, the Council will be required 
to bring additional liabilities onto the balance sheet, and include these within 
external debt calculations as required under the Prudential Indicators. 
Liabilities relating to PFI schemes will impact on the end of year position for 
2009/10 with any further liability relating to reclassification of operating 
leases to finance leases impacting in 2010/11. The CLG is proposing to 
issue mitigating regulations in order to minimise any financial impact on 
Council’s revenue accounts from these changes.  

 6.3 The estimated debt position at 31 March 2011 assumes the borrowing 
requirement to fund the capital programme will be taken in short term fixed 
and variable rate debt. The strategy will depend on rates being lower than 
investment rates. If borrowing rates rise cash flow and internal balances will 
be used reducing the forecast debt at the end of 2010/11. 

6.4 In partnership with Torbay Council, Officers are currently in discussion with 
Devon County Council to transfer to the two authorities the debt they 
currently administer on behalf of the Councils as a result of local 
government reorganisation. To date the Council has been making monthly 
payments of principal and interest on this debt. The aim of the transfer is to 
give the Council more opportunity to manage this debt in accordance with 
its policy on reducing risks inherent in its debt portfolio. The debt can only 
be transferred if Devon are not penalised by the transfer and are left in the 
same financial position as if they still continued to administer the debt.  

12

Page 116



6.5 The following graph shows the maturity profile of the Council’s external 
debt:

Figure 3 

Plymouth Risk Maturity Profile

0

10000000

20000000

30000000

40000000

50000000

60000000

70000000

80000000

90000000

20
09

/2
01

0

20
11

/2
01

2

20
13

/2
01

4

20
15

/2
01

6

20
17

/2
01

8

20
19

/2
02

0

20
21

/2
02

2

20
23

/2
02

4

20
25

/2
02

6

20
27

/2
02

8

20
29

/2
03

0

20
31

/2
03

2

20
33

/2
03

4

20
35

/2
03

6

20
37

/2
03

8

20
39

/2
04

0

20
41

/2
04

2

20
43

/2
04

4

20
45

/2
04

6

20
47

/2
04

8

20
49

/2
05

0

20
51

/2
05

2

20
53

/2
05

4

20
55

/2
05

6

20
57

/2
05

8

20
59

/2
06

0

20
61

/2
06

2

20
63

/2
06

4

20
65

/2
06

6

20
67

/2
06

8

20
69

/2
07

0

20
71

/2
07

2

20
73

/2
07

4

20
75

/2
07

6

20
77

/2
07

8

Financial Year 09/10 - 78/79

M
ax

 M
at

u
ri

ty
 in

 Y
ea

r 
(£

)

Lobo Maturity date PWLB Lobo call date

6.6 The debt portfolio currently includes £130m of LOBO loans. These loans 
have various option call dates where the banks have the ability to amend 
the loan terms and at which point the Council could choose to repay the 
loan if the terms are changed adversely. This is reflected within the maturity 
profile shown above (in amber) to enable officers to risk manage the 
Council’s cashflows. 

6.7 The estimate for interest payable during 2010/11, as included in the 
revenue budget, is £7.928m. 

6.8 As part of the housing stock transfer negotiations, the CLG repaid  £91.37m 
of the Council’s PWLB debt on 25 November 2009. This has resulted in a 
significant proportion of the Council’s remaining debt being in market loans, 
which Officers will seek to reduce over time, as outlined in the Borrowing 
Strategy for the year (section 10).

Investments

6.9 The graph below shows the current maturity profile of the Council’s 
investments. In terms of risk management, the majority of the investment 
portfolio is now held in UK institutions. Whilst these institutions have access 
to the Government Credit Guarantee Scheme, there is a risk, albeit a small 
risk,  should the UK Government,  ie  our sovereign state, collapse.  

13

Page 117



Figure 4 

Plymouth City Council Investment Maturity Profile  19th January 2010

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

< 1 Month 1-3 Months 3-6 months 6-9 Months 9-12 Months > 1 year

Maturity Period

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

6.10 The estimate for interest receipts for 2010/11, as included in the revenue 
budget proposals, is £2.040m.

7.         Outlook for Interest Rates

7.1 Interest rate forecasts can provide a useful tool in determining short term 
investment and borrowing decisions, but should be reviewed cautiously 
when longer term decisions are being considered.  

7.2 The economic interest rate outlook provided by the Council’s treasury 
advisor, Arlingclose Ltd, is attached at Appendix C, with the forecast 
movement in the Official Bank Rate set out in table 3 below.

Table 3 

Official Bank Rate 
Dec-
09

Mar-
10

Jun-
10

Sep-
10

Dec-
10

Mar-
11

Jun-
11

Sep-
11

Dec-
11

Mar-
12

Upside Risk +0.25 +0.25 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50

Central Case 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 1.00 1.50 2.25 3.00 4.00 4.00

Downside Risk -0.50 -0.50 -0.50 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25

7.3 The Bank Rate started 2009 at 1.5% and was cut by 0.5% in February and 
March, bringing the Bank Rate down to 0.5%, a level the Bank deemed 
appropriate for the prevalent economic conditions. This rate is the lowest in 
the Bank of England’s 315-year history. It is expected this rate will remain 
until at least the latter part of 2010 with a downside risk that it will continue 
at this historically low rate to March 2011.

14

Page 118



8. The Council’s Borrowing Requirement 

8.1  The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured 
by reference to its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The CFR 
represents the cumulative capital expenditure of the local authority that has 
not been financed. To ensure that this expenditure will ultimately be 
financed, local authorities are required to make a Minimum Revenue 
Provision for Debt Redemption (MRP) from within the Revenue budget 
each year. The estimated MRP included in the 2010/11 budget is £6.860m. 

8.2 Table 4 below shows the estimated CFR over the medium term.   

Table 4 

             * excludes impact of IFRS- see below 

Capital Financing 
Requirement

31/3/2010
Approved

£m

31/3/2010
Revised

£m

31/3/2011
Estimate

£m

31/3/2012
Estimate

£m

31/3/2013
Estimate

£m
Total CFR* 209.036 212.531 234.550 236.301 233.741

8.3 The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) has 
implications for the Capital Financing Requirement components on the 
Balance Sheet.  Analysis of the Council’s Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
schemes and Operating leases against IFRS requirements may result  in 
the related long term assets and liabilities being brought onto the Council’s 
Balance Sheet. The estimates for the CFR and Long Term Liabilities will 
therefore need to take into account such items.  This will influence the 
determination of the Council’s Affordable Borrowing Limit and Operational 
Boundary. This is currently under investigation and may increase the CFR 
and borrowing limits included in this report. If required amendments will be 
made for approval by Full Council at its budget meeting on 1 March 2010.!

8.4 Capital expenditure not financed from internal resources, ie from Capital 
Receipts, Capital Grants and Contributions, Revenue or Reserves, will 
produce an increase in the CFR (the underlying need to borrow) and may in 
turn produce an increased requirement to charge MRP in the Revenue 
Account.

8.5 The borrowing requirement forecast to cover the capital programme over 
the next 3 years is: 

             £m 
 2010/11       30.236 
 2011/12       10.529 
 2012/13         6.257 

8.6 Actual borrowing may be greater or less than the CFR, but in accordance 
with the Prudential code, the Council will ensure that net external borrowing 
does not, except in the short term, exceed the CFR in the preceding year 
plus estimated of any additional CFR for the current and next two financial 
years. The Council will have no borrowing in advance at 1 April 2010. 

15

Page 119



8.7 Under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting 
regulations the Council must determine and keep under review how much it 
can afford to borrow. The Council is required to set two limits:

! The Authorised Limit 
! The Operational Boundary 

8.8 The proposed limits are based on the Council’s anticipated borrowing 
requirements whilst providing flexibility for potential additional borrowing 
such as use of unsupported borrowing within the capital programme, to 
cover possible shortfalls in capital receipts, debt maturities, an overspend 
on the capital programme, or other temporary cash flow requirements.  The 
limits also allow for borrowing in advance of the following two years capital 
financing requirements if required.  

8.9 The proposed limits for external borrowing are included as part of the 
Prudential Indicators in Appendix B. The limits proposed for 2010/11 and 
the following two years are: 

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 
£m £m £m 

! Authorised Limit *                       312             302          289  
! Operational boundary *           260     260          258 
*will need to be increased for IFRS (PFI) prior to approval by Council 

8.10 The Borrowing limits are required to be formally approved by full Council, 
and whilst these can be amended during the year, any amendment also 
requires full Council approval. The limits will reduce in 2011/12 and 2012/13 
as debt is repaid and the forecast borrowing for the capital programme is 
reduced.

9. The outlook for borrowing rates:

9.1 The outlook for borrowing rates is as follows: 
! Fixed rate borrowing: Short-dated gilt yields are forecast to be lower 

than medium- and long-dated gilt yields during the financial year.
Despite additional gilt issuance to fund the UK government’s support to 
the banking industry, short-dated gilts are expected to benefit from 
expectations of lower interest rates as the economy struggles through a 
recession.

! Variable rate borrowing: PWLB variable rates have fallen below 1%. 
They are expected to remain low as the Bank Rate is maintained at 
historically low levels to enable the struggling economy emerge from the 
recession.

9.2 The differential between investment earnings and debt costs, despite long 
term borrowing rates being around historically low levels, remains acute 
and is expected to remain a feature during 2010/11. The so called “cost of 
carry” associated with long term borrowing compared to temporary 
investments returns means that any long term borrowing will bring 
additional short-term costs whilst borrowing rates are higher than those 
available for investments.

16

Page 120



10. The Borrowing Strategy for 2010/11 

10.1 The underlying principles of the Borrowing Strategy for 2010/11 are: 

! To manage out the risks inherent in the existing portfolio in terms of 
the proportion of market loans to PWLB 

! To reduce the underlying level of debt 

10.2 After considering the risks inherent in the existing portfolio and the outlook 
for interest rates in the short term, the capital financing borrowing 
requirement for 2010/11 will be financed from short-term fixed rate 
borrowing or variable rate borrowing where rates are lower than those 
available to the Council on it’s investments. Where borrowing rates are 
higher than investment rates internal resources will be used in lieu of 
borrowing with borrowing only taken to cover short term cash flow 
requirements. Capital expenditure levels, market conditions and interest 
rate levels will be monitored during the year in order to minimise borrowing 
costs over the medium to longer term.

10.3 Decisions to borrow at low, variable rates of interest will be taken after 
considering the absolute level of longer term interest rate equivalents and 
the extent of variable rate earnings on the Council’s investment balances.   
When longer term rates move below the cost of variable rate borrowing any 
strategic exposure to variable interest rates will be reviewed and, if 
appropriate, reduced. 

10.4 In conjunction with advice from its treasury advisor, Arlingclose Ltd, the 
Council will keep under review the options it has in borrowing from the 
PWLB, the market and other sources up to the available capacity within its 
CFR and Authorised Borrowing Limit. 

10.5 Following the Stock transfer, the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) repaid the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
proportion of the Council’s Public Works Loan Board debt totalling £91.37m 
(together with an early redemption premium of £25.94m) which has led to a 
significant reduction in the Council’s debt.  Whilst the reduction in debt is a 
positive step, the Council’s revised debt portfolio has a significant 
proportion of market loans which we will look to address over time and as 
such the PWLB remains the preferred source of borrowing for 2010/11.   

!

10.6 The Council has £130m loans which are LOBO loans (Lender’s Options 
Borrower’s Option) of which £49m of loans are currently in or will be in their 
option state during 2010/11.  In the event that the lender exercises the 
option to change the rate or terms of the loan, the Council will consider the 
terms being provided and if possible will seek to repay the loan without 
penalty, utilising cash resources or replacing the loan(s) by borrowing from 
the PWLB. LOBO’s are extremely complex instruments with sophisticated 
embedded derivatives and remove local authority control over their 
refinancing decisions. Future use of such loans will need to be carefully 
considered.

17

Page 121



10.7 Actual borrowing undertaken and the timing will depend on capital 
expenditure levels, interest rate forecasts and market conditions during the 
year. The Council will be advised by Arlingclose of the specific timing of 
borrowing.  This may include borrowing in advance of future years’ 
requirements provided that overall borrowing is maintained within the 
Council’s projected CFR and its approved Authorised Borrowing Limit.  

10.8 During the year, Officers will seek to identify a range of quantifiable debt 
benchmarks which will enable better monitoring and risk reporting of debt 
management activity. These will be reported to audit committee in a mid 
year treasury management review and monitoring report.  

11. Debt Rescheduling

11.1 As the strategy proposes that the underlying level of debt should be 
reduced, it is not expected that the Council will undertake any debt 
rescheduling over the next year. However, there is a need to continue to 
maintain a flexible policy for debt rescheduling in the following 
circumstances:

! Savings in interest costs with minimal risk. 
! Balancing the volatility profile (i.e. the ratio of fixed to variable rate debt) 

of the debt portfolio. 
! Amending the profile of maturing debt to reduce any inherent refinancing 

risks.

11.2 In September 2009, the PWLB issued a Consultation document, entitled 
‘PWLB Fixed Rates’, where the PWLB is reviewing the frequency of rate 
setting (currently daily) and could move to a live pricing basis. The deadline 
for the consultation period was 08 January 2010. The likely outcome of this 
is a reduction in the extent of the margins between premature repayment 
and new borrowing rates, particularly for longer maturities.   

11.3 Any debt rescheduling opportunities will consider the longer term risks as 
well as short term savings and will be undertaken within the Council’s 
treasury management policy and strategy. The Council will agree in 
advance with Arlingclose the strategy and framework within which debt will 
be repaid/rescheduled if opportunities arise.  Thereafter the Council’s debt 
portfolio will be monitored against equivalent interest rates and available 
refinancing options on a regular basis.  As opportunities arise, they will be 
identified by Arlingclose and discussed with the Council’s Officers.   

11.4 Any rescheduling activity will comply with the accounting requirements of 
the local authority SORP and regulatory requirements of the Capital 
Finance and Accounting Regulations (SI 2007 No 573 as amended by SI 
2008/414).

11.5 Borrowing and debt rescheduling activity will be reported as part of the 
Council’s bi-monthly budget and performance monitoring reports.

18

Page 122



Investment Policy and Strategy 2010/11 

12.  Investment Policy 

12.1 Guidance from the then ODPM (now DCLG) on Local Government 
Investments in England requires that an Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) 
be set.  The Guidance permits the TMSS and the AIS to be combined into 
one document. 

12.2 To comply with the CLG’s guidance, the Council’s general policy objective 
is to invest its surplus funds prudently. The Council’s investment priorities 
are:

1. Security of the invested capital; 
2.  Liquidity of the invested capital; 
3. An optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity. 

The CLG’s recent (draft) revised Guidance on investments reiterates 
security and liquidity as the primary objectives of a prudent investment 
policy.

12.3 The speculative procedure of borrowing purely in order to invest is unlawful 
and this Council will not engage in such activity. However there are 
circumstances where the Council may borrow money before it is required to 
finance capital expenditure, in accordance with the prudential code, and 
these circumstances provide additional balances for temporary investment. 
Any borrowing in advance of need will come at a cost and is not planned for 
2010/11. However the Director for Corporate Support will monitor interest 
rates for both borrowing and investments and will react to changes in 
circumstances that make any advance borrowing that fits in with the 
Council’s overall strategy and prudential indicators a viable option. This 
borrowing comes with additional credit risk by increasing the available funds 
for investments. This risk will be managed by depositing in high security 
institutions within limits set within the strategy.

12.4 Investments are categorised as ‘Specified’ or ‘Non Specified’ investments 
based on the criteria in the ODPM Guidance.  Non specified investments 
are regarded as higher risk than specified ones. The Council has 
traditionally invested in term deposits or call accounts, although the annual 
strategy statements have outlined a number of other specified and non 
specified instruments. The Council’s investment maturity profile is outlined 
in section 6. 

12.5 The credit crisis has refocused attention on the treasury management 
priority of security of capital monies invested.  The Council will continue to 
maintain a counterparty list based on its criteria and will monitor and update 
the credit standing of the institutions on a regular basis.  This assessment 
will include credit ratings and other alternative assessments of credit 
strength as outlined in paragraph 13.4. A subscription to the Bloomberg 
financial system is currently being negotiated. This will be used along with 
the internet and financial press to research and monitor news impacting on 
the Council’s current deposits and the institutions in which future deposits 
will be considered.

19

Page 123



12.6 The Council needs to maintain flexibility in its investment options if it is to be 
able to respond quickly to changing circumstances. Appendix D therefore 
continues to outline a number of investment instruments available for use in 
the coming year. The inclusion of such instruments on the list will afford the 
Director for Corporate Support, acting under delegated authority in 
accordance with Financial Regulations and in consultation with the Treasury 
Management Board, the flexibility required to manage the investment 
portfolio on a day to day basis without the need to seek prior Council 
approval for changes. Inclusion of an instrument on the list does not mean 
that the Council will necessarily make use of these during the year. The 
current lending list proposed to start on 1 April 2010 is attached at Appendix 
E.  This will be reviewed with any banks no longer meeting the required 
credit quality criteria on 1 April removed from the list.  

12.7 The proposed lending list includes the following amendments to the current 
strategy:
! the investment limit with the DMO be removed to give greater flexibility 

to react to changes in the economy and any heightened credit risk. 
! total investment in Eurosterling bonds be increased from 5% to 10% of 

the total investment portfolio allowing for the reduction in investments 
and maintaining flexibility to invest in secure longer-term investments. 

! the addition of a number of foreign banks to enable a greater spread of 
credit risk. It is proposed that the limit for total deposits in each non-UK 
country will be set at 25% of the total investments.  

12.8 The Council’s estimated levels of investments are set out in section 6. 

13. Investment Strategy 2010/11 

13.1 The global financial market storm in 2008 and 2009 has forced investors of 
public money to reappraise the question of risk versus yield. Income from 
investments is a key support in the Council’s budget.  

13.2 The UK Bank Rate has been maintained at 0.5% since March 2009.  Short-
term money market rates are likely to remain at very low levels which will 
have a significant impact on investment income. The Council’s strategy 
must however be geared towards this development whilst adhering to the 
principal objective of security of invested monies. !

13.3 The Director for Corporate Support, under delegated powers, will undertake 
the most appropriate form of investments in keeping with the investment 
objectives, income and risk management requirements and Prudential 
Indicators. Decisions taken on the core investment portfolio will be reported 
to Cabinet as part of the bi-monthly performance and financial monitoring 
report.

13.4 In making investment decisions, the Council will have regard to a range of 
information sources including: 

20

Page 124



! Central banks 
! Government Departments, 
! Debt Management Office 
! Multilateral agencies 
! Multilateral development banks 
! Newspapers and periodicals 
! Financial data providers eg Bloomberg 
! Professional bodies and associations 
! Annual reports of Banks and Building Societies 
! Ratings agencies 
! Bank and Building Society websites 

13.5 The Council’s shorter term cash flow investments are made with reference 
to the outlook for the UK Bank Rate and money market rates.  For 2010/11 
the Council’s will continue to invest in:

! The Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility (DMO) 
! Term deposits or business reserve accounts with UK banks or building 

societies that have access to the UK Government Credit Guarantee 
scheme

! UK nationalised banks 
! Deposits with other local authorities 
! AAA-rated Money Market Funds (MMF)with a Constant Net Asset 

Value (Constant NAV) investing predominantly in government 
securities

! AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Net Asset Value 
(Constant NAV)  investing in instruments issued primarily by financial 
institutions 

!

13.6 Conditions in the financial sector have begun to show signs of 
improvement, albeit with substantial intervention by government authorities. 
In order to diversify the counterparty list, the use of comparable non-UK 
Banks for investments is now considered appropriate and the sovereign 
states whose banks are recommended for inclusion are Australia, Canada, 
Finland, France, Germany, Netherlands, Spain, Switzerland and the US. 
Whilst these countries are to be added to the list for 2010/11, no investment 
will be made until Council Officers and their treasury advisors are 
comfortable that they meet all the credit criteria set by the Council, including 
in the case of foreign investments, the measure of GDP, yet to be agreed 
with Arlingclose.  

13.7 These countries, and the Banks within them have been selected by our 
Treasury management advisors after analysis and careful monitoring of: 
! Credit Ratings (minimum long-term – Fitch A+, Moody’s A1, S&P A+)  
! Credit Default Swaps 
! GDP;  Net Debt as a Percentage of GDP 
! Sovereign Support Mechanisms / potential support from a well-

resourced parent institution 
! Share Price 

21

Page 125



13.8 The Council has also taken into account information on corporate 
developments and market sentiment towards the counterparties. The 
Council and its Treasury Advisors, Arlingclose, will continue to analyse 
and monitor these indicators and credit developments on a regular basis 
and respond as necessary to ensure security of the capital sums invested.

13.9 We do remain in a heightened state of sensitivity to risk. Vigilance is key. 
This modest expansion of the counterparty list is an incremental step. In 
order to meet requirements of the revised CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code the Council is focusing on a range of indicators (as stated above), 
not just credit ratings. 

!

13.10 During the year, Officers will seek to develop a range of quantifiable 
investment benchmark criteria. This should: 

! Give the Council confidence  to diversify its investment portfolio, eg by 
sector, geography, duration, type of instrument 

! Avoid excessive concentration of risk 
! Consider having both absolute and percentage limits  

13.11 Protection against the downward move in interest rates through 1-year 
deposits and through longer-term secure investments will be actively 
considered within the limits the Council has set for Non-Specified 
Investments and on the advice of Arlingclose should include Eurosterling 
Bonds such as those issued by the European Investment bank (EIB) or 
the Nordic Investment Bank for 2010/11. The joint and individual pan 
European government guarantees in place on these bonds provide 
security of the principal invested. Even at the lower yields likely to be in 
force, the return on these bonds could be attractive relative to the 
increasingly low outlook for interest rates. A limit of £20m or 10% of total 
investment portfolio (which ever the lower) in Eurosterling Bonds is 
recommended by our treasury advisors.

13.12 The Council’s updated lending list for 2010/11 is included at Appendix E. 
The list will continue to be reviewed and updated by the Director for 
Corporate Support during the year.

13.13 The target rate on new investment in 2010/11 is 1%. The current deposits 
include deposits which were taken out for longer-term prior to the 
Icelandic banking crisis and are at much higher rates than current deposit 
rates. Taking these deposits into account the average rate on all deposits 
in 2010/11 is forecast at 2.35%. The investment interest included in the 
2010/11 budget is £2.04m. This does not take account of any repayments 
from our Iceland bank deposits 

14. Investments defined as Capital Expenditure 

14.1 The acquisition of share capital or loan capital in any body corporate, a 
loan or grant or financial assistance by the Council to another body for 
capital expenditure, and certain other types of investment are defined as 
capital expenditure under the relevant Regulations. 

22

Page 126



14.2 The Council’s policy is to not use any investment which will be deemed 
capital expenditure. 

15.    Balanced Budget Requirement

15.1 The Council complies with the provisions of S32 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 to set a balanced budget. The proposed budget for 
2010/11 is set out in the 2010/11 budget report. 

16. Annual MRP Statement

16.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008/414) place a duty on local 
authorities to make a prudent provision for debt redemption.  Guidance on 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) has been issued by the Secretary of 
State and local authorities are required to “have regard” to such Guidance 
under section 21(1A) of the Local Government Act 2003. The broad aim 
of ‘prudent’ provision is to ensure that debt is repaid over a period 
reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure 
provides benefits. 

16.2 The four MRP options available are: 

Option 1: Regulatory Method 
Option 2: CFR Method 
Option 3: Asset Life Method 
Option 4: Depreciation Method 

!

16.3 The 2009 SORP and IFRS may result in PFI schemes and leases being 
brought on balance sheet.  Where this is the case the CFR will increase, 
which will lead to an increase in the MRP charge to revenue. MRP for 
these items will match the annual principal repayment for the associated 
deferred liability. The Council currently has one PFI scheme, the schools 
at Riverside and Woodview campus, and this has been assessed as 
meeting the criteria for inclusion on the balance sheet. Officers are 
currently identifying the implications on the CFR and MRP. In order to 
mitigate against any revenue impact the CLG has issued draft regulations 
which include a further definition to the Asset Life Method which will 
enable the annual principal repayment to be matched to the associated 
deferred liability. The final Regulations are expected to be published by 31 
March 2010, and apply retrospectively to financial year 2009/10.

16.4 MRP in 2010/11: Options 1 and 2 may be used only for supported 
expenditure. Methods of making prudent provision for self financed 
expenditure include Options 3 and 4 (which may also be used for 
supported expenditure if the Council chooses).  

16.5 Under the regulations, the authority is required before the start of each 
financial year to prepare a statement of its policy on making MRP in 
respect of that financial year and submit it to the full Council. The 
proposed policy for 2010/11 is as follows: 

23

Page 127



Supported Borrowing 
For borrowing supported by Revenue Support Grant the Council will 
continue to use the current method of 4% of the adjusted Non-HRA 
capital financing requirement, (Option 2). 

Unsupported Borrowing
For new borrowing under the prudential system for which no 
Government support is being given and is therefore self-financed, 
MRP will be made in equal annual instalments over the life of the asset 
(Option 3). 

Capitalisation Directions
For capitalisation directions on expenditure incurred since 1 April 2008 
MRP will be made in equal annual instalments over 20 years in line 
with DCLG guidance (Option 3). 

PFI/Leases
MRP in respect of PFI and leases brought on Balance Sheet under the 
2009 SORP and IFRS will match the annual principal repayment for 
the associated deferred liability. 

In all cases MRP will commence in the financial year following the one in 
which the expenditure is incurred.

17. Reporting on the Treasury Management Activities  

17.1 In accordance with the recommendations of the Treasury Management 
Code, the Council’s Audit Committee will be responsible for the scrutiny of 
treasury management activities and practices. 

17.2 The Director for Corporate Support will report to the Audit Committee on 
treasury management activity and performance at least twice a year 
against the strategy approved for the year (being a mid year review and 
an end of year review).

17.3 The Council is required to produce an outturn report on its treasury 
activity no later than 30 September after the financial year.

17.4 In addition treasury management activity will continue to be reported as 
part of the bi-monthly budget and performance reports to Cabinet and as 
part of the budget outturn report. 

18 Recommendations 

18.1 To approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2010/11, 
subject to feedback from Audit Committee following its scrutiny of the 
strategy.

18.2 To approve the Investment Strategy for 2010/11 as outlined in Section 13 
of the report, subject to feedback from Audit Committee following its 
scrutiny of the strategy.

24

Page 128



18.3 To approve the Lending Organisations and Counter party Limits as 
outlined in Appendix E 

18.4 To request the Director for Corporate Support, acting under delegated 
authority in accordance with Financial Regulations, to keep the lending 
list under review and update the list during the year as dictated by market 
circumstances.

18.5 To recommend to full Council (subject to any amendments that may be 
required as a result of the inclusion of PFI schemes on the balance 
Sheet) to approve: 

(a) The Authorised Borrowing limits of £312m, £302m and £289m for 
the period 2010/11 to 2012/13 

(b)   The Operational Boundary of £260m, £260m and £258m for 
2010/11 to 2012/13 

(c ) The Prudential Indicators set out in Appendix B; 

(d)   The MRP Policy for 2010/11. 

18.6 A formal mid year review and monitoring report be taken to Audit 
Committee.

18.7  Officers seek to develop a set of benchmarking targets for the treasury 
management activity against which performance can be measured. 

          

25

Page 129



Appendix A 

Treasury Management Policy Statement 

Plymouth City Council defines the policies and objectives of its treasury 
management activities as follows:- 

1. This organisation defines its treasury management activities as: 
“The management of the authority’s investments, cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 

2. This organisation regards the successful identification, monitoring and 
control of risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its 
treasury management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the 
analysis and reporting of treasury management activities will focus on 
the risk implications for the organisation. 

3. This organisation acknowledges that effective treasury management will 
provide support towards the achievement of its business and service 
objectives. It is therefore committed to the principles of achieving best 
value in treasury management, and to employing suitable performance 
measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk 
management.

26

Page 130



Appendix B

Prudential Indicators 2010/11 to 2012/13 

 There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local 
authorities to have regard to Cipfa’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities (the “Cipfa Prudential Code”) when setting and reviewing 
their Prudential Indicators. This Code together with the Cipfa Code of 
Practice  for Treasury Management was fully revised in late 2009 and is 
incorporated into the calculation of the Prudential Indicators for 2010/11 to 
2012/13.

 The Council’s Prudential Indicators are outlined in Annex 1. The following 
comments explain in more detail the purpose of each indicator.  

 Estimates of Capital Expenditure: 
 This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital 

expenditure remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider 
the impact on Council Tax.  

 The detailed capital programme for the medium term period ending 
2014/15 is outlined in the 2010/11 budget report. 

Capital Financing Requirement 
The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s 
underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.  The calculation of the 
CFR is taken from the amounts held in the Balance Sheet relating to 
capital expenditure and its financing. It is an aggregation of the amounts 
shown for Fixed and Intangible assets, the Revaluation Reserve, the 
Capital Adjustment Account, Government Grants Deferred and any other 
balances treated as capital expenditure.  

The Prudential Code provides the following statement as a key indicator of 
prudence:  “in order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing 
will only be for a capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that net 
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of 
capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of 
any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next two 
financial years.”

 Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt: 
 The Council has an integrated treasury management strategy and 

manages its treasury position in accordance with its approved strategy and 
practice. Overall borrowing will therefore arise as a consequence of all the 
financial transactions of the Council and not just those arising from capital 
spending reflected in the CFR.  There are two borrowing limits specified 
within the Code. 

27

Page 131



The Authorised Limit
 This is the absolute borrowing limit beyond which any borrowing is 

prohibited until revised by the authority. It is measured on a daily basis 
against all external borrowing items on the Balance Sheet (i.e. long and 
short term borrowing, overdrawn bank balances and long term liabilities. 
This Prudential Indicator separately identifies borrowing from other long 
term liabilities such as finance leases. It is consistent with the Council’s 
existing commitments, its proposals for capital expenditure and financing 
and its approved treasury management policy statement and practices.   

 The Authorised Limit has been set on the estimate of the most likely, 
prudent but not worst case scenario with sufficient headroom over and 
above this to allow for unusual cash movements.

 The Authorised Limit is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of 
the Local Government Act 2003 (referred to in the legislation as the 
Affordable Limit). 

The Operational Boundary
This limit is intended to cover the probable borrowing needs of the 
authority during the year.  It is a focus for day to day Treasury 
Management and a means by which the authority manages its external 
debt within the self imposed Authorised limit.  It is lower than the 
Authorised limit because cash flow variations may lead to the occasional 
breach of this indicator.

Upper Limits for Fixed and Variable Interest Rates  

These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is 
exposed to changes in interest rates. This Council calculates these limits 
as:

! Fixed rate interest rate exposure: net fixed rate debt (fixed rate debt 
less fixed rate investments) as a % of total net debt (total debt less total 
investments)

! Variable interest rate exposure: net variable rate debt (variable rate 
debt less variable rate investments) as a % of total net debt (total debt 
less total investments 

 The fixed rate indicator generally remains high reflecting historical policy to 
take long term fixed rate debt and short term investments (investments for 
less than 1 year are classified as variable rate). The strategy for 2010/11 is 
to reduce the exposure to fixed rates by taking a proportion of any 
borrowing requirement in short term variable rate loans. 

 Borrowing at fixed rates for long periods can give the opportunity to lock 
into low interest rates and provide stability but risks missing possible 
opportunities to borrow at low rates in the medium term, or to convert short 
term loans into long term if long term rates were to fall.

28

Page 132



 The proposed limits for 2010/11 will provide flexibility to adapt to different 
possible scenarios which could arise from changing market conditions 
within the Treasury Management Strategy. 

The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the 
Council is not exposed to interest rate rises which could adversely impact 
on the revenue budget.  The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to 
offset exposure to changes in short-term rates on investments. The upper 
limit of 200% on fixed interest rate exposure allows for periods when short 
term deposits exceed variable rate debt due to balances/cashflow.  

 Officers will work with the Council’s treasury advisors to develop a range 
of benchmarking indicators to be reported in the mid-year treasury 
management report covering performance against Prudential Indicators 
and variations to proposed limits. 

Upper Limit for sums invested over 364 days:
The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss 
that may arise as a result of the Council having to seek early repayment of 
the sums invested. 

 Ratio of Financing Costs as a % of Net Revenue Stream: 
 This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications 

of existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion 
of the revenue budget required to meet borrowing costs.  

The ratio is based on the cost of interest on borrowing and the minimum 
revenue provision, less Interest and Investment income.  In Plymouth’s 
case, a proportion of the cost comes from debt arising from Local 
Government Reorganisation, which is managed by Devon County Council.   

Incremental Effect of Additional Programme on Council Tax 
This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital 
investment decisions on Council Tax. The incremental impact is calculated 
by comparing the total revenue budget requirement of the current year’s 
approved capital programme with an equivalent calculation of the revenue 
budget requirement in future years as a result of additional spend on the 
capital programme each year over the medium term period.  

The figures shown in the annex assume only limited new borrowing will be 
taken out in 2009/10 and 2010/11, with the borrowing requirement being 
met as far as possible from cash flow and balances. This has resulted in a 
negative impact on the Council tax in 2009/10, and a low incremental 
impact for 2010/11. Internal balances will be exhausted during 2010/11, 
and the full cost of borrowing will be a cost to the revenue budget.  The 
impact on the council tax is therefore the loss of interest that could be 
achieved if these balances were available for investment. In latter years 
the incremental effect is the additional borrowing that will be required to 
finance the approved capital programme.

29

Page 133



Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing: 
This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed 
rate debt needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates 
and is designed to protect against excessive exposures to interest rate 
changes in any one period, in particular in the course of the next ten years.

It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate 
maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that 
is fixed rate. The maturity of borrowing is determined by reference to the 
earliest date on which the lender can require payment. The repayment of 
the majority of PWLB loans over the last 12 months have resulted in an 
high proportion of Lobo (lenders Option, Borrowers Option) loans which 
may be subject to rate change or repayment at specified intervals. On 
specified dates the Lender has the option to vary the rate. If the option is 
taken the Council (Borrower) has the option to repay the loan. Therefore 
the loan may be subject to repayment on a number of occasions 
throughout the life of the loan. These repayment possibilities are included 
in the limits set for the maturity of fixed rate borrowing. 

30

Page 134



APPENDIX B
Annex 1

2010/11 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY - PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

PRUDENTIAL INDICATOR
2009/10 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Approved Update Estimate Estimate Estimate
£M £M £M £M £M

AFFORDABLE BORROWING LIMITS

Estimated Capital expenditure
Non - HRA 84.691 84.030 93.317 45.182 22.044
HRA 7.222 7.991 n/a n/a n/a
Total 91.913 92.021 93.317 45.182 22.044

Capital Financing Requirement - As at 31st March 209.036 212.531 234.550 236.301 233.741

Authorised Limit for External Debt
Borrowing 460 460 312 302 289
Other Long Term Liabilities (PFI) 0 TBA TBA TBA TBA
Total 460 460 312 302 289

Operational Boundary
Borrowing 430 430 260 260 258
Other Long Term Liabilities (PFI) 0 TBA TBA TBA TBA
Total 430 430 260 260 258

Limit for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure 
  Net Fixed Rate (Borrowing less investments) 200% 310% 200% 200% 200%

Limit for Variable Rate Exposure
  Net Variable Rate (borrowing less investments) 60% 60% 85% 85% 85%

Upper Limit for sums Invested over 364 days £60m £60m £25m £25m £25m

Capital Financing Cost as a % of Revenue Stream % % % % %
General Fund
- Plymouth Debt 6.12 6.41 6.11 6.44 6.33
- Devon Managed Debt 1.71 1.67 1.56 1.49 1.43
Total 7.83 8.08 7.67 7.93 7.76

Housing Revenue Account 28.69 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Incremental Effect of Additional Programme on 
Council Tax (Band D p.a)

£0.75 -£1.30 £0.34 £15.86 £32.97

Fixed Rate Borrowing 2009/10 2010/11 2010/11
Maturity Limits for 2010/11 Upper Limit Upper Limit Lower Limit

Under 12 months 60% 65% 0%

12 months and within 24 months 60% 65% 0%

24 months and within 5 years 30% 55% 0%

5 years and within 10 years 25% 50% 0%

10 years and above 60%

10 years and within 20 years 45% 0%

20 years and within 30 years 45% 0%

30 years and within 40 years 45% 0%

40 years and within 50 years 55% 0%
50 years and above 50% 0%

31

Page 135



Appendix C 

Arlingclose’s National Economic and Interest Rate Forecast (dated 14 
December 2009)

!

Dec-09 Mar-10 Jun-10 Sep-10 Dec-10 Mar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12

Official Bank Rate

Upside risk +0.25 +0.25 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50

Central case     0.50     0.50     0.50     0.50     1.00     1.50     2.25     3.00     4.00    4.00 
Downside risk -0.50 -0.50 -0.50 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25

1-yr LIBID

Upside risk +0.25 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50

Central case     1.25     1.25     1.25     1.50     2.00     2.75     3.50     4.00     4.25    4.25 
Downside risk -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25

5-yr gilt

Upside risk +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50

Central case     2.60     2.70     2.80     2.90     3.00     3.25     3.50     3.75     4.00    4.25 
Downside risk -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25

10-yr gilt

Upside risk +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25

Central case     3.60     3.75     3.75     4.00     4.00     4.25     4.25     4.50     4.50    4.75 
Downside risk -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25

20-yr gilt

Upside risk +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.25

Central case     4.10     4.25     4.50     4.75     4.75     5.00     5.00     5.00     5.00    5.00 
Downside risk -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25

50-yr gilt

Upside risk +0.25 +0.25 +0.25 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50 +0.50

Central case     4.00 4.25 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.75 4.75 4.75 4.75 4.75
Downside risk -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25 -0.25

! The recovery in growth is likely to be slow and uneven, more “W” than “V” 
shaped.  The Bank of England will stick to its lower-for-longer stance on 
policy rates.

! Gilt yields will remain volatile; yields have been compressed by 
Quantitative Easing and will rise once QE tapers off and if government 
debt remains at record high levels.

! Central banks will eventually wind down and exit their emergency liquidity 
provisions and shrink their balance sheets, but official interest rates in the 
UK, Eurozone and US will stay low for some while. 

! There are significant threats to the forecast from potential downgrades to 
sovereign ratings and/or political instability.

Assumptions
! The Bank of England has increased Quantitative Easing (QE) to 

£200bn to insure against the downside risks to growth and stimulate 
the economy.

32

Page 136



! The Bank forecasts GDP to grow by 4% in 2011 but concedes growth 
could be impeded by corporate and consumer balance sheet 
adjustments, restrictions in bank credit and consumers’ cautious 
spending behaviour. This is an optimistic forecast in our view; evidence 
of recovery is scant with weak real economic data and rising 
unemployment.   

! Looming bank regulation and liquidity and capital requirements will curb 
banking lending activity. The Bank retains the option to reduce the rate 
on commercial banks’ deposits to encourage them to lend.  

! The employment outlook remains uncertain.  Pay freezes and job cuts 
will continue into 2010.

! Inflation is not an immediate worry. The Bank’s forecast is for CPI to 
rise in the next few months from higher commodity prices and VAT 
reverting to 17.5%, but is forecast to remain below 2% in the short 
term, only surpassing the target in 2012.  There is a risk that inflation 
overshoots in 2010 prompting a letter from the Bank’s Governor to the 
Chancellor.  

!  The UK fiscal deficit remains acute. Cuts in public spending and tax 
increases are now inevitable and more likely to be pushed through in 
2010 by a new government. 

! The net supply of gilts will rise to unprecedented levels in 2010.  Failure 
to articulate and deliver on an urgent and credible plan to lower 
government borrowing to sustainable levels over the medium term will 
be negative for gilts.  

! The Federal Reserve Chairman Bernanke’s diagnosis of a weak U.S. 
economy and labour market signal that the Fed’s “extended period” of 
low rates may get even longer.  The outlook the Eurozone is more 
optimistic but the European Central Bank will only increase rates after a 
durable upturn in growth. 

33

Page 137



Appendix D 

Specified and Non Specified Investments

The CLG is in the process of undertaking a review of the Investment Guidance for 
local authorities in England and this section may therefore be subject to review and 
amendment.

Specified Investments identified for use by the Council:

Specified Investments will be those that meet the criteria in the CLG Guidance, i.e. 
the investment

! is sterling denominated 
! has a maximum maturity of 1 year  
! meets the “high” credit criteria as determined by the Council or is made with 

the UK government or is made with a local authority in England, Wales and 
Scotland.

! the making of which is not defined as capital expenditure under section 
25(1)(d) in SI 2003 No 3146 (i.e. the investment is not  loan capital or share 
capital in a body corporate). 

“Specified” Investments identified for the Council’s use are:

! Deposits in the DMO’s Debt Management Account Deposit Facility 

! Deposits with UK local authorities 

! Deposits with banks and building societies 

! *Certificates of deposit with banks and building societies 

! *Gilts : (bonds issued by the UK government) 

! *Bonds issued by multilateral development banks 

! AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Net Asset Value (Constant 
NAV) investing predominantly in government securities 

! AAA-rated Money Market Funds with a Constant Net Asset Value (Constant 
NAV)  investing in instruments issued primarily by financial institutions; 

! Other Money Market Funds and Collective Investment Schemes– i.e. credit 
rated funds which meet the definition of a collective investment scheme as 
defined in SI 2004 No 534 and SI 2007 No 573.

* Investments in these instruments will be on advice from the Council’s 
treasury advisor.

.
For credit rated counterparties, the minimum criteria will be the short-term / long-
term ratings assigned by various agencies which may include Moody’s Investors 
Services, Standard & Poor’s, Fitch Ratings. The lowest rating of the 3 agencies will 
be used when making investment decision or including/removing counterparties 
from the Council’s lending list. 

34

Page 138



Appendix D 

For 2010/11 the following Minimum ratings proposed are. 

Term Deposits with Banks and Building Societies for periods up to 1 year 

Minimum long-term Minimum short-term 

Fitch A+ F1
Moody’s A1 P-1
S&P A+ A-1

However in making investment decisions the Council will not solely rely on credit 
ratings but will have regard to a range of information sources including: 

! Central banks 
! Government Departments, 
! Debt Management Office 
! Multilateral agencies 
! Multilateral development banks 
! Newspapers and periodicals 
! Financial data providers eg Bloomberg 
! Professional bodies and associations 
! Annual reports of Banks and Building Societies 
! Ratings agencies 
! Bank and Building Society websites 

The Council will also take into account information on corporate developments of 
and market sentiment towards investment counterparties.

The Council needs to maintain flexibility in its investment options if it is to be able 
to respond quickly to changing circumstances, and the above list continues to 
outline a number of investment instruments available for use in the coming year. 
The inclusion of such instruments on the list will afford the Director for Corporate 
Support, acting under delegated authority in accordance with Financial 
Regulations and in consultation with the Treasury Management Board the flexibility 
required to manage the investment portfolio on a day to day basis without the need 
to seek prior Council approval for changes. Inclusion of an instrument on the list 
does not mean that the Council will necessarily make use of these during the year.

Further details on the non-specified investments, and the associated risks are 
given below. 

The proposed lending list for 2010/11, based on current circumstances is set out in 
Appendix E. 

35

Page 139



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 

N
O

N
-S

P
E

C
IF

IE
D

 IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

(A
) 

W
h

y 
u

se
 it

?
 

(B
) 

A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
?

 

S
h

ar
e/

 
L

o
an

 
C

ap
it

al
?

   
 

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/

R
ed

ee
m

ab
l

e 
w

it
h

in
 1

2 
m

o
n

th
s?

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

cr
ed

it
 r

at
in

g
  

C
ap

it
al

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
?

 
C

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

 
o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

 %
 o

f 
o

ve
ra

ll 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
  

M
ax

im
u

m
m

at
u

ri
ty

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

T
er

m
 d

ep
o

si
ts

 w
ith

 
cr

ed
it 

ra
te

d 
de

po
si

t 
ta

ke
rs

 (
ba

nk
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s)
 w

ith
 

m
at

ur
iti

es
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 1

 
ye

ar
 

(A
) 

(i)
 C

er
ta

in
ty

 o
f r

at
e 

of
 r

et
ur

n 
ov

er
 p

er
io

d 
in

ve
st

ed
. (

ii)
 N

o 
m

ov
em

en
t i

n 
ca

pi
ta

l v
al

ue
 o

f 
de

po
si

t d
es

pi
te

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 in

te
re

st
 

ra
te

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t. 

 

(B
) 

(i)
 Il

liq
ui

d 
 : 

as
 a

 g
en

er
al

 r
ul

e,
 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
tr

ad
ed

 o
r 

re
pa

id
 p

rio
r 

to
 

m
at

ur
ity

. 
(ii

) 
R

et
ur

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
lo

w
er

 if
 in

te
re

st
 

ra
te

s 
ris

e 
af

te
r 

m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t.

(ii
i) 

C
re

di
t r

is
k 

: p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 g
re

at
er

 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
in

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y 
ov

er
 

lo
ng

er
 p

er
io

d 

N
o

N
o

Le
nd

in
g 

lim
its

 
va

rie
d,

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 
C

re
di

t R
at

in
gs

.  
M

in
im

um
R

at
in

g 
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

: 
F

itc
h 

A
A

- 
M

oo
dy

’s
 A

a3
 

S
 &

 P
 A

A
- 

S
ho

rt
 tT

er
m

: 
F

itc
h 

F
1+

+ 
M

oo
dy

’s
 P

-1
 

S
&

P
 A

-1
+ 

N
O

In
-h

ou
se

. 
30

%
 

5 
Y

ea
rs

 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
o

f 
D

ep
o

si
t

w
ith

 c
re

di
t r

at
ed

 d
ep

os
it 

ta
ke

rs
 (

ba
nk

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
so

ci
et

ie
s)

 w
ith

 
m

at
ur

iti
es

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 1
 

ye
ar

 
C

us
to

di
al

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

t 
re

qu
ire

d 
pr

io
r 

to
 p

ur
ch

as
e

(A
) 

(i)
 A

lth
ou

gh
 in

 th
eo

ry
 tr

ad
ab

le
, 

ar
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
ill

iq
ui

d.
 

(B
) 

(i)
 ‘M

ar
ke

t o
r 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ris

k’
 : 

Y
ie

ld
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
ov

em
en

t d
ur

in
g 

lif
e 

of
 C

D
 w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 n

eg
at

iv
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

pr
ic

e 
of

 th
e 

C
D

.  

N
o

Y
es

Le
nd

in
g 

lim
its

 
va

rie
d,

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 
C

re
di

t R
at

in
gs

.  
M

in
im

um
R

at
in

g 
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

: 
F

itc
h 

A
A

- 
M

oo
dy

’s
 A

a3
 

S
 &

 P
 A

A
- 

S
ho

rt
 tT

er
m

: 
F

itc
h 

F
1+

+ 
M

oo
dy

’s
 P

-1
 

S
&

P
 A

-1
+ 

N
O

T
o 

be
 u

se
d 

on
ly

 a
fte

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n/
ad

vi
ce

 fr
om

 
A

rli
ng

cl
os

e.
 

10
%

 
5 

Y
ea

rs
 

3
6

Page 140



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

(A
) 

W
h

y 
u

se
 it

?
 

(B
) 

A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
?

 

S
h

ar
e/

 
L

o
an

 
C

ap
it

al
?

   
 

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/

R
ed

ee
m

ab
l

e 
w

it
h

in
 1

2 
m

o
n

th
s?

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

cr
ed

it
 r

at
in

g
  

C
ap

it
al

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
?

 
C

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

 
o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

 %
 o

f 
o

ve
ra

ll 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
  

M
ax

im
u

m
m

at
u

ri
ty

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

C
al

la
b

le
 d

ep
o

si
ts

 w
ith

 
cr

ed
it 

ra
te

d 
de

po
si

t 
ta

ke
rs

 (
ba

nk
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s)
 w

ith
 

m
at

ur
iti

es
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 1

 
ye

ar
 

(A
) 

(i)
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

in
co

m
e 

~ 
P

ot
en

tia
lly

 h
ig

he
r 

re
tu

rn
 th

an
 u

si
ng

 
a 

te
rm

 d
ep

os
it 

w
ith

 s
im

ila
r 

m
at

ur
ity

. 

(B
) 

(i)
 Il

liq
ui

d 
– 

on
ly

 b
or

ro
w

er
 h

as
 

th
e 

rig
ht

 to
 p

ay
 b

ac
k 

de
po

si
t; 

th
e 

le
nd

er
 d

oe
s 

no
t h

av
e 

a 
si

m
ila

r 
ca

ll.
 

(ii
) 

pe
rio

d 
ov

er
 w

hi
ch

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

w
ill

 a
ct

ua
lly

 b
e 

he
ld

 is
 n

ot
 k

no
w

n 
at

 
th

e 
ou

ts
et

. (
iii

) 
In

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

ris
k 

: 
bo

rr
ow

er
 w

ill
 n

ot
 p

ay
 b

ac
k 

de
po

si
t 

if 
in

te
re

st
 r

at
es

 r
is

e 
af

te
r 

de
po

si
t i

s 
m

ad
e.

N
o

N
o

Le
nd

in
g 

lim
its

 
va

rie
d,

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 
C

re
di

t R
at

in
gs

.  
M

in
im

um
R

at
in

g 
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

: 
F

itc
h 

A
A

- 
M

oo
dy

’s
 A

a3
 

S
 &

 P
 A

A
- 

S
ho

rt
 tT

er
m

: 
F

itc
h 

F
1+

+ 
M

oo
dy

’s
 P

-1
 

S
&

P
 A

-1
+ 

Le
nd

in
g 

lim
its

 
va

rie
d

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 
C

re
di

t R
at

in
gs

 
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

 A
A

- 
 

N
O

In
-h

ou
se

.  
 

20
%

 
5 

Y
ea

rs
 

3
7

Page 141



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t

(A
) 

W
h

y 
u

se
 it

?
 

(B
) 

A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
?

S
h

ar
e/

 
L

o
an

 
C

ap
it

al
?

   
 

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/

R
ed

ee
m

ab
l

e 
w

it
h

in
 1

2 
m

o
n

th
s?

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

C
re

d
it

 R
at

in
g

?
 

C
ap

it
al

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
?

 
C

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

 
o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

 %
 o

f 
o

ve
ra

ll 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
  

M
ax

im
u

m
m

at
u

ri
ty

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

 

 

U
K

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
g

ilt
s 

w
ith

 m
at

ur
iti

es
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 1

 y
ea

r 

C
us

to
di

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

(A
) 

(i)
 E

xc
el

le
nt

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y.
 

(ii
)V

er
y 

 L
iq

ui
d.

 
(ii

i) 
If 

he
ld

 to
 m

at
ur

ity
, k

no
w

n 
yi

el
d 

(r
at

e 
of

 r
et

ur
n)

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 ~

 a
id

s 
fo

rw
ar

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
.  

(iv
) 

If 
tr

ad
ed

, 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 c

ap
ita

l g
ai

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
ap

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
in

 v
al

ue
 (

i.e
. s

ol
d 

be
fo

re
 m

at
ur

ity
) 

(v
) 

N
o 

cu
rr

en
cy

 
ris

k

(B
) 

(i)
 ‘M

ar
ke

t o
r 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ris

k’
 : 

Y
ie

ld
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
ov

em
en

t d
ur

in
g 

lif
e 

of
 s

ov
er

ei
gn

 b
on

d 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 

ne
ga

tiv
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

pr
ic

e 
of

 th
e 

bo
nd

 i.
e.

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 c
ap

ita
l l

os
s.

  

N
o

Y
es

G
ov

t b
ac

ke
d 

N
O

B
uy

 a
nd

 h
ol

d 
to

 
m

at
ur

ity
: t

o 
be

 
us

ed
 o

nl
y 

af
te

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n/
ad

vi
ce

 fr
om

 
A

rli
ng

cl
os

e.
  

10
Y

ea
rs

S
o

ve
re

ig
n

 is
su

es
 e

x 
U

K
 

g
o

vt
 g

ilt
s 

: a
ny

 m
at

ur
ity

 

C
us

to
di

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

(A
) 

(i)
 E

xc
el

le
nt

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y.
 (

ii)
 

Li
qu

id
. 

(ii
i) 

If 
he

ld
 to

 m
at

ur
ity

, k
no

w
n 

yi
el

d 
(r

at
e 

of
 r

et
ur

n)
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 ~
 a

id
s 

fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

.  
(iv

) 
If 

tr
ad

ed
, 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 c
ap

ita
l g

ai
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

ap
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

in
 v

al
ue

 (
i.e

. s
ol

d 
be

fo
re

 m
at

ur
ity

) 
(v

) 
N

o 
cu

rr
en

cy
 

ris
k

(B
) 

(i)
 ‘M

ar
ke

t o
r 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ris

k’
 : 

Y
ie

ld
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
ov

em
en

t d
ur

in
g 

lif
e 

of
 s

ov
er

ei
gn

 b
on

d 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 

ne
ga

tiv
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

pr
ic

e 
of

 th
e 

bo
nd

 i.
e.

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 c
ap

ita
l l

os
s.

  

N
o

Y
es

A
A

A
N

O
B

uy
 a

nd
 h

ol
d 

to
 

m
at

ur
ity

: t
o 

be
 

us
ed

 o
nl

y 
af

te
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n/

ad
vi

ce
 fr

om
 

A
rli

ng
cl

os
e.

  

20
%

 
10

 Y
ea

rs
 

F
o

rw
ar

d
 d

ep
o

si
ts

 w
ith

 
cr

ed
it 

ra
te

d 
ba

nk
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s 
fo

r 
pe

rio
ds

 >
 1

 y
ea

r 
(i.

e.
 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
de

al
 p

er
io

d 
pl

us
 p

er
io

d 
of

 d
ep

os
it)

 

(A
) 

(i)
 K

no
w

n 
ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

ov
er

 
pe

rio
d 

th
e 

m
on

ie
s 

ar
e 

in
ve

st
ed

 ~
 

ai
ds

 fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

.  

(B
) 

(i)
 C

re
di

t r
is

k 
is

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
w

ho
le

 
pe

rio
d,

 n
ot

 ju
st

 w
he

n 
m

on
ie

s 
ar

e 
ac

tu
al

ly
 in

ve
st

ed
.  

(ii
) 

C
an

no
t r

en
eg

e 
on

 m
ak

in
g 

th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

f c
re

di
t r

at
in

g 
fa

lls
 o

r 
in

te
re

st
 r

at
es

 r
is

e 
in

 th
e 

in
te

rim
 

pe
rio

d 
 

N
o

N
o

Le
nd

in
g 

lim
its

 
va

rie
d,

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 
C

re
di

t R
at

in
gs

.  
M

in
im

um
R

at
in

g 
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

: 
F

itc
h 

A
A

- 
M

oo
dy

’s
 A

a3
 

S
 &

 P
 A

A
- 

S
ho

rt
 tT

er
m

: 
F

itc
h 

F
1+

+ 
M

oo
dy

’s
 P

-1
 

S
&

P
 A

-1
+ 

N
O

In
-h

ou
se

. 
10

%
 

5 
Y

ea
rs

3
8

Page 142



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

(A
) 

W
h

y 
u

se
 it

?
 

(B
) 

A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
?

 

S
h

ar
e/

 
L

o
an

 
C

ap
it

al
?

   
 

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/

R
ed

ee
m

ab
l

e 
w

it
h

in
 1

2 
m

o
n

th
s?

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

cr
ed

it
 r

at
in

g
  

C
ap

it
al

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
?

 
C

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

 
o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

 %
 o

f 
o

ve
ra

ll 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
  

M
ax

im
u

m
m

at
u

ri
ty

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

D
ep

o
si

ts
 w

it
h

 u
n

ra
te

d
 

d
ep

o
si

t 
ta

ke
rs

 w
it

h
 

u
n

co
n

d
it

io
n

al
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
g

u
ar

an
te

e 
fr

o
m

 H
M

G
 o

r 
cr

ed
it

-r
at

ed
 p

ar
en

t 
in

st
it

u
ti

o
n

 :
 a

ny
 m

at
ur

ity
 

C
re

di
t s

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 p

ar
en

t w
ill

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

ul
tim

at
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f c
re

di
t 

ris
k

N
o

Y
es

, b
ut

 
on

ly
 if

 
m

at
ur

ity
 is

 1
 

ye
ar

 o
r 

le
ss

 

N
ot

 r
at

ed
 in

 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

rig
ht

, 
bu

t p
ar

en
t m

us
t 

ha
ve

 m
in

im
um

 
ra

tin
g.

Lo
ng

 T
er

m
 A

A
- 

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 F

1+
  

N
O

In
-h

ou
se

. 
25

%
 

1 
Y

ea
r 

B
o

n
d

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

a 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
 t

h
at

 
is

 g
u

ar
an

te
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

U
n

it
ed

 K
in

g
d

o
m

 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

(a
s 

de
fin

ed
 

in
 S

I 2
00

4 
N

o 
53

4)
 

w
ith

 m
at

ur
iti

es
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
  1

ye
ar

 
C

us
to

di
al

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

t 
re

qu
ire

d 
pr

io
r 

to
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 

(A
) 

(i)
 E

xc
el

le
nt

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y.
 (

ii)
 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
liq

ui
d.

 (
al

th
ou

gh
 n

ot
 a

s 
liq

ui
d 

as
 g

ilt
s)

 
(ii

i) 
If 

he
ld

 to
 m

at
ur

ity
, k

no
w

n 
yi

el
d 

(r
at

e 
of

 r
et

ur
n)

 p
er

 a
nn

um
, w

hi
ch

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 th

at
 o

n 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
gi

lt 
~ 

ai
ds

 fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

, e
nh

an
ce

d 
re

tu
rn

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 g

ilt
s.

  
(iv

) 
If 

tr
ad

ed
, p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 c

ap
ita

l 
ga

in
 th

ro
ug

h 
ap

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
in

 v
al

ue
 

(i.
e.

 s
ol

d 
be

fo
re

 m
at

ur
ity

) 

(B
) 

(i)
 ‘M

ar
ke

t o
r 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ris

k’
 : 

Y
ie

ld
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
ov

em
en

t d
ur

in
g 

lif
e 

of
 b

on
d 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 n
eg

at
iv

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pr

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
bo

nd
 i.

e.
 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 c
ap

ita
l l

os
s.

  
(ii

) 
S

pr
ea

d 
ve

rs
us

 g
ilt

s 
co

ul
d 

w
id

en
. 

Y
es

Y
es

A
A

A
 / 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

gu
ar

an
te

ed
  

N
O

B
uy

 a
nd

 h
ol

d 
to

 
m

at
ur

ity
: t

o 
be

 
us

ed
 o

nl
y 

af
te

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n/
ad

vi
ce

 fr
om

 
A

rli
ng

cl
os

e.
  

10
%

 
10

 Y
ea

rs
 

3
9

Page 143



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

(A
) 

W
h

y 
u

se
 it

?
 

(B
) 

A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
?

 

S
h

ar
e/

 
L

o
an

 
C

ap
it

al
?

   
 

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/

R
ed

ee
m

ab
l

e 
w

it
h

in
 1

2 
m

o
n

th
s?

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

cr
ed

it
 r

at
in

g
  

C
ap

it
al

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
?

 
C

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

 
o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

 %
 o

f 
o

ve
ra

ll 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
  

M
ax

im
u

m
m

at
u

ri
ty

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

B
o

n
d

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

m
u

lt
ila

te
ra

l
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
b

an
ks

  
(a

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 S

I 2
00

4 
N

o 
53

4)
w

ith
 m

at
ur

iti
es

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 1
 y

ea
r 

C
us

to
di

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

(A
) 

(i)
 E

xc
el

le
nt

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y.
 (

ii)
 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
liq

ui
d.

 (
al

th
ou

gh
 n

ot
 a

s 
liq

ui
d 

as
 g

ilt
s)

 
(ii

i) 
If 

he
ld

 to
 m

at
ur

ity
, k

no
w

n 
yi

el
d 

(r
at

e 
of

 r
et

ur
n)

 p
er

 a
nn

um
, w

hi
ch

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 th

at
 o

n 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
gi

lt 
~ 

ai
ds

 fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

, e
nh

an
ce

d 
re

tu
rn

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 g

ilt
s.

  
(iv

) 
If 

tr
ad

ed
, p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 c

ap
ita

l 
ga

in
 th

ro
ug

h 
ap

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
in

 v
al

ue
 

(i.
e.

 s
ol

d 
be

fo
re

 m
at

ur
ity

).
 

(B
) 

(i)
 ‘M

ar
ke

t o
r 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ris

k’
 : 

Y
ie

ld
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
ov

em
en

t d
ur

in
g 

lif
e 

of
 b

on
d 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 n
eg

at
iv

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pr

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
bo

nd
 i.

e.
 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 c
ap

ita
l l

os
s.

  
(ii

) 
S

pr
ea

d 
ve

rs
us

 g
ilt

s 
co

ul
d 

w
id

en
. 

Y
es

Y
es

A
A

A
 o

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
gu

ar
an

te
ed

  

N
O

B
uy

 a
nd

 h
ol

d 
to

 
m

at
ur

ity
: t

o 
be

 
us

ed
 o

nl
y 

af
te

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n/
ad

vi
ce

 fr
om

 
A

rli
ng

cl
os

e.
  

10
%

10
 Y

ea
rs

4
0

Page 144



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 E

M
A

X
 L

E
N

G
T

H
12

 M
o

n
th

s
3 

M
o

n
th

s
10

 y
ea

rs

M
A

X
 A

M
O

U
N

T
N

o
 li

m
it

£5
m

*
£ 

20
m

 *

F
it

ch
M

o
o

d
y'

s
S

&
P

F
it

ch
M

o
o

d
y'

s
S

&
P

F
it

ch
M

o
o

d
y'

s
S

&
P

F
it

ch
M

o
o

d
y'

s
S

&
P

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

C
ri

te
ri

a
C

o
u

n
tr

y
U

k 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

L
o

n
g

 T
er

m
A

+
A

1
A

+
L

o
n

g
 T

er
m

A
+

A
1

A
+

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ti
es

 
N

at
io

n
al

is
ed

 B
an

ks
L

o
n

g
 T

er
m

A
+

A
1

A
+

A
 C

o
n

st
an

t 
N

et
 A

ss
et

 v
al

u
e 

in
ve

st
in

g
 

p
re

d
o

m
in

an
tl

y 
in

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
se

cu
ri

ti
es

A
A

A
m

m
f

A
aa

/M
R

+
A

A
A

m
E

u
ro

st
er

lin
g

 b
o

n
d

s 
*

S
h

o
rt

 T
er

m
F

1
P

-1
A

-1
S

h
o

rt
 T

er
m

F
1

P
-1

A
-1

S
h

o
rt

 T
er

m
F

1
P

-1
A

-1

A
 C

o
n

st
an

t 
N

et
 A

ss
et

 v
al

u
e 

in
ve

st
in

g
 in

 
in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 is

su
ed

 p
ri

m
ar

ily
 b

y 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
in

st
it

u
ti

o
n

s
in

st
it

u
ti

o
n

s
U

K
 B

an
ks

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

ed
 b

y
U

K
C

ly
de

sd
al

e 
B

an
k

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
ca

p
it

al
is

at
io

n
/

(N
at

io
na

l A
us

tr
al

ia
 B

an
k 

G
ro

up
) 

**
*

o
r 

h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

re
d

it
 

G
u

ar
an

te
e 

S
ch

em
e

O
th

er
 U

K
 B

an
ks

U
K

U
K

 B
u

ild
in

g
 S

o
ci

et
ie

s
U

K
su

p
p

o
rt

ed
 b

y 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

ca
p

it
al

is
at

io
n

/
o

r 
h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
re

d
it

 G
u

ar
an

te
e 

S
ch

em
e

C
en

tr
al

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t
U

K

U
K

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t D

eb
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

 (
D

M
O

) 
- 

D
M

A
D

F
N

or
th

er
n 

R
oc

k
L

o
ca

l A
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
U

K
U

ni
ta

ry
 C

ou
nc

ils
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

ils
M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 C

ou
nc

ils
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
ils

F
o

re
ig

n
 B

an
ks

A
u

st
ra

lia

C
an

ad
a

F
ra

n
ce

G
er

m
an

y
N

et
h

er
la

n
d

s
S

p
ai

n

S
w

it
ze

rl
an

d
U

S
A

M
o

n
ey

 M
ar

ke
t 

F
u

n
d

s
U

K
/Ir

el
an

d
/

L
u

xe
m

b
o

u
rg

E
u

ro
st

er
lin

g
 b

o
n

d
s 

E
U

E
ur

po
ea

n 
In

ve
st

m
en

t B
an

k*
N

or
di

c 
In

ve
st

m
en

t B
an

k*
F

o
o

tn
o

te
s:

* 
T

o
ta

l i
n

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 b
o

n
d

s 
£2

0m

*N
o

te
 £

30
m

 t
o

ta
l l

im
it

 in
 lo

ca
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
T

o
ta

l I
n

ve
st

m
en

ts
 n

o
t 

to
 e

xc
ee

d
 1

0%
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
p

o
rt

fo
lio

N
at

io
n

al
A

u
st

al
ia

B
an

k 
L

td
 

L
lo

yd
s 

T
S

B
C

ly
d

es
d

al
e 

B
an

k 
(U

K
)

B
an

k 
o

f 
S

co
tl

an
d

B
an

co
 S

an
ta

d
er

 S
A

 (
S

p
ai

n
)

   
P

L
Y

M
O

U
T

H
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

- 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 O

R
G

A
N

IS
A

T
IO

N
S

 F
O

R
 IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

   
(E

ff
ec

ti
ve

 1
st

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
0)

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

A
d

am
 B

ro
o

m
e,

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
fo

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

u
p

p
o

rt

M
in

im
u

m
 r

at
in

g
 (

R
at

in
g

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

al
l 3

 
ag

en
ci

es
)

M
in

im
u

m
 r

at
in

g
 (

R
at

in
g

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

al
l 

3 
ag

en
ci

es
)

£3
0M

**
£5

m

A
us

tr
al

ia
 a

nd
 N

Z
 B

an
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 
C

om
m

en
w

ea
lth

 B
an

k 
of

 A
us

ta
lia

**
£3

0m
 t

o
ta

l l
im

it
 f

o
r 

B
an

k/
g

ro
u

p
 t

o
 in

cl
u

d
e 

m
o

n
ey

 m
ar

ke
t 

ca
ll 

ac
co

u
n

ts
L

lo
yd

s 
B

an
ki

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 li
m

it
 t

o
 in

cl
u

d
e 

12
 M

o
n

th
s

N
at

io
na

l A
us

ta
lia

 B
an

k 
Lt

d
C

om
m

en
w

ea
lth

 B
an

k 
of

 A
us

ta
lia

N
at

io
na

l A
us

ta
lia

 B
an

k 
Lt

d 
**

*
W

es
tp

ac
 B

an
ki

ng
 C

or
p

B
an

k 
of

 M
on

tr
ea

l
B

an
k 

of
 N

ov
a 

S
co

tia
C

an
ad

ia
n 

Im
pe

ria
l B

an
k 

of
 C

om
m

er
ce

R
oy

al
 B

an
k 

of
 C

an
ad

a
T

or
on

to
-D

om
in

io
n 

B
an

k
B

N
P

 P
ar

ib
as

C
al

yo
n 

(C
re

di
t A

gi
co

le
 G

ro
up

)
C

re
di

t A
gr

ic
ol

e 
S

A
D

eu
ts

ch
e 

B
an

k 
A

G
R

ab
ob

an
k

B
an

co
 B

ilb
ao

 V
iz

ca
ya

 A
rg

en
ta

ria
 

B
an

co
 S

an
ta

nd
er

 S
A

 *
**

*
C

re
di

t S
ui

ss
e

JP
 M

or
ga

n

S
an

ta
n

d
er

 U
K

 P
L

C

L
im

it
 o

f 
25

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l i

n
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 a

n
y 

n
o

n
 U

K
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
**

* 
£3

0m
 o

ve
ra

ll 
lim

it
 w

it
h

 N
at

io
n

al
 

**
**

 £
30

m
 o

ve
ra

ll 
lim

it
 w

it
h

 B
an

co
 

S
an

ta
n

d
er

 G
ro

u
p

 t
o

 in
cl

u
d

e 
d

ep
o

si
ts

 
w

it
h

:

S
an

ta
nd

er
 U

K
 P

LC
 (

B
an

co
 S

an
ta

nd
er

 G
ro

up
) 

**
**

N
at

io
nw

id
e

1 
M

o
n

th

£3
0M

**

M
in

im
u

m
 r

at
in

g
 (

R
at

in
g

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

al
l 3

 a
g

en
ci

es
)

B
ar

cl
ay

s
H

S
B

C

Ll
oy

ds
 B

an
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

R
oy

al
 B

an
k 

of
 S

co
tla

nd

T
o

ta
l i

n
ve

st
m

en
ts

 n
o

t 
to

 e
xc

ee
d

 £
20

m
 o

r 
10

%
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
p

o
rt

fo
lio

 
**

£3
0m

 t
o

ta
l l

im
it

 f
o

r 
B

an
k/

g
ro

u
p

 t
o

 in
cl

u
d

e 
m

o
n

ey
 m

ar
ke

t 
ca

ll 
ac

co
u

n
ts

M
o

n
ey

 M
ar

ke
t 

F
u

n
d

s

£5
m

 *

B
ar

cl
ay

s 
G

lo
ba

l I
nv

es
to

rs
H

en
de

rs
on

 L
iq

ui
d 

A
ss

et
 F

un
d

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
Li

fe
 G

LF
 S

er
lin

g 
Li

qu
id

ity
 F

un
d

In
ve

sc
o 

A
im

 s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 In
ve

st
m

en
t C

o 
(G

lo
ba

l s
er

ie
s)

P
lc

 S
te

rli
ng

 L
iq

ui
di

ty
 F

un
d

M
in

im
u

m
 r

at
in

g
 (

R
at

in
g

 r
q

u
ir

ed
 f

ro
m

 a
t 

le
at

 1
 a

g
en

cy
)

In
d

iv
id

u
al

 li
m

it
s 

n
o

t 
to

 e
xc

ee
d

 2
.5

%
 o

ve
ra

ll 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
p

o
rt

fo
lio

4
1

Page 145



Appendix F 

Council Investments as at  19 January 2010 

The Council’s investments  as at 19th January 2010 were made up of the 
following deposits with the following Counterparties: 

UK Banks £83m 
Lloyds Banking Group – deposits with LloydsTSB and Bank of Scotland – Total 
£30m 
Bank Deposit Maturity Date 

Bank of Scotland   £5,000,000 01-Sep-2010 
Bank of Scotland   £5,000,000 27-Sep-2010 
Bank of Scotland   £5,000,000 02-Nov-2010 
Bank of Scotland   £5,000,000 08-Dec-2010 
Bank of Scotland   £5,000,000 18-Jan-2011 
Lloyds TSB   £5,000,000 10-Jun-2013 

The deposit with Lloyds TSB has a call option on 10 June 2010. It is anticipated 
that this option will be taken by the Bank and therefore the deposit will mature on 
this date. 

Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) – Deposits with RBS and it’s subsidiary Ulster 
Bank Ireland – Total £30m 
Bank Deposit Maturity Date 

RBS £20,000,000 Call deposit account 
Ulster Bank Ireland   £5,00,0000 26-Apr-2012 
Ulster Bank Ireland   £5,000,000 03-May-2012 

Barclays Bank Total £23m 
Bank Deposit Maturity Date 

Barclays £10,000,000 31-Mar-2010 
Barclays   £5,000,000 30-Apr-2010 
Barclays   £5,000,000 08-Jun-2010 
Barclays   £3,000,000 13-Jun-2011 

UK Building Societies- £7m 
Comprises deposits with Nationwide Building Society made up as follows: 
Bank Deposit Maturity Date 

Barclays   £2,000,000 17-May-2010 
Barclays   £2,000,000 28-May-2010 
Barclays   £2,000,000 16-May-2011 
Barclays   £1,000,000 27-May-2011 

UK Subsidiaries of foreign banks £50.95m 
Comprises deposits with Santander UK PLC (£26.5m) and Clydesdale (£24.45m) 
made up as follows: 
Bank Deposit Maturity Date 

Santander UK PLC £26,500,000 Call deposit account 
Clydesdale £19,450,000 Call deposit account 
Clydesdale   £2,000,000 07-May-2010 
Clydesdale   £3,000,000 14-May-2010 

42

Page 146



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

Subject: 2010/11 Budget (Revenue & Capital) 

Committee:  Cabinet
Overview & Scrutiny Management Board  
City Council 

Date:     Cabinet - 9 February 2010 
Overview & Scrutiny Management Board  

   - 15 & 17 February 2010 

   
Cabinet Member:    Councillor Bowyer  

CMT Member:    Director for Corporate Support

Author:  David Northey, Head of Finance 

Contact:     Tel:  01752 (30)4566 
   e-mail: david.northey@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:     djn/01022010v1   

Executive Summary: 

The purpose of this report is to consider Plymouth City Council’s 2010/11 Revenue and  
Capital budget and its impact on the Council Tax and the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. The budget brings together the elements of the Council’s income and 
expenditure strategy, detailed by each department, together with its Capital strategy. 
The two areas have been brought together in this one report to ensure the inter-
relationship between them is clearly documented. It also reviews the impact of these 
plans on future years, the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Corporate Plan 2010-2013 

The budget is central to the successful delivery of the Corporate Plan, which is also 
being presented for consideration and approval. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Implications for Medium Term Financial plan and Resource Implications: 
including Finance, Human Resources, IT and land 

Once approved the 2010/11 budget will become the base year for the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. 

______________________________________________________________________

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 1 -

Agenda Item 10Page 147



Other implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 

Not applicable 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 

1. To recommend the proposed target budget requirement for 2010/11 to Council, 
subject to the consultation and scrutiny process; 

2. To request Officers to identify further savings in advance of the 1 March 2010 
Council meeting to arrive at the required budget requirement; 

3. It is recommended to approve that the previously ring-fenced capital receipt of 
£4.4 million be transferred to general capital receipt fund. 

4. It is recommended that officers continue to develop delivery plans to address the 
funding pressures faced for 2011/12 and beyond. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 

Statutory requirement under Section 33 Local Government Finance Act 1992 for the 
Council to produce and deliver a balanced budget; to set a Council tax; and to approve 
the Treasury Management Strategy.

______________________________________________________________________ 

Background papers: 

! Finance Settlement Papers Department of Communities and Local Government 
(CLG)

! The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 
! The Local Government Act 2003 and The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and 

Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003
! 2010/11 Budget / Prudential Code Working Papers 
! Medium Term Financial Forecast Capital Programme 
! Capital Financing Regulations 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Sign off 
Head
of Fin 

AB
CorpF900
012

Head
of
Leg

DVS
1096

Head
of HR

Head
of AM

Head
of IT 

Head
of Strat 
Proc

Originating SMT Member Malcolm Coe

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 2 -

Page 148



1. Introduction and Contents   

1.1. This report is part of the suite of strategic corporate planning documents. It 
details how the Council has allocated its revenue and capital resources across 
departments and priority areas for 2010/11 to improve outcomes for local people. 
It is fully linked and underpins the Council’s Corporate Plan 2010-13.. 

1.2. The proposed 2010/11 budget needs to be considered in the context of The Local 
Government Act 2003 Section 25 which places responsibilities on the Chief 
Finance Officer to report to Members on both the robustness of estimates and the 
adequacy of reserves, as outlined in Appendix A. 

1.3. Funding allocations are made within the framework of the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy, (MTFS), which sets targets and principles for setting 
three year revenue budgets and five year rolling capital budgets. As in previous 
years, the MTFS will be revised, updated, and published, in March 2010 upon 
approval of the 2010/11 budget and formal approval of the Council Tax. 

1.4. The Council’s revised Treasury Management Strategy is presented as a separate 
report to this cabinet.  This strategy has been updated upon advice and input 
from our Treasury Management advisors, Arlingclose, and following comment 
and input from elected members who contributed to an externally facilitated 
training workshop in January 2010. 

1.5. Appendices to this report provide the main detail, risk management and delivery 
plans that underpin the 2010/11 budgets: 

Appendix A 
Local Government Act 2003, Section 25 
Section 1: Analysis of Budget Robustness 
Section 2: Adequacy of Reserves 

Appendix B Net Spending Plans and Analysis of Gross Expenditure  
Appendix C Departmental Delivery Plans 
Appendix D Capital Investment Programme 2010/11 to 2014/15 
Appendix E Finance Settlement & Specific Grants Analysis 

1.6. The main core of this report is a commentary to the appendices from each 
department which describes departmental context, progress and investment 
against Corporate Improvement Priorities, challenges and pressures faced and a 
summary of what the department intends to do differently in 2010/11. 

2. Executive Summary 

2.1 This is a new combined revenue and capital budget report setting out the City 
Council’s 2010/11income and expenditure.  

2.2 Building on solid foundations

2.2.1 Plymouth City Council has continued to make tangible improvements to client 
facing services whilst driving efficiencies throughout 2009/10. For example, we 
have:

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 3 -

Page 149



! Successfully transferred our housing stock to Plymouth Community Homes which 
will unlock investment of £162m to significantly improve the quality and standard 
of 15,000 households in Plymouth; 

! Reviewed and implemented a new waste collection service, putting significant 
investment into new vehicles and revising the collection zones; 

! Significantly improved adult social care services, successfully obtaining a 3* 
rating from our external  regulators, Care Quality Commission (CQC); 

! Improved the cleanliness of our streets and, in partnership, improved community 
safety;

! Continued to invest in major capital schemes to improve regeneration and 
facilities in the community; 

! Achieved an Organisational Assessment of 3 (out of 4) under the new 
Comprehensive Area Assessment framework; 

! Achieved a “Green Flag” for the quality of our partnership working under the new 
CAA framework; 

2.3 Future revenue outlook

2.3.1 The City Council, like everyone else, finds itself operating in the midst of a 
serious, unprecedented economic downturn. The Government borrowing for 
2009/10 is forecast at circa £178billion; there will be a General Election in 2010 
bringing a possible emergency budget and we know that local government 
funding will reduce for the foreseeable future. 

2.3.2. The current economy is causing significant budget pressures, as we experience 
the impact of reduced income from our car parks reflecting reduced trading 
activity; there is a significant drop in income from commercial rent as businesses 
close and vacate premises. The downturn has also brought reduced interest 
rates and therefore reduced income for our treasury investments. 

2.3.3. As well as reduced income, the economy has brought further pressure on the 
Council due to the increased demand from areas such as Housing Benefits. We 
have to manage the pressures of increased numbers of looked after children, 
whilst managing the demographic growth and the demands of investing in 
services for adults. As people live longer, so the demand on Council resources 
increases. We must also proactively manage the shortfall in our pension funding. 

2.3.4. However, we continue to be ambitious with our future plans. We have 
successfully been accepted as part of England’s 2018 World Cup bid which has 
the potential for unlocking millions of pounds of economic benefit to the area. We 
have also taken the first steps towards our Building Schools for the Future 
programme which will not only deliver a mixture of new and significant 
enhancements to five existing schools, but will be important building blocks in our 
vision for the City. Likewise, the build of the Life Centre will generate significant 
benefits to the residents of Plymouth. Such projects demonstrate our 
determination to press on with the regeneration and economic growth of the City 
in order to achieve our long term vision, meeting long term growth aspirations of 
50,000 increased population and more than 40,000 new jobs.

2.3.5. Our use of resources has seen an overall CAA score of `3’ for Organisational 
Assessment, and we are considered strong for `Managing Finances’. We have 
understood the challenge to allocate our resources to priorities, which means 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 4 -

Page 150



spending money where it is most needed on providing the best services to our 
customers, and reducing the spend on the support functions. 

3. Revenue Resources and prioritisation:

3.1. Our resource assumptions through to 2012/13 reflect expected formula grant 
reductions for 2011/12 and 2012/13 which is unprecedented in terms of local 
authority funding to date. 

Funding Source 2010/11
£000

2011/12
£000

2012/13
£000

Revenue Resources 201,825 202,692 203,756

 Note 1. The council tax level for 2010/11 will be finalised at full Council on March 
2010.

 Note 2. Grant funding for 2011/12 (and potentially 2010/11) will be subject to the 
new   Government spending plans for 2011/12 to 2013/14. 

3.2. We are used to getting in the region of a £6m year on year increase in revenue 
funding, to fund pay increases, general inflation costs, and the ever increasing 
demands on our services.  Every 1% Council Tax rise generally adds revenue of
approx. £950k , and a 1% drop in Formula Grant represents a reduction of 
£1.06m. For 2010/11, we will receive a 2.5% increase in our formula grant, 
providing us with additional net revenue funding of £5.3m compared to our 
2009/10 budget base.

3.3. We continue the drive to reduce spend in back office support functions and 
allocate resources to improving front line service delivery. Through careful 
prioritisation, we have allocated additional funding to the following areas for 
2010/11:

! Children’s Social Care; 
! Social Care for Adults; 
! Developing Building Schools for the Future; 
! Revenue funding to enable the delivery of our capital investment programme; 
! Maintaining the local economy / strategic regeneration; 
! Strategic Housing activities; 
! Providing free swimming in the City for under 16 year olds 

3.4. We have also invested additional funding into areas that will drive organisational 
efficiencies such as: 

! Developing the Care First system to improve our management of client 
information;

! Improving the quality of our asset base through investment in preventative 
maintenance;

! Preparing for further organisational change during 2010/11 
! Preparing for new International Financial Reporting Standards legislation to 

improve the transparency of our financial reporting; 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 5 -

Page 151



3.5. Our prioritised allocation of revenue resources is summarised in the following 
table which shows the variances in departmental budgets from 2009/10 to 
2010/11:

2009/10 Budget 
£000 * 

2010/11
£000 * 

Variance
£000

% ‘age 
variance

Children & Young 
People 51,049 52,761 1,712 3.4%

Community Services 109,889 112,856 2,967 2.7%

Development & 
Regeneration 15,412 16,169 757 4.9%

Corporate
Support 33,044 32,359 (685) (2.1%)

Chief
Executives 2,046 1,880 (166) (8.1%)

Corporate
Items (14,915) (13,700) 1,215 8.1%

Totals: 196,525 202,325 5,800 2.9%

* Budget figures adjusted for the net impact of Housing Stock Transfer and Job Evaluation. 

3.6. A more detailed analysis of gross spend and income budgets at Service level 
within each department is shown as Appendix B to this report. 

3.7. The spending plans as outlined above currently exceed forecast resources. 
Officers will continue to work on the budget projections in order to bring spending 
plans back to match resources, with final amendments reported to Council at its 
meeting on 1 March 2010.

4. Capital Resources and Prioritisation

4.1. We have an ambitious agenda as we seek to meet the requirements of the 
community whilst at the same time moving towards our internal goal to be an 
excellent Council by 2012. We anticipate that central Government will reduce 
Capital Grant funding whilst Regional Development Agency (RDA) and other 
grants are also reducing. Together with continuing uncertainty surrounding our 
ability to generate capital receipts, we must be more specific with our capital 
spend and target fewer, more strategic schemes.

4.2. We have adopted the principle that schemes are only approved into the capital 
programme where specific funding has been clearly identified with a supporting 
business case. The proposed capital programme for 2010/11 to 2014/15 is 
£267m. The Capital Programme is still substantial and includes headline 
strategic projects such as the Life Centre, capital investment in Schools, waste 
disposal improvements, and major transport improvements. 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 6 -

Page 152



4.3. A summary of capital spend by department, based on known resources at this 
point in time, is shown in the following table: 

Directorate 09/10
£000

10/11
£000

11/12
£000

12/13
£000

13/14
£000

14/15
£000

Total
£000

Children’s
Services 53,770 34,641 17,391 15,052 - - 120,854

Community & 
Neighbourhood 6,630 29,237 13,242 271 - - 49,380

Development & 
Regeneration 21,189 28,939 13,549 6,221 6,535 7,656 84,089

Corporate
Support 2,441 500 1000 500 500 - 4,941

HRA 7,991 0 0 0 0 0 7,991

Total 92,021 93,317 45,182 22,044 7,035 7,656 267,255

4.4. The programme in later years only reflects where the Council has been given 
indicative funding allocations, for example the Local Transport Plan. As and when 
further grant funding streams are confirmed, they will be added to the 
programme. A more detailed analysis of capital spend projects is shown as 
Appendix D. A full list of each individual planned capital project within this six year 
programme is available on request. 

4.5. Funding of our capital investment programme is risk assessed and monitored on 
a regular basis with schemes carefully prioritised against resources available. Our 
summary funding profile for the five year programme is as follows: 

Directorate 
Capital  
Receipts 
£000

Unsupp  
Borrowing
£000

Supported 
Borrowing 
£000

Total
Grants 
£000

Sum of 
Contribs
£000

Section
106
£000

Revenue 
& Funds 
£000

Total
Financing
£000

Children's
Services  4,807 8,840 16,978 89,221 479 391 138 120,854

Community & 
Neighbourhood  

14,606 20,367 4,650 6,964 2,253 431 109 49,380

Development & 
Regeneration  

7,115 3,766 29,063 33,871 1,708 8,143 423 84,089

Corporate 
Support 

1,831 71 2,840 26 173 4,941

HRA Total 2,076 5,915 7,991

Grand Total 28,359 33,044 52,767 132,896 4,440 8,991 6,758 267,255 

4.6. There is considerable uncertainty around potential capital receipts, particularly 
around the timing of when they will be received, due to falling property values. 
There is also uncertainty around how a future government might impact on 
existing capital allocations and match funding opportunities. The Council needs 
to be re-shaped and modernised and to do this, needs to adopt an invest to save 
principle for capital investment whereby projects will be considered for capital 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 7 -

Page 153



funding based upon submitted business cases with the initial capital repaid from 
savings made. To this end plans will be brought forward over the next 18 months 
as the national picture and economy becomes clear. 

4.7. To further address the potential shortfall in capital receipts, it is recommended to 
transfer the previously negotiated capital receipt from the re-gearing of the City 
centre commercial leases, £4.4 million, into the capital receipts fund. This money 
was previously invested to produce a revenue income, and the impact of this 
proposal has been addressed in the revenue budget. 

4.8. The Capital programme cannot be considered in isolation from the revenue 
budget. The current programme has to be partly funded by borrowings. The 
current projections assume Supported Borrowing standing at £52.8, with 
Unsupported Borrowing of £33.1m. The Council has to be aware that with 
current long term borrowing interest rates around 4.5%, each £1m of borrowing 
impacts the revenue budget with an annual cost of approx £85k. For financial 
year 2010/11 we are aiming to minimise borrowing costs by using short-term 
borrowing and/or cashflow and reserves. However, investment for future years 
will require long term borrowing. 

4.9. The current capital programme figures do not include the allocation for Building 
Schools for the Future (BSF) of an estimated £80m. At this stage the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has approved the 
Council’s entry into the BSF programme and the Council are awaiting a ‘remit’ 
meeting imminently. When the Council is awarded its final funding allocation, 
which is likely to be a mixture of revenue PFI credits and capital grant, BSF will 
be incorporated in the Council’s capital programme. 

4.10. The Council completed the transfer of its housing stock to Plymouth Community 
Homes (PCH)  in November 2009. This will enable over £162m in government 
support to be drawn down to improve the stock in the public sector to the 
decency standard and redevelopment of North Prospect. This is a significant 
sum that does not feature directly in the Council’s capital programme but should 
nevertheless not be forgotten. The Council remains responsible for ensuring 
PCH deliver on the transfer promises. This is far in excess of the amounts the 
Council could have supported directly through its capital programme.

4.11. The Citybus receipt of £19.6m is, at this stage, not included in the financing for 
any of the capital programme and is being invested in line with our Treasury 
Management Strategy. Its potential use will be considered in the future in line 
with the need to invest in strategic priorities and ‘invest to save’ business cases. 

4.12. The capital programme needs to retain some flexibility to incorporate any priority 
“invest to save” business cases and emergency items not known at this stage, 
for example, health and safety issues.

4.13. Further options for capital funding may arise through the VAT shelter monies
from the transfer of housing stock though this is subject to further negotiations 
with DCLG. 

5. Value for Money & Efficiencies 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 8 -

Page 154



5.1. The Council does have a good track record in delivering efficiency savings, 
achieving total savings of £19.786m against a target set under Spending Review 
2004 (SR04) of £16.358m. 

5.2. The Government has set an ambitious Value for Money (VFM) programme under 
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) 07 with a requirement that local 
authorities achieve cashable efficiency savings of 4% per annum.  To meet this 
target, Plymouth will need to find efficiencies totalling £24.5m cumulative by the 
end of 2010/11, of which £7.3m had been identified as at October 2009. 

5.3. The importance of VFM to the Council is reflected in the corporate improvement 
priority, (CIP) 14 – Providing Better Value for Money. 

5.4. The Council is committed to undertaking an annual benchmarking review of all 
services looking at performance and budgets using the Audit Commission 
analysis and Government Revenue Estimate (RA) Return form. 

5.5. Departments are set VFM targets and develop budget delivery plans taking into 
consideration high cost and/or low performing services as determined through 
benchmarking. For example, the planning service successfully achieved a VFM 
target of £750k in 2009/10 whilst retaining and improving service quality. 

5.6. Many of the Departmental budget delivery plans, as detailed in Appendix C, will 
generate the efficiencies that are required to achieve our cumulative target. Each 
department will adopt a VFM/Efficiency plan which will be supported by staff 
from the corporate centre and form part of regular bi-monthly performance and 
finance reporting, to maintain or improve performance. 

6. Departmental prioritisation and spending plans

6.1. The Council has a strategic approach to allocating its limited revenue and capital 
resources across departments based on clear prioritisation and a need to deliver 
tangible improvements against the Corporate Improvement Priorities. 

6.2. Within this corporate framework, each department continues to focus on 
improving front line service delivery and drive efficiencies whilst tackling 
challenges and funding pressures through additional service demand. This 
section summarises the strategic direction that each department is adopting and 
plans that it will put in place to deliver improved services within the available 
budget.

6.3. Appendix C details the key delivery plans that the Council is adopting through the 
2010/11 budget setting process. Progress against these plans will be 
incorporated within regular bi-monthly performance and budget reporting, and 
robustly supported by the centre of the organisation.. 

6.4  Children’s Services 

6.4.1 Context

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 9 -

Page 155



6.4.1.1 The department remained largely unchanged following the Council’s 
Management restructure. The main areas covered by this department are 
support to schools, childrens social care, learner and family support and lifelong 
learning. The department continues to focus on integrating services within the 
council and the wider context of the Children’s Trust to address the key 
requirements of the Every Child Matters agenda.   We do this through locality 
working, prioritising early intervention and preventative measures to avoid risk of 
escalation into specialist provision.  The Integrated Disability Service (IDS) 
remains a high government profile/priority. Throughout the service increasing 
numbers of children with complex needs not only have direct cost implications 
but have an impact on other budgets e.g. transport and statementing.   There 
are a number of areas where statutory work is required e.g. timescales for 
statementing, admissions and school meals.  Narrowing the gap in educational 
and health inequalities remains a key priority and achievement in the city 
remains too low. 

6.4.1.2 The Children and Young People’s department is heavily reliant on targeted 
income through a variety of grant sources to help to deliver the challenging 
agenda.  In this period of financial uncertainty it must be recognised that there 
are many areas where the responsibility to deliver will continue e.g. National 
Strategies to raise educational attainment, even if the funding source 
diminishes/ceases. 

6.4.1.3 There are a number of issues in social care including social work capacity 
challenges arising from the Laming recommendations in respect of statutory 
case loads, workforce development and the requirement for an effective Care 
First system.  The Southwark judgement has placed a new responsibility on the 
council to provide additional services for 16/17 year olds until the age of 25. 

6.4.1.4 The delivery of Building Schools for the Future investment which is part of CIP 9 
is an opportunity that will realise substantial benefits to the city. However the 
complex legal and procurement processes combined with the wide stakeholder 
involvement and long term risk makes the investment delivery resource heavy. 

6.4.2 Progress on Corporate Improvement Priorities

! CIP 7: Keeping Children Safe
We have delivered significant improvements in this area and a number of 
high profile incidents, inspection findings and serious case reviews have 
maintained the focus in this area. Early intervention support and progress 
with the CAF (Common Assessment Framework) to minimise the number 
of children being placed on the child protection register continues. 

! CIP 8: Improving skills and educational attainment
Attainment in the past year has risen at Key Stages 1, 3 & 4 however Key 
Stage 2 remains an area where further improvement is required.  The 
latest performance tables show the city making good progress across all 
Key Stages in narrowing the gap between achievements in different parts 
of the City. 

! CIP 9: Developing High Quality places to learn in

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 10 -

Page 156



Despite the difficult and uncertain economic climate, significant progress 
against CIP 9 has been made.  The Council has opened a number of new 
schools in the past 12 months and contracts are in place for this to 
continue into 2012. In 2009 the Council received approval to further BSF 
investment that will secure a new tranche of investment to continue the 
current pace of delivery 

6.4.3 Changes in resource allocation (revenue & capital)

6.4.3.1 The Council and Schools Forum have identified resources that equate to 
approximately £1.5m in 2010-11 for the delivery of BSF.  This has been 
achieved through a combination of revenue set aside from 2009-10, additional 
investment through Council reprioritisation and internal resources. All capital 
resources necessary for the delivery of CIP 9 in 2010-11 are identified and 
allocated in the capital programme. 

6.4.3.2 Additional service demand and progress against CIP’s will be achieved through 
service realignment in line with national policy and our own Council priorities.  
We are working, together with our Children’s Trust partners, to provide front line 
service delivery, particularly targeted services on a locality lead professional 
basis.

6.4.3.3 We have added an additional £1m of revenue funding into Children’s Social 
Care in 2010/11 to help address known budget pressures. It is too early to 
quantify the longer term costs of the Southwark judgement therefore the 
adequacy of the additional resources will be assessed during the year through 
budget monitoring. The increased number of Independent sector placements 
has required additional resources together with the cost of delivering the care 
matters agenda. 

6.4.3.4 Almost half of the council’s five year capital programme, (£120.1m), relates to 
investment in Children’s services. Further significant investment through BSF 
will deliver real benefits to learning and community assets.  

6.4.4 Budget Delivery Plans – what will the department do differently

6.4.4.1 A number of actions will be required to deliver within the target budget set. 
These include: 

! Review of administration 
! Charge appropriate areas to grant sources eg Dedicated Schools Grant, 

Performance Reward Grant and Early Years Grant 
! Cease concessionary fares for Post 16 students (remove the discretionary 

support)
! Review family support and family information services to remove 

duplication and increase efficiencies 
! The BSF budget is being scrutinised to ensure that delivery of BSF is 

achieved in the most efficient manner 
! No inflation allocated in social care where linked with Fostering network 

rates
! Reduction in Connexions contract negotiated through efficiencies in 

Careers South West 
S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 

290110.doc 

- 11 -

Page 157



! Reducing wrap around packages for permanency placements 
! Utilise staff in high performing areas to develop locality working 

6.5  Community Services 

6.5.1 Context

6.5.1.1 The Department, which is responsible for the delivery of a large number of 
‘front-line’ services, was established as part of the corporate restructure of the 
Council from 1 April 2009. The department covers five areas: Adult Social 
Care, Safer Communities, Environmental Services, Culture, Leisure & 
Sport and Service, Strategy and Regulation. 

6.5.1.2 The adult social care service will be focusing on maintaining the service 
performance improvement it achieved in 2009/2010, and continuing to find 
opportunities to modernise the services it delivers where ever possible this will 
be done jointly with health colleagues. The other key focus for the service is to 
continue to help people to live independently and to increase the number of 
residents who have a personal budget. 

6.5.1.3 The most significant current and future budget pressure facing the department 
is in adult social care.  The increases in demographic growth, the growing 
numbers of older people with dementia, more complex care packages, and the 
requirement to help more adults to live independently in their own homes, have 
added to the pressures faced by the department. An improvement in the 
performance of this service to ‘performing well’ has lead to pressure on the 
budget because more people have been supported to live at home or received 
a personal budget to purchase their own care. The service is responsible for 
implementing ‘Putting People First’ and the cost of implementing this through 
personalisation is not yet well defined.  Financial pressures on the Primary 
Care Trust around continuing health care spend presents the Local Authority 
with the risk of the potential transfer of some of these costs.  Spend to meet 
more complex needs of people with a Learning Disability is also an area of 
increased financial pressure. Adult Social Care is also faced with ensuring the 
Care First system is effective. 

6.5.1.4 Culture, Leisure and Sport have a significant part to play to enhance the 
vibrancy of the city and the quality of life for people, living, working or visiting 
Plymouth. The most significant project in this area is the delivery of the Life 
Centre and Leisure Related Projects Programme. This is a significant capital 
and revenue project and will help to improve the inadequate leisure facilities in 
the city and contribute to raising the levels of participation in sport, and 
narrowing the gap in health inequalities. 

6.5.1.5 The World Cup Host City Bid for 2018 will provide another important focus for 
work in this area over the next year as the city works with the other host cities 
to help England win the bid to run the 2018 World Cup. We will be looking to 
minimise the cost of our contribution to this by using existing resources in a 
targeted way, and working closely with all our partners. 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 12 -

Page 158



6.5.1.6 Within Environmental services the key challenges are to  reduce waste sent to 
landfill and increase recycling. The cost of waste disposal per tonne is going up 
annually and is influenced by landfill tax escalation and Landfill Allowance 
Trading Scheme (LATS) penalties. 

6.5.1.7 As the city grows there are added pressures put on this front line service, and 
these will need to be managed within existing resources. 

6.5.1.8 Key pressures within Safer Communities include some potential reduction in 
external funding streams to support community safety work. Alongside 
increasing pressures due to the economic climate including greater demand for 
financial advice services and increased risk of crime and social tensions. 

6.5.1.9 Growth ambitions will see significant increase in diversity of population placing 
greater demands on accessibility and equality in service provision and on the 
need for good community cohesion within existing resources. 

6.5.2    Progress on Corporate Improvement Priorities

6.5.2.1   The department is responsible for four CIPs as follows: 

! CIP3– Helping people to live independently 

Key successes were to increase the number of people receiving a 
personal budget to 200 and be assessed as ‘performing well’ in the annual 
performance assessment. Our key challenge is to maintain this 
performance and achieve better value for money as we modernise the 
service and find opportunities to integrate with health.

! CIP 4 – Reducing inequalities between communities 

This year successes included providing advice work in response to the 
recession which helped people get over £6m in previously unclaimed 
benefits and tax credit. Our key challenge is to identify how we will 
contribute to the health inequalities issues across the city, and implement 
the locally working model across the city. 

! CIP 6 – Providing more and better culture/leisure activities 

Our key successes have been to secure planning permission and award 
the construction contract to build the Life Centre, and to be included as 
one of the host cities in Englands bid to host the World Cup in 2018. Our 
key challenge will be to work towards the award of the leisure services 
operator contract. 

! CIP 10- Disposing of waste and increasing recycling 

Our key success has been to implement the rezoning of the waste 
collection service across the city and reduce the number of missed bin 
collections and complaints. Also to open the new improved Civic Amenity 
Site at Chelson Meadow. Our key challenges are to increase the recycling 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 13 -

Page 159



rate across the city and continue the procurement of a long term waste 
treatment facility. 

6.5.3   Changes in resource allocation (revenue & capital)

6.5.3.1 The department’s revenue budget is increasing overall and this will be targeted 
on adult social care and within culture, leisure and sport.  We will have to ensure 
that the demands from adult social care services are carefully monitored and 
kept under control. 

6.5.3.2 The main capital investment that will deliver significant progress against a 
number of corporate improvement priorities is the building of the Life Centre.
Changes in funding grants and capital receipts have been kept under constant 
review and the overall capital programme has been prioritised and revised to 
ensure that all funding streams are realistic and achievable. 

6.6.4 Budget Delivery Plans – what will the department do differently

6.6.4.1 As outlined in detail in our delivery plan our key actions will mainly focus on 
changing the way adult social care is delivered. It will be driving through change 
in service delivery through personalisation, integration with health and 
modernising services.

6.6.4.2 The focus in Culture, Leisure & Sport will be on the main project of the Life 
Centre and the procurement of the leisure services operator. 

6.6.4.3 In particular there will be a focus on achieving savings from business support, 
administration and procurement to ensure the focus of the department remains 
on delivering front line services. There will be a focus on maintaining and 
improving other front line services within existing budgets. 

6.7  Development & Regeneration 

6.7.1 Context

6.7.1.1 The development and regeneration department  was established in its current 
form as part of the councils management restructure. The department remains 
responsible for planning services, strategic housing, transport and property and 
economic development.  The City Council has set out a strong growth agenda 
for Plymouth over the next 20 years, that will involve growing the City's 
population by 50,000, creating 40,000 new jobs and building 30,000 new 
homes. The Department provides strategic leadership on place making and the 
population, housing and economic growth in Plymouth, and must secure inward 
investment, if we are to become one of Europe’s finest, most vibrant waterfront 
cities, where an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by everyone. 

6.7.1.2 The biggest challenge for the department is how we can continue to deliver 
quality front line services as well as fund the planning and delivery for the 
growth of the City. The department was recently reshaped to include our newly 
formed retained Strategic Housing service following stock transfer, and to 
recognise the need to create a greater resourced Economic Development 
Service.

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 14 -

Page 160



6.7.1.3 The recession is having a considerable impact on the levels of departmental 
income, for example, reductions in commercial rents, reduced car parking 
income and reduced numbers of planning applications. For service areas such 
as planning, we have downsized our activities accordingly, but for commercial 
income, reductions are largely outside of our control. 

6.7.1.4 The recessionary pressures have also impact on increased demand for housing 
advice and Homelessness services, and access to good quality private and 
affordable housing, together with increasing demands for adapted homes for 
those with disabilities and the elderly. 

6.7.1.5 The higher than expected up take of concessionary bus fares means that our 
funding allocation from Central Government for this initiative has added 
additional pressure to the department’s budget. 

6.7..2 Progress on Corporate Improvement Priorities

! CIP 5 Providing better and more affordable housing 
.

We have exceeded our 09/10 LAA target of affordable housing, and in 
finalising stock transfer we have secured funding to invest in improving the 
quality of 15,000 homes now transferred to Plymouth Community Homes. 
This is a major step towards achieving CIP 5. 

We still intend to develop a Local Housing Company, and this will form the 
key project for a renewed CIP 5, together with our need to tackle Private 
Sector Housing quality and maintaining delivery of new affordable homes. 

! CIP11 Improving access across the City 

Progress continues to be made in meeting the respective milestones on 
accessibility. The revised Derriford Hospital Accessibility Action Plan is 
ready for LSP adoption. The Public Transport Delivery Plan and 
Sustainable Schools Transport Strategy are completed in draft format. The 
Real Time Passenger Information has been successfully extended with 22 
new sites along the Northern Corridor. The majority of Northern Corridor 
schemes are currently under way The draft interim Network Management 
Plan is also due for completion, which will help inform the emerging local 
transport plan (LTP3).

! CIP12 Delivering sustainable growth 

The City has excellent strategic documents setting out the framework for 
growth. Work is ongoing to design new structural and governance 
arrangements to better prioritise growth and regeneration initiatives and 
streamline the large number of often duplicating partnerships and groups.

Delivery of the City’s growth agenda is still broadly on track despite the 
impact of the recession, through support for the Urban Enterprise 
Programme and our support for the continuing implementation of both the 
Recession Action Plan and the Market Recovery Action Plan. 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 15 -

Page 161



Job creation and housing delivery initiatives are all on schedule. Delivery 
of strategic infrastructure is on track with planning permission granted for 
the Eastern Corridor Community Infrastructure Scheme. Funding has been 
secured for the East End Community Infrastructure Fund Scheme with 
initial pre-works undertaken.

Master planning for Central Park has had to be re-programmed following 
clarification of funding and the need for further detailed design work. 
Delivery of growth programmes has been affected by the Government’s 
decision to remove £2.4 Million of previously approved New Growth Points 
funding which has resulted in the re-phasing of several infrastructure 
projects.

6.7.3 Changes in resource allocation (revenue & capital)

6.7.3.1 Additional revenue resources allocated to the Development & Regeneration 
Department will in part off-set reductions in income due to recessionary 
pressures, support the development of an enhanced economic development 
service and add focus and attention to project delivery. 

6.7.3.2 An additional £150,000 has been allocated to Economic Development Service 
from within the department’s resources to fund additional capacity, supporting 
initiatives to drive our economic performance in high priority sectors and 
enhance job creation in higher value, higher skilled jobs. This will be through the 
development of the Economy and Enterprise Programme Board working in 
close co-operation with the Plymouth City Development Company and other key 
partners across the City. 

6.7.3.3 We have secured up to £20m for affordable housing this year, which will deliver 
new homes over the next 12 months and more. As part of the single 
conversation we have a commitment from the HCA to invest in a major 
regeneration project in North Prospect to £44m over10 years. 

6.7.4 Budget Delivery Plans – what will the department do differently

6.7.4.1 The department will be addressing a package of measures that combine income 
maximisation with further general efficiencies. Both the Planning Services and 
Transport Policy and Strategy have been subject to value for money reductions 
in previous years so there is generally little manoeuvrability, but by changing the 
shape of the department, we expect to achieve economies of scale by 
amalgamating resources across all service areas. 

6.7.4.2 Parking Services have seen a 10% reduction in income nationally. The parking 
income has historically had limited investment capacity and a funding gap in the 
trading account. There will be action taken to rationalise both the existing on 
and off street car parking charging regime, and with the combination of ongoing 
improvements to parking provision, increase charges in target areas. 

6.7.4.3 We will be implementing an improved Planning Application Service by 
introducing a Development Enquiry Service whereby pre application advice will 
be charged for depending on the scale of the application. We will also 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 16 -

Page 162



streamline the Local Development framework through the merging the 
remaining Area Action Plans and Development Plan Documents, and 
reprogramming the Core Strategy review. 

6.7.4.4 Following Stock Transfer further clarity on the retained housing service via an 
initial review has realised some efficiencies. We are re-focussing neighbourhood 
management and have also initiated a peer challenge of our Private Sector 
Housing Service. We will undertake a strategic review of Homelessness and 
Housing Options later in the year. These could potentially release efficiencies, 
and we also aim to maximise income and external grant funding to meet some 
of the gaps in the service. 

6.8  Corporate Support & Chief Executives 

6.8.1 Context

6.8.1.1 The Corporate Support Department was established as part of the corporate 
restructure of the Council from 1 April 2009. The department covers five areas: 
Customer Services and Business Transformation, Democracy and 
Governance, Finance, Assets and Efficiencies, Human Resources and 
Organisational Development and ICT. The department is a mixture of ‘front-
line’ services and the majority of ‘back-office’ functions for the Council. 

6.8.1.2 The two key pressures from external customers are the increasing applications 
for benefits in the current economic climate and the increasing number of looked 
after children leading to increased pressure on Legal Services taking cases 
through the courts. A key internal pressure is supporting the Council‘s ambitious  
programme for the City and itself. By its nature Corporate Support has an input 
into everything the Council does in some way. 

6.8.1.3 The department is looking to manage the above and improve its services to all 
its customers whilst operating with a reduced budget for 2010/11 and beyond. 
We are progressively restructuring the department to ensure we have the right 
focus for the future. 

6.8.2 Progress on Corporate Improvement Priorities

6.8.2.1 The department is responsible directly for three CIPs as follows: 

! CIP1 – improving customer service 
Our key success was achieving Customer Service Accreditation. Our key 
challenge is to ensure a consistent high quality service to all our 
customers from across the Council. 

! CIP 13 – Supporting Council Staff to perform better 
Our key success was the completion of the JE process and appeals. Our 
key challenge is to really embed a robust competency framework 

! CIP 14 – Providing better Value for Money 
Our key success has been the progressive roll out of the Council’s 
Accommodation Strategy, improving our use of our Accommodation. We 
are also achieving national recognition for our commitment and progress 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 17 -

Page 163



with partners on reducing the City’s Carbon footprint. Our  key challenge is 
to achieve the very challenging targets set by National Government for 
Value for money as an organisation. 

6.8.2.2  The department also significantly supports the remaining eleven CIPs. 

6.8.3    Changes in resource allocation (revenue & capital)

6.8.3.1 The department’s revenue budget is reducing overall but we have ensured that 
the reduction will not impact on our external customers. In terms of accessing 
additional resources the focus for the department will be on submitting ‘invest to 
save’ business cases to access capital funds if and only if revenue costs are 
reduced in the future and the project helps to improve services. The focus of 
these business cases in the first instance will be around investment in IT and 
investment in our estate to reduce the number of buildings we use linked to our 
Accommodation strategy. 

6.8.3.2 The department will need to carefully prioritise its scarce resources to ensure it 
can support all the Council’s Corporate Improvement Priorities and the 
achievement of the delivery plans outlined in this document. The department will 
continue to work closely with the restructured Chief Executive’s department as 
the corporate centre of the organisation. 

6.8.4   Budget Delivery Plans – what will the department do differently

6.8.4.1 As outlined in detail in our delivery plan our key actions will reduce the number 
of posts in the department by at least 20 FTE’s. This is continuing a trend in 
recent years of reducing posts across the Corporate Centre. The significant 
reduction in 2009/10 was a combination of planned post reductions and TUPE 
transfer associated with stock transfer. It is highly likely that the structure for the 
department will reduce still further in future years. We will need to consider 
carefully opportunities for partnership working with either the public or private 
sector to maximise economies of scale and performance in the future. 

6.8.4.2 The Chief Executives Unit has also been substantially restructured with many 
services areas now within Corporate Support or Community Services. The 
service areas now include corporate policy and performance management, 
partnership support (Local Strategic Partnership) and communications. The 
main priorities for this service are to ensure effective performance monitoring 
and performance management across the Council and supporting, driving and 
coordinating the significant transformation agenda within the Local Strategic 
Partnership and the Council that will be required over the next few years. 

6.8.5   Progress on Corporate Improvement Priorities

6.8.5.1 The department is responsible directly for the following CIP: 

! CIP2- Customer Engagement 
The "You Said, We Did" pilot campaign was carried out in September with 
similar messages used to  promote corporate priority setting in November 
at events in Drake Circus and through Area Committees. We have 
compiled and  published the Place Survey 2008 with results fed into review 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 18 -

Page 164



of priorities. Publication of "How we consult with you", Plymouth's 
statement of Community Involvement band Compact Code of Practice, 
which sets standards for consultation with residents for the Council and our 
partners has been completed and engagement and consultation values 
have been built into corporate competency framework ensuring that all 
staff become aware of good practice in terms of gathering feedback from 
the public and using it to  develop services. 

6.8.6 Changes in resource allocation 

The budget across Chief Executives is reducing. The focus for the team is to
drive change across the Council and partnerships, the budget delivery plans for 
Chief Executives includes a restructuring across policy and partnership support 
both within Chief Executives  the Council and across a range of partnerships 
which the Council is engaged in. Improving coordination of communication, 
performance management and partnership management while reducing the cost 
of supporting partnership arrangements. 

7. Budget Consultation 

7.1 The Council has continued to improve how it communicates with partners and the 
public in relation to its budget setting and spending plans. Throughout 2009/10 
summary accounts have been made available within locations such as local 
libraries and Schools, articles published in the local newspaper and budget 
details issued in Plymouth People (the Council’s newsletter) which is delivered to 
every household within the City. 

7.2 Specific consultation events have also been held in the community to raise 
awareness of the Council’s improvement priorities and spending plans. For 
example, members of the Council’s Senior Management have hosted interactive 
engagement at Drakes Circus in October / November 2009. 

7.3 We continued to build on promoting awareness and engagement with the eight 
Area Committees, explaining improvement priorities and conducting electronic 
voting at each committee to determine which priorities are more, or less, 
important to the specific area. 

7.4 The Council continues to keep its partners fully informed of its corporate priorities 
and financial position through comprehensive bi-monthly performance and 
finance reports. As per previous years, presentations and discussions will be held 
with all key stakeholders such as political groups, Chamber of Commerce, local 
MPs, Unions and the LSP in early February 2010. 

7.5 There will also be a thorough two day scrutiny of the corporate planning and 
budget documents on 15 and 17 February 2010. To continue to enhance this 
scrutiny process we will be using accredited Improvement and Development 
Agency (IDeA) peer officers and members to provided added, independent 
challenge to the process. 

7.6 The recommended budget presented within this report is draft and subject to any 
necessary changes and amendments made through the consultation and scrutiny 
process (if approved through Cabinet and Full Council). 

S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 19 -

Page 165



S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Draft Final MAIN REPORT v4 
290110.doc 

- 20 -

8.   Risks associated with the budget. Reserves & Provisions 

 The risks associated with the budget are detailed in Appendix A. This Appendix 
also includes details on the Council’s current and projected reserves.   

9. The Medium Term Financial Outlook 

9.1 The Council is facing a series of very challenging issues into the medium term. 
The combination of the current national economic situation, a new three year 
funding settlement for 2011/12 to 2013/14 and a new national government with a 
new set of priorities will require the Council to have robust plans if it is to continue 
to improve. In addition the Council is facing the next three year valuation of its 
pension fund deficit with new employer contributions due to start from 1 April 
2011. The Revenue impact of Stock Transfer has been managed within the 
proposed 2010/11 budget but starts to increase significantly from 2011/12. The 
capital programme will require robust management to ensure the outputs are 
achieved and the impact on the Council’s revenue budget is kept to a minimum. 
The impact of waste disposal on the Council’s costs will grow significantly in the 
coming years even with the successful delivery of the waste PFI scheme. 

9.2 The Council is not unusual in facing these issues and is prepared for the 
challenge. The above clearly means that the Council will need to take some 
difficult decisions in the future about what services it does and what services it 
doesn’t provide. The Council will need to continue to radically change shape over 
the coming years if it is to continue to improve the City and the Council itself. The 
stock transfer process is a good example of what the Council needs to do more of 
– working closely with other partners in the public and private sector to provide 
the best solution for the Council tenants and, in this example, hand services over 
to another organisation with the resources to dramatically improve the service. 
The Council will use 2010/11 to prepare for the significant challenges ahead. 

10. Summary and Recommendations 

10.1 In summary for the 2010/11 budget, the Council has continued to allocate 
resources to deliver improved front line services and make tangible progress 
against corporate improvement priorities whilst reducing spend on back office 
support functions. In future years the Council will face significant pressures due to 
tight public expenditure constraints. 

10.2 It is recommended that : 

(i) To recommend the proposed target budget requirement for 2010/11 to Council, 
subject to the consultation and scrutiny process; 

(ii) To request Officers to identify further savings in advance of the 1 March 2010 
Council meeting to arrive at the required budget requirement; 

(iii) It is recommended to approve that the previously ring-fenced capital receipt of 
£4.4 million be transferred to general capital receipt fund. 

(iv) It is recommended that officers continue to develop delivery plans to address the 
funding pressures faced for 2011/12 and beyond. 

Page 166



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

SECTION I - DELIVERY OF BUDGET 

1. Delivery of a Balanced Revenue 
Budget

Risk of non-delivery of budget plans 

(a)  Directors have identified a number of 
pressures within their budgets for 
2010/11 and future years.

(b)  Local Government funding from 
2011/12 onwards will reduce which will 
cause further budget pressures. 

(c )Directors have produced and signed 
up to high level plans to deliver a 
balanced budget. Detailed project plans 
are being developed to support the high 
level plans. 

(d) Future year budget plans need further 
work as Medium Term Financial 
Forecast still showing shortfall in 
resources.

(e) Current spending plans exceed 
resources available. Further work will 
need to be undertaken during the next 
few weeks to identify options to bring 
budgets back in line with resources.

(f) 2009/10 forecasted revenue budget 
overspend will add pressure if CMT are 
not able to return a balanced situation by 
year end. 

Additional revenue resources have 
been prioritised and allocated to 
front facing services in 2010/11 to 
contribute towards known budget 
pressures.

Financial Management procedures 
are in place regarding carry 
forwards.  Targets are set (1% 
overspend and 2% under spend). 

Each Director has provided a 
Delivery Plan on how the 
Departmental budget will be 
delivered.   

Delivery Plans have been subject 
to a robust challenge at CMT and 
DMTs. There has been Portfolio 
challenge of the delivery plans 
prior to the final budget proposals.

Progress reports against Delivery 
Plans will be incorporated into bi-
monthly finance and performance 
reporting which will continue to be 
presented and challenged by 
Cabinet and Scrutiny. 

Annual contingency of £0.500m 
allowed for within revenue budget. 

Proposal to set up invest to save 
budget in capital to enable pump 
prime investment to generate 
revenue savings in future years. 

The Bellwin Scheme is available 
for emergency expenditure – this 
provides 85% funding of costs that 
exceed the Council’s threshold of 
approximately £0.700m. 

RED

Page 167



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

All departments are seeking to 
minimise the overspend in 
2009/10.

The Council will also consider the 
most appropriate use of the 
Fleming VAT reimbursement  once 
the final position for the year is 
known.

2. Service Specific Issues 

(a) Children and Young People 
The number of Children in the care of the 
local authority has increased mainly due 
to the high profile national and local 
media cases which has been reflected in 
the budget (budgeted at current levels).
The cost of caring for an individual child 
varies depending on their particular 
needs

There are potential capacity issues within 
the social work area due to the 
requirement to implement the Laming 
recommendations on case loads.  
Recommended 15 – 20 but in Plymouth 
currently range from 20-31. 

There has been a significant increase 
(up to 90%) in the number of children 
subject to protection plans where the risk 
has been managed within the community 
rather than being taken into the care 
system.  Such a high increase will be 
extremely challenging to sustain.

The High Court Ruling ‘the Southwark 
judgement’ introduces new 
responsibilities for local authorities in 
respect of 16/17 year olds as it is now a 
requirement to consider taking them into 
the care system and to provide additional 
services until the age of 25.  A sum of 
£250k has been included in the budget 
but there is a risk that this sum will be 
insufficient.

Continued rigour with the decision 
making process of the placement 
review panel. 

The successful implementation of 
the ‘Payment for skills’ foster care 
payment scheme will enable more 
placements to be made 
appropriately within Plymouth by 
increasing the number of carers 
into the profession and through the 
higher quality factors increase the 
councils capacity to care for 
children with more complex needs. 

Continued investment in workforce 
development, particularly with 
newly qualified social workers. 
Successful implementation of a 
fully functioning Care First system 
will help to mitigate the 
requirement for additional social 
workers.

The transfer of some children in 
need cases to other agencies 
through the Common Assessment 
Framework will ensure that the 
needs of the children are met by 
the body best placed to support 
them and help to contain the 
pressure on the council. 

AMBER

Page 168



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

There is a robust process for 
considering the additional services 
allocated (if any) for each potential 
case.

Before the ruling, some support for 
this client group was given by 
housing from the homelessness 
budget and a reallocation of this 
budget will need to be considered. 

(b) Adult Social Care 

Within Adult Social Care there are 
nationally recognised demographic 
changes which impact the budget, due to 
both an ageing population and increased 
complex needs.

The services are volatile and small 
changes in client numbers of those with 
high care needs can impact on the 
budget.

The government’s personalisation and 
modernisation agenda will present 
challenges to the transformation of the 
service.

The financial and operational impact of 
the Government proposed ‘free personal 
health care’ (to help people live at home) 
is still subject to consultation and there 
are no estimates in the budget 
assumptions.

Service and funding decisions made by 
NHS Plymouth (previously known as 
Plymouth Primary Care Trust) can 
impact on the costs incurred by the 
Council . 

Accurate and timely monitoring 
information provided to lead officer 
for Adult Social Care. 

Review of data quality, linked to 
Carefirst project and other 
systems.

The Director of Community 
Services will establish a 
Programme Board to manage the 
delivery of action plans and the 
transformation of adult social care 
services.

Determine the impact as soon as 
the government proposals become 
clearer (work is already underway). 

A Health and Social Care 
Integration Board is in place to 
improve our partnership 
arrangements.  The Director of 
Community Services and the Chief 
Executive of NHS Plymouth meet 
regularly to discuss high risk 
issues.

AMBER

Page 169



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

(c) BSF 

Additional budget resources have been 
allocated to fund the anticipated BSF 
project implementation costs; however 
final costs will only become more certain 
as the project moves towards outline 
business case acceptance. 

The BSF Committee and Executive 
group will be responsible for 
maintaining workforce investment 
and other resources to ensure 
timely delivery of all project stages.

Initial costs have been allowed for 
in the 2010/11 budget. 

AMBER

(d) Stock Transfer 

The Council Stock Transfer has resulted 
in a residual financial cost to the General 
Fund. This cost has been estimated and 
allowed for within the budget plans for 
2010/11. In future years the costs are 
forecast to increase substantially.  Action 
needs to be commenced in 2010/11 in 
order to reduce the impact of these costs 
over the next 5 years.

Residual pension’s deficit remains with 
the Council. Forecast increase in annual 
contributions of approximately £1.3m 
from 2011/12.

As part of the transfer the Council has 
been required to provide a number of 
warranties. There may yet be residual 
costs and claims that will fall to the 
Council, eg public liability claims. 

The residual cost has been allowed 
for in budgets for 2010/11.

Negotiated monies, as part of stock 
transfer, via VAT shelter and Right 
to Buy receipts but this is capital 
resource.

Application for Capitalisation 
Direction to help better manage 
resources between revenue and 
capital.

Quarterly joint liaison meetings 
have been arranged.

Insurance provision £0.250m has 
remained with Council. 

Assumed working balance on HRA 
of at least £2m which can be used 
to offset increased costs in 
2010/11.

RED

Page 170



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

3. Corporate Issues 

(a) Maintenance Liabilities 

Inadequate budget provision to meet 
maintenance liabilities

Provision has been made in the revenue 
budget to meet the costs of the routine 
maintenance of the Council’s operational 
buildings. Improvement works are 
charged to the capital budget. 

The asset management strategy 
identifies that there is a significant 
backlog in maintenance obligations. 

Risks include health and safety issues 
that may arise during the year and the 
uncertainties over the future of the Civic 
Centre.

Asset management keep under 
review all the Council’s assets 
including identifying and 
considering assets for disposal. 

A further increase in the revenue 
budget of £0.350m has been 
allocated in 2010/11 towards 
preventative maintenance. 

Insurance reserve set up which 
could be used to meet the costs of 
health and safety repairs. 

Accommodation reserve set up to 
meet one off repairs to Civic 
Centre (and other Council Offices) 
pending outcome of negotiations 
on the future of Civic Centre. 

AMBER

(b)  Redundancies 

Impact of redundancies on revenue 
budget

As part of the budget delivery plans, the 
council will delete a number of posts in 
2010/11 in order to achieve a balanced 
budget.

Redundancies result in one-off costs, 
including a contribution to the pension 
fund. These costs have not been 
specifically allowed for in the budget.

A contribution of £0.552m has 
been transferred to a redundancy 
reserve as part of the 2010/11 
budget.

We will minimise the number of 
redundancies through vacancy 
management, effective 
redeployment practices and close 
working with the unions. 

Capitalisation Direction applied for 
in 2009/10. There may be an 
opportunity to apply for further 
Capitalisation Direction in 2010/11 
if redundancy costs exceed 
thresholds.  However this will 
impact on Capital Programme. 

Consider spreading pension fund 
top-up over three years.

AMBER

Page 171



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

(c) Equal Pay 

The Council has received a number of 
equal pay claims and grievances.  These 
are being dealt with by way of grievance 
hearings and through the Employment 
Tribunal system. Tribunal claims are 
likely to be delayed until 2010/11. 

Capitalisation Direction request was 
refused 2009/10. 

The Council secured a 
Capitalisation Direction to cover 
equal pay claims in 2007/08. This 
can be used for any claims 
submitted prior to 31 March 2008.

Equal pay reserve set up 31 March 
2009 for claims submitted after 
March 2008.  (£350k). 

Regulations allow impact of equal 
pay claims to be deferred until 
actual payment. 

The Council can apply for a 
capitalisation direction in 10/11 if 
cost exceed threshold. 

AMBER

(d) Accommodation 

The Council’s existing Civic Centre is not 
‘fit for purpose’. It is expensive to 
maintain and, in the medium term, will 
require significant investment. 

The building being listed in 2007 has 
meant that the Council has had to review 
its original plans. 

Accommodation Strategy forms 
part of the Council’s Strategic 
Asset Management plan. Potential 
to explore invest to save 
opportunity. 

Work ongoing with English 
Heritage to scope and detail 
repairs and alterations required to 
enable the building to have a 
potentially sustainable future. 

AMBER

SECTION II – IMPACT OF MAJOR PROJECTS / CORPORATE ITEMS 

4. Major Projects

Delivery of Major Projects- timing and 
resources

The Council currently has a number of 
cross cutting major projects either in 
progress or planned for the medium 
term. The key risk is delivering the 
projects on time and to budget.

Clear project plans in place for key 
areas.

Revenue and Capital Funding 
allocated to Corporate priorities 
under budget process. 

AMBER

Page 172



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

The requirement to reduce staffing to 
balance budgets may impact on the 
ability to adequately resource projects. 

Many projects require services to be 
delivered in an innovative way. There 
may need to be a requirement for 
external advisors which puts pressure on 
budgets.

The main projects are:

Capitalisation Direction submitted 
for 2009/10 – approval will enable 
resources to be set aside to 
support projects in future years. 

Proposal to set up “invest to save” 
budget within capital. 

Progress on Major Projects 
overseen by a Project Board with 
finance input. 

(a) Corporate 

(i) International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) 

Local Authorities are required to prepare 
statutory accounts in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) from 2010/11.

This is a major project that is currently 
being delivered by existing staff 
resources The reduction in staffing in 
Corporate Support may result in 
conflicting priorities and the ability of staff 
to adequately support the project.

Failure to deliver on time will reflect 
adversely in the annual Use of 
Resources and Comprehensive Area 
Assessments (CAA).

Governance structure in place and 
regular reporting to Audit 
Committee.

Project manager in post and high 
level project plan produced. 

Standards being reviewed by a 
number of project work streams. 
Detailed impact assessments 
being completed. 

Early discussions with External 
Auditor. External support secured 
to support the PFI work stream. 

Additional budget allocated in 
2010/11 for support to project. 

AMBER

(b) Service Specific:
(i) Care First 

The Council has begun a 3 year 
programme to harmonise the Children’s 
& Family and Adults Social Care Teams 
onto a single computer system.  The 
costs of this project will span a number of 
years in which time costs can fluctuate. 

A Care First Project Board has 
been set up, chaired by the 
Assistant Chief Executive. 

3 year Revenue budget allocation 
to the project starting in 2010/11. 

Stronger management of the 
relationship with the Software 
provider and improved contract 
management.

AMBER

Page 173



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

(ii) Leisure Management 

The Council is undergoing a 
procurement exercise for the 
management of Leisure Services. The 
project risk register identifies a number of 
key risks, including completion of the 
process to co-ordinate with the 
completion of the Life Centre. 

Budget provision allocated for the 
project.

A Project Board monitors the 
progress of the procurement 
exercise as part of the Life Centre 
and leisure related projects. 

The programme is part of the 
regular member scrutiny process. 

AMBER

(iii) Life Centre 

The construction of the Life Centre is a 
complex design and build project with a 
mixed funding stream including several 
grants with certain conditions. 

Life Centre and Leisure Related 
Projects Programme Board in 
place. Board meets monthly to 
monitor progress. 

The construction is part of a robust 
contract which details construction 
milestones and financial 
milestones. The contract will be 
closely monitored by the Council’s 
appointed project managers EC 
Harris.

Costs and risks well understood 
and subject to robust scrutiny. 

AMBER

(iv) Waste PFI 
The cost of disposing the City’s waste is 
due to rise sharply over the coming 
years. Since closing the Council’s landfill 
site, Chelson Meadow, we have entered 
into a contractual arrangement to 
dispose our waste in Cornwall for the 
immediate future.

The council is currently developing a 
Energy to Waste PFI solution in 
partnership with Torbay and Devon 
County Councils. The capital and 
revenue costs of this project are 
significant and volatile to change.

A waste management reserve has 
been created with the balance of 
this reserve currently at £1.1m. 

The Council is entering into a 
Private Finance Initiative, (PFI), 
with Devon County and Torbay 
Councils to build a new ‘waste into 
energy’ plant. 

Revenue & capital costs are 
updated and communicated though 
robust governance arrangements. 

External finance advisors are 
assisting with financial modelling.

RED

Page 174



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

(v) BSF 
Council has been successfully secured a 
place on the Building Schools for the 
Future (BSF) programme. 

The final funding allocation will be 
dependent on a number of factors 
including estimated pupil numbers and 
will not be finalised until outline business 
case in the next twelve months.

The Council will have to decide what 
mixture of new build / refurbishments it 
can afford to finance from the funding. 

The Council have appointed 
external financial and technical 
advisors to ensure that the Council 
maximises its funding allocation 
and what it is able to provide within 
the funding envelope. 

There will be regular project 
meetings with the external advisors 
over the next six months to 
progress this aspect of the project. 

AMBER

SECTION III - IMPACT OF ECONOMY 

5. Economic Impact on Income

(a) Reduced income from fees and 
charges

(i) Budget monitoring reports continue to 
identify areas experiencing a reduction in 
income due to the economic climate e.g.
including  car parks and commercial 
rents.

(ii) Risk on Medium Term Financial 
Strategy of further economic downturn. 

Departments have reviewed 
underlying income assumptions.

Revenue allocation made in 
2010/11 to part offset the loss of 
car park and commercial income. 

Key PIs in relation to collection 
rates reported/monitored in bi-
monthly monitoring report. 

GREEN

(b) Impact on income collection rates- 
eg Council tax, National Non Domestic 
Rates, Sundry Debt income 

Current monitoring reports identify 
collection rates generally at target for 
2009/10 but continuing recession could 
adversely impact in future years.

Commercial rent income continues to fall 
below target. 

Income strategy approved. 

Risk based approach to debt 
collection.

Instalments policy to be 
implemented. Actions to encourage 
greater direct debit take up.

AMBER

Page 175



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

Bad debt provision reviewed 
regularly to ensure it remains 
adequate to meet costs of any 
potential uncollectable debt.

Recovery routes will be 
rationalised and shortened. 

6. Treasury Management

(i) Investment Returns 
Bank of England base rate remains low 
at 0.5% affecting the ability to achieve 
target investment returns.  

The budget projections for 2010/11 
assume investment returns of 1%.  

Treasury Management (TM) Board 
meets weekly to review investment 
and borrowing strategy enabling 
timely action in response to 
changing market conditions. 

Revised TM Strategy to Cabinet 
and for approval at Council 
provides more flexibility for 
investment opportunities.

Level of investments reduced as to 
meet cash flow and repay debt 

Continue to maximise use of 
external Treasury Management 
advisors.

AMBER

(ii) Borrowing risk – portfolio 
imbalance PWLB/LOBO 

Repayment of £91m PWLB debt 
following stock transfer has resulted in a 
significantly high proportion of market 
loans (LOBO) compared to PWLB debt. 

Over longer term this reduces Council’s 
ability to restructure debt portfolio.

Average interest payable on loans 
exceeds rate of interest receivable on 
investments increasing pressure on 
budget.

New borrowing to be taken from 
PWLB.

Seek to bring Devon Debt in house 
to enable greater flexibility over 
debt repayment. 

Make greater use of variable rate 
debt.

Use balances and reserves to 
meet cash flow and borrowing 
requirements.

AMBER

Page 176



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

(iii) Investment losses – Iceland Banks

Recovery of monies in Iceland still 
subject to uncertainty: 

Regulations allowing Authorities to defer 
charging for losses only apply to 
2009/10.

Plymouth City Council 
representation on the Local 
Authority Iceland Bank Steering 
Committee.

Capitalisation Direction applied for 
in 2009/10. if approved will allow 
losses to be spread over 10-20 
years.

Continue to lobby Government for 
extension of regulations to defer 
impact of Losses. 

Reserve set up as part of 
closedown 2009/10. 

Dividend payments being received 
from Heritable £0.908m (of £3m) 
recovered to date. 

RED

7. Capital Programme

Current housing market makes it difficult 
to generate sufficient capital receipts to 
fund capital programme at assumed 
level.

Impact of Credit Crunch on Treasury 
Management with knock on effect on 
Capital Programme. 

Any shortfall may require additional 
temporary borrowing which will impact on 
revenue budget. 

There is uncertainty over central 
government grants in future years due to 
the pressure on public sector finances 

The impact of decisions made on 
programmes receiving grant or 
supported borrowing may have an 
impact on future allocations. 

Constant review of capital receipts 
position and other financing 
options as part of monitoring. 

Review of capital programme to 
reduce dependency on capital 
receipts undertaken as part of 
budget setting. 

Capital Financing reserve set up – 
balance of £0.975m which can be 
used to fund temporary borrowing 
costs to plug timing differences in 
receipt of capital receipts.

The level of grants will be 
constantly monitored, with projects 
being delivered over several years 
not being commenced until there is 
certainty over linked grant funding 

Continuing dialogue with the 
relevant Government departments 

AMBER

Page 177



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

SECTION IV – FURTHER BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 

8. Inflation assumptions

Difficult to identify impact of inflation / 
deflation as economic uncertainty 
continues.

(i) Pay award

Current budgets assume a 1% increase.
LGA have informed Unions that 
there will be a pay freeze in 
2010/11. But this is open to 
negotiation.

Any savings in departmental 
budgets as a result of a pay award 
freeze will be recouped and held 
corporately to meet future budget 
pressures.

GREEN

(ii)  Energy costs 

Energy contract due for renewal in June 
2010. Contract prices obtained will 
depend on the energy supply market at 
the relevant time.

All Departmental budgets have 
received an appropriate increase 
for utility budgets. 

PCC works in conjunction with 
Torbay Council, Devon County 
Council and the energy supplier to 
secure the best prices available 
within the current market.

Current indications show the 
market cost is falling and will 
continue to do so over the next 4-6 
weeks during the contract renewal 
negotiations.

AMBER

(iii) Other 

Inflationary increases have been 
contained for social care commissioning 
(private and independent sector), with 
exceptions relating to previously agreed 
medium term contracts.  Irrespectively, 
these contracts will all need careful 
management to contain costs and drive 
service improvements. 

This is consistent with guidance 
from commissioning colleagues. 

Contracts will need to be closely 
monitored.

AMBER

Page 178



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

SECTION V - OTHER 

9. Efficiency Savings

(a) Failure to deliver on  VFM  
Efficiency Target

Efficiency target increased to 4% for 
2010/11. Achievement of efficiencies 
monitored via national indicators 
performance return NI179. 

Council return showing falling 
significantly below target 

Details of efficiencies achieved to be 
included on Council Tax Bills and 
accompanying Council Tax leaflet. 
Failure to achieve the target will impact 
adversely on the Council’s Use of 
Resources score and CAA assessment.  

Profile of VFM raised across the 
Council - a corporate improvement 
priority - CIP 14. 

Directors set a VFM target as part 
of benchmarking exercise. 

Business plans to include details of 
how service will achieve VFM 
efficiency savings. 

Corporate VFM delivery 
programme plan to be produced 
once budget has been set and 
business plans completed. 
Programme co-ordinator appointed 
to raise the profile of VFM across 
council.

Number of new projects will be put 
in place that will improve VFM  e.g. 
Purchase2Pay.

AMBER

(b) Partners 

(i) New deal For Communities (NDC) 
Grant – Devonport Regeneration 
Community Partnership (DRCP) 

The NDC grant is now entering its final 
year.

The risks to the Council increases as the 
funding stream comes to an end and 
include the costs of pensions and 
potential redundancy costs as well as 
residual costs should spend by the 
projects miss grant cut off dates. 

There is also an inherent risk to the 
Council of grant clawback should grant 
conditions not be met.

Council Officer attendance at the 
DRCP board meetings. 

Monthly meetings held between 
senior Council Officers, DRCP staff 
and GOSW. 

Monitoring of expenditure is 
reported alongside the Council’s 
expenditure.

The Council continues to hold £1.3 
in reserve as a result of the agreed 
flexibility sought in 2007/08 to 
maximise grant spend. This 
reserve is earmarked against 
specific DRCP projects.

AMBER

Page 179



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

Risk of not achieving required 
improvements and stretch targets set in 
the Local Area Agreement will result in a 
reduction in performance Reward Grant. 

DRCP taking action to downsize 
staffing levels in advance of grant 
end. Succession plan produce and 
currently subject to CLG scrutiny. 

Financial due diligence being 
carried out by Council officers on 
succession plan proposals. 

Regular monitoring at LSP 
Executive and through Overview 
and Scrutiny. 

(ii) NHS 

There is a close relationship between the 
costs incurred by adult social care and 
NHS Plymouth (previously known as the 
Plymouth Community Primary Care 
Trust).

Both organisations face future budget 
pressures.

The Council has strengthened its 
relationship with NHS Plymouth 
through Memorandum of 
Understanding and a Health Social 
care Integration Board.

Regular liaison and meetings will 
be maintained. 

AMBER

(iii) Highways 

The Council entered into a partnership 
with Amey on the 1st Dec 2008 to 
undertake highway design and 
maintenance and carry out some of the 
statutory functions of the Council. 

Strategic and Operation Boards 
have been set up to ensure that 
major issues are promptly 
highlighted and dealt with.

There are also regular meetings to 
discuss day to day operational 
issues and the impact that may 
arise on performance indicators 
and budgets. 

GREEN

Page 180



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

10. Insurance Cover

The adequacy of the authority’s 
insurance arrangements to cover 
major unforeseen risks

Monitoring during 2009/10 indicates the 
provision may be insufficient to meet all 
known liabilities.  This is as a result of an 
increase in the number of new serious 
injury claims received.

Any shortfall in the provision at year end 
would be met from the earmarked 
insurance reserve and/or general 
balances. 

The Council continues to keep the 
adequacy of its insurance fund 
under review.

An increase to internal premiums 
has been implemented for 
2010/11.

A number of pro-active risk 
management measures are being 
implemented in response to the 
identification of problem areas.

The Bellwin Scheme is available 
for emergency expenditure – this 
provides 85% funding of costs that 
exceed the Council’s threshold of 
approximately £0.700m. 

GREEN

11. Outstanding Liabilities-Risk 
Management

Contingent Liabilities 

The Council is aware of the following 
contingent liabilities: 
! Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd- 

Scheme of Arrangement 
! PLUSS Organisation Ltd  
! Section 117 refunds 
! Single Status Equal Pay claims  
! Civic Centre 
! Connexions. 
! Contaminated land 
! Treasury Management- Icelandic 

banks
! Warranties under Housing Stock 

Transfer agreement, including 
environmental and asbestos 
warranties.

Further information is available in the 
Statement of Accounts 2008/09. 

The Council operates a system of 
internal control to identify and 
manage risk. 

Contingent liabilities are added to 
the risk register but specific budget 
provision is not normally made in 
the accounts. 

The Council keeps under review all 
its outstanding financial liabilities.  

Contingent liabilities identified and 
reported as part of Statement of 
Accounts.

Provision accounts set up as 
appropriate once certainty of 
liability known, but not expected to 
be settled by year end. 

AMBER

Page 181



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

12. Medium Term Financial Strategy
There is currently a risk of not achieving 
balanced future years - Medium Term 
Financial Forecast shows a shortfall in 
resources in 2011/12 and 2012/13. 

General election and current economic 
climate will impact on future year’s 
settlements. Cuts in grants are 
anticipated at -2.5% but could be higher. 

Pressure to keep Council tax rises to a 
minimum.

Proactive work with the LGA on 
future funding settlements. 

Delivery plans show future years 
indicative budgets thus allowing 
planning opportunities for 
Directorates.

Proactive benchmarking will help to 
inform future VFM targets. 

MTFS will be produced as soon as 
possible once Council Tax is set. 

AMBER

13. Pension Fund Deficit 

Increased Employer Contributions to 
Pension Fund 
As at 31 March 2009 Plymouth had a 
pension liability of £330m on the Devon 
County managed pension fund. The 
pension fund is subject to a triennial 
actuary review with the deficit being 
managed through increased 
contributions as determined by the 
pension actuary. The next review is due 
March 2010 with revised rates 
implemented in 2011/12. 

It is assumed that the deficit will be 
repaid over a 25 year period. 

Specific issues that will impact on the 
contribution rates in 2011/12: 

Economic Climate-ability to generate
investment income
Pension funds rely heavily on investment 
income to contribute to the fund 
balances and to meet liabilities. The 
current economic climate is having a 
substantial impact on investment 
income. Indications are that this may 
result in significant increases in pension 
contributions when the next triennial 
review is undertaken.

The deficit is reported as part of 
the Council's Annual Statement of 
Accounts and is therefore subject 
to Member scrutiny. 

Whilst the economic position is 
poor at this time, the actuary takes 
a much longer term approach. It 
will not be based on the economy 
at a point in time. 

All residual liabilities are 
transferred at time of outsourcing 
and new employers are required to 
take out an insurance bond 
covering any losses that may arise 
post transfer.

The Council makes a ‘top-up’ to 
the fund when staff are made 
redundant.

Capitalisation Direction made to 
enable one-off lump sum to be 
made into the pensions fund to 
reduce the impact on future 
contribution rates. Awaiting 
outcome.

AMBER

Page 182



Appendix A 

Risk Identified Risk Mitigation  
(Actions Required) 

Risk
Status *

* Risk Status : Red=High; Amber=Medium; Green=Low

Outsourced/transferred services
As services are outsourced, e.g. 
Highways, and the Housing Stock 
transfer, and staff transfer under TUPE 
arrangements a transfer from the 
pension fund is made to ensure all 
pension liabilities are met as at transfer 
date. This affects the overall pool and 
the amount the Council will be required 
to contribute in future years from a 
reduced workforce base.

Citybus
The Council has a residual pension’s 
liability in relation to staff previously 
employed by Plymouth Citybus following 
the sale of the company.

14.  Conclusion 

This Appendix represents the risks associated with the budget and the actions required to 
mitigate the risks.  These have been taken into account in the budget setting process.

It should be noted that the Council also operates a system of internal control to identify 
and manage risk, with a key element the maintenance of strategic and operational risk 
registers.

The corporate improvement priorities identified in the Corporate Plan report are 
themselves the subject of ongoing risk assessment.  Action plans are being developed to 
ensure that they are achieved. In addition, Business Plan risk registers support the 
delivery of the strategic vision at individual service level. 

Page 183



Appendix A 
Section 2 

Section 2 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003, SECTION 25 STATEMENT  

SECTION 2 - ADEQUACY OF RESERVES 

The requirement for financial reserves is acknowledged in Statute. Sections 32 and 43 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires billing and precepting authorities in 
England and Wales to have regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting estimated 
future expenditure when calculating the budget requirement. However, there is no set 
guidance on the minimum level of reserves that should be held.

The recommendation for the minimum prudent level and optimal level of reserves has 
therefore been based on the robustness of estimate information and an assessment of the 
strategic, operational and financial risks facing the authority over the next three years and 
Section 1 of this Appendix. Plymouth has significantly improved the approach to risk 
management over recent years. Our strategic and operational risk registers are 
comprehensive and are regularly reported to, discussed and challenged by senior officers 
and members. 

In order to assess the adequacy of unallocated reserves the following factors have been 
taken into account: 

! The level of earmarked reserves, which are shown in Annex 1 to this Appendix. 

! There is always some degree of uncertainty over the timing and the full effects of 
any economy measures and/or service reductions that will be achieved. Directors 
have been requested to be prudent in their assumptions and that those 
assumptions, particularly about demand led budgets, will hold true in changing 
circumstances.

! The Bellwin Scheme Emergency Financial Assistance to Local Authorities provides 
assistance in the event of an emergency. The local authority is able to claim 
assistance with the cost of dealing with an emergency over and above a threshold 
set by the Government (Plymouth City Council’s threshold for 2010/11 has yet to be 
confirmed but will be set at 2% of net revenue budget, and is currently estimated as 
around £0.700m). The assistance is usually 85% of any eligible costs over the 
threshold.  Any incident for which assistance is sought must involve conditions, 
which are clearly exceptional by local standards and the damage to local authority 
infrastructure or communities must be exceptional in relation to normal experience. 
In the first instance these initial costs will have to be met from reserves. 

! The current economic climate which is having an impact on income levels. 

! The continuing financial climate which has seen a reduction in interest rates and 
Government support to prop up the UK banking industry. 

! The risk of major litigation, both currently and in the future. 

! Risks in the inter-relation between the NHS and Social Service authorities. 

! Unplanned volume increases in major demand led budgets. 

Page 184



Appendix A 
Section 2 

! The need to retain a general contingency to provide for any unforeseen 
circumstances, which may arise.

! The uncertainties surrounding the recovery of monies in Iceland banks. 

! The need to retain reserves for general day to day cash flow needs. 

! An Increasing deficit on the pension fund. 

The effect of base budget changes, the full year effect of previous decisions, corporate 
priorities, demographic growth and legislative change have been identified and will 
continue to be identified during the budget and medium term planning process.  

The Council has a good track record of delivering the budget. Variations from approved 
budget since becoming a Unitary authority have been within the range +0.3% to –1.7%. In 
2008/09 the Council effectively delivered a breakeven budget, returning a small surplus of 
£0.010m.

The Corporate Management Team (CMT) continues to review all expenditure and it is 
being closely monitored by budget managers and by Finance Officers. The Council 
continues to set Directors a budget variance tolerance of no more than +1% overspend 
and -2% under spend of their budget allocation for any financial year, and performance 
against this target is reported to Cabinet as part of the bi-monthly performance and budget 
monitoring reports.

2009/10 has been an exceptional year in terms of budget pressures and each of the major 
Directorates are facing potential overspends at year end. National and local high profile 
media cases has increased the pressure on the children’s services budget and there is a 
potential for further pressures into 2010/11 and beyond following the Southwark judgement 
which now requires local authorities to take 16/17 years olds  into the care system and 
provide additional services until the age of 25.  The throughput of adult social care clients 
and complexity of clients needs have continued to increase steadily during the year across 
a range of client groups resulting in additional pressures, and the economic climate 
continues to affect our income from fees and charges. All Directors have implemented 
action plans to try to minimise the overspend and there is a general reigning in of non- 
essential spend, including careful vacancy management. The Council has successfully 
recovered over £2m from overpaid VAT during the year, and has been awarded £0.258m 
under the LABGI scheme and whilst current policy is to transfer such sums to reserve to 
meet future policy initiatives, the use of these monies will be carefully considered in the 
light of the final position for the year, and medium term forecasts.

The Council has also submitted applications for exceptional Capitalisation Directions 
totalling £20.8m. At the time of writing this report the outcome is still awaited but if 
approved the Council would be able to transfer revenue spend to its capital budget, to be 
financed in part from the VAT shelter and RTB receipts negotiated under the Housing 
stock Transfer, enabling the Council to better manage its available funds across its 
revenue and capital budgets.

The medium term financial strategy will outline in more detail the Council’s policy on 
reserves for the period 2010/11 to 2012/13. The Council regularly reviews the 

Page 185



Appendix A 
Section 2 

appropriateness and use of reserves throughout each financial year. Where relevant, 
recommendations for changes are reported to Cabinet on an on-going basis. As a 
minimum, all specific reserves will be reviewed on an annual basis in March as part of the 
end of year accounting closedown arrangements. 

The Council’s ‘Working Balance’ is the revenue reserve that is put aside to cover any 
significant business risks that might arise outside of the set budget. This reserve has 
significantly improved over recent years and, as at March 2009, stood at £11.739m, 
representing just under 6% of net revenue budget. A further transfer to reserve of £0.128m 
has been allowed for within the 2009/10 budget, with a planned transfer from reserve of 
£0.350m to support budget spending, leaving an estimated balance at 31 March 2010 of 
£11.517m.

Taking all the above into account, it is recommended that the Working Balance for 2010/11 
should equate to at least 5% of net revenue spend. This is in line with the Council’s 
medium term strategy objective. This is slightly below the Unitary Council average of 6%.

This working balance will continue to be kept under review in the light of the other factors 
the Council needs to consider in delivering its priorities and in the light of benchmarking. 

Page 186



Appendix A 
Section 2 

Annex 1 
RESERVES

1 As part of the 2010/11 budget process, a review has been undertaken of the 
Council’s earmarked reserves to identify the purpose of each reserve, and the 
estimated movement on these balances in 2010. A summary of the estimated 
movement is shown in Table 1 to this Annex. 

2. Approval has been given to transfer the £2m recovered from overpaid VAT to reserve 
to meet future policy initiatives, subject to the final outturn position for the year. This 
would increase the total earmarked reserves at 31 March 2010 to £17.248m.

3. In total, current balances are considered to be sufficient to meet existing 
commitments, and overall, whilst some of the reserves are required to be ring-fenced 
or do have restricted use, it would be possible to use some of these balances to 
supplement the Working Balance and support the 2010/11 & future budgets if 
required, whilst still leaving adequate balances remaining to support existing 
commitments and unforeseen events which might require financing from these 
reserves.

4. Whilst, historically, it has been the Council’s policy to maintain separate reserves for 
those services which operated as trading services, (the major ones are On Street 
Parking, Off Street Parking, Pannier Market), there is no requirement to keep 
separate reserves for many of these activities.  Transfers from these balances to 
supplement the general Working Balance or support the overall budget have become 
commonplace and although most of the balances on these reserves have become 
exhausted, annual transfers to reserves will continue to be made from trading 
surpluses allowing, an albeit reduced, continued level of support to the general fund.

5. Reserves may also be established at the end of the financial year to carry forward 
certain unspent balances from the budget to finance the cost of specific commitments 
which may have slipped over into the following year or for one-off projects.  The 
existing policy is that up to 50% of revenue under spends may be carried forward at 
year end providing they were declared in the mid year report and that all overspends 
should be carried forward unless Cabinet determines otherwise. 

6. Other reserves held by the Council in the current year include: 

! Corporate Improvement Reserve 
! Capital Financing Reserve 
! Housing Stock Transfer Corporate Impact Team 
! Waste Management Reserve 
! Job Evaluation / Equal Pay 
! Accommodation Reserve 
! Redundancy Reserve
! Commuted Maintenance Reserves

Further detail of the reserves and their purpose is given in the Annex. Movements to 
and from reserves are kept under review during the year and an update is included in 
the mid-year budget monitoring report. 

Page 187



Appendix A 
Section 2 

7. Schools Balances

In addition to the reserves detailed in the table, the Council also holds significant 
balances for schools.  Schools are expected to manage within the delegated budgets 
which are allocated to them and at the end of each financial year schools are 
required to carry forward any budget variations to the following year.  At 1st April 
2009, school balances totalled £9.151m (net). 

Page 188



Appendix  A Annex 1

Estimated
Balance as at Transfers to Transfers from

Estimated
Balance as at

31/03/2010 Reserves Reserves 31/03/2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Off Street Parking 0 (1,660) 1,660 0

On Street Parking 0 (1,358) 1,358 0

City Market (0) (216) 216 (0)

Commuted Maintenance (955) 0 18 (937)

Education Carry Forwards (1,662) (1,505) 1,575 (1,592)

Taxis 101 (42) 0 59

Street Trading (104) 0 0 (104)

Land Charges Development Fund (54) (35) 35 (54)

Accommodation Reserve (1,562) 0 250 (1,312)

Insurance Reserve (1,379) 0 161 (1,218)

Carry Forwards (1,750) 0 0 (1,750)

Redundancies 0 (552) 0 (552)

DRCP Freedom and Flexibility 07/08 reserve (1,112) 0 1,112 (0)

Corporate Improvement Reserve (1,477) 0 1,387 (90)

Capital Reserve (975) 0 0 (975)

Waste Balancing Reserve (1,100) 0 0 (1,100)

PFI reserve (1,801) 0 0 (1,801)

Job Evaluation/Equal Pay (350) 0 0 (350)

Iceland Bank (324) 0 0 (324)

Urban Enterprise Fund (326) 0 163 (163)

Other Reserves (417) (92) 187 (321)

Sub Total (15,248) (5,460) 8,122 (12,586)

Working Balance (11,517) (250) 250 (11,517)

(26,765) (5,710) 8,372 (24,103)
( ) Means favourable

Movement in Reserves

Page 189



Appendix B

2009/10 Service Description Gross 
Expenditure

Gross Income 2010/11 Spending 
Plans

Children and Young People £000 £000 £000

0 Schools 154,902,213 (154,902,213) 0

893,676 Funded Programmes 18,509,420 (17,757,467) 751,953

3,498,224 Performance and Policy 4,177,496 (770,406) 3,407,090

9,351,561 Learner and Family Support 31,608,265 (22,122,416) 9,485,849

11,557,775 Lifelong Learning 31,286,462 (20,898,657) 10,387,805

25,647,565 Social Care 30,950,470 (2,522,342) 28,428,128

100,000 Building Schools for the future 300,000 0 300,000

51,048,801 Total Children and Young People 271,734,326 (218,973,501) 52,760,825

Corporate Items

(27,345,544) Other Corporate Items 5,542,165 (33,160,988) (27,618,823)

1,600,000 Corporate Items - major projects 3,002,000 0 3,002,000

10,831,005 Capital Financing 26,150,933 (15,233,448) 10,917,485

(14,914,539) Total Corporate Items 34,695,098 (48,394,436) (13,699,338)

Community Services

70,949,124 Adult Health and Social Care 91,784,470 (19,068,147) 72,716,323

1,840,935 Public Protection services 4,175,613 (2,204,278) 1,971,335

9,800,594 Culture Sport and Leisure 16,219,619 (5,662,437) 10,557,182

22,809,456 Street services 38,658,267 (15,080,892) 23,577,375

1,556,104 Safer Communities 1,613,706 (65,000) 1,548,706

2,932,457 Service, Strategy and Regulati 2,529,423 (44,129) 2,485,294

109,888,670 Total Community Services 154,981,098 (42,124,883) 112,856,215

Corporate Support

179,763 Departmental Management 180,005 0 180,005

15,418,293 Finance, Assets & Efficiencies 108,403,755 (93,039,578) 15,364,177

3,126,635 HR Organisational Development 4,021,643 (1,067,308) 2,954,335

6,403,457 ICT information systems 7,138,767 (1,164,963) 5,973,804

2,119,114 Customer Services 2,224,774 (156,908) 2,067,866

5,797,185 Democracy and Governance 6,890,065 (1,070,927) 5,819,138

33,044,447 Total Corporate Support 128,859,009 (96,499,684) 32,359,325

Development and Regeneration

1,444,437 Planning Services 3,429,773 (1,972,973) 1,456,800

3,265,818 Strategic Housing 4,751,166 (1,390,060) 3,361,106

597,431 Business Support 627,562 0 627,562

11,903,152 Transport 19,921,524 (7,999,806) 11,921,718

315,265 Waste Management Project Team 1,043,055 (572,000) 471,055

(2,114,660) Property & Economic Developmen 4,462,642 (6,132,194) (1,669,552)

15,411,443 Total Development & Regeneration 34,235,722 (18,067,033) 16,168,689

Chief Executive

1,480,803 Policy Performance and Partner 1,321,797 (17,500) 1,304,297

565,463 Corporate Communications 667,282 (91,700) 575,582

0 Chief Executive Suspense 0 0 0

2,046,266 Total Chief Executive 1,989,079 (109,200) 1,879,879

196,525,088 Total Council Revenue Budget 626,494,332 (424,168,737) 202,325,595

SPENDING PLANS 2009 AND 2010/11

Page 190



A
pp

en
di

x 
C

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

: 
C

h
ild

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

20
10

/1
1 

R
ev

en
u

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
/C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T

20
10

/1
1 

B
as

e 
B

ud
ge

t (
In

c 
C

or
p 

in
fla

tio
n)

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
S

to
ck

tr
an

sf
er

R
ed

uc
tio

n/
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

ag
re

ed
pr

io
rit

ie
s

A
dd

in
g

B
ac

k
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

gr
ee

d
A

dd
 N

ew
 

P
rio

rit
ie

s

R
ev

is
ed

T
ar

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

S
ch

oo
ls

0
0

F
un

de
d 

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

55
9

19
3

75
2

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 P
ol

ic
y

3,
40

7
0

3,
40

7
Le

ar
ne

r 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

9,
53

6
10

9
(1

59
)

9,
48

6
Li

fe
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g

10
,5

38
(5

30
)

38
0

10
,3

88
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
27

,3
78

(3
00

)
35

0
1,

00
0

28
,4

28
B

ui
ld

in
g 

S
ch

oo
ls

 fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
20

0
(2

00
)

30
0

30
0

51
,6

18
0

(7
28

)
57

1
1,

30
0

52
,7

61

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
st

s
R

ev
en

u
e 

S
av

in
g

s

*K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t's
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

bu
dg

et
:

Le
ad

S
ta

rt
R

ev
en

ue
C

ap
ita

l
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

R
is

k 
of

 
O

ffi
ce

r
D

at
e?

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

S
av

in
g?

D
el

iv
er

y

1
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f a
dm

in
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l (
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 in
 th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t)
A

LL
 A

D
'S

A
pr

-2
01

0
P

ot
en

tia
l

R
ed

un
d

C
os

ts
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

Y
es

G
re

en

2
S

ee
k 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f B
ui

ld
in

g 
S

ch
oo

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
F

ut
ur

e
G

ar
et

h
S

im
m

on
s

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
30

0
30

0
30

0
N

o
A

m
be

r

3
A

dd
iti

on
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
fr

om
 D

ed
ic

at
ed

 S
ch

oo
l G

ra
nt

 fo
r 

pe
ns

io
ns

 a
nd

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
O

th
er

 th
an

 a
t S

ch
oo

ls
 (

E
O

T
A

S
)

C
ol

in
M

oo
re

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
34

3
34

3
34

3
N

o
G

re
en

4
R

em
ov

e 
co

nc
es

si
on

ar
y 

fa
re

s 
16

+
M

ag
gi

e
C

ar
te

r
S

ep
-2

01
0

0
0

22
38

38
N

o
A

m
be

r

5
S

av
in

gs
 ta

rg
et

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 s

ta
ff 

in
 h

ig
h 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

ar
ea

s/
lin

k 
w

ith
 lo

ca
lit

y 
w

or
ki

ng
 fu

nd
in

g 
&

 r
ev

ie
w

 
of

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

n 
Li

fe
lo

ng
 L

ea
rn

in
g

M
ag

gi
e

C
ar

te
r

A
pr

-2
01

0
P

ot
en

tia
l

R
ed

un
d

C
os

ts
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

N
o

G
re

en

6
C

ha
rg

e 
IC

A
N

 (
sp

ee
ch

 a
nd

 la
ng

ua
ge

 n
ee

ds
) 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 g

ra
nt

C
ol

in
M

oo
re

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
80

80
80

N
o

A
m

be
r

7
S

ee
k 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ew

ar
d 

G
ra

nt
 fo

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 -

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
yo

ut
h 

se
rv

ic
e 

&
 g

ra
nt

s 
to

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r
C

ol
in

M
oo

re
A

pr
-2

01
0

0
0

91
91

91
N

o
A

m
be

r

8
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 g
ra

nt
s

C
ol

in
M

oo
re

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
50

50
50

N
o

A
m

be
r

9
F

am
ily

 s
up

po
rt

 
M

ai
re

ad
M

cN
ei

l
A

pr
-2

01
0

0
0

85
0

0
N

o
A

m
be

r

10
R

ed
uc

ed
 w

ra
p 

ar
ou

nd
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

fo
r 

pe
rm

an
en

cy
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 &

 r
ed

uc
e 

se
cu

re
 b

ed
 n

ig
ht

s
M

ai
re

ad
M

cN
ei

l
A

pr
-2

01
0

0
0

13
3

13
3

13
3

N
o

G
re

en

11
M

ul
ti-

S
ys

te
m

ic
 T

he
ra

py
 C

on
tr

ac
t (

co
ns

id
er

 c
ea

si
ng

 c
on

tr
ac

t)
 v

al
ue

 £
14

0k
 in

 1
0/

11
.  

D
ep

t o
f H

ea
lth

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 p

ar
t 

fu
nd

M
ai

re
ad

M
cN

ei
l

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
0

21
0

21
0

Y
es

A
m

be
r

12
N

eg
ot

ia
te

 s
av

in
gs

 in
 C

on
ne

xi
on

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
C

ol
in

M
oo

re
A

pr
-2

01
0

0
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

Y
es

A
m

be
r

13
N

o 
in

fla
tio

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
w

he
re

 li
nk

ed
 w

ith
 F

os
te

rin
g 

N
et

w
or

k 
ra

te
s 

(r
at

es
 fr

oz
en

 a
t 0

9/
10

 le
ve

ls
)

M
ai

re
ad

M
cN

ei
l

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
12

9
12

9
12

9
Y

es
G

re
en

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

1,
58

3
   

   
1,

72
4

   
   

1,
72

4
   

   

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il

S
:\C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
\N

ew
 F

in
an

ce
\R

ev
en

ue
\B

ud
ge

t P
re

pa
ra

tio
n\

20
10

-1
1\

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ep
or

tin
g\

re
po

rt
s\

m
ai

n 
re

po
rt

\2
01

0.
02

.0
1 

re
po

rt
\A

pp
 C

1 
C

hi
ld

re
ns

 S
vc

s 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 2

1-
01

-1
0.

xl
s

01
/0

2/
20

10

Page 191



A
pp

en
di

x 
C

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

20
10

/1
1 

R
ev

en
u

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
/C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T

20
10

/1
1 

B
as

e 
B

ud
ge

t (
In

c 
C

or
p 

in
fla

tio
n)

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
S

to
ck

tr
an

sf
er

R
ed

uc
tio

n/
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

ag
re

ed
pr

io
rit

ie
s

A
dd

in
g 

B
ac

k 
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

gr
ee

d
A

dd
 N

ew
 

P
rio

rit
ie

s

R
ev

is
ed

T
ar

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

(A
)

(B
)

( 
C

)
S

er
vi

ce
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

G
C

O
M

A
A

du
lt 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e
71

,9
16

(2
,4

00
)

1,
40

0
1,

80
0

72
,7

16
G

C
O

M
B

P
ub

lic
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
1,

97
1

(1
82

)
18

2
1,

97
1

G
C

O
M

C
Le

is
ur

e 
C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 S

po
rt

10
,1

17
10

(2
50

)
25

0
43

0
10

,5
57

G
C

O
M

D
S

tr
ee

t s
er

vi
ce

s
22

,6
06

1,
19

2
(1

,3
58

)
1,

13
7

23
,5

77
G

C
O

M
L

S
af

er
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
1,

54
9

1,
54

9
G

C
O

M
M

S
er

vi
ce

, S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n
3,

16
0

(4
45

)
(2

30
)

2,
48

5
G

C
O

M
Z

C
om

m
un

ity
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

su
sp

en
se

0

11
1,

32
0

75
7

(4
,1

90
)

2,
96

9
2,

00
0

11
2,

85
6

N
ee

d 
fo

r
Im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 c
o

st
s

R
ev

en
u

e 
S

av
in

g
s

Le
ad

S
up

po
rt

S
ta

rt
R

ev
en

ue
C

ap
ita

l
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

R
is

k 
of

 
*K

ey
 a

ct
io

ns
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
D

M
T

 a
gr

ee
d 

m
ov

em
en

ts
 (

up
 to

 T
E

N
 to

p 
le

ve
l a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s)

: -
 N

ot
 in

 a
n 

or
de

r 
of

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e

O
ffi

ce
r

S
er

vi
ce

s
D

at
e?

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

S
av

in
g?

D
el

iv
er

y

1
A

LL
 A

D
'S

A
pr

-2
01

0
po

te
nt

ia
l

re
du

nd
an

cy
co

st
s

0
50

3
50

3
50

3
Y

es
A

m
be

r

2
P

am
M

ar
sd

en
A

pr
il 

'1
0

T
B

C
0

60
4

61
8

62
9

Y
es

A
m

be
r

3
P

am
M

ar
sd

en
A

pr
il 

'1
0

T
B

C
0

10
00

10
24

10
55

Y
es

G
re

en

4
P

am
M

ar
sd

en
O

ct
 '1

0 
/ 

Ja
n 

'1
2

T
B

C
0

17
6

71
0

10
50

Y
es

A
m

be
r

5
P

am
M

ar
sd

en
A

pr
il 

'1
0

T
B

C
0

25
0

25
0

25
0

T
B

C
A

m
be

r

6
P

am
M

ar
sd

en
A

pr
il 

'1
0

T
B

C
0

87
0

13
50

13
50

T
B

C
R

ed

7
P

am
M

ar
sd

en
A

pr
il 

'1
0

T
B

C
0

27
2

27
2

27
2

Y
es

A
m

be
r

8
P

am
M

ar
sd

en
A

pr
il 

'1
0

T
B

C
0

14
10

14
37

14
65

T
B

C
R

ed

9
Ja

m
es

C
ou

lto
n

D
ec

 '0
9

T
B

C
T

B
C

40
T

B
C

T
B

C
Y

es
A

m
be

r

10
Ja

m
es

C
ou

lto
n

O
ng

oi
ng

25
0

T
B

C
T

B
C

G
re

en

11
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

12
Ja

yn
e

D
on

ov
an

M
ay

 '1
0

10
00

0
0

0
19

0
Y

es
A

m
be

r

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f a

dm
in

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l (

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 s

av
in

gs
 in

 th
is

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t)

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

 r
es

id
en

tia
l c

ar
e 

an
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 d

ay
 c

ar
e

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

re
m

s 
&

 C
re

m
s 

de
liv

er
y 

m
od

el
 to

 s
ee

k 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 e
ffe

ci
en

ci
es

.

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 s

av
in

gs
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

da
y 

ca
re

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 a

pp
ly

in
g 

a 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 u
ni

t c
os

ts
 

C
on

tr
ac

t I
nf

la
tio

n:
 r

at
e 

se
t a

t N
il 

fo
r 

20
10

/1
1

F
ai

r 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 C
ar

e:
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t e

le
gi

bi
lit

y 
cr

ite
ria

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
m

or
e 

rig
or

ou
s 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

pl
us

 th
e 

fu
ll 

ye
ar

 e
ffe

ct
 

of
 p

an
el

s 
an

d 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ca

se
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

in
 2

00
9/

10

D
om

ic
ili

ar
y 

C
ar

e:
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f i

n-
ho

us
e 

do
m

ic
ili

ar
y 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 fo
cu

s 
on

 in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 a
nd

 r
ea

bl
em

en
t 

re
du

ci
ng

 d
ep

en
de

nc
y 

on
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 h

ig
h 

co
st

 p
ac

ka
ge

s 
an

d 
ca

re
 h

om
e 

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
re

sp
ite

 c
ar

e 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

ly
 s

en
si

tiv
e

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f s

ta
ffi

ng
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t w

ith
in

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t t

ea
m

s 
an

d 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l t
he

ra
py

 s
er

vi
ce

s

C
at

eg
or

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 B
uy

er
 R

ol
l O

ut
.  

  T
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

sc
op

e 
fo

r 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ro

ll 
ou

t w
ith

in
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 d

riv
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

av
in

gs
 fr

om
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

f d
em

an
d,

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 p

ro
ce

ss
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

av
in

gs

Le
is

ur
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ev
ie

w
.  

 O
ut

so
ur

ci
ng

 o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f s

po
rt

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 s

ee
k 

ef
fic

ie
nc

es
 in

 
ru

nn
in

g 
th

e 
ne

w
 L

ife
 C

en
tr

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f L

ib
ra

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

S
ch

oo
l L

ib
ra

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
 is

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 fu

tu
re

 s
ha

pe
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
le

ve
ls

 o
f d

el
iv

er
y.

  S
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 th
e 

S
ch

oo
l L

ib
ra

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
 is

 r
el

ia
nt

 o
n 

a 
m

in
im

um
 le

ve
l o

f b
uy

 in
 to

 r
em

ai
n 

vi
ab

le
.

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

P
er

so
na

lis
at

io
n 

R
A

S
 a

nd
 r

es
ha

pi
ng

 b
lo

ck
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 to
 r

ec
og

ni
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il

S
:\C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
\N

ew
 F

in
an

ce
\R

ev
en

ue
\B

ud
ge

t P
re

pa
ra

tio
n\

20
10

-1
1\

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ep
or

tin
g\

re
po

rt
s\

m
ai

n 
re

po
rt

\2
01

0.
02

.0
1 

re
po

rt
\A

pp
 C

2 
C

om
m

 S
vc

s 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 2

1-
01

-1
0.

xl
s

01
/0

2/
20

10

Page 192



A
pp

en
di

x 
C

13
Ja

yn
e

D
on

ov
an

O
ct

 '1
0

32
1

15
30

0
0

14
6

Y
es

A
m

be
r

14
Ja

yn
e

D
on

ov
an

Ju
n 

'1
0

15
00

0
0

0
64

7
Y

es
R

ed

T
o

ta
ls

:
30

71
15

30
51

25
61

64
75

57

*p
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 it
 is

 a
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t f

or
 a

ll 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
r 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 

al
l

of
 th

ei
r 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
bu

dg
et

 p
re

ss
ur

es
. C

M
T

 w
ill

 fo
cu

s 
its

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
at

te
nt

io
n 

on
 th

e 
co

nt
en

t i
n 

th
is

 D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
n

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 R

ef
us

e 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
bu

si
ne

ss
 m

od
el

 a
nd

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

G
ar

ag
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
.  

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 s

ee
k 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

w
hi

ls
t 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 c
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

al
so

 d
riv

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 r

ec
yc

lin
g.

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 K
er

bs
id

e 
G

la
ss

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 w

as
te

 d
is

po
sa

l c
os

ts
.  

S
ch

em
e 

re
qu

ire
s 

ca
pi

ta
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t i
n 

20
11

/1
2 

an
d 

20
12

/1
3 

to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

10
 v

eh
ci

cl
es

.  
B

re
ak

 e
ve

n 
an

d 
th

en
 r

ev
en

ue
 s

av
in

gs
 o

cc
ur

in
g 

in
 2

01
3/

14
 a

nd
 b

ey
on

d.
 T

he

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il

S
:\C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
\N

ew
 F

in
an

ce
\R

ev
en

ue
\B

ud
ge

t P
re

pa
ra

tio
n\

20
10

-1
1\

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ep
or

tin
g\

re
po

rt
s\

m
ai

n 
re

po
rt

\2
01

0.
02

.0
1 

re
po

rt
\A

pp
 C

2 
C

om
m

 S
vc

s 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 2

1-
01

-1
0.

xl
s

01
/0

2/
20

10

Page 193



A
pp

en
di

x 
C

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

: 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
T

o
ta

l
20

10
/1

1 
R

ev
en

u
e 

B
u

d
g

et
 D

E
L

IV
E

R
Y

 P
L

A
N

/C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

20
10

/1
1 

B
as

e 
B

ud
ge

t (
In

c 
C

or
p 

in
fla

tio
n)

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
S

to
ck

tr
an

sf
er

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

ag
re

ed
pr

io
rit

ie
s

A
dd

in
g

B
ac

k
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

gr
ee

d
A

dd
 N

ew
 

P
rio

rit
ie

s

R
ev

is
ed

T
ar

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s

1,
51

7
0

(6
0)

1,
45

7
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 H
ou

si
ng

3,
31

4
97

(1
50

)
10

0
3,

36
1

B
us

in
es

s 
S

up
po

rt
62

8
0

62
8

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 &

 H
ig

hw
ay

s
11

,3
46

73
9

(7
13

)
55

0
11

,9
22

W
as

te
 p

ro
je

ct
1,

92
1

(1
,5

00
)

50
47

1
E

co
no

m
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
(1

,9
01

)
(1

59
)

39
0

(1
,6

70
)

16
,8

24
(6

2)
(9

11
)

(6
73

)
99

0
16

,1
68

Le
ad

S
ta

rt
R

ev
en

ue
C

ap
ita

l
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

R
is

k 
of

*K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t's
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

bu
dg

et
:  

O
ffi

ce
r

D
at

e?
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
S

av
in

g?
D

el
iv

er
y

1
A

LL
 A

D
'S

A
pr

-2
01

0
po

te
nt

ia
l

re
du

nd
an

cy
co

st
s

0
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

Y
es

G
re

en

2
G

ill
 P

ee
le

A
pr

-2
01

0
po

te
nt

ia
l

re
du

nd
an

cy
co

st
s

0
34

2
34

2
34

2
Y

es
A

m
be

r

3
P

au
l

B
ar

na
rd

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
13

3
15

0
51

Y
es

G
re

en

4
P

au
l

B
ar

na
rd

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
55

55
55

N
o

G
re

en

5
C

liv
e 

P
er

ki
n

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
85

11
0

12
0

N
o

R
ed

6
C

liv
e 

P
er

ki
n

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
11

0
13

0
15

0
N

o
R

ed

7
C

liv
e 

P
er

ki
n

A
pr

-2
01

0
T

B
C

0
17

8
17

8
17

8
Y

es
G

re
en

8
C

liv
e 

P
er

ki
n

A
pr

-2
01

0
30

0
20

50
50

Y
es

A
m

be
r

9
S

tu
ar

t
P

al
m

er
A

pr
-2

01
0

0
0

20
2

20
2

20
2

N
o

A
m

be
r

30
0

1,
12

5
1,

21
7

1,
14

8

R
ev

en
u

e 
S

av
in

g
s

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 c

o
st

s

S
tr

ea
m

lin
in

g 
of

 th
e 

LD
F

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
er

gi
ng

 o
f t

he
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
ns

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 
re

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
of

 th
e 

C
or

e 
S

tr
at

eg
y

R
at

io
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
on

 s
tr

ee
t c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 c

ha
rg

in
g 

re
gi

m
e,

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 o

ng
oi

ng
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, a
nd

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 h

ou
rly

 r
at

es
 

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

S
to

ck
 T

ra
ns

fe
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

cl
ar

ity
 o

n 
th

e 
re

ta
in

ed
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 v

ia
 a

n 
in

iti
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 h
as

 r
ea

lis
ed

 s
om

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 e

xt
er

na
l f

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
re

fo
cu

si
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 a
re

as
 o

f n
ee

d 
 -

 fu
rt

he
r 

re
vi

ew
s 

w
ill

 r
el

ea
se

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 .

In
tr

od
uc

e 
m

ob
ile

 C
C

T
V

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t t
o 

re
du

ce
 b

us
 la

ne
 a

nd
 s

ch
oo

l v
ic

in
ity

 p
ar

ki
ng

 o
ffe

nc
es

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f a

dm
in

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l (

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 s

av
in

gs
 in

 th
is

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t)

Im
pl

em
en

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 b

y 
in

tr
od

uc
in

g 
a 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t e

nq
ui

ry
 s

er
vi

ce

G
en

er
al

 s
av

in
gs

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l r

ev
en

ue
 b

ud
ge

ts
 w

ith
in

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 N

et
w

or
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 c
ar

 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

ck
 o

ffi
ce

G
en

er
al

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t i

nc
l r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 in
 c

on
su

lta
nc

y,
se

rv
ic

es
 &

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
 s

up
po

rt

R
at

io
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
  t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

of
f s

tr
ee

t c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
re

gi
m

e,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 a

 p
ac

ka
ge

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

t a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il

S
:\C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
\N

ew
 F

in
an

ce
\R

ev
en

ue
\B

ud
ge

t P
re

pa
ra

tio
n\

20
10

-1
1\

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ep
or

tin
g\

re
po

rt
s\

m
ai

n 
re

po
rt

\2
01

0.
02

.0
1 

re
po

rt
\A

pp
 C

3 
D

el
iv

er
y 

pl
an

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
IN

A
L 

28
-0

1-
10

.x
ls

01
/0

2/
20

10

Page 194



A
pp

en
di

x 
C

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

: 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
20

10
/1

1 
R

ev
en

u
e 

B
u

d
g

et
 D

E
L

IV
E

R
Y

 P
L

A
N

/C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

20
10

/1
1 

B
as

e 
B

ud
ge

t (
In

c 
C

or
p 

in
fla

tio
n)

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
S

to
ck

tr
an

sf
er

R
ed

uc
tio

n/
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

ag
re

ed

A
dd

in
g 

B
ac

k 
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

gr
ee

d
A

dd
 N

ew
 

P
rio

rit
ie

s
R

ev
is

ed
T

ar
ge

t B
ud

ge
t

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l M
an

ag
em

en
t

18
0

18
0

F
in

an
ce

, A
ss

et
s 

&
 E

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
16

,5
12

(1
,1

22
)

(6
6)

40
15

,3
64

H
R

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

3,
13

3
(1

79
)

2,
95

4
IC

T
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s
6,

68
5

(7
12

)
(1

00
)

10
0

5,
97

3
C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2,

13
2

(6
4)

2,
06

8
D

em
oc

ra
cy

 a
nd

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e

5,
99

2
(1

73
)

(2
50

)
15

0
10

0
5,

81
9

34
,6

36
(2

,2
50

)
(4

16
)

29
0

10
0

32
,3

60
Im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 c
o

st
s

R
ev

en
u

e 
S

av
in

g
s

Le
ad

S
ta

rt
R

ev
en

ue
C

ap
ita

l
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

R
is

k 
of

*K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t's
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

bu
dg

et
:

O
ffi

ce
r

D
at

e?
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
S

av
in

g?
D

el
iv

er
y

1
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f a
dm

in
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l (
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 in
 th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t)
T

im
 H

ow
es

F
eb

-2
01

0
P

ot
en

tia
l

R
ed

un
d

C
os

ts
0

60
10

0
10

0
Y

es
A

m
be

r

2
P

ilo
t t

he
 'B

uy
er

 r
ol

l-o
ut

' a
cr

os
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt
. R

at
io

na
lis

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l p
ur

ch
as

er
s 

to
 tw

o.
 G

en
er

at
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
av

in
gs

 th
ro

ug
h 

be
tte

r 
ne

go
tia

tio
n 

fo
r 

go
od

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 c

os
ts

. 
M

al
co

lm
C

oe
A

pr
-2

01
0

0
0

50
80

10
0

Y
es

A
m

be
r

3
R

at
io

na
lis

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

of
 th

e 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

&
 B

en
ef

its
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

cl
os

er
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 
w

ith
 C

us
to

m
er

 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 A
m

al
ga

m
at

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

un
de

r 
a 

'm
ix

ed
 te

am
' a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

s.
 

JP
 S

an
de

rs
A

pr
-2

01
0

P
ot

en
tia

l
R

ed
un

d
C

os
ts

0
10

0
15

0
15

0
Y

es
A

m
be

r

4
A

m
al

ga
m

at
e 

te
am

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ne
w

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

an
ag

em
en

t s
tr

uc
tu

re
 -

 r
ed

uc
e 

po
st

s 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

M
al

co
lm

C
oe

F
eb

-2
01

0
P

ot
en

tia
l

R
ed

un
d

C
os

ts
0

20
0

30
0

30
0

Y
es

G
re

en

5
G

en
er

at
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

be
tte

r 
us

e 
of

 S
A

P
. L

in
ki

ng
 w

ith
 C

IP
13

, p
ilo

t a
nd

 in
tr

od
uc

e 
'm

an
ag

er
 s

el
f s

er
ve

' w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

re
du

ce
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
co

st
s 

ar
ou

nd
 s

om
e 

H
R

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. E

ns
ur

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 p

ay
ro

ll 
'fe

ed
s'

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

pr
ea

ds
he

et
s.

 

M
ar

k
G

rim
le

y
A

ug
-2

01
0

0
0

50
80

80
Y

es
A

m
be

r

6
E

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 s

av
in

gs
 th

ro
ug

h 
be

tte
r 

us
e 

of
 IT

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t. 

E
xp

lo
re

 th
e 

co
st

s 
vs

 b
en

ef
its

 
of

 E
D

R
M

S
/c

om
bi

ni
ng

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 d
at

ab
as

es
/c

en
tr

al
is

ed
 s

ca
nn

in
g/

ou
t-

so
ur

ci
ng

 m
ul

ti-
fu

nc
tio

na
l d

ev
ic

es
 a

nd
 p

rin
te

rs
. R

ed
 r

is
k 

un
til

 p
la

ns
 a

re
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 fu
rt

he
r.

N
ev

ill
e

C
an

on
M

ar
-2

01
0

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
Y

es
R

ed

7
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f D
em

oc
ra

cy
 &

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

- 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

st
af

fin
g

T
im

 H
ow

es
A

pr
-2

01
0

P
ot

en
tia

l
R

ed
un

d
C

os
ts

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

Y
es

A
m

be
r

8
C

on
si

de
r 

m
ov

in
g 

m
or

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

to
 th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e 

to
 g

en
er

at
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
es

JP
 S

an
de

rs
S

ep
-2

01
0

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
Y

es
R

ed

0
0

46
0

71
0

73
0

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il

S
:\C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
\N

ew
 F

in
an

ce
\R

ev
en

ue
\B

ud
ge

t P
re

pa
ra

tio
n\

20
10

-1
1\

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ep
or

tin
g\

re
po

rt
s\

m
ai

n 
re

po
rt

\2
01

0.
02

.0
1 

re
po

rt
\A

pp
 C

4 
C

or
p 

S
up

po
rt

 d
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
 2

1-
01

-1
0.

xl
s

01
/0

2/
20

10

Page 195



A
pp

en
di

x 
C

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

: 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

20
10

/1
1 

R
ev

en
u

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
/C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T

20
10

/1
1 

B
as

e 
B

ud
ge

t (
In

c 
C

or
p 

in
fla

tio
n)

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
S

to
ck

tr
an

sf
er

R
ed

uc
tio

n/
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

ag
re

ed
pr

io
rit

ie
s

A
dd

in
g 

B
ac

k 
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

gr
ee

d
A

dd
 N

ew
 

P
rio

rit
ie

s

R
ev

is
ed

T
ar

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

P
ol

ic
y 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 P
ar

tn
er

1,
30

4
1,

30
4

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
57

6
(1

20
)

12
0

0
57

6

1,
88

0
0

(1
20

)
12

0
0

1,
88

0
Im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 c
o

st
s

R
ev

en
u

e 
S

av
in

g
s

Le
ad

S
ta

rt
R

ev
en

ue
C

ap
ita

l
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

R
is

k 
of

 
*K

ey
 a

ct
io

ns
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t's

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
bu

dg
et

:
O

ffi
ce

r
D

at
e?

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

S
av

in
g?

D
el

iv
er

y

1
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f a
dm

in
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l (
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 in
 th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t)
Ia

n 
G

al
lin

A
pr

-2
01

0
P

ot
en

tia
l

R
ed

un
d

C
os

ts
0

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
Y

es
A

m
be

r

2
D

el
et

io
n 

of
 p

os
t a

nd
 a

m
al

ga
m

at
io

n 
of

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 a
cr

os
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
af

fin
g 

Ia
n 

G
al

lin
A

pr
-2

01
0

P
ot

en
tia

l
R

ed
un

d
C

os
ts

0
67

69
71

Y
es

A
m

be
r

3
LS

P
 b

ac
k 

of
fic

e 
co

st
s 

m
et

 fr
om

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ew

ar
d 

G
ra

nt
Ia

n 
G

al
lin

A
pr

-2
01

0
0

0
28

5
28

7
0

N
o

A
m

be
r

4
G

en
er

al
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 a

cr
os

s 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t
Ia

n 
G

al
lin

A
pr

-2
01

0
T

B
C

0
60

60
60

Y
es

A
m

be
r

5 6 7

0
0

41
2

41
6

13
1

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il

S
:\C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
\N

ew
 F

in
an

ce
\R

ev
en

ue
\B

ud
ge

t P
re

pa
ra

tio
n\

20
10

-1
1\

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ep
or

tin
g\

re
po

rt
s\

m
ai

n 
re

po
rt

\2
01

0.
02

.0
1 

re
po

rt
\A

pp
 C

 5
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

c 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 2

1-
01

-1
0.

xl
s

01
/0

2/
20

10

Page 196



A
pp

en
di

x 
C

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

: 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 It

em
s

20
10

/1
1 

R
ev

en
u

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 P

L
A

N
/C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T

20
10

/1
1 

B
as

e 
B

ud
ge

t (
In

c 
C

or
p 

in
fla

tio
n)

Im
pa

ct
 o

f 
S

to
ck

tr
an

sf
er

R
ed

uc
tio

n/
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

ag
re

ed

A
dd

in
g 

B
ac

k 
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

gr
ee

d
A

dd
 N

ew
 

P
rio

rit
ie

s
R

ev
is

ed
 T

ar
ge

t 
B

ud
ge

t
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

O
th

er
 C

or
po

ra
te

 It
em

s
(2

9,
21

3)
3,

29
3

(1
85

)
(6

21
)

10
0

(2
6,

62
6)

C
ap

ita
l F

in
an

ci
ng

11
,9

69
(7

47
)

(2
,1

95
)

1,
09

0
80

0
10

,9
17

R
ev

en
ue

 c
os

t -
 s

to
ck

 tr
an

sf
er

1,
00

0
(9

92
)

(1
,0

00
)

0
1,

20
0

20
8

A
re

a 
C

om
m

itt
ee

10
0

(1
00

)
10

0
10

0
P

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

- 
B

re
to

ns
id

e
10

0
(1

00
)

0
0

P
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
- 

C
iv

ic
 C

en
tr

e
50

0
(5

00
)

0
P

F
I (

E
du

ca
tio

n)
15

0
(1

50
)

10
0

10
0

P
en

si
on

 s
ho

rt
fa

ll
50

0
(5

00
)

0
C

en
tr

al
is

ed
 r

ep
ai

rs
 

70
0

(7
00

)
35

0
30

0
65

0
C

ar
e 

F
irs

t P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
40

0
40

0
C

or
po

ra
te

 r
ed

un
da

nc
y 

re
se

rv
e

55
2

55
2

(1
4,

19
5)

1,
55

4
(5

,4
30

)
1,

01
9

3,
35

2
(1

3,
70

0)
Im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 c
o

st
s

R
ev

en
u

e 
S

av
in

g
s

Le
ad

S
ta

rt
R

ev
en

ue
C

ap
ita

l
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

R
is

k 
of

*K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t's
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

bu
dg

et
:

O
ffi

ce
r

D
at

e?
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
S

av
in

g?
D

el
iv

er
y

1
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

e 
w

ill
 s

tr
iv

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

w
e 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 r
et

ur
n 

fr
om

 o
ur

 T
re

as
ur

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t  
ac

tiv
iti

es
. A

ct
io

ns
 

w
e 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 a
re

:

A
da

m
B

ro
om

e
A

pr
-1

0
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
T

B
C

T
B

C
A

m
be

r
* 

S
ee

k 
to

 b
uy

 o
ut

 o
f D

ev
on

 D
eb

t t
o 

en
ab

le
 m

or
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

ve
r 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 d
eb

t i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 o
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 

* 
In

ve
st

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
- 

se
ek

 o
pt

io
ns

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 r

et
ur

ns

* 
M

in
im

is
in

g 
bo

rr
ow

in
g 

co
st

s 
by

 u
se

 o
f i

nt
er

na
l b

al
an

ce
s 

an
d 

ca
sh

 fl
ow

 s
ur

pl
us

es

0
0

0
0

0

P
ly

m
ou

th
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il

S
:\C

or
po

ra
te

 R
es

ou
rc

es
\N

ew
 F

in
an

ce
\R

ev
en

ue
\B

ud
ge

t P
re

pa
ra

tio
n\

20
10

-1
1\

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ep
or

tin
g\

re
po

rt
s\

m
ai

n 
re

po
rt

\2
01

0.
02

.0
1 

re
po

rt
\A

pp
 C

6 
C

or
p 

ite
m

s 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
 2

1-
01

-1
0.

xl
s

01
/0

2/
20

10

Page 197



APPENDIX D

Service Sub Programme

Latest
Forecast
2009/2010

£000

Latest
Forecast
2010/2011

£000

Latest
Forecast
2011/2012

£000

Latest
Forecast
2012/2013

£000

Latest
Forecast
2013/2014

£000

 Latest 
Forecast
2014/15

£000

Sum of Full 
Programme
Cost      £000

Strategic Programmes PFI 2,733 700 3,433
Multi-Agency Working 100 2,100 2,200
Secondary Development / BSF 13,919 10,866 7,580 2,918 35,283
Primary Capital Programme 18,277 5,347 23,624
Special Education Needs and Inclusion 711 1,001 500 5,500 7,712
City Development (Section 106 Projects) 9 133 142
Expanding Popular Schools 100 950 1,050
Youth / Adult Learning 235 138 373
School Development:  Secondary 938 938
Removal of Temporary Classrooms:  Secondary 65 65
Condition Works:  Primary 59 59
Removal of Temporary Classrooms:  Primary 1,020 1,239 2,259
School Development:  Special Schools 135 135
Sustainability / Carbon Reduction / Spend to Save 753 428 350 350 1,881
Surestart / Extended Schools / Children's Centres / 
Families 523 585 90 90 1,288
Condition Works: 425 671 1,000 1,000 3,096
School Development:  Primary 2,156 2,156

Focused Work
Surestart / Extended Schools / Children's Centres / 
Families 1,141 1,681 2,822
14-19 Diploma Gateways & International 
Baccalaureate 2,184 473 587 3,244
ICT Projects 702 849 900 900 3,351
School Meals 788 2,661 3,449

School Led Projects Children's Social Care 177 310 487
Other Items 776 560 210 220 1,766
Condition Bid Programme (formerly Seed) 1,219 615 200 200 2,234
DDA / Access Bid Programme 75 100 100 100 375
SEN Placement Commitments in Schools 200 20 20 20 260

Devolved Formula Capital Other 231 1,226 61 61 1,579
Special 170 243 155 155 723
Primary 1,212 2,415 1,799 1,799 7,225
Secondary 829 1,297 1,697 1,697 5,520
Nursery 92 25 42 42 201
Other 2 2
Special 45 45
Primary 1,168 1,168
Secondary 588 588
Nursery 1 1
Planned Modernisation 2 8 10
New Opportunities Fund/Big Lottert (P.E. In Sport) 10 100 110

53,770 34,641 17,391 15,052 120,854

Environmental Services Environmental & Regulatory 1,093 1,093
Parks 151 223 374
Vehicle Purchases 584 584

Leisure Culture & Sport Life Centre Programme/Central Park 3,096 28,262 12,149 271 43,778
Libraries 829 17 846
Mount Edgcumbe 307 307
Museums 60 60
Leisure Pools 1,027 600 1,627

Adult Health & Social Care Community Care 576 135 711

6,630 29,237 13,242 271 49,380

Local Transport Plan Capital Maintenance 1,356 1,356
Demand Management 793 793
Public Transport 2,112 2,112
Road Safety 203 203
Safety Camera Partnership 98 78 176
Walking & Cycling 795 795
Dft settlement not yet allocated 83 4,802 5,600 6,085 6,525 6,656 29,751
Northern Corridor - A386 736 6 249 991

Transport - Non LTP Eastern Corridor 2,524 13,008 4,860 1,000 21,392
West End 2,928 2,928
A38 Junction Improvements 50 350 400
Barbican Landing Stage 12 12
Stonehouse Regeneration 182 182
Granby Green 54 54
Cumberland Gardens 370 18 388

Alleygates 22 22
Devonport Street Lighting 373 373
North Stonehouse 80 80
Devonport Heritage Trail 91 91

Planning Planning 164 80 52 34 10 340
Strategic Waste Projects Recycling 852 852

Waste 3,024 4,811 2,588 102 10,525
Economic Development Commercial Developments 1,036 227 1,263
Strategic Housing Disabled Adaptations 588 588

HECA Programme Private Sector 418 150 568
Misc Schemes 100 100
Partnership & Affordable Housing 294 294
Private Sector Grants 2,180 1,574 3,754
Private Sector Regeneration 316 316

Development Projects Devonport Park 875 2,315 200 3,390

21,189 28,939 13,549 6,221 6,535 7,656 84,089
Information Systems Information Systems 1,087 500 500 500 500 3,087
Legal Services Legal Services 2 2
Property & Economic Development Corporate Real Estate 1,352 500 1,852

2,441 500 1,000 500 500 4,941

HRA
Housing Revenue Account Decency Standards 4,751 4,751

Devonport 1,323 1,323
Disabled Adaptations 401 401
HRA Capitalised Salaries 520 520
Major Repairs 996 996

HRA Total 7,991 7,991
Grand Total 92,021 93,317 45,182 22,044 7,035 7,656 267,255

Corporate Support Total

Development & Regeneration Total

Devolved Formula Capital Projects

Completed Programmes:  Outstanding Payments

Development & Regeneration

Transport - Development Projects

Community & Neighbourhood Total

Community & Neighbourhood

Children's Services Total

Plymouth City Council Capital Programme - Medium Term Financial Forecast 

Children's Services

CRandall version 1 S:\Corporate Resources\New Finance\Revenue\Budget Preparation\2010-11\Corporate Reporting\reports\main report\2010.02.01 report\Appendix D final version 010210.xls Finance01/02/2010

Page 198



Appendix E 

Local Government Finance Settlement 2010/11

Approximately 70% of all the funding for the Council comes from the Government. 
This takes the form of general formula based grant, referred to as the annual 
settlement, and a number of ringfenced and unringfenced grants. 2010/11 
represents the final year of the three year settlement announced under the 
Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR07).  

Plymouth’s Settlement 2010/11

The annual settlement (formula grant) for Plymouth was confirmed as £106.022m 
on 21 January 2010, and was in line with the indicative allocations outlined in the 
original CSR07 notifications. This amount represents an increase of £2.567m or 
2.5%. Nationally formula grant was increased by 2.65% but % increases varied 
between authority types and regions.  The increase for other Unitary Authorities is 
as shown on the graph below.

Formula Grant Increases Unitary Councils

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

B
ou

rn
em

ou
th

B
ra

ck
ne

ll 
F

or
es

t
B

rig
ht

on
 &

 H
ov

e
P

oo
le

R
ea

di
ng

S
lo

ug
h

S
w

in
do

n
W

ar
rin

gt
on

W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
W

in
ds

or
 a

nd
 M

ai
de

nh
ea

d
W

ok
in

gh
am

P
or

ts
m

ou
th

W
ilt

sh
ire

S
ou

th
am

pt
on

S
ou

th
en

d-
on

-S
ea

C
he

sh
ire

 W
es

t &
 C

he
st

er
M

id
dl

es
br

ou
gh

H
al

to
n

B
ed

fo
rd

P
ly

m
ou

th
B

ris
to

l
Y

or
k

C
en

tr
al

 B
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

S
to

ck
to

n-
on

-T
ee

s
D

ar
lin

gt
on

Le
ic

es
te

r
Is

le
s 

of
 S

ci
lly

C
he

sh
ire

 E
as

t
N

or
th

um
be

rla
nd

T
hu

rr
oc

k
R

ed
ca

r 
an

d 
C

le
ve

la
nd

N
ot

tin
gh

am
D

ur
ha

m
D

er
by

H
ar

tle
po

ol
K

in
gs

to
n 

up
on

 H
ul

l
S

to
ke

-o
n-

T
re

nt
N

or
th

 S
om

er
se

t
M

ilt
on

 K
ey

ne
s

P
et

er
bo

ro
ug

h
M

ed
w

ay
S

ou
th

 G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

Lu
to

n
S

hr
op

sh
ire

N
or

th
 E

as
t L

in
co

ln
sh

ire
Is

le
 o

f W
ig

ht
 C

ou
nc

il
B

at
h 

&
 N

or
th

 E
as

t S
om

er
se

t
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

B
la

ck
po

ol
N

or
th

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ire

C
or

nw
al

l
E

as
t R

id
in

g 
of

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 th

e 
W

re
ki

n
B

la
ck

bu
rn

 w
ith

 D
ar

w
en

T
or

ba
y

R
ut

la
nd

The purpose of the annual formula grant is to support ongoing core services 
distributed according to formula driven relative need and further details are outlined 
below.

Methodology

The formula grant allocation remains based on the four block model as outlined 
below:

! Relative needs amount which is based on formulae designed to reflect the 
relative needs of each authority in providing services with the most 
important factor being estimated population figures.

Page 199



Appendix E 

! Relative resources amount, which is a negative figure and takes account of 
the fact that areas that can raise more income locally require less support 
from Government. The overriding factor here is the estimated taxbase for 
the authority. 

! Central allocation, which is the remaining element of overall available grant 
that is shared between authorities on a per head basis. This effectively 
represents the minimum amount an authority would need to deliver services 
before adjustments for relative need. 

! Floor damping, which is the means by which grant increases in excess of 
a guaranteed minimum are scaled back with resources redistributed to 
those below the floor, thus ensuring all authorities receive a guaranteed 
minimum increase. The floor for 2010/11 for upper tier Authorities has been 
set at 1.5% a reduction from 1.75% in 2009/10. The impact of the 
dampening mechanism has meant Plymouth has had its grant scaled back 
by £2.574m for 2010/11.

The data used in the figures for 2010/11 is based on the following: 

! Population is based on 2004-based sub-national projections for 2010. For 
Plymouth this indicates a population of 247,574. This has been increased 
substantially from previous figures but still remains below latest published 
census estimates (2007 estimated figure 252,800). 

! The Taxbase assumed for 2010 is 80,231 compared to our estimated 
taxbase of 78,056.

The variance between Government estimated figures and PCC ‘actuals’ continues 
to have a detrimental effect on the level of grant received by the City and 
representations continue to be made to DCLG.

Comparison between Years

Table 1 shows how the grant for 2010/11 compares to the grant for 2009/10

Table 1 

2009/10 2010/11 Net Increase 
in grant 

£m £m £m
Relative Needs Amount 75.302 77.483 2.181
RSG grant adjustment -0.027 -0.027
Relative Resource Amount -16.165 -17.485 -1.320
Central Allocation 47.285 48.597 1.312
Floor Dampening -2.941 -2.574 0.367
Formula Grant 103.455 106.022 2.567

Page 200



Appendix E 

Grants

Non- ringfenced Area Based Grant

Area Based Grant (ABG) was introduced under the CSR07 and is a general grant 
providing additional funding to areas according to specific policy criteria. It is not 
ringfenced, and is available to be used for any purpose, including supporting an 
Authority’s partners delivering the Local Area Agreement (LAA). The Government 
continues to make new grant awards via the ABG mechanism wherever possible.  

In 2010/11 the Government support for the Supporting People programme will no 
longer be made as a specific ring fenced grant but will become part of the 
Council’s ABG and a sum of £8.213m has been included within the confirmed ABG 
allocation. However the transitional working neighbourhood funding has now 
ceased (£0.678m received in 2009/10). 

The total ABG anticipated for 2010/11 is £21.644m compared to £14.727m for 
2009/10.

Specific grants

Specific grants may be either ringfenced or unringfenced. In future specific grants 
will only be used where justified and will be allocated according, for example to 
demand, bid and performance.  The majority of the grants are determined as part 
of the sending reviews and allocated to the various Government departments for 
reallocation to local authorities.  

Plymouth expects to receive £185.194m in specific grants, which represents an 
increase of 0.7% over 2009/10.  This includes an indicative allocation of 
£145.655m of estimated Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) which is ringfenced for 
schools type activity. The final amount of DSG for the year will not be confirmed 
until May 2010. Listed below in table 2 is a summary of the Specific Grants within 
the Aggregate External Finance allocated to Plymouth, analysed by Directorate. A 
more detailed analysis of the grants is given in Annex 1 

Table 2 

Increase
Above

2009/10 2010/11 2009/10
SUMMARY 

£m £m £m
Children's Services 172.770 182.136 9.366
Community Services 9.543 1.527* (8.016)
Development 1.501 1.531         0.030 
Corporate Resources 0 0 0
Corporate Items 0 0 0

TOTAL SPECIFIC GRANTS 183.814 185.194   1.380 

Annual increase/decrease 0.7% 
* note supporting people now paid via ABG (£8.213m). See comments above. 

Page 201



Appendix E 

There are also a number of grants that fall outside of CSR07 allocations. These 
grants are announced by the relevant Government Departments at various times 
during the year the, key grants being: 

! Learning Skills Council 
! Administration Subsidy for Housing Benefit 
! Planning and Housing Delivery Grant 
! Homelessness Grant 

The Council has been awarded £21.443m from the Learning Skills Council. This is 
for school 6th Forms, Adult Learning and Post 16 Special Education Needs.  The 
responsibilities of the Learning Skills Council will be transferring to local authorities 
and a newly created Young People Learning Agency (regionally based) from 2010.
The governance and accountability issues are currently being considered 
nationally but in the short to medium term, financial responsibilities for local 
authorities will be as a 'passporting' body. 

The award for housing benefits (admin) is £2.486m.

The remaining grants have not yet been announced. 

There are also a number of capital grants which are used to finance the capital 
programme.

Future Years

CSR07 outlined the Governments spending plans for a three year period ending 31 
March 2011. As part of the pre budget report, the Government announced that the 
next spending review would be delayed until after the general election. 

The last two years has seen unprecedented financial times and the worst 
recession for decades. National debt has soared to £178bn as the Government 
has stepped in to support the banking industry, the business sector and the public 
in general eg the reduction in VAT to 15%.

This debt will have to be repaid over the medium to long term. There will be a 
general election in early 2010 bringing a possible emergency budget, and all 
national parties have made clear there will need to be tight public expenditure 
constraints. Authorities, used to seeing an increase in government grant year on 
year, are therefore anticipating real term grant cuts in future years.  The authority 
has already seen the reduction in both current and future year grant allocations 
from some of the government departments and agencies such as the RDA.

Our medium term financial plan is being modelled on an assumed grant reduction 
of -2.5% year on year from 2011/12 but this could be as much as 10%. Against this 
background, work is also being undertaken on the robustness of the data used 
within the settlement formula. Changes to the formula can result in wide swings in 
grant between authorities, with protection afforded to authorities through the 
‘dampening mechanism’ (at the expense of other authorities) although the 
guaranteed minimum % has been gradually reducing during the last three years.
Each +/- 1% of grant equates to approximately £1.06m based on the current grant 
level.

Page 202



Appendix E Annex 1

09/10 allocation 10/11 Actual 
allocation

Variance Comments

£m £m £m

Community Services

Supporting People Programme 8.213 0.000 -8.213 Area Based Grant from 2010/11

ASB Family Intervention Project 0.131 0.092 -0.039 Home Office Element
Parenting Practicioner funding 0.050 0.050 0.000 3 year funding

AIDS Support 0.047 0.047 -0.047
Grant amount for 2010/11 to be 
confirmed

Social Care reform grant 1.007 1.243 0.236
From DOH - New specific grant, first 
year 2008/09

Stroke Strategy 0.095 0.095 0.000
From DOH - New specific grant, first 
year 2008/09

Sub total Community Services 9.543 1.527 -8.063

Childrens Services

Dedicated Schools Grant 140.166 145.655 5.489
Based on Pupil Numbers.  Final 
allocation for year not known until May 
2010

School Standards Grant 7.825 7.924 0.099
Estimate based on 2.1% increase less 
1.1% Pupil No. decrease

Diploma Formula Grant 0.328 0.400 0.072

Standards Fund -see below 0.000
Shown by detailed project (see below & 
area based grants)

SF1.1 Schools Development Grant 10.606 10.693 0.087

SF1.2 School Lunch 0.399 0.389 -0.010

SF1.3 Ethnic Minority Achievement 0.154 0.160 0.006

SF1.5 Making Good Progress 0.609 1.321 0.712

SF1.6 Extended Schools Sustainability 0.647 0.911 0.264

SF1.6a Extended Schools Subidy 0.18 0.977 0.797
SF1.7 Targeted Support for Primary 
Strategy

1.023 0.811 -0.212

SF1.8 Targeted Support for Secondary 
Strategy

0.596 0.582 -0.014

SF1.10 Early Years increasing flexibility 0.304 1.203 0.899

SF1.11 Total Music 0.281 0.278 -0.003

SF1.12 Playing for Success 0.160 0.16 0.000
Second PFS project from 2009/10 at 
Mountbatten Centre

SF1.14 KS4 Engagement Programme 0.093 0 -0.093
Estimate based on 2.1% increase less 
1.1% Pupil No. decrease

SF1.15 National Challenge 0.357 0 -0.357
Estimate based on 2.1% increase less 
1.1% Pupil No. decrease

Surestart, Early Years and Childcare 7.202 8.943 1.741
Surestart EY grant now grouped 
differently.  This is Sure Start  Children's 
Centres, 2 Year olds & Aiming High

Shortbreaks aiming high for disabled 
children

0.230 0 -0.230 Included in Sure Start above

Youth Opportunity Fund 0.159 0.159 0.000

Challenge and Support Grant 0.075 0.075 0.000 Indicative figures as per LA circular

Fair Play Playbuilder 0.020 0.013 -0.007

14-19 Prospectus/CAP 0.011 0.011 New Grant 10/11

IS Index 0.155 0.085 -0.070 Indicative figures 10/11

Right2be cared4 0.133 0.028 -0.105

Targeted Mental Health in Schools 0.220 0.150 -0.070 Grant finishes 10/11

Think Family Grant 0.643 0.818 0.175

Youth Crime Action Plan 0.205 0.175 -0.030 Grant finishes 10/11

Generations Together 0 0.200 0.200 New Grant 10/11
Key Stage 2 Career Related Learning 
Pathfinder Grant

0 0.015 0.015 New Grant 10/11

Sub Total Childrens Services 172.770 182.136 9.366

Development

New Growth Points Initiative 0.416 0.416 0.000 Eastern Corridor Development costs

Concessionary Fares 1.085 1.115 0.030

Sub Total Development 1.501 1.531 0.030

Total Specific Grants within Aggregate 
External Finance

183.814 185.194 1.380

Specific Grants within  Aggregate External Finance 

Page 203



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject:   Advertising Services  
 
Committee:   Cabinet  
 
Date:   9 February 2010.  
 
Cabinet Member:  Councillor  Bowyer  
 
CMT Member:  Director for Corporate Support  
 
Author: Clive Woodley, Product Portfolio Manager, Strategic 

Procurement.   
 

Contact:   Tel:  (01752)  (30) 5425  
   e-mail:clive.woodley@plymouth.gov.uk                       
 
Ref:   Tender / contract number 09208   
 
Part:    I     
 
Executive Summary:  
This contract is to be awarded in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 
and applicable EU law. It is a legal requirement that the Council competitively tenders its 
high value contracts. This report identifies the processes employed and subsequent 
recommendations for its contract award. 
 

This contract award will be for the following services:- 
• Recruitment advertising – The production and placement of a range of 

advertising media in support of the Human Resource department for single or 
multi-recruitment campaigns. 

• Statutory notices, customer information publications - The production and 
placement of public information notices. 

         
Corporate Plan 2009 - 2012: 
This contract award will support the objectives of the Council by managing and were 
possible reducing spend on Advertising Services in a managed professional manner. 
Effective communications to the public are critical for the Council to portray itself as a 
responsible authority. This contract is intended to be the vehicle for the management of 
the advertising budget across the Council. 
           
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
As the Council’s budgets come under increased pressure, this contract will aid the efficient 
control of advertising budgets by ensuring the targeting of the best media to meet our 
needs whilst eliminating those adverts that are not required and do not enhance or support 
our Corporate objectives. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, etc. 
No other implications for this contract award have been identified. 
  

Agenda Item 11Page 205



 

 
 
 
 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
Recommendations. 
The tendering team recommend that Euro RSCG Riley (‘Euro Riley’/’Riley’) is awarded a 
contract for the Advertising Services across the Council. The contract should be for three 
years with an option for the Council to extend for a further two, following a review and 
approval from main stakeholders. 
 
Reasons. 
During the extensive evaluation process Euro Riley obtained top marks in each of the 
three categories: commercial considerations, cost of service and technical ability. 
The other 4 tenderers delivered professional, competent submissions. However Riley’s not 
only demonstrated an in depth knowledge of the Councils needs and progressive future 
objectives, but also the total cost of service was 8% less than the nearest price tendered 
Full evaluation breakdown is available in the Part II Report.   
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
A breakdown of the service into recruitment, managed by HR, and public notices & 
informative campaigns, managed by Communications, was considered. This would allow 
smaller companies the ability to tender.  However, even local SMEs canvassed for their 
views eliminated this option as an inefficient solution.  It would have caused confusion for 
internal stakeholders and added cost to the service. Hence the only efficient solution was a 
single supply contract. 
 
Background papers: 
Report of action taken under delegated authority by a Cabinet member Councillor Bowyer 
– reference FPPG 2 09/10 - including full evaluation strategy. 
OJEU notice 2009/S 161-234327 placed 22nd August 2009. 
PQQ evaluation and full tender documentation and evaluation process. 
    
 
 
Sign off: 
 
Finance MC 

0910.01
5  

Legal HB 
1092  

HR 

 

Corp 
prop 

N/R  IT N/R Strategic 
Proc 

JK 235 

Originating SMT Member: Malcolm Coe  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 206



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject:  Proposal to extend the age range, redesignate and 

cease the residential status of Woodlands School 

Committee:  Cabinet 

Date:    9 February 2010 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Monahan  

CMT Member: Director of Services for Children and Young 
People 

Author: Jayne Gorton, Senior Education Officer, School 
Organisation and Pupil Access 

Contact:    Tel: (01752) 307472 
    Email:  jayne.gorton@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:    MC.JEG(CAB)(92)(17/12/09) 

Part: 1   

Executive Summary:  
This report seeks members’ authorisation: 

• To hold formal consultations with all interested parties on a proposal to extend 
the age range of Woodlands Community Special School from 2-17 to 2-19 to 
incorporate 6th form places with effect from September 2010; 

• To hold formal consultations with all interested parties on a proposal to 
redesignate Woodlands Community Special School from Physical Difficulties to 
Physical and Sensory Difficulties with effect from September 2010; 

• To hold formal consultations with all interested parties on a proposal to develop 
a Short Break Residential Unit on the Wood View Learning Community site and 
therefore, to seek dual registration as a residential Special School and a 
Children’s Home for the period up to 31 August 2011 and then to register the 
Short Break Residential Unit as a Children’s Home from 1 September 2011.  At 
this point Woodlands Community Special School would cease to be registered 
as a residential special school. 

• For the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, in light of the 
outcomes of and responses to the formal consultation, to determine whether to 
publish formal proposals (Public Notice) to undertake the above changes 
affecting Woodlands Community Special School; and to determine whether to 
implement proposals outlined in any such Public Notice. 

        
Corporate Plan 2009-2012:   
Extending the age range of Woodlands Community Special School from 17 to 19 
would support the following Corporate Improvement Priorities (CIPs): 

CIP3 – Helping people to live independently – Would provide pupils at the school 
with more time in a familiar and safe environment to learn and develop 
independence. 

Agenda Item 12Page 207



CIP 8 – Improving skills and educational achievement – Would provide post-16 
education for pupils currently at the school, widen the options available across the 
City and reduce the numbers of young people Not in Education, Employment or 
Training (NEET). 

CIP 9 – Developing high quality places to learn in – The new 6th form would be 
housed within Woodlands Community Special School’s brand new buildings 
developed under a PFI project as part of the Wood View Learning Community in 
Whitleigh. 

Redesignating Woodlands Community Special School from Physical Difficulties to 
Physical and Sensory Difficulties would support the following Corporate 
Improvement Priorities (CIPs): 

CIP 4 – Reducing inequalities between communities – Would provide inclusive 
educational opportunities for pupils with special needs. 

CIP 7 – Keeping children safe – Would safeguard the health, safety and 
wellbeing of the most vulnerable and disadvantaged children. 

CIP 8 – Improving skills and educational achievement – Would deliver the 
Inclusion Strategy for Education accelerating the progress made by lower attaining 
pupils and those with Special Educational Needs. 

Ceasing the residential status of Woodlands Community Special School and 
replacing it with a Short Break Residential Unit (registered under Children’s Homes 
Regulations) would support the following Corporate Improvement Priorities (CIPs): 

CIP 1 – Improving customer service – Implementing a restructured service with 
all-year round management oversight.  This service will therefore provide a more 
customer focused response and will be inspected to the higher standards required 
by Children’s Home regulations.  It formalises the arrangements to provide short 
break stays for children. 

CIP 4 – Reducing inequalities between communities – Short breaks provide vital 
support to parents and families with disabled children.  Families often experience 
disadvantage and access to short break opportunities enables families to live 
“ordinary” lives. 
         
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 

• Provision has been made within the 2009/10 Services for Children and Young 
People revenue budget to meet the minimal costs of the consultation. 

• Incorporating new 6th form places would not necessitate any additional capital 
funding since the pupils would be housed in existing accommodation within the 
new Woodlands Community Special School buildings on the Wood View 
Learning Community in Whitleigh. 

• Incorporating new 6th form places would provide professional development 
opportunities for current staff. 

• Revenue funding for the new 6th form places would be provided through the 
school funding arrangements. 

Page 208



• The budgets/staffing for the school will not be affected by the change in 
designation as all schools are funded on the number of places currently 
purchased by the authority and these places have been agreed until 2010/2011.  
Future places will then be agreed for the next three years. 

• Ceasing the residential status will have implications for the 2010/11 budget as it 
will not be possible to meet the costs of the short breaks provision from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant which currently funds the residential provision.  The 
additional funding requirement will vary from £0.200m to £0.400m depending on 
the use of places by other authorities and appropriate budget provision will be 
identified predominantly from the Integrated Disabilities element of the Services 
for Children and Young People revenue budget to cover this cost in 2010/11.  
The lower figure will be required if the current pattern of use continues. 

• There may also be a shortfall in the April to August period of the following 
financial year, 2011/12 but this will be mitigated by any new places being charged 
at the full cost recovery rate and is therefore difficult to quantify.  This will be 
closely monitored and any funding requirement managed from within existing 
budget resources. 

• With effect from 1 September 2011 the Short Break Residential Unit (registered 
under Children’s Homes Regulations) will be funded at a full unit cost price based 
on a cost per bed from participating Local Authorities. 

• With effect from 1 April 2010 a new staffing structure will be implemented, the 
number of staff required will be reduced and staff will be required to apply for new 
jobs in the service. 
This will therefore mean that some staff will be at risk of redundancy which will be 
met from the Services for Children and Young Peoples revenue budget. All staff 
and Trade Unions have been consulted on the proposals for the future. 
   

Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
None. 

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 

a) The current official designation of Woodlands Community Special School as a 
Physical Difficulties (PD) school is no longer appropriate.  It no longer reflects 
the complex range of special educational needs for which the school now 
caters. Gradually over recent years, pupils with a range of special needs have 
been allocated places in accordance with the more specialist provision that 
special schools have been developing. 

b) It is considered to be in the best interests of children, families and staff at the 
school to redesignate the provision to reflect the current needs of the pupils, 
and to extend the age range to incorporate post-16 provision. 

c) Replacing the school’s residential status with a stand-alone Short Break 
Residential Unit (registered under the Children’s Homes Regulations) will 
formalise the arrangements to provide short-break stays for children and give 
vital support to parents and families with disabled children. 

Page 209



d) In order to implement the proposals to extend the age range of Woodlands 
Community Special School from 2-17 to 2-19 to incorporate post-16 places, to 
change the school’s official designation and to cease the residential status if 
the school, it is a requirement under the Schools Standards and Framework Act 
1998 for the Council to hold formal consultations with all interested parties.  
Therefore it is recommended that the Director of Services for Children and 
Young People be authorised to hold formal consultations with all interested 
parties on the proposal. 

e) The second stage of statutory procedures requires the Council to consider all 
the outcomes of and responses to the formal consultation before deciding 
whether to publish formal proposals in a public notice.  Therefore it is 
recommended that the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, in light 
of the outcomes of and responses to the formal consultation, be authorised to 
determine whether to publish formal proposals to undertake the above changes 
affecting Woodlands Community Special School. 

f) If a formal proposal is published, the third stage of the statutory procedures 
requires the Council to consider all the outcomes of and responses to the 
public notice and make a final determination whether or not to proceed with any 
of the proposals.  Therefore, if a public notice is published, it is recommended 
that the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People be authorised to make 
a final determination as to this proposal.  

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
Doing nothing was considered and rejected on the basis that: 

• This provides an opportunity for the Council to create greater diversity in the 
provision of post-16 provision for children with special educational needs. 

• The school has already developed and specialises in the aspects of SEN 
captured by the proposed redesignation. 

• Following changes over the last few years to the service provided by the 
Residence in Woodlands Community Special School, Ofsted have advised that 
the residential services needs to be registered under the Children’s Homes 
Regulations.  The proposals are phased with a period of dual registration under 
the Residential Special School and Children’s Homes Regulations, followed by 
separate registration of the Short Breaks Residential Unit under the Children’s 
Homes Regulations, thereby ceasing the residential status of the School. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:   
Investment for Children – Strategy for Change 2008 
Plymouth 14-19 Strategy 2007 – 2012 Overview – January 09 update (attached) 
Wood View Learning Community Consultation Paper on Woodlands Residence 
(attached) 
Plymouth Children and Young People’s Plan 2008-2011 – 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/cypp  

 

Page 210



Sign off:  comment must be sought from those whose area of responsibility may be 
affected by the decision, as follows (insert initials of Finance and Legal reps, and of 
HR, Corporate Property, IT and Strat. Proc. as appropriate): 
 
Fin KF211209

ChS281 
Leg LT 

1083 
 

HR 
 

CH  
17.12.
09 

Corp 
Prop 

N/A IT N/A Strat 
Proc 

N/A 

Originating SMT Member:  Maggie Carter, Assistant Director for Learner and Family 
Support 
 

Page 211



Introduction 
 
Woodlands Community Special School is a non-selective school for pupils with 
physical difficulties aged 2-17.   Woodlands School also facilitates an outreach 
service which meets the needs of over 130 pupils with physical difficulties across 
Plymouth schools.  Woodlands is the only maintained school for pupils with physical 
difficulties in the South West Peninsula.  In the past, pupils have travelled long 
distances to access the school and have needed to make use of the residential 
accommodation.  
 
Woodlands Community Special School is a key part of the Wood View Learning 
Community; a hard federation of schools along with Sir John Hunt Community Sports 
College and Whitleigh Community Primary School.  This formal collaboration of 
partners also includes Whitleigh Children’s Centre, Wise Owls Neighbourhood 
Nursery, the Centre for Young Parents, Whitleigh Youth Centre and Adult Education 
and more recently the Plymouth Forest School.  This extensive partnership aims to 
deliver a cohesive range of services to the children, young people and their families 
of the Wood View Learning Community.  The Campus was built using PFI credits 
and is a formal partnership between Plymouth City Council and the Pyramid 
Consortium.  Interserve are responsible for the construction and their facilities 
management team are running the premises.   
 
The proposal in the Council’s Strategy for Change relating to the Learning 
Community includes ‘consider commissioning post-16 provision and facilities; 
consider expanding to meet any increased demand arising from the potential 
Northern Corridor development’.  In addition to this, new legislation demands that 
local authorities ensure high quality educational provision for pupils with learning 
difficulties and disabilities until the age of 25.  This will place considerable pressure 
on finances and services as there is currently only one special school that can take 
pupils beyond 16 in the City.  
 
The federated Governing Body of the Wood View Learning Community is in full 
support of the current proposal to extend the age range of Sir John Hunt CSC to 
include post-16 which, with the proposed Woodlands provision, would provide a fully 
inclusive Campus to meet the needs of a wide range of pupils from 2 to 19. 
  
Woodlands have an agreed number of places purchased by the LA of 70 pupils; 
there are currently 68 on roll, but the school is likely to be full during this academic 
year.  The school has a long history of successfully providing specialist education to 
young people living in Plymouth, Devon and Cornwall who have severe and 
exceptional needs.  The scope of the school has changed since the trend towards 
inclusion from the 1980’s and as a result, has responded to a changing population of 
pupils.  The majority of pupils admitted to the school have complex physical and/or 
sensory difficulties often associated with additional medical needs.  Some of the 
pupils also have additional learning difficulties.  The school’s population is therefore 
diverse and requires a range of specialist approaches to ensure high quality of 
education.  This is reflected in the school’s aims which, in partnership with parents 
and the community, are to: 
 

Page 212



• Create a happy, secure and supportive learning environment, rich in 
creativity and challenge. 

• Ensure that every pupil has a voice that is valued. 
• Offer every pupil full and equal access to all areas of the curriculum, taking 

into account developmental needs through personalised learning. 
• Help each pupil achieve the greatest possible degree of independence 

within the areas of intellectual, physical, social, creative, spiritual and 
emotional development. 

• Prepare each pupil for life beyond school, encouraging a sense of self-
worth and recognition of themselves as part of the community. 

• Integrate therapies with curriculum activities wherever possible. 
• Value all adults’ and pupils’ contributions to the school’s progress and 

celebrate success and achievement. 
• Foster self-confidence, a high degree of responsibility and respect for self 

and others. 
• Ensure all adults access appropriate training and encourage development 

to reach their full potential. 
 
During 2009 Plymouth City Council and the Wood View Learning Community 
Federated Governing Body have undertaken a review of the services delivered by 
the residence at Woodlands Community Special School. This review has shown that 
the changes that have been implemented to the residence service over the last four 
years have resulted in the need to make some changes to the School’s registration.  
The residence service has been providing both boarding provision for pupils to 
attend the school and short break residential provision for families to have a break 
from care.  Therefore, it is proposed to seek dual registration under both the 
Residential Special School and  Children’s Homes Regulations  for the period up to 
31 August 2011 and then to register a Short Breaks Residential Unit (replacing the 
school residence service under the Children’s Homes Regulations from 1 September 
2011.  At this point Woodlands School would cease to be a residential special 
school.  
 
Since 2005 Woodlands Community Special School residence has offered a short 
breaks service for families for 350 nights in the year.   In addition it provides a short 
break residential service for children and young people who attend schools in 
Plymouth other than Woodlands Community Special School.  Since June 2007 the 
decision regarding who can access short breaks at Woodlands residence service 
has been made through the Short Breaks Resource Panel and not the Headteacher 
of Woodlands Community Special School.  For these reasons, Ofsted have taken a 
view over these changes to the service and have advised the City Council that the 
residence needs to be registered under the Children’s Homes Regulations.  
 
Recent proposed changes to the School’s residence services and the development 
of a Short Break Residential Unit have been consulted on with all stakeholders of 
Woodlands residence.  This consultation has taken place over the last six months 
and meetings were held with staff and parents/carers in June 2009 where the initial 
findings of the review were shared and feedback received.  This directly informed the 
final proposal which was shared with staff and parents/carers in October 2009.  At 
the same time a detailed consultation with the children and young people who 

Page 213



currently access the residence for short breaks was undertaken and the outcomes of 
this consultation will be published within the next few weeks. 
 
The proposed changes will mean that the residential service will no longer remain as 
part of Woodlands Community Special School but will become a stand alone  
Short Break Residential Unit that is delivered on behalf of Plymouth Children’s Trust 
through the Wood View Learning Community.  The residential service will remain 
available to support families with disabled children in Plymouth, Devon, Cornwall and 
surrounding areas. 
 
In 2008 the School had an IDACI (Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index) 
score of 0.3 meaning that 30% of the pupils aged up to 16 years are living in low 
income families. The IDACI score measures the proportion of children under the age 
of 16 in a Super Output Area (SOA) living in low income households.  Postcode 
analysis related to SOAs indicates an IDACI ‘score’ for each pupil within each 
school.  The average score for a school (the total of all pupils’ scores divided by the 
total number of pupils) is then compared to the national (32,482) SOAs percentile 
rank.  IDACI codes range from 0.0 (least deprived) to 0.9 (most deprived).  
 
The School’s CVA (Contextual Value Added (KS2-4)) score in 2008 was 1015.2.  
CVA is a measure of how well pupils have achieved relative to what they might have 
been expected to achieve.  CVA adjusts predicted achievement to take account not 
only of prior attainment but also a range of other pupil-related factors outside a 
school's control that affect performance including gender, ethnicity, age in year, SEN 
status, free school meals status, first language, whether a pupil is or has been in 
care, mobility and IDACI score.  A score of more than 1,000 means that, overall the 
school has performed better than most schools, and well above those schools with a 
similar mix of students and factors.  Woodlands Score indicates that pupils achieve 
well at the school, often out performing those in similar special schools.  Woodlands 
School’s CVA is also higher than the local authority average score for all schools, 
including special schools, demonstrating the value added to children’s education by 
the school. 
 
Woodlands were judged ‘good’ with outstanding care for pupils well being features 
by Ofsted in February 2008.  Parents and pupils have long reported in their annual 
review meetings that they would like to have the options to stay on for post-16 
education at Woodlands.  In a recent survey, 100% of responding parents said that 
they felt well supported by the school and several said this could only be improved 
by offering additional post-16 facilities.  Pupils in their last years at Woodlands often 
make strong friendships with one another and have expressed that they want to 
continue learning together, although often this cannot be facilitated due to their 
needs.  In the last few years, pupils leaving Woodlands at 16 have been supported 
to take up the most appropriate placements for their needs.  In the last three years, 
pupils have accessed post-16 education at the following places:  National Star 
College, Cheltenham (6 pupils), Mill Ford School (4 pupils), Dame Hannah Rogers 
School, Ivybridge (3 pupils), Saltash College (3 pupils), City College Plymouth (3 
pupils), Lipson Community College (3 pupils).  
 
The numbers of pupils who will be able to access more mainstream provision such 
as that provided at Lipson Community College or the further education college will 

Page 214



sharply decline over the next two years as the complexity of pupils’ needs is now 
much increased throughout future cohorts of leavers.  Specialist provision will be 
required by pupils leaving Woodlands in the future; increased numbers of pupils who 
have lifting and handling needs, medical needs and complex disabilities will 
challenge traditional providers of post-16 provision both locally and nationally.  The 
majority of pupils with sensory needs leaving Woodlands aged 16 go on to attend 
specialist provision as these are the only settings able to meet their needs 
appropriately.  The impact of sending pupils out of county when they are still young 
and not necessarily ready to live independently at college is very challenging for 
most students.  The cost of placement at specialist colleges has to be met by the 
local authority and this type of provision is usually very expensive to access.  Local 
authorities also have responsibility to provide education for all pupils with learning 
difficulties up to the age of 25 and Woodlands Community Special School will 
participate in the menu of options for young people with exceptional needs. 
 
Change to DCSF Designation from Physical Difficulties to Physical and 
Sensory Difficulties 
 
Pupils who have physical and sensory disabilities make up 0.04% of the education 
population and, while this number is very small, their needs are expensive to meet in 
terms of therapy, care and health needs as well as educational support needs.  All 
pupils attending Woodlands have physical needs and over half of all pupils have 
additional sensory needs.  Additionally, the school now caters for a growing number 
of pupils who have deaf-blindness in addition to their physical needs.  Staff work 
closely with the Plymouth Advisory Team for Sensory Support to train teachers and 
support staff in sensory support qualifications to provide high quality education for 
pupils with complex needs across Plymouth.  Woodlands has a wealth of expertise, 
with specialist trained teachers of Multi-Sensory Impairment (MSI), Visual 
Impairment (VI) with SEN, and Hearing Impairment (HI), together with a team of 
trained Interveners, and is therefore already well placed to provide post-16 
education.  The school will pursue Specialist Status in Physical and Sensory 
Difficulties in the near future.  This would provide cost effective education in an 
inclusive school setting for pupils living in Plymouth who currently have to attend 
specialist independent provision out of county to have their sensory needs met.  
 
The benefits of extending the age range of and redesignating Woodlands 
Community Special School include: 
 
• Broaden the curriculum opportunities available to pupils by introducing 

progression routes which do not currently exist within the school, to keep them 
engaged in appropriate education and training beyond the age of 16 years. 

• Contribute towards enhancing pupils’ learning experiences and future 
employment and educational prospects, by providing work experience 
placements and opportunities for joint courses within the City, as appropriate. 

• Encourage young people to access education appropriate to their needs by 
offering a curriculum which is personalised and relevant to their complex 
physical and sensory needs, supporting the Children and Young People’s Plan 
key priority  ‘Enjoy and Achieve’. 

• Provide pupils with complex physical needs more learning time to develop an 
understanding of their own skills and therefore the ability to appropriately use 

Page 215



those skills for independent living.  This requires time and intensive specialist 
support, working alongside other agencies such as physiotherapy, occupational 
therapy and speech, with which we already have good relationships. 

• The City would have cost effective provision for pupils who currently often have 
to leave the City to have their educational needs met. 

• The City would benefit from accepting pupils from neighbouring authorities with 
similar needs which would off-set the cost of the provision. 

• The development of partnership working with other post-16 providers (specialist 
and non-specialist) would provide pupils with increased inclusion opportunities, 
a wider peer group and greater access to social development activities.  

• Pupils would be able to access education near to their homes and ensure they 
do not have to leave home at an early age.  For those who are not yet ready to 
leave home for a college placement at 16 years old or for those who would not 
cope with the change to another educational setting within the City the School 
would offer the education and life skills in order to prepare students for that 
transition at 19 if they then wish to continue their education at college.  

• Focused and well informed transitions to college, maybe including group visits 
to possible places.  

• Families and pupils are already expressing an interest in staying on at 
Woodlands.  

 
The disadvantages of extending the age range would be: 
 
• Current provision was not designed for post-16 and this may require alteration 

to current premises or building of new facilities to house the provision in future.  
The school has sufficient capacity to house the provision for several years with 
current accommodation.  

• Impact on other schools and providers of post-16 in the maintained and 
independent sector (Mill Ford School, Lipson Community College, City College 
Plymouth, Dame Hannah Rogers School). 

• Time and additional resources will be required for preparing the service to start 
in September 2010. 

 
The benefits of ceasing the residential status of the school and replacing it with a 
Short Break Residential Unit (registered under Children’s Homes Regulations) are: 
 
• Creates a single team with one management structure to deliver a short break 

provision. 
• Formalises the current practice whereby the Headteacher of Woodlands 

Community Special School does not make the decisions on who can access the 
short break service. 

• Service will be open to children 50 weeks a year. 
• Ring fences posts in the new service for current staff, thus providing an 

opportunity for ongoing employment for some staff. 
• Provides an opportunity for a high quality positive experience for children, with 

outcomes for children as part of a person-centred approach.  
• Creates a service with a value and ethos about children and balances that with 

the needs and requirements of parents and carers. 

Page 216



• The timing of the changes minimises the disruption to those children currently 
accessing the service. 

• Ensures inspection to the higher standards required by Children's Homes 
Regulations. 

• Provides vital support to parents and families with disabled children.  Families 
often experience disadvantage and access to short break opportunities enables 
families to live “ordinary” lives. 

• Implements advice from Ofsted that the residential service should be registered  
under the Children's Homes Regulations. 

• Ensures recoupment of the full costs of accommodating out of city children. 
 
The disadvantages of ceasing the residential status are: 
 
• The number of staff required will be reduced. 
• Staff will be required to apply for new jobs in the service. 
• Some staff will be at risk of redundancy. 
• The plans of individual pupils who have been identified as requiring a residential 

place at Woodlands Community Special School may need to be changed.  
 
Statutory Procedures 
 
The first stage of statutory procedures – normally 6 weeks - is to hold detailed and 
formal consultations with all interested parties, including parents, staff and 
governors, as well as all other schools in the City and other public agencies.  There 
are detailed provisions in DCSF guidance as to the prescribed information that must 
be made available to all consultees, which includes the details of the proposals, the 
impact of the proposals on students, staff, governors and the local community. 
 
Following completion of stage 1, the second stage prescribes that the local authority 
must give careful consideration to all the outcomes of and responses to the 
consultation and then decide in the light of those outcomes and responses whether 
to publish a formal proposal, in the form of a public notice, to extend the age range, 
redesignate and cease the residential status of the school.  
 
Following completion of stage 2, the third stage prescribes that the local authority 
must give careful consideration to all the outcomes of and responses to the public 
notice and then decide in the light of those outcomes and responses whether to 
implement the proposals to extend the age range, redesignate and cease the 
residential status of the school. 
 
The 4th and final stage is to implement the proposal.   

Page 217



 
 
PLYMOUTH 14-19 STRATEGY 2007 – 2012 OVERVIEW – JANUARY 09 UPDATE 
 
Our vision 

 
“Plymouth 14-19:  an outstanding, innovative, creative, motivating and inclusive 
“city-wide” learning campus where all young people flourish and can realise their 
wildest dreams”  
 
Our Values 
 
All young people are entitled to: 
 
• The highest quality and the broadest possible provision. 
• Opportunities to learn in ways that motivate, stretch and qualify them for 

success in life. 
• The best information, advice, guidance and brokerage 
 
Our accountability: 
 
• We are committed to working collaboratively, with trust and integrity for the 

benefit of our young people, as we believe that this collegiate approach will 
best serve the needs of our learners. 

• Raising aspirations in our young people and families/carers is one of the keys 
to unlocking potential and we will involve young people and parents in the 14-
19 agenda. 

• We are committed to equity and excellence for all and it is therefore our 
responsibility to ensure that appropriate resources are targeted at those young 
people from vulnerable groups at risk of underachievement. 

• We will work collaboratively to ensure that all young people make successful 
and appropriate transitions into, within and beyond the 14-19 phase, so that 
they can all progress into their chosen career and/or higher/further education 
pathway. 

• We will work collaboratively to maximise the use of resources in order to raise 
standards and increase achievement at city level. 

 
Our strategic aspirations 
 
By 2012, our strategy will have had a very strong impact on improving outcomes for 
young people.  In particular, we will be able to demonstrate a narrowing of the gap 
between the outcomes for most young people and those who are most vulnerable. 
Our contribution to the fifth outcome of the Every Child Matters agenda “Achieving 
economic well being” will be judged to be outstanding both by Ofsted through the 
JAR and by GOSW/DfES through the progress checks 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 218



Our strategic priorities 2008 - 2012 
 
1. To communicate the 14-19 vision for “buy-in” to all stakeholders working with 

and for young people in order to gain their commitment so that it informs the 
decisions that they take and which affect the 14-19 age range. 
• TwoFour Portal Project (Lead:  Annie Singer) 

 
2. To work with a wide range of service providers to shape the infrastructure 

required to realise the potential of the city-wide campus for all young people 
• Capital investment (Collective process) 
• HealthTec Project (Lead:  Annie Singer) 

 
3. To establish a city-wide robust data set in order to identify needs and inform 

service and curriculum planning. 
• Project lead:  Andy Birkett 

 
4. To shape the 14-19 curriculum provision, taking account of the demographic 

context, the sustainable community strategy, the needs of young people and 
their parents/carers as well as the need to make effective and efficient use of 
resources. 
• 14-19 mapping Project (Project team:  Viv Gillespie/Craig Marshall/Andy 

Birkett/Annie Singer) 
 

5. To establish a 14-19 Quality Improvement Strategy encompassing all forms of 
learning, IAG and brokerage. 
• Quality Framework based on Framework for Excellence/Model 

SLA/Learning Agreement (Leads:  Philip Braide/Annie Singer) 
 
6. To support the Machinery of Government Change processes  

• EBL contract (Lead:  Annie Singer) 
• Local transition group (Leads:  Colin Moore/Annie Singer/John Bale) 
• Regional subgroup (Lead:  Colin Moore) 

 
7. To develop a meaningful strategy to engage Young People in the development 

of the Plymouth 14-19 agenda 
• Employability Project with Young Chamber (Project lead:  Viv Gillespie) 

 
Our operational priorities 2008 - 2009 
 
1. To develop and implement an integrated city-wide NEETS strategy, in order to 

reduce the number of young people age 16-19 who have status NEETs. 
 
2. To develop and implement an integrated city-wide IAG strategy. 
 
3. To develop our city-wide curriculum provision, including informal opportunities, 

so that it meets the needs of all learners and raises their aspirations. 
 

Page 219



4. To develop and implement city-wide strategies in order to increase the 
percentage of young people achieving 5 A*- C, including English and Maths at 
age 16. 

 
5. To develop and implement city-wide strategies to improve outcomes at Level 3 

by the age of 19. 
 
6. To increase the take-up of post-16 Physical Sciences. 
 
7. To drive forward an integrated development and implementation of the 14 

Prospectus (including the CAP) and i-plymouth. 
 
8. To develop our Youth Volunteering Strategy. 
 
9. To put in place a Training and Development Programme which supports the 

implementation of this plan. 
 
All above needs to be underpinned by: 
 
10. The engagement with all stakeholders and especially learners, parents and 

employers. 
 
11. The good use of data across the 14-19 cohort in order to track the impact of our 

polices on young people of different ethnicity, disability and gender, those in 
areas of high social disadvantage, the hard to reach and those at risk, such as 
young people in public care. 

 
12. Sustained efforts to raise aspirations for learners, parents and carers, including 

through the AimHigher programme. 
 
Detailed aspirational outcomes to be achieved by 2012 

Quantitative indicators 
• The number of young people in education, training and employment are well 

above the average found in similar areas/authorities and our trend of 
improvement is significant and sustained. 

• High standards are maintained, including for all vulnerable, disaffected, minority 
ethnic and other groups. 

• The innovative curriculum and good quality teaching and learning in schools, FE 
colleges and training providers leads to high retention rates and consistently 
high performance, including well above average outcomes when compared with 
similar authorities at level 2 by age 16 and levels 2 and 3 by age 19. 

• Value added information indicates that young people are achieving well above 
expectations based on prior attainment. 

• Outstanding quality, coordination and range of advice empower young people 
with learning difficulties and those that are looked after to be independent, 
achieve highly and be well prepared for adult life. 

Page 220



Qualitative indicators 
• Very high quality partnership working leads to very effective advice and 

guidance to all groups of young people, including disaffected, vulnerable and 
minority ethnic groups, and those with complex needs. 

• Outstanding collaborative working has led to a very effective 14-19 strategy 
which sets and meets targets to meet identified needs. 

• The strategic partnership has made very good progress towards collective 
delivery of the new 14-19 vocational diplomas. 

• There is a wide range of pathways and flexibility to meet diverse needs, 
including hard-to-reach groups. 

• Vocational pathways are actively promoted, including to high-achieving young 
people. 

• There are very good links with employers, which result in good work placement 
opportunities and work-related learning. 

• Planning to ensure the necessary facilities and workforce to deliver the new 14-
19 curriculum entitlement is very effective. 

• Our stakeholders and especially students, parents and employers are positive 
about their involvement in the 14-19 agenda. 

Page 221



Wood View Learning Community 
 

On behalf of the Federated Governing Body 
 

 Consultation Paper on Woodlands Residence 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Following previous proposals presented to staff during the informal 

consultation, which commenced in June 2009, further work has been 
undertaken to develop the ideas for the change of service and we wish to now 
formally consult upon the following proposal.   

 
1.2 A decision has been made to formally recommend a change to the service 

which will create a single team with one management structure to deliver a 
short break provision in the long term.  The new service will run as a 6 bed 
service, 52 weeks a year (open to children for 50 weeks). It will initially be 
dual registered as a Children’s Home and Residential School, but with the 
intention to become solely a Children’s Home in 2011. 

 
1.3 This proposal will mean significant change for the provision as it will have to 

close and reopen as a new service.  The staff roles have changed and the 
number of staff required has reduced which will result in staff applying for new 
jobs in the service and place some staff at risk of redundancy. 

 
2. Service Change proposals: 
 
2.1  The residence will be open for 50 weeks of the year to provide short breaks 

for those children and young people who are considered by the Integrated 
Children’s Disability services to be in need of a residential short break service. 

 
2.2 Appoint to a new management structure which works year round; retains a 

proportion of the current staff; runs the service as a boarding residence and 
short break service until July 2011; and then solely as a short break service. 
The manager will report to the Director of the Wood View Learning 
Community. 

 
2.3 Service is funded to provide 6 beds per night with 4 members of staff on the 

day shift; two members of staff sleeping- in and two waking night staff. A 
waking nurse would be an addition as and when required. 

2.4       Nurses will become integral to the team. 

2.5       The service will have its own policies and procedures. 

2.6       The service will seek dual registration until 2011 and be registered under 
Children’s Home regulations thereafter. At the moment, the service is not 
inspected during the weekends or school holidays. 

2.7       There will be a separate identity for the residential provision from that of 
Woodlands Special School. A change of name for the residence is proposed. 

Page 222



 
3. Anticipated implications for current residents and their families: 
3.1 The structure provides an opportunity for high quality positive experience for 

children. This option plans outcomes for children as part of a person  centred 
approach  

3.2 The service provides residential short breaks only as the residential school 
service is phased out in July 2011.This will create a service with a value and 
ethos about children and balances that with the needs and requirements of 
parents and carers. 

3.3 Individual pupils who have been identified as requiring a place at Woodlands 
Residential Special School will need to have their plans changed. The 
timescale for changes has been identified to minimise the disruption to those 
children currently accessing the service.  

4. Anticipated implications for current staff: 
 
4.1 All staff have 52 week a year contracts with some staff working more hours at 

the weekends and in school holidays than during Mon-Fri in term time. The 
contracts will also reflect the expectations and needs of the service. 

4.2 The hours of employment will be set to ensure that staff can contribute 
meaningfully to the service objectives and also receive the appropriate level 
of support through staff meetings and supervision. 

4.3 There will be a standardisation of all contracts to 52 weeks and a new revised 
rota with changes to shift patterns 

4.4 The rota has built in an eleven hour break between shifts in keeping with the 
European work time directive 

4.5 Annual leave entitlement has been built into the rota, however it is anticipated 
that the residence will not be open over the Christmas and Easter periods and 
staff will be expected to take the equivalent portion of their leave entitlement 
at these times. 

4.6 All job descriptions and person specifications have been reviewed and new 
job descriptions for all posts are available. 

4.7 As part of the consultation process staff and unions will be consulted on a 
change to the Single Status agreements on shift working and overtime.  It is 
proposed that staff will receive an enhanced payment based on a percentage 
of the unsocial hours worked on individual contracts over the whole year. Part 
time and job share roles are viable and would be considered for all current 
and future employees, but term time only contracts will not be a feature of the 
new service. However, it is anticipated, that hours will vary between term time 
and holiday periods 

4.8 The new structure is attached as Appendix 1 to this document and there will 
be a full time Manager, 2 full time deputy managers and 5.2 full time 
equivalent RCO posts and a housekeeping post for 20 hours per week. 

 

Page 223



4.9 It is important that people with the right skills and experience are appointed to 
these posts and that the essential criteria are met. The Executive Committee 
have drawn up job descriptions and Person Specifications for each post. It is 
proposed that existing staff at the Residence will be given prior consideration 
and in the first instance all posts will be ring fenced and existing staff given 
the opportunity to express an interest prior to any open advertisement. The 
Executive Committee believe that all current employees will become subject 
to the redundancy and redeployment policies and as such will be seeking to 
work with all those affected to identify what choices and preferences they 
have in order to minimise distress and anxiety and to avoid enforced 
redundancy. 

 
4.10 The Executive Committee believe that as part of the closure and opening of 

the new short break service all current employees will be expected to express 
an interest in a reasonable alternative post and if they are unsuccessful in 
obtaining a post in the new service, then they will become subject to the 
redundancy and redeployment policies. 

  
4.11 It is the intent of management to work with staff to identify if there are any 

skills, shortfalls and development needs, in order to ensure wherever practical 
to do so they can participate in the new service and will offer such reasonable 
and necessary training as is required. 

 
5. Timeline for change: 

 
5.1 Informal discussions with staff started in June 2009. Formal consultation 

starts on 19th October 2009 and will run for three weeks ending on 6th 
November 2009. However the Executive Committee do not anticipate any 
significant change to existing practice until 1st April 2010. 

 
5.2 Week commencing 19th October 2009, formal consultation starts including 

meetings with Residence staff and parents and carers. 
 
5.3 On the 6th November 2009 formal consultation ends. 
 
5.4 Week commencing 9th November 2009, the implementation plan commences.  
 
5.5 December 2009 New Service Manager appointed. 
 
5.6 January – March 2010 Interviews and appointments to the posts identified in 

the structure attached in Appendix 1 of this document. 
 
5.7 31st March 2010 Woodlands Residence closes for two weeks. 
 
5.8 1st April 2010  New service commences 
   New contracts of employment are issued. 
   Training and preparation for the new service    
   
5.9 14th April 2010 New Service opens to children for Short Breaks 
 

Page 224



On Behalf of the Wood View Learning Community Federated Governing Body 
 
John Butcher   Sylvia Guyler   Kay O’Shaughnessy 
 
 
Director    Vice Chair of Governors  Chair of Learning 
 
19th October 2009 
Responses should be returned to 
 
Mr V T Pinches 
Chair of Governors 
Wood View Learning Community 
Lancaster Gardens 
Plymouth 
PL5 4AA 
 
Or by email to sarah.pain@woodview.plymouth.sch.uk 

Page 225



Draft Structure Chart for Wood View (formerly Woodlands Residence) Short Break Service w.e.f. 1st April 2010 
 

         D a t e d  &  R e v i s e d  a t  1 6 : 4 5  1 4 / 1 0 / 2 0 0 9  
 

 
 
 

ADMINISTRATOR  
                                                                                             DEPUTY MANAGER       DEPUTY MANAGER           6 NURSES (1 Senior Post and  

1 Nurse Post shared with 
Woodlands School) 

Catering Contract Managed by the Manager of the Short Break Service in conjunction with the Director of Campus 
 

Each RCO reports to a Deputy Manager 
DAY STAFF 
RCO  paid 28 hrs a week 52 weeks a year ; but will work 25 hrs a 
week in term time and 37 hrs a week in school holidays 

RCO paid 28 hrs a week 52 weeks a year; but will work 25 hrs a week 
in term time and 37 hrs a week in school holidays 

RCO  paid 19 hrs a week 52 weeks a year; but will work 19 hrs a 
week in term time and 19 hrs a week in the school holidays 

RCO paid 19 hrs a week 52 weeks a year; but will work 16 hrs a week 
in term time and 28 hrs a week in school holidays 

RCO  paid 16 hrs a week 52 weeks a year; but will work 14 hrs a 
week in term time and 21 hrs a week in school holidays 

RCO  paid 19 hrs a week 52 weeks a year; but will work 14 hrs a 
week in term time and  34 hrs a week in the school holidays 

RCO paid 18 hrs a week 52 weeks a year;  but will work 16 hrs a 
week in term time and  22 hrs a week in school holidays 

RCO paid 23 hrs a week 52 weeks a year; but will work 20 hrs a week 
in term time and 30 hrs a week in school holidays 

RCO paid 13 hrs a week 52 weeks a year; but will work 12 hrs a week 
in  term time and 16 hrs per week in school holidays 

RCO paid 10 hrs a week 52 weeks a year; but will work 8 hrs a week 
in term time and 15 hrs a week in school holidays 

Housekeeper works 20 hours a week, 52 weeks a year  
WAKING NIGHT STAFF  
RCO 37 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year RCO 37 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year 

Service 
Manager, 
Disabled 
Children’s 
Services PCC 

Commissioning 
Officer PCC 
(with links to 
NHS Plymouth) 

P
age 226



Draft Structure Chart for Wood View (formerly Woodlands Residence) Short Break Service w.e.f. 1st April 2010 
 

         D a t e d  &  R e v i s e d  a t  1 6 : 4 5  1 4 / 1 0 / 2 0 0 9  
 

RCO 37 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year RCO 37 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year 
RCO 12 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year RCO 12 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year 
NURSING STAFF  
The Senior Nurse Post (37 hrs per week 52 weeks a year) will be 
shared with Woodlands School 

A nurse will work 30 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year on day shifts 

The Term Time Only Nurse who works in school and Residence will 
continue to be shared 

A nurse will work 30 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year on day shifts 

A nurse will work 12 hrs a fortnight, 52 weeks a year on nights A nurse will work 28 hrs a week, 52 weeks a year on nights 
ADMINISTRATOR  
The Administrator will work 20 hrs a week, 42 weeks a year  

 
 

 
 
Grades of Posts 
Manager   Grade H 
Deputy   Grade G 
RCO Days   Grade E SUBJECT TO JOB EVALUATION 
RCO Waking Nights Grade E 
Housekeeper   SUBJECT TO JOB EVALUATION 
Administrator   SUBJECT TO JOB EVALUATION 
Nurses   Grade H 
 

P
age 227



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14Page 229
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2010 - 2013
	Draft Corporate Plan 2010-13

	7 OVERVIEW AND UPDATE OF PEOPLE, ICT AND ACCOMMODATION STRATEGIES
	8 CORPORATE ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN
	9 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY
	10 2010/2011 BUDGET (REVENUE AND CAPITAL)
	11 ADVERTISING SERVICES
	12 PROPOSAL TO EXTEND THE AGE RANGE, REDESIGNATE AND CEASE THE RESIDENTIAL STATUS OF WOODLANDS SCHOOL
	14 ADVERTISING SERVICES (E3)

